

66 BURNETT STREET, NORTH HOBART

ireneinc & smithstreetstudio PLANNING & URBAN DESIGN

PLANNING TAS PTY LTD TRADING AS IRENEINC PLANNING & SMITH STREET STUDIO PLANNING & URBAN DESIGN ABN 78 114 905 074

66 BURNETT STREET, NORTH HOBART

Submission to the Hobart City Council Planning Application for Demolition and early works

Last Updated - 19 July 2018 Author - Jacqui Blowfield

This report is subject to copyright the owner of which is Planning Tas Pty Ltd, trading as Ireneinc Planning and Smith Street Studio. All unauthorised copying or reproduction of this report or any part of it is forbidden by law and is subject to civil and criminal penalties as set out in the Copyright Act 1968. All requests for permission to reproduce this report or its contents must be directed to Irene Duckett.

TASMANIA

49 Tasma Street, North Hobart, TAS 7000 Tel (03) 6234 9281 Fax (03) 6231 4727 Mob 0418 346 283 Email planning@ireneinc.com.au

ireneinc planning

CONTENTS

CONTE	ENTS	3
1. INT	RODUCTION	4
1.1	BACKGROUND	4
1.2	SITE, EXISTING AND PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT	4
2. PL/	ANNING SCHEME PROVISIONS	6
2.1	ZONING AND OVERLAYS	6
2.4	URBAN MIXED USE ZONE	8
2.5	POTENTIALLY CONTAMINATED LAND CODE	9
2.5.1	Development Standards	9
2.6.1	Development Standards for Heritage Precincts	10
2.6.2	Development Standards for Places of Archaeological Potentia	l 10
3. CO	NCLUSION	12

1. INTRODUCTION

Ireneinc Planning have been engaged to prepare an application for demolition and early works at 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart. This report provides an assessment of the proposal against the provisions of the *Hobart Interim Planning Scheme 2015*.

The site location is described in the following figure:



Figure 1:Location (Source: LISTMap)

1.1 BACKGROUND

There is currently an application with Council for redevelopment on the site for a residential and visitor apartment use and development (PLN-17-1066), the current application seeks approval for the demolition and early works in the hope that these can proceed more quickly.

1.2 SITE, EXISTING AND PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

The land comprising the site is as follows:

66 Burnett Street, is a 3014m² internal lot (Title ref: 26099/4) which contains large existing buildings previously operating as Donald Gorringe Reconditioning and Spare Parts Pty Ltd, an automotive repair centre and machining workshop.

The site has frontages to both Burnett Street and Elizabeth Street. The existing buildings proposed to be demolished are located along the eastern boundaries as highlighted in red in the figure below.



Figure 2: Aerial Image, site is blue and development area in red (Source: LISTMap)

This application proposes demolition of the buildings to ground level along with the site decontamination and archaeology works detailed in the accompanying reports.

2. PLANNING SCHEME PROVISIONS

The following provisions of the *Hobart Interim Planning Scheme 2015* are relevant to consideration of the proposal.

2.1 ZONING AND OVERLAYS

The figure below describes the subject site primarily within the Commercial (medium slate blue), with the Elizabeth Street access way being in the Urban Mixed Use Zone (silver). Surrounding zones include the General Business (royal blue) and Light Industry (fushia) on the northern side of Burnett Street.



Figure 7: Zoning Plan (Source LISTMap)

6

All demolition works proposed as part of this application are within contained within the Commercial zoned area of the site, while a small part of the archaeology will also be within the Urban Mixed Use Zone.

The only mapped overlay which affects the site is the NH6 Heritage Precinct which applies to the Urban Mixed Use zoned part of the land, as follows:



Figure 3: Overlay Plan (Source LISTMap)

2.2 SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Part C of the Scheme includes the following in relation to demolition:

- 9.4.1 Unless approved as part of another development or prohibited by another provision, an application for demolition may be approved at the discretion of the planning authority having regard to:
 - (a) the purpose of the applicable zone;
 - (b) any relevant local area objective or desired future character statement of the applicable zone;
 - (c) the purpose of any applicable code; ...

The application will not conflict with the Purpose of either the applicable Zone or Codes further detailed in the following sections.

2.3 COMMERCIAL ZONE

The Zone Purpose is as follows:

- 23.1.1.1 To provide for large floor area retailing and service industries.
- 23.1.1.2 To provide for development that requires high levels of vehicle access and car parking for customers.
- 23.1.1.3 To provide for a diversity of generally non-residential uses reflecting the transition between the Central Business Zone and inner residential areas.
- 23.1.1.4 To allow for uses such as car yards, warehouse and showrooms in the areas of high traffic volume and high passing visibility.
- 23.1.1.5 To allow good quality building stock to be used for less land extensive central service uses such as offices and specialist wholesaling uses.
- 23.1.1.6 To allow for service industry uses such as motor repairs which provide a valuable service to users of the central area.
- 23.1.1.7 To provide for residential use primarily above ground floor level.

The demolition and early works proposed will provide for the redevelopment if the site, consistent with the above Purpose statements, subject to separate application.

There are no Local Area Objectives or Desired Future Character Statements for the Zone, and none of the Use or Development Standards of the Zone are relevant to the proposed application.

2.4 URBAN MIXED USE ZONE

The Zone Purpose is as follows:

- 15.1.1.1 To provide for integration of residential, retail, community services and commercial activities in urban locations.
- 15.1.1.2 To encourage use and development at street level that generates activity and pedestrian movement through the area.
- 15.1.1.3 To provide for design that maximises the amenity at street level including considerations of microclimate, lighting, safety, and pedestrian connectivity.
- 15.1.1.4 To ensure that commercial use are consistent with the activity centre hierarchy.
- 15.1.1.5 To ensure development is accessible by public transport, walking and cycling.
- 15.1.1.6 To provide for a diversity of uses at densities responsive to the character of streetscapes, historic areas and buildings and which do not compromise the amenity of surrounding residential areas.
- 15.1.1.7 To encourage the retention of existing residential uses and the greater use of underutilised sites as well as the reuse and adaptation of existing buildings for uses with a scale appropriate to the site and area.
- 15.1.1.8 To ensure that the proportions, materials, openings and decoration of building facades contribute positively to the streetscape and reinforce the built environment of the area in which the site is situated.
- 15.1.1.9 To maintain an appropriate level of amenity for residential uses without unreasonable restriction or constraint on the nature and hours of commercial activities.
- 15.1.1.10 To ensure that retail shopping strips do not develop along major arterial roads within the zone.

The demolition and early works proposed will provide for the redevelopment if the site, consistent with the above Purpose statements, subject to separate application.

8

There are no Local Area Objectives or Desired Future Character Statements for the Zone, and none of the Use or Development Standards of the Zone are relevant to the proposed application.

2.5 POTENTIALLY CONTAMINATED LAND CODE

The Zone Purpose is as follows:

- E2.1.1 The purpose of this provision is to:
 - (a) ensure that use or development of potentially contaminated land does not adversely impact on human health or the environment.

2.5.1 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

E2.6.2 Excavation	
Objective: To ensure that works involving exc not adversely impact on human health or the e	avation of potentially contaminated land does
SCHEME PROVISION	APPLICATION RESPONSE
 P1 Excavation does not adversely impact on health and the environment, having regard to: (a) an environmental site assessment that demonstrates there is no evidence the land is contaminated; or (b) a plan to manage contamination and associated risk to human health and the environment that includes: (i) an environmental site assessment; (ii) any specific remediation and protection measures required to be implemented before excavation commences; and (iii) a statement that the excavation does not adversely impact on human health or the environment. 	The Environmental Site Assessment 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart, Geo- Environmental Solutions, December 2017 and Contamination Management Plan, 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart, Geo-Environmental Solutions, December 2017 (amended 29 March 2018) detail how P1 will be met.

2.6 HISTORIC HERITAGE CODE

The Code includes the following purpose:

E13.1.1 To recognise and protect the historic cultural heritage significance of places, precincts, landscapes and areas of archaeological potential by regulating development that may impact on their values, features and characteristics.

As detailed previously the Elizabeth Street (existing access) area of the site is within the NH6 - Elizabeth Street Heritage Precinct, this application does not propose any demolition within the precinct. The rest of the site (ie excepting the Elizabeth Street access) is within the Archaeological Potential area.

2.6.1 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR HERITAGE PRECINCTS

E13.8.1 Demolition

Objective: To ensure that demolition in whole or in part of buildings or works within a heritage precinct does not result in the loss of historic cultural heritage values unless there are exceptional circumstances.

SCHEME PROVISION	APPLICATION RESPONSE
 SCHEME PROVISION P1 Demolition must not result in the loss of any of the following: (a) buildings or works that contribute to the historic cultural heritage significance of the precinct; (b) fabric or landscape elements, including plants, trees, fences, paths, outbuildings and other items, that contribute to the historic cultural heritage significance of the precinct; unless all of the following apply; (i) there are, environmental, social, economic or safety reasons of greater value to the community than the historic cultural heritage soft the place; (ii) there are no prudent or feasible alternatives; (iii) opportunity is created for a replacement building that will be 	APPLICATION RESPONSE The area of the land within the precinct is a driveway and there is therefore no building demolition proposed within the precinct, however some archaeology work is proposed in this area. The application therefore is in accordance with P1 in that it will not result in the loss of buildings, works or landscape elements which contribute to the cultural heritage significance of the precinct.
replacement building that will be more complementary to the heritage values of the precinct.	

2.6.2 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR PLACES OF ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL

The body of the lot (site excluding the Elizabeth Street accessway) is mapped within the area of archaeological potential. Separate accompanying reports provide a detailed history of the site and the proposed archaeological investigation.

E13.10.1 Building, Works and Demolition	
Objective: To ensure that building, works and demolition at a place of archaeological potential is planned and implemented in a manner that seeks to understand, retain, protect, preserve and otherwise appropriately manage significant archaeological evidence.	
SCHEME PROVISION	APPLICATION RESPONSE
P1 Buildings, works and demolition must not	The Statement of Archaeological Potential & Archaeological Method Statement, 66 Burnett

unnecessarily impact on archaeological

resources at places of archaeological	Street North Hobart, Tasarc, 5 June 2018,
potential, having regard to:	details how P1 is met.
(a) the nature of the archaeological evidence, either known or predicted;	
 (b) measures proposed to investigate the archaeological evidence to confirm predictive statements of potential; 	
 (c) strategies to avoid, minimise and/or control impacts arising from building, works and demolition; 	
(d) where it is demonstrated there is no prudent and feasible alternative to impacts arising from building, works and demolition, measures proposed to realise both the research potential in the archaeological evidence and a meaningful public benefit from any archaeological investigation;	
(e) measures proposed to preserve significant archaeological evidence 'in situ'.	

3. CONCLUSION

The application relates to land at 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart. It is proposed to demolish the existing buildings, and to undertake site decontamination and archaeology as a preliminary stage of works related to later redevelopment of the site, which is subject to separate application to Council.

The application meets the requirements of the Scheme including the relevant Standards.



GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL

S O L U T I O N S



ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT 66 BURNETT STREET DECEMBER 2017

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report builds on the findings from the *Preliminary Environmental Site Assessment* and presents the findings from the current invasive soil and soil vapour investigation. Geo-Environmental Solutions Pty. Ltd. (GES) was commissioned to conduct this work by Hobart Properties & Securities Pty Ltd, for the site located at 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart - hereby referred to as 'The Site' and formally referred to as 281a Elizabeth Street.

The purpose of this Environmental Site Assessment is to meet planning requirements for redevelopment of the site from a commercial garage and workshop to residential apartments. The *Preliminary Environmental Site Assessment* was written with the assumption that the land use was remaining unchanged, all results from the *Preliminary Environmental Site Assessment* will be assessed against appropriate guidelines for the redevelopment.

The objective of this environmental site assessment was to satisfy the planning requirement for the proposed site redevelopment, which involves the construction of a 7-level residential unit development that includes 2 levels of carparking with 96 parking spaces, 13 serviced apartments, 68 smaller apartments, 8 penthouse apartments and a proposed café shop front on Elizabeth Street. GES was required to determine the suitability of the site for the intended use and considered the following;

- Is the site suitable for residential apartments;
- Are there any contaminants of Potential Concern present;
- Is there a human health risk to current or future site users or trench workers;
- Is there an ecological health risk to offsite receptors;
- Identify any environmental site assessment data gaps;
- Provide recommendations on what measures may need to be put in place to address any potential data gaps and to further assess contamination remediation and/or management (if required).
- Provide a separate document, a Contamination Management Plan which outlines contamination management during the redevelopment phase of works.

The scope of works of this environmental site assessment was to:

- Conduct an invasive investigation in areas where site development is proposed;
- Review soil sample information (21 sample from 11 boreholes) from the previous investigation to compared against revised development works;
- Drill an additional ten (10) soil bores and collect 17 primary samples at the site in areas where data gaps were determined to further identify potential human health and ecosystem risk to onsite receptors from potentially contamination soil;
- Installation of 4 passive soil vapour samplers (plus a duplicate), Waterloo Membrane Samplers to confirm if there is a vapour risk present at the site.
- Soil samples were sent with quality assurance/ quality control samples for analysis to a National Association of Testing Authorities accredited laboratory;
- Compare soil analytical results against the NEPM 2013 guidelines and CRC CARE Technical Report 10 guidelines;
- Determine the absence or presence and if present the level of site contamination;
- Report in an environmental site assessment:
 - document the findings of the *Preliminary Environmental Site Assessment* and current site investigation;
 - $\circ\;$ present recommendations for remediation and protection measures during development and for future land users and
 - update the conceptual site model from *Preliminary Environmental Site Assessment* and contamination management recommendations.
- If contamination impact is identified at the site, advise on the preparation of a Contamination Management Plan which outlines contamination management during the redevelopment phase of works.

The following conclusions can be made from the invasive soil assessment.

- Site contamination findings are summarised:
 - Shallow soil impact has been identified in fill throughout the site within the top 0.3 to 0.4 m of the soil profile. Most of the identified impact is proposed to be excavated with a smaller amount to remain which is predominantly within guideline limits:
 - ESL exceedances have been identified based on a residential setting comprising benzo(a)pyrene and heavy oil compounds. Eight (8) exceedances are in the proposed excavation areas and three (3) which are to remain at the site beneath the new slab. Provided management measures are put in place, there is a LOW risk that the soil will present an environmental hazard;
 - EIL exceedances have been identified based on a residential setting comprising copper, nickel, zinc and lead. Ten (10) exceedances are in the proposed excavation areas and seven (7) which are to remain at the site beneath the new slab. Soil which is to remain at the site exceeds guidelines for copper and zinc. Provided management measures are put in place, there is a LOW risk that the soil will present an environmental hazard;
 - HIL B guidelines for assessing soil ingestion and dust inhalation risk are exceeded in six (6) samples at the site for assessing risk to future site users, of which all samples are proposed to be excavated except for BH4 0.5 m near the interceptor trap which exceeds HIL D. If the areas around the interceptor trap are excavated, there is an exposure risk to commercial workers, however based on available information, a risk to ongoing site users will be mitigated;
 - HSL D guidelines for assessing dermal contact risk to commercial workers have been identified in BH4 0.5 m near the interceptor trap (the same HIL D exceedance). Provided this impacted soil is removed, risk to future trench workers can be mitigated.
 - **Investigation Area A** Other than the identified site fill, no impact has been identified in the truck service area nor around underground storage tanks T3 and T4;
 - **Investigation Area B** Other than the identified site fill, and impact around the interceptor trap, no impact has been identified. There remain data gaps in this Area B. Areas around former underground storage tanks T1 and T2 as well as the nearby former bowser area have not been investigated given the presence of the building obstructions;
 - **Investigation Area C** has not been investigated given the presence of the building and infrastructure obstructions; and
 - Investigation Area D no soil impact has been identified in this area.
 - Areas where data gaps have been identified will need to be addressed in a site contamination management plan;

It has been identified that the bulk of the proposed excavated material averages out to Level 2 based on IB105 due to barium, lead, zinc and benzo(a)pyrene in the proposed excavation material. Barium is likely to be an artefact of background soils in the area and not a contaminant of concern at the site which may deem it as being classified Level 2. The bulk of the impact occurs in shallow fill material at the site, and care should be taken to scraping the top 0.3 m from the site and stockpiling is separately from the remaining deep excavations. This is likely to bring the bulk excavations below 0.3 m BGS to Level 1.

GES are not aware of any tank decommissioning and it needs to be assumed that all tanks (identified or not identified) remain at the site.

When redevelopment work commences for the site, GES recommends that the following actions should be undertaken:

- A Contamination Management Plan will be required
 - Further Environmental Site Assessment which should include but not be limited to;
 - All four underground storage tanks should be formally decommissioned and tank pits should be validated.
 - The interceptor trap should be removed, and remaining soil should be validated; and
 - Further investigations will be required under the footprint of the buildings, at a minimum in Area C for contamination.
- All excavated soil at the site should be stockpiled and assessed against IB105 guidelines

• GES recommends separating stockpiles; and keeping the shallow material 0.0-0.4 m bgs separate. All remaining material is likely to be classified as Level 1 clean fill (with proof of analytical results).

In summary, if recommendations herein are implemented, based on the adopted land used class, there is a low risk that soil at the site will present a risk to human health or the environment

Table	of	Contents
-------	----	----------

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	I
2 ABREVIATIONS	VIII
<u>3</u> INTRODUCTION	1
	1
3.1 GENERAL	1
3.3 INVESTIGATION ORIECTIVES	а А
3.4 Scope of Works	4
4 PLANNING	5
	_
4.1 SITE ZONING	5
4.2 EXISTING SITE LAYOUT	5
4.3 PROPOSED SITE DEVELOPMENT WORKS	5
4.4 ASSESSMENT TRIGGER 4.5 PERFORMANCE CRITERIA	7
5 DESKTOP STUDY	7
	_
5.1 CONCEPTUAL SITE MODEL – FROM PESA	8
5.1.1 AREAS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN	8
5.1.2 CONFIRMED AREAS OF CONTAMINATION	8 0
5.1.5 RECEPTORS 5.1.4 DATA GADS EDOMA DESA	0 8
J.I.4 DATA GAPS FROM LESA	0
6 FIELD INVESTIGATION PROCEDURES	10
6.1 WORKS SUMMARY	10
6.2 SOIL INVESTIGATION	10
6.2.1 BOREHOLE DRILLING	10
6.2.2 SOIL SAMPLING	12
6.2.3 SOIL ANALYSIS	12
6.3 SOIL VAPOR INVESTIGATION	12
7 QUALITY CONTROL	14
7.1 FIELD	14
7.1.1 SOIL	14
7.1.2 SOIL VAPOUR	15
7.2 LABORATORY	15
7.2.1 SOIL	15
7.2.2 SOIL VAPOUR	16
8 FIELD INVESTIGATION FINDINGS	17
8.1 SOIL BORES	17
8.1.1 GEOLOGICAL INTERPRETATION	17
8.1.2 SOIL GRAIN CLASS INTERPRETATION	18
Geo Environmental Solutions – GES	Page iv

8.2 PASSIVE SOIL VAPOUR ASSESSMENT	20
8.2.1 SOIL GRAIN CLASS INTERPRETATION	20
9 SOIL ECOLOGICAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT	20
	20
9.1 PROTECTED ENVIRONMENTAL VALUES	20
9.2 NEPMI (2013) GUIDELINES	20
9.3 GUIDELINES	21
9.3.1 ECOLOGICAL SCREENING LEVELS	21
9.3.2 ECOLOGICAL INVESTIGATION LEVELS	21
9.4 FINDINGS	22
9.4.1 ECOLOGICAL SCREENING LEVELS	22
9.4.2 ECOLOGICAL INVESTIGATION LEVELS	22
10 SOIL HUMAN HEALTH DIRECT CONTACT ASSESSMENT	25
10.1 GUIDELINES	25
10.1.1 LAND USE CLASSIFICATION	25
10.1.2 Adopted Land Use Classification	25
10.1.3 HEALTH INVESTIGATION & SCREENING LEVELS	25
10.2 FINDINGS	26
10.2.1 DERMAL CONTACT - PETROLEUM HYDROCARBONS	26
10.2.2 DUST INHALATION & SOIL INGESTION	28
11 INDOOR INHABITANT PVI ASSESSMENT – HSL'S	30
11.1 SELECTED MEDIA FOR ASSESSING PVI RISK	30
11.2 LAND USE CLASS	31
11.3 VAPOUR BARRIER ASSESSMENT	31
11.4 Soil Assessment Findings	32
11.5 Soil Vapour Assessment Findings	33
12 TRENCH WORKER PVI ASSESSMENT – HSL'S	34
12.1 CLASSIFICATION	34
12.2 Soil Assessment Findings	34
12.3 SOIL VAPOUR ASSESSMENT FINDINGS	36
13 SOIL DISPOSAL ASSESSSMENT	37
13.1 GUIDELINES	3/
13.2 FINDINGS	37
	40
	40
14.1 POTENTIAL & IDENTIFIED SOURCES OF CONTAMINATION	10
14.1.1 POTENTIAL PRIMARY SOURCES	40 40
	40 10
	40 40
	40
	40
14.2.1 POTENTIAL POTOKE UNSITE RECEPTORS	41
14.2.2 POTENTIAL OFFSITE RECEPTORS	41

	41
14.3 TRANSPORT MECHANISMS AND EXPOSURE ROUTES	41
14.3.1 INCOMPLETE CONTAMINANT EXPOSURE PATHWAYS	41
14.3.2 PUTENTIAL PATHWAYS	42
14.3.3 PLAUSIBLE CONTAMINANT EXPOSURE PATHWAY DETAILS	42
15 CONCLUSIONS	44
15.1 ADOPTED LAND USE SETTINGS	44
15.2 INVASIVE SOIL ASSESSMENT	44
15.3 POTENTIALLY CONTAMINATED LAND CODE	45
15.3.1 CHANGE OF USE STANDARDS	45
15.3.2 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS	46
16 RECOMMENDATIONS	47
REFERENCES	48
LIMITATIONS STATEMENT	49
APPENDIX 1 GES STAFF	50
APPENDIX 2 PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL UNIT DEVELOPMENT PLANS	51
APPENDIX 3 SITE PHOTOGRAPHS	59
APPENDIX 4 LABORATORY CHAIN OF CUSTODY (COC) AND SAMPLE RE	ECEIPT NOTIFICATION 66
APPENDIX 5 SOIL QUALITY CONTROL DOCUMENTATION	81
APPENDIX 6 SOIL VAPOUR QUALITY CONTROL DOCUMENTATION	116
APPENDIX 7 SOIL BORE LOGS	117
APPENDIX 8 SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS - CERTIFICATE OF ANALYSIS	138
17 APPENDIX 9 SOIL VAPOUR ANALYTICAL RESULTS	162

Figures

FIGURE 1 SITE LOCATION, 20M SCALE, IMAGE SOURCED FROM THE LIST. SITE OUTLINED IN RED	. 1
FIGURE 2 SITE LOCATION, 100M SCALE, IMAGE SOURCED FROM THE LIST	. 2
FIGURE 3 TASMANIAN INTERIM PLANNING SCHEME ZONING (2015), SITE OUTLINED IN RED	. 5
FIGURE 4 PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT	. 6
FIGURE 5 LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS AND AREAS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN	. 9
FIGURE 6 BOREHOLE (BH1 TO BH21) INVESTIGATION AREAS	11
FIGURE 7 CONCEPTUAL SITE MODEL IDENTIFYING CONTAMINATION SOURCE, RECEPTORS AND TRANSPORT MECHANISMS/EXPOSURE	
Routes	43

Tables

TABLE 1 SITE DETAILS	3
TABLE 2 SUMMARY OF SITE INVESTIGATIONS	10
TABLE 3 SUMMARY OF SOIL SAMPLING METHODS	12
TABLE 4 OVERVIEW OF SOIL ANALYSIS AND QUALITY CONTROL	12
TABLE 5 SUMMARY OF PASSIVE VOC SAMPLER ID NUMBERS, DEPLOYMENT LOCATIONS	13
TABLE 6 SUMMARY OF AMBIENT PASSIVE VOC SAMPLING PROCEDURES USING THE WATERLOO MEMBRANE SAMPLER	13
TABLE 7 SOIL FIELD QA/QC PROCEDURES AND COMPLIANCE	14
TABLE 8 SOIL VAPOUR FIELD QA/QC PROCEDURES AND COMPLIANCE	15
TABLE 9 SOIL LABORATORY QA/QC PROCEDURES AND COMPLIANCE	15
TABLE 10 SOIL VAPOUR LABORATORY QA/QC PROCEDURES AND COMPLIANCE	16
TABLE 11 STRATIGRAPHY AT THE SITE (DEPTHS INDICATE BASE OF HORIZON)	17
TABLE 12 SUMMARY OF SOIL GRAIN CLASS AVERAGING BASED ON USCS CLASSIFICATION	19
TABLE 13 SUMMARY OF SOIL GRAIN CLASS AVERAGING BASED ON USCS CLASSIFICATION	20
TABLE 14 SUMMARY OF SOIL INVESTIGATION LIMITS CONSIDERED AT THE SITE BASED IN NEPM (2013) ASC	21
TABLE 15 ADOPTED LAND USE SCENARIO FOR THE VARIOUS SOIL BORES	21
TABLE 16 SUMMARY OF SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS COMPARED WITH ESL'S	23
TABLE 17 SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS COMPARED AGAINST ECOLOGICAL INVESTIGATION LEVELS	24
TABLE 18 SUMMARY OF LAND USE SETTING AND DENSITY FOR DETERMINING EXPOSURE RISK	25
TABLE 19 SUMMARY OF LAND USE CLASS ADOPTED FOR DEFINING SOIL ANALYSIS THRESHOLD LIMITS	25
TABLE 20 SUMMARY OF EXPOSURE PATHWAYS AND PRELIMINARY (TIER 1) METHODS FOR ASSESSING HUMAN EXPOSURE RISK	26
TABLE 21 SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS COMPARED AGAINST CRC CARE (FRIEBEL & NADEBAUM, 2011) GUIDELINES FOR DERMAL	
CONTACT	27
TABLE 22 SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS COMPARED AGAINST NEPM (2013) HEALTH INVESTIGATION LIMIT GUIDELINES	29
TABLE 23 PREFERRED METHODS FOR DETERMINING SITE PVI RISK	30
TABLE 24 CLASSIFICATION USED TO ASSESS PETROLEUM VAPOUR INTRUSION RISK TO LOCAL RECEPTORS FROM SOIL	31
TABLE 25 SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS COMPARED AGAINST HSL D	32
TABLE 26 SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS COMPARED AGAINST HSL B	33
TABLE 27 SOIL VAPOUR ANALYTICAL RESULTS COMPARED AGAINST NEPM HSLS FOR ASSESSING PETROLEUM VAPOUR INTRUSION R	₹ ISK
(NEPM2013)	33
TABLE 28 SUMMARY OF SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS COMPARED AGAINST HSL'S FOR ASSESSING PVI RISK TO TRENCH WORKERS	35
TABLE 29 Soil Vapour Analytical Results Compared Against CRC CARE Guidelines for Assessing Petroleum Vapour	
INTRUSION RISK TO TRENCH WORKERS (CRC CARE - FRIEBEL & NADEBAUM, 2011)	36
TABLE 30 SUMMARY OF IB105 CLASSIFICATION GUIDELINES	37
TABLE 31 ALL SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS COMPARED AGAINST IB105 INVESTIGATION LIMITS FOR SOIL DISPOSAL	38
TABLE 32 PROPOSED EXCAVATED SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS ONLY COMPARED AGAINST IB105 INVESTIGATION LIMITS FOR SOIL DISP	OSAL
WITH AVERAGES INCLUDED	39
TABLE 33 SUMMARY OF POTENTIAL FUTURE ONSITE RECEPTORS	41
TABLE 34 SUMMARY OF POTENTIAL OFFSITE RECEPTORS	41
TABLE 35 SUMMARY OF INCOMPLETE CONTAMINANT EXPOSURE PATHWAYS	42
TABLE 36 SUMMARY OF POTENTIAL COMPLETE CONTAMINANT EXPOSURE PATHWAYS	42
TABLE 37 INTERIM PLANNING SCHEME DEVELOPMENT STANDARD CODES FOR PROPOSED SITE EXCAVATION WORKS	45
TABLE 37 INTERIM PLANNING SCHEME DEVELOPMENT STANDARD CODES FOR PROPOSED SITE EXCAVATION WORKS	46

2 ABREVIATIONS

AEC	Areas of Environmental Concern
AHD	Australian Height Datum
ALS	Analytical Laboratory Services
ANZECC	Australia and New Zealand Environment and Conservation Council
BGS	Below Ground Surface
BH	Borehole
BTEX	Benzene Toluene Ethylbenzene Xylene
COA	Certificate of Analysis
COC	Chain of Custody
COPC	Chemical of Potential Concern
CRC CARE	Corporative Research Centre for Contamination Assessment and Remediation of the Environment
CSM	Conceptual Site Model
DA	Development Application
DQO	Data Quality Objectives
DWS	Depth Water Struck
EPA	Environmental Protection Authority
ESA	Environmental Site Assessment
GES	Geo-Environmental Solutions Pty. Ltd.
HIL	Health Investigation Levels
HSL	Health Screening Levels
IL	Investigation Levels
LOR	Limits of Reporting
NATA	National Association of Testing Authorities
NEPM	National Environmental Protection Measure
NHMRC	National Health and Medical Research Council
NRMMC	Natural Resource Management Ministerial Council
NL	Non Limiting
NRMMC	Natural Resource Management Ministerial Council
PESA	Preliminary Environmental Site Assessment
PAH	Poly-Aromatic Hydrocarbons
PCP	Physico-Chemical Parameters
PEV	Protected Environmental Values
PHC	Petroleum Hydrocarbons
PPA	Preferential (PVI) Pathways Assessment
PVI	Petroleum Vapour Intrusion
SCA	Site Contamination Assessment
SCM	Site Contamination Model
SGS	Specialist Laboratory Services
TPH	Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons

Geo Environmental Solutions – GES

TRH	Total Recoverable Hydrocarbons
USCS	Unified Soil Classification System
WMS	Waterloo Membrane Samplers

3 INTRODUCTION

3.1 General

This report builds on the findings from the *Preliminary Environmental Site Assessment* (PESA; GES, July 2017) and presents the findings from the current invasive soil and soil vapour investigation. Geo-Environmental Solutions Pty. Ltd. (GES) was commissioned to conduct this work by Hobart Properties & Securities Pty Ltd, for the site located at 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart - hereby referred to as 'The Site' and formally referred to as 281a Elizabeth Street (GES 2017). The site location is presented in **Figure** 1 and **Figure** 2.

The purpose of this Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) is to meet planning requirements for redevelopment of the site from a commercial garage and workshop to residential apartments. The *PESA* was written with the assumption that the land use was remaining unchanged, all results from the PESA will be assessed against appropriate guidelines for the redevelopment.

The ESA has been prepared by a suitably qualified and experience practitioner in accordance with procedures and practices detailed in National Environmental Protection Measure (NEPM, 2013) guidelines and key regulations and policies identified in the References section of this document. Personnel engaged in preparing this ESA are listed in Appendix 1 along with their relevant qualifications and years of experience.



Figure 1 Site Location, 20m scale, image sourced from the LIST. Site outlined in red



Figure 2 Site Location, 100m scale, image sourced from the LIST

3.2 Site Details

Site details are presented in Table 1 and Plate 1 shows the office and one of the workshops on site.

Table 1 Site Details

SITE LOCATION:

66 Burnett Street, North Hobart. Identified as 281a Elizabeth Street, North Hobart in the PESA (GES 2017)

INVESTIGATION AREA

281a Elizabeth Street which has a second entrance at 66 Burnett Street. Limits approximately defined by borehole extent

SITE ELEVATION & GRADIENT

41.7 to 46.2 m Australian Height Datum (AHD) over 110m with a 2.5° or 4.5% increase to the northern end of the site.

SITE SURFACING

The surface of the site is 95 % concrete and 5% gravel fill.

TITLE REFERENCES

The investigation area includes the following title reference for 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart:

CT 26099/4 SITE OWNER

Hobart Properties & Securities Pty Ltd

PREVIOUS LANDUSE

Residential Properties

SITE SURROUNDING LAND ZONING

Tasmanian Interim Planning Scheme 2015 The majority of the site is zone '23.0 Commercial'

Drive way from Elizabeth Street is Zoned '15.0 Urban Mixed Use'

SITE LAND USE

Commercial Land Use for the maintenance and repairs of a range of cars and trucks

PROPOSED LAND USE

Unknown

SURROUNDING LAND USE:

NE: Commercial Properties; SE to NW: Mixed Urban use – Café's and Restaurants;

N Light Industrial premises.



Plate 1 The Site, 66 Burnett Street; Street View looking in a Southeasterly direction.

3.3 Investigation Objectives

The objective of this ESA was to satisfy the planning requirement for the proposed site redevelopment, which involves the construction of a 7-level residential unit development that includes 2 levels of carparking with 96 parking spaces, 13 serviced apartments, 68 smaller apartments, 8 penthouse apartments and a proposed café shop front on Elizabeth Street. GES was required to determine the suitability of the site for the intended use and considered the following;

- Is the site suitable for residential apartments;
- Are there any contaminants of Potential Concern (COPC's) present;
- Is there a human health risk to current or future site users or trench workers;
- Is there an ecological health risk to offsite receptors;
- Identify any data gaps;
- Provide recommendations on what measures may need to be put in place to address any potential data gaps and to further assess contamination remediation and/or management (if required).
- Provide a separate document, a Contamination Management Plan which outlines contamination management during the redevelopment phase of works.

3.4 Scope of Works

The scope of works of this ESA was to:

- Conduct an invasive investigation in areas where site development is proposed;
- Review soil sample information (21 sample from 11 boreholes) from the previous investigation to compared against revised development works;
- Drill an additional ten (10) soil bores and collect 17 primary samples at the site in areas where data gaps were determined to further identify potential human health and ecosystem risk to onsite receptors from potentially contamination soil;
- Installation of 4 passive soil vapour samplers (plus a duplicate), Waterloo Membrane Samplers (WMS) to confirm if there is a vapour risk present at the site.
- Soil samples were sent with quality assurance/ quality control (QA/QC) samples for analysis of total recoverable hydrocarbons (TRH) Benzene Toluene Ethylbenzene Xylene (BTEX), Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PAH) and Heavy Metals to a National Association of Testing Authorities (NATA) accredited laboratory;
- Compare soil analytical results against the NEPM 2013 guidelines and CRC CARE Technical Report 10 guidelines (Friebel & Nadebaum 2011);
- Determine the absence or presence and if present the level of site contamination;
- Report in an ESA:
 - document the findings of the PESA and current site investigation;
 - present recommendations for remediation and protection measures during development and for future land users and
 - $\circ\,$ update the conceptual site model (CSM) from PESA (GES 2017) and contamination management recommendations.
- If contamination impact is identified at the site, advise on the preparation of a Contamination Management Plan which outlines contamination management during the redevelopment phase of works.

4 PLANNING

4.1 Site Zoning

The site is currently zoned Commercial under the Tasmanian Interim Planning Scheme 2015 (Figure 3), except for the driveway on Elizabeth Street which is zoned Urban Mixed Use. It is expected that if the proposed residential unit development proceeds a change of use will be required.

The land use surrounding the site is consistent with the zoning; the land east of the site is largely Commercial, the properties along Elizabeth Street are zoned Urban Mixed use, northwest of the intersection of Elizabeth Street and Burnett Street Elizabeth Street is General Business and there is a small strip along Burnett Street that is zone Light Industrial. More broadly the site is surrounded by Inner Residential and the major roads in the area are zoned Utilities.



Figure 3 Tasmanian Interim Planning Scheme Zoning (2015), site outlined in red

4.2 Existing Site Layout

A schematic of the existing site layout is presented in Figure 4. A driveway runs the length of the site from 66 Burnett Street exiting at 281a Elizabeth Street. There are five workshop buildings and one office building.

4.3 Proposed Site Development Works

At the time the PESA (GES 2017) was written GES was unaware of any changes to use of the site. However, since the PESA was written, GES has been provided with Development Application (DA) plans that include a multistory residential unit development, designed by Andrew and Mckellar design, Noosaville, Queensland (August 2017). See Appendix 2 for the proposed design. The following is proposed for the site:

- Level 1 Carparking, gym and storage and a separate café with kitchen and washroom facilities;
- Level 2 Carparking, storage and 11 serviced apartments; 2 apartments will be located on the current ground floor level in the northern edge of the building and 2 apartments will be built above the café;
- Level 3 19 apartments, including 2 above the café (final level on café building);
- Level 4 17 apartments;
- Level 5 17 apartments;
- Level 6 17 apartments;
- Level 7 8 penthouse apartments.



Figure 4 Proposed Site Layout

The risk assessment herein depends on likely soil and/ or vapour exposure pathways based on:

- Present site conditions;
- Proposed development site layout and building construction; and
- Site earthworks

4.4 Assessment Trigger

The need for this assessment has been triggered by the following:

- The ESA is a requirement for the proposed Sale of Land.
- The site falls within the Hobart City Council contaminated site overlay and need to be assessed in accordance with the following interim planning scheme code:
 - E2.5 Use Standards
 - E2.6.2 Excavation.
- Given that there is proposed *excavation works* at the site, there are no acceptable solutions to proposed works, and therefore E2.6.2 P1 performance criteria are to be addressed
- Given that there is a proposed *change of use* at the site *The Director, or a person approved by the Director for the purpose of this Code:*
 - a) certifies that the land is suitable for the intended use; or
 - b) approves a plan to manage contamination and associated risk to human health or the environment that will ensure the land is suitable for the intended use.

4.5 Performance Criteria

Excavation does not adversely impact on health and the environment, having regard to:

- (a) an environmental site assessment that demonstrates there is no evidence the land is contaminated; or
- (b) a plan to manage contamination and associated risk to human health and the environment that includes:
 - i. an environmental site assessment;
 - ii. any specific remediation and protection measures required to be implemented before excavation commences; and
 - iii. a statement that the excavation does not adversely impact on human health or the environment.

Land is suitable for the intended use, having regard to:

- (a) an environmental site assessment that demonstrates there is no evidence the land is contaminated; or
- (b) an environmental site assessment that demonstrates that the level of contamination does not present a risk to human health or the environment; or
- (c) a plan to manage contamination and associated risk to human health or the environment that includes:
 - i. an environmental site assessment;
 - ii. (any specific remediation and protection measures required to be implemented before any use commences; and
 - iii. a statement that the land is suitable for the intended use.

5 DESKTOP STUDY

Please see the desk top study from the PESA (GES, 2017) for details on the following:

- Site walkover conducted on the 17 June
- MRT Geology Mapping
- Site Topography, Drainage & Hydrogeology
- Historical Aerial Photography Interpretation
- Dangerous Goods Records (Work Standards Tasmania)
- Environmental Protection Authority (EPA) Property Information Request

5.1 Conceptual Site Model – From PESA

5.1.1 Areas of Potential Concern

The following areas of potential concern (AOPC) have been identified and illustrated in Figure 5.

<u>Area A</u>: contains two underground storage tanks (USTs), T2 and T3, historical bowser location and associated fuel lines, a truck service pit in a workshop and a large area in front of the office building where the ground appears stained in the historical aerial photographs.

<u>Area B</u>: contains UST - T1, historical bowser location and associated fuel lines and the interceptor trap plus probably associated pipework. Potential contamination from neighboring historical service station site is also possible in this area.

Area C: appeared to have dark staining on the ground in the 1965 historical aerial photograph.

<u>Area D</u>: appeared to have dark staining on the ground in the 1965 historical aerial photograph and the surface is soil and gravel. This location has had a lot of vehicles parked on it overtime and during the site walkover it was identified as an area where potentially hazardous material is stored.

General potential contamination across the site includes the following:

- Historical vehicle wash-down bay
- Oil/ fuel and hazardous chemical dump points, piping to the interceptor trap
- Battery and oil storage areas
- Corrosion of metal from cars and buildings

There may be other areas on the site where potentially contaminating activities have occurred, but historical links have not been identified.

Contaminants of potential concern (COPC) include the following:

- Total Petroleum/Recoverable Hydrocarbons (TPH/TRH);
- Mono Aromatic hydrocarbons: Benzene, Toluene, Ethylbenzene, Xylene (BTEX);
- Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PAH);
- Lead from unleaded fuel and battery acid and
- Heavy Metals in possible site fill.

5.1.2 Confirmed Areas of Contamination

The following contamination has been confirmed:

- There is localised surface contamination around T3 and T4
- There is localised surface contamination around the interceptor trap, and
- Elevated levels of Lead contamination across the site.

5.1.3 Receptors

After conducting the PESA the following conclusions were made about the potential receptors and the complete contamination exposure pathways:

- Ecosystems ecosystem impact was ruled as there are not ecosystems within 100m.
- Offsite receptors exposure may result from
- Trenchworks during the development and future trench workers
- Indoor inhabitants on site, current and future.

5.1.4 Data Gaps from PESA

Areas that require further investigations regarding contamination include the following;

- <u>UST T1 and T2 plus Area C</u> unknown levels of contamination
- <u>Interceptor trap and Tank pit</u> once this infrastructure and associated pipework has been removed, the remaining soil around the excavated sites will need to be sampled, analysised and validation to confirm that remaining material on site is within guidelines limits for human health and ecosystem protection.
- <u>Vapour risk to ground floor users</u> the proposed location of the café on Elizabeth Street.

• <u>Changes of land use</u> – all analytical results from the PESA were compared against the HSL/HIL D guideline for Commercial Land use. Given that some of the proposed apartments will be on ground floor level the results need to be compared against HSLB.



Figure 5 Locations of underground storage tanks and Areas of Potential Concern

6 FIELD INVESTIGATION PROCEDURES

6.1 Works Summary

Site investigation work was conducted on the 17 June 2017 and the 11 December 2017, details of the investigation are included in Table 2. All soil bore and soil vapour sampling locations are presented in Figure 6.

 Table 2 Summary of Site Investigations

Hole ID	SB Drilled & Samples	Soil Vapour sampled
BH1 – BH11	17 June 2017	-
BH12 – BH21	11 December 2017	-
VP1-VP4 (BH13, BH16, BH20 & BH21)	11 December 2017	11-14 December 2017

The following boreholes BH1, BH2, BH15 and BH21 were drilled in area D to assess for potential contaminates from storage of materials and parking of vehicles. Bore hole BH3 and BH20 were drilled in the driveway to assess any potential contamination from the former upgradient BP service station and/ or the site, and BH4 was drilled adjacent to the interceptor trap. Bore holes BH6 to BH9 were drilling surrounding the two UST's on site. BH10 and BH17 were drilled in the open unpaved parking area and BH11 was drilled in the base of the service pit. BH12, BH13 and BH14 were drilled under the existing building to identify any soil contamination under the existing buildings.

6.2 Soil Investigation

6.2.1 Borehole Drilling

At each of the soil bore locations, the following precautions were put in place to avoid disrupting underground service assets:

- Dial Before You Dig plans were obtained;
- Archers Underground Service were engaged; and
- Where practical, the first meter of the bore was cleared with a hand auger.

Concrete coring was undertaken through bitumen or concrete at each drilling location as required.

A total of ten (10) 65 mm diameter soil bores were drilled for assessing site geology and sampling for contamination impact. The bores were drilled by GES using a hand auger and or the industry recognized Geoprobe direct push drilling system. The selected drilling method involved using a Geoprobe dual tube to retain wall integrity and eliminates risk of profile collapse whilst allowing extraction of 1.0 m length sample cores.



Figure 6 Borehole (BH1 to BH21) Investigation Areas

6.2.2 Soil Sampling

Soil bore soil sampling was conducted per the National Environmental Protection Measure (NEPM 2013) and AS4482 sampling guidelines. Table 3 presents a summary of the soil assessment methodology adopted at the site.

Table 5 Summary of Son Sampling Methods	Table 3	Summary	of Soil Sampling M	ethods
---	---------	---------	--------------------	--------

Activity	Details / Comments					
Drilling Method	 Soil bores were drilled: Hand auger over the first meter to clear for services, and grab sampling; Hollow stem auger until refusal depth and split spoon sampling; Percussion drilling in rock and grab samples were collected from air blast cuttings 					
Soil Logging	Logging the soil was conducted in accordance with the unified soil classification system (USCS) as detailed in AS1726 (1993).					
Decontamination of Sampling Equipment	Quantum Clean Laboratory Detergent (R213) was used to decontaminate reusable sampling equipment.					
Laboratory Soil Sample Collection	 In accordance with AS4482.2. All samples were collected using disposable nitrile gloves. Samples were selected for laboratory analysis: at least every metre; select samples were collected from representative horizons and submitted for analysis. A minimum number of samples were carefully selected which would provide sufficient information to delineate hydrocarbon contamination in soils. 					
Sample preservation	Samples were placed into a jar for laboratory analysis. Soil jars were placed in a pre- chilled cool box with ice bricks.					
Sample holding times Sample holding times were within acceptable range (based on NEPM B3-2 collection to extraction.						

6.2.3 Soil Analysis

Primary and QC samples were submitted to Analytical Laboratory Services (ALS) Springvale Avenue in Melbourne for analysis. Of the 17 primary samples collected, 17 were selected for analysis. Chain of Custody (COC) documentation was completed and is provided in Appendix 5. Table 4 presents a summary of the laboratory analyses undertaken.

Table 4	Overview	of Soil Ana	lysis and (Ouality Control	Ľ
I able 4	0,01,10,0	or bon ma	iysis anu '	Quanty Control	L

Analytes	Primary Soil Samples	Duplicates ^a	Rinse Blank ^b	Trip Blank ^c
TPH/TRH	17	1	1	-
BTEX	17	1	1	-
PAH*	17	1	1	-

Sampling Quality Control Standards (AS4482):

a – One (1) in twenty (20) duplicate samples

b - Single rinse sample per piece of equipment per day

Given that a full 15 metal suite was analysed, there was requirement to assess the following soil physical properties to determine soil threshold investigation levels:

- Soil grain class (sand/silt or clay)
- % Clay content;
- Cation exchange capacity; and
- Soil pH

The soil physical properties were assessed through site assessment and chemical properties were based on knowledge of similar soil types encountered around Hobart.

6.3 Soil Vapor Investigation

The objective of the soil vapour assessment was to confirm if there is a risk to future site users. Waterloo Membrane Samplers(WMS) were used to semi quantitatively assess vapour intrusion risk.

A total of four (4) 65 mm diameter soil bores were drilled and adopted for the installation of the WMS to assessing soil vapour conditions. Vapour sampling probes were installed in each hole VP1-VP4, plus a

duplicate in adjacent to VP4 hole. The passive sampler ID numbers and deployment locations are also summarised in Table 5 and presented in Figure 6.

Soil Bores	Corresponding	Installation	Installation Details		
for WMS	Borehole	depth (m)			
VD1	PH20	1.1	Southwestern laneway that enters Elizabeth Street, which will		
VPI	БП20	1.1	be the location of the proposed Café.		
ND2 DU21		1 1	Southern corner of the apartment complex, located in the		
VP2 I	D П21	1.1	'stores' areas of the ground floor.		
			Eastern corner of the apartment complex, located in the		
VP3	BH13	0.55	driveway of the ground floor carpark between parking spaces		
			41, 35 and 57.		
VD4	DUIC	3.4	Northern end of the Apartment complex, site for the ground		
VP4	БПІО		floor Gym, soil vapour duplicate placed here		

'	Table 5	5 Sumn	nary of Passive V	OC Sampler	ID Numbe	ers, Deployment	: Locations
L	n 1	ъ	C P	T 4 11 4*	D / 1		

WMS were installed as per the deployment methods outlined in the Waterloo Membrane Sampler – Installation Methodology (SGS, 2017) guide. Standard procedures for passive sampler deployment, collection and dispatch are detailed in Table 6.

Table	6 Summar	y of Ambient	t Passive VO	C Sampling	Procedures	using the	Waterloo I	Membrane	Sampler

Activity	Procedure Details						
Ambient Probe Deployment	 For each sampling location, the following sampling method for deployment was as follows: Each hole was hand augered and/ or drilled to the required depth, maximum 1.2m bgs. WMS in a wire casing was lowered into hole with a fishing line The foam plug inside the ridged plastic sleeve was installed in the borehole with the assistance of a PVC pipe. 						
	 PVC pipe was then removed The borehole was covered with a aluminum foil to protect from precipitation entering the how. 						
Sampling Duration	 To achieve to achieve the desired LOR's and the full sampling requirement for F2 (C⁹ to C¹⁶) the samples were in situ for three days, 11th to 14th December 2017. The following was undertaken in collecting the samples after the appropriate sample exposure time as lapsed: A note is taken of the date and time of the end of exposure. The reverse to the installation was conducted, the cartridge was removed from the borehole and placed into the glass tube that it was deployed from. 						
Field	Passive vapour sampling field observations included the following information:						
Field Quality Control Sampling	Sample QC are based on AS5667.1 and AS5667.11 QC procedures. The following quality control measures are put in place: • A single duplicate sample was collected simultaneously with the primary sample.						
Sample preservation	The primary and QC samplers were removed from their deployment locations, sealed in their original glass tube and delivered to the Nata Accredited laboratory for analysis.						
Sample holding times	The sample holding times for the WMS is 14 days and 14 days following extraction.						
WMS Analysis	The Primary and duplicate samples were submitted to NATA certified laboratory, Specialist Laboratory Services (SGS) for analysis.						
Calculations	Standard procedures are available for converting passive sample adsorbed concentrations expressed in ug into ug/m3. Input parameters include average barometric pressure, temperature, sampler sampling rates, laboratory extraction efficiency, minutes sampling duration and analyte molecular weight.						

7 QUALITY CONTROL

All Field and laboratory Quality Assurance and Quality Control (QA/QC) details are presented in Appendix 6.

7.1 Field

It is standard to expect up to 10% error in field duplication and up to 10% laboratory error. Therefore, in theory up to 20% error can be assumed on duplicate analysis. Some variation may exist in soil and groundwater because even though all efforts are made to split samples homogeneously, fragments of materials may bias samples in certain elements.

Relative Percentage Differences (RPDs) for the duplicate and triplicate samples where applicable are calculated using the method outlined below.

The acceptance criteria used for the RPDs depend on the levels of contaminants detected and the laboratory's Method Detection Limits. The closer the levels detected are to the MDL the greater the acceptable RPD. RPDs are calculated as follows:

- RPD <50% for low level results (<20 * MDL)
- RPD <30% for medium level results (20-100 * MDL)
- RPD <15% for high level results (>100 * MDL)
- No limit applies at <2 * MDL (Method Detection Limit)

Field QA/QC procedures and compliance are summarised in Table 7

7.1.1 Soil

 Table 7 Soil Field QA/QC procedures and Compliance

QA/QC Requirement	Completed	Comments
Appropriate sampling strategy used and representative samples collected	Yes	Sampling program was undertaken in accordance with AS4482.1-2005
Appropriate and well documented sample collection, handling, logging and transportation procedures.	Yes	Appropriate and well documented
Decontamination	Yes	Appropriate decontamination such as cleaning tools before sampling and between sample locations was undertaken
Chain-of-custody documentation completed	Yes	COC were completed in accordance with NEPM Schedule B2, Section 5.4.5 and transported under strict COC procedures. The signed COC documents are included in this report, which includes the condition report on arrival of samples to the Laboratory, cross checking of sample identification and paperwork and preservation method.
Required number of duplicate samples collected (1:20)	Yes	A single duplicate from 10 primary samples
QA/QC samples reported method detection limits within indicated guidelines.	No	Noncompliance for Co, Ni, Pb, PAH – Phenanthrene and the sum of PAHs
Required numbers of field and rinse blank samples collected	No	One rinse blank was collected. As one rinsate is required per day of sampling.
Samples delivered to the laboratory within sample holding times and with correct preservative	Yes	All samples were sent to the laboratory within holding times and correct preservative.
7.1.2 Soil Vapour

Soil vapour field QA/QC procedures and compliance are included in Table 8.

QA/QC Requirement	Completed	Comments
Appropriate sampling strategy used and representative samples collected	Yes	SGS was consulted in detail on best installation, sampling and WMS collection practices. Standard sampling practices such as wearing nitrile gloves and changing between sampling locations was undertaken.
Appropriate and well documented sample collection, handling, logging and transportation procedures.	Yes	Appropriate and well documented
Chain-of-custody documentation completed	Yes	All samples were transported under strict COC procedures and signed COC documents are included in this report.
Required number of duplicate samples collected (1:20)	Yes	4 Primary samples and 1 duplicate
Acceptable duplicated comparison results	Yes	Both the duplicate and the primary sample were reported below detection limits, and therefore a reasonable comparison could not be made between the duplicate pair.
Samples delivered to the laboratory within sample holding times and with correct preservative	Yes	All samples were sent to the laboratory within holding times and correct preservative.

 Table 8 Soil Vapour Field QA/QC procedures and Compliance

7.2 Laboratory

7.2.1 Soil

Soil laboratory QA/QC procedures and compliance are summarised in Table 9.

 Table 9 Soil Laboratory QA/QC Procedures and Compliance

QA/QC Requirement	Compliance	Comments
All analyses NATA accredited	Yes	ALS Laboratories is NATA Accredited.
Appropriate analytical methods used, in accordance with Schedule B(3) of the NEPM	Yes	
Acceptable laboratory limits of reporting (LORs) adopted.	Yes	
Method Blanks: zero to <practical quantitation<br="">Limit (PQL)</practical>	Yes	There were no method blank value outliners.
Duplicate Samples:<30% to 50% RPD.	Yes	There were no Duplicate outliners.
Control Samples: 70% to 130% recovery for soil; or 80% to 120% recovery for waters;	Yes	There were no Laboratory Control outliners.
Matrix spikes: 70% to 130% recovery for organics or 80%-120% recovery for inorganics	Yes	There were no matrix spike outliners.
	No	Duplicate: Mn
Surrogates: 70% to 130% recovery	Yes	There were no surrogate recovery outliners.
Analysis holding time outliers	Yes	No hold-time outliners exist.
Quality Control Sample Frequency Outliers	No	Water rinsate – laboratory duplicates TRH did not meet QC NEPM 2013 B3 or ALS Standard. Water rinsate – Matrix spikes for TRH did not meet QC NEPM 2013 B3 or ALS Standard.
	No	Soil matrix spikes for soils did not meet QC NEPM 2013 B3 or ALS Standard.

7.2.2 Soil Vapour

Soil vapour laboratory QA/QC procedures and compliance are summarised in Table 10.

OA/OC Requirement	Completed	Comments
Appropriately selected NATA Accredited Laboratory	Yes	Parent Company SGS Australia Pty Ltd, has a quality system certified to ISO:9001 and all Laboratories maintain ISO/IEC 17025:2005 accreditation. SGS is an independent testing service.
Appropriate analytical methods used, in accordance with Schedule B(3) of the NEPM	Yes	MA- 5.WL.04 Volatile Organics MA- 5.WL.03 Volatile Organics MA- 30.AIR.04 Total Recoverable Hydrocarbons
Acceptable laboratory limits of reporting (LORs) adopted.	Yes	
Chain of custody – Mandatory	Yes	
Timeframes	Yes	All samples were given sufficient duration in the ground in accordance with CRC CARE Technical Report 23
Method Blanks: zero to <practical limit<br="" quantitation="">(PQL)</practical>	Yes	No detect (nd) within the PQL limits
Sufficient sample to preform analysis	Yes	
Analysis holding time	Yes	OK

 Table 10 Soil Vapour Laboratory QA/QC Procedures and Compliance

8 FIELD INVESTIGATION FINDINGS

8.1 Soil Bores

8.1.1 Geological Interpretation

The geology of the site is summarised in Table 11 and soil bore logs are presented in Appendix 7, the PESA and current logs have been included. The majority of the site is paved with approximately 100-200 mm of concrete. Below the concrete is a clayey SAND to silty CLAY that ranges in colours from orange, light brown to brown and sometimes stained grey, it is firm to stiff and generally has high plasticity. Bedrock was not encountered.

Table 11	Stratigranhy	at the	Site (denths	indicate	base of	f horizon)
Table II	Strangraphy	ai inc	Sinc (ucpuis	multan	Dase 0	

Investigation Holes	Fill Composition	Fill Base (m)	Natural Soil Composition	Natural Soil Base Top of Rock (m)	Rock Composition	Hole Depth (m)
BH1	Sandy GRAVEL	0.6	Sandy CLAY	1	-	1.0
BH2	Sandy GRAVEL; Clayey SAND & Sandy CLAY	0.6	Sandy CLAY	1	-	1.0
BH3	CONCRETE over Clayey GRAVEL	0.6	Silty CLAY Silty GRAVEL	2.3 2.9	-	2.9
BH4	CONCRETE over Clayey GRAVEL	0.9	Silty CLAY	2.0	-	2.0
BH5	Sandy GRAVEL, Gravelly CLAY	0.6	Silty CLAY Silty Sandy CLAY	2.9	-	2.9
BH6	CONCRETE Clayey SAND Silty Sandy CLAY	0.6	Silty CLAY	1.5	-	3.0
BH7	CONCRETE Clayey SAND Silty Sandy CLAY	0.6	Silty CLAY	3.0	-	3.0
BH8	CONCRETE TO 0.2 SAND some clay	1.7	Silty CLAY	3.0	-	3.0
BH9	CONCRETE TO 0.2 Clayey SAND	0.5	Silty CLAY Silty Sandy CLAY Silty CLAY FILL – SAND some clay Silty CLAY	2.9	-	2.9
BH10	GRAVEL	0.2	Sandy Silty CLAY	1.0	-	1.0
BH11	CONCRETE	0.1	Silty CLAY	0.15	-	0.15
BH12	CONCRETE Clayey GRAVEL	0.3	Sandy SILTY CLAY Silty CLAY	-	-	1.2
BH13	CONCRETE	0.25	-	0.25	Extremely weathered SILTSTONE	0.55
BH14	CONCRETE GRAVEL Sandy CLAY	0.6	Sandy SILTY CLAY Silty CLAY	-	-	1.4
BH15	CONCRETE SAND Clayey GRAVEL	-	Refusal at 0.6m bgs	-	-	0.6
BH16	CONCRETE GRAVEL Gravelly CLAY Silty CLAY	0.9	Silty clayey GRAVEL Silty gravelly CLAY Gravelly silty CLAY	-	-	3.4
BH17	Sandy GRAVEL Gravelly clayey SAND	0.5	Silty CLAY	1.1	Extremely weathered SANDSTONE / SILTSTONE	2.6
BH18	CONCRETE	0.2	Silty CLAY Sandy Silty CLAY Silty gravelly CLAY Silty CLAY	-	-	1.9
BH19	CONCRETE GRAVEL	0.3	Silty CLAY			1.9
BH20	CONCRETE Clayey GRAVEL	0.6	Silty CLAY			1.1
BH21	Sandy GRAVEL GRAVEL	0.6	Mixed clayey SAND & Sandy CLAY	ID &		1.1

8.1.2 Soil Grain Class Interpretation

Grain size classifications are applied to all soils at the site to determine threshold screening level concentrations for hydrocarbons (and chromium) to assess soil ecological and human health risks.

Grain class threshold values are determined based on either the:

- sample grain size (in the case of ecological screening levels or chromium limits); or
- average grain class overlying the sample point (when assessing petroleum vapour screening levels).

When assessing petroleum vapour intrusion health screening levels (HSL's), where soil is proposed to be excavated from the site, the excavated material is excluded from the grain class averaging. The corresponding depth class from which the sample is collected is also shallowed based on the renewed basement depth.

Table 12 provides a summary of the grain class averages for material overlying the sample (excluding the excavated materials). Where the fields are left blank, a class is not assigned given the sample was collected from within the proposed excavation. Pavement is assigned a clay class by default.

	<u>ب</u>	Soil Grain Class Averaging Above Soil Sample												Petroleu							
Sample	Excavation (r	GW	GP	GМ	GC	sw	SP	SM	SC	ML	CL	OL	мн	СН	он	CI	Rock (R)	Pavement (P)	New SLAB	m Vapour Intrusion HSL Grain Class*	SAMPLE USCS
BH1 0.10m	0.0																		0.1	CLAY	GW
BH1 0.9m	0.0	0.3									0.5								0.1	CLAY	CL
BH2 0.1m	0.0																		0.1	CLAY	GW
BH2 0.9m	0.0	0.3									0.5								0.1	CLAY	CL
BH3 0.5m	0.0				0.2													0.2	0.1	CLAY	GC
BH3 2.3m	0.0				0.4									1.6				0.2	0.1	CLAY	СН
BH4 0.5m	0.0				0.3													0.2	0.1	CLAY	GC
BH4 1.0m	0.0				0.8													0.2	0.1	SAND	СН
BH5 0.1m	0.1																		0.1	CLAY	GW
BH5 3.0m	0.1	0.1									0.8			1.9					0.1	CLAY	CL
BH6 0.2m	1.5																		0.1	CLAY	SC
BH6 2.0m	1.5													0.4					0.1	CLAY	СН
BH6 3.0m	1.5													1.4					0.1	CLAY	СН
BH7 0.2m	1.6																		0.1	CLAY	SC
BH7 1.0m	1.6																		0.1	CLAY	СН
BH7 3.0m	1.6													1.3					0.1	CLAY	СН
BH8 1.0m	1.8																		0.1	CLAY	SC
BH8 0.5m	1.8																		0.1	CLAY	SC
BH9 0.2m	1.8																		0.1	CLAY	Р
BH9 3.0m	1.8								0.3		0.3			0.5					0.1	CLAY	СН
BH10 0.1m	2.7																		0.1	CLAY	GW
BH10 1.0m	2.7																		0.1	CLAY	CL
BH11 0.1m	1.1																		0.1	CLAY	Р
DUP	0.0								0.2		0.3			2.3				0.2	0.1	CLAY	СН
BH12 0.5m	0.9																		0.1	CLAY	CI
BH12 1.0m	0.9																		0.1	CLAY	СН
BH13 0.4-0.5m	0.5																		0.1	CLAY	ML
BH14 0.3-0.4m	0.4																		0.1	CLAY	CI
BH14 1.0-1.1m	0.4													0.1		0.5			0.1	CLAY	СН
BH15 0.5-0.6m	0.0				0.3	0.1												0.2	0.1	CLAY	GC
BH16 1.0-1.1m	2.2																		0.1	CLAY	GC
BH16 2.0-2.1m	2.2																		0.1	CLAY	CL
BH16 2.9-3.0m	2.2				1.0						0.2								0.1	SAND	CL
BH17 0.5-0.6m	2.7																		0.1	CLAY	СН
BH17 1.9-2.0m	2.7																		0.1	CLAY	R
BH18 0.2-0.3m	1.0																		0.1	CLAY	СН
BH18 0.9-1.0m	1.0																		0.1	CLAY	СН
BH19 0.2-0.3m	1.3																		0.1	CLAY	GW
BH19 0.9-1.0m	1.3																		0.1	CLAY	СН
BH20 0.5m	0.0				0.2													0.2	0.1	CLAY	GC
BH21 0.5m	0.0	0.3									0.1								0.1	SAND	CL
BH10 0.1m	0.0																		0.1	CLAY	GW
BH10 1.0m	0.0	0.2				İ				İ	0.7								0.1	CLAY	CL
BH16 1.0-1.1m	0.0	0.2			0.1	1				l				0.8		0.4		0.4	0.1	CLAY	GC
BH16 2.0-2.1m	0.0	0.2			0.7						0.4			0.8		0.4		0.4	0.1	CLAY	CL
BH16 2.9-3.0m	0.0	0.2			1.9						0.7			0.8		0.4		0.4	0.1	CLAY	CL
BH17 0.5-0.6m	0.0	0.4							0.6										0.1	SAND	СН
BH17 1.9-2.0m	0.0	0.4							0.6					0.6			0.8		0.1	CLAY	R

Table 12 Summary of Soil Grain Class Averaging Based on USCS Classification

* Grain class may be modified if overlying slab is present. Concrete is interpreted to have similar vapour intrusion properties to clay and is therefore designated as CLAY within the averaging assessment.

8.2 Passive Soil Vapour Assessment

8.2.1 Soil Grain Class Interpretation

When assessing petroleum vapour intrusion health screening levels (HSL's), where soil is proposed to be excavated from the site, the excavated material is excluded from the grain class averaging. The corresponding depth class from which the sample is collected is also shallowed based on the renewed basement depth.

Table 13 provides a summary of the grain class averages for material overlying the sample (excluding the excavated materials). Where the fields are left blank, a class is not assigned given the sample was collected from within the proposed excavation. Pavement is assigned a clay class by default.

	ب ٦		Soil Grain Class Averaging Above Vapour Point													Petroleum					
Sample	Excavation (I	GW	GP	GМ	GC	sw	SP	SM	sc	ML	CL	OL	мн	СН	он	CI	Rock (R)	Pavement (P)	New SLAB	Vapour Intrusion HSL Grain Class*	
VP1	0.0				0.4									0.4				0.2	0.1	CLAY	
VP2	0.0	0.3									0.3					0.4			0.1	CLAY	
VP3	0.4									0.1									0.1	CLAY	
VP4	2.3				0.8						0.7								0.1	SAND	
VP4	0.0	0.2			1.9						1.2			0.8		0.4		0.4	0.1	CLAY	
Dup	2.3				0.8						0.7								0.1	SAND	

Table 13 Summary of Soil Grain Class Averaging Based on USCS Classification

* Grain class may be modified if overlying slab is present. Concrete is interpreted to have similar vapour intrusion properties to clay and is therefore designated as CLAY within the averaging assessment.

9 SOIL ECOLOGICAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

9.1 Protected Environmental Values

The requirement for protecting soil from contaminated activities in Tasmania is managed under the Environmental Management and Pollution Control Act 1994 (EMPCA) which states in Part 5A:

(2) An area of land is a contaminated site if -

(a) there is in, on or under that area of land a pollutant in a concentration that –

(i) is above the background concentration; and

(ii) is causing or is likely to be causing serious or material environmental harm or environmental nuisance, or is likely to cause serious or material environmental harm or environmental nuisance in the future if not appropriately managed;

Potential soil impact at the site is assessed through application of the following environmental investigation guidelines.

9.2 NEPM (2013) Guidelines

The following ecological investigation guidelines are to be addressed in order to assess acceptable levels of risk to terrestrial ecosystems:

- NEPM (2013) Ecological Investigation Levels (EIL's) have been developed for selected metal and organic substances. EIL's depend on specific soil and physicochemical properties and land use scenarios and generally apply to the top two (2) metres of the soil profile (NEPM 2013);
- NEPM (2013) Ecological Screening Levels (ESL's) have been developed for selected petroleum hydrocarbon compounds and total petroleum hydrocarbon fractions. ESL's broadly apply to coarse

and fine grained soils and various land use scenarios within the top two (2) metres of the soil profile (NEPM 2013).

Soil analytical results are compared against Ecological Screening Levels (ESL's) and Ecological Investigation Levels (EIL's) limits presented in Table 14.

Table 14 Summary of Soil Investigation Limits Considered at the Site based in NEPM (2013) ASC

	Analytes In	Analytes Investigated											
Investigation	Hydrocarbo	ons		Metals									
Levels (IL)	BTEX	TRH (F1 to F4)	Benzo(a) pyrene (PAH)	Naphthalene (PAH)	Zn, Cu, Cr(III), Ni & As	Lead	DDT						
ESL's	Analysed	Analysed	Analysed										
EIL's				Analysed	Analysed	Analysed	Not Analysed						

9.3 Guidelines

9.3.1 Ecological Screening Levels

The following compounds were compared against NEPM (2013) Ecological Screening Levels (ESL's):

- BTEX;
- F1 to F4 TRH; and
- Benzo(a)pyrene

Selection of ESL threshold investigation limits are set out in the NEPM (2013) guidelines and require classification of the soil according to:

- Land use sensitivity:
 - Areas of ecological significance
 - Urban residential and public open space; and
 - Commercial and industrial.
- Dominant particle size passing through a 2 mm sieve into:
 - Coarse sand sizes and greater; and
 - Fine clay and silt sizes.

Adopted NEPM (2013) soil and land use classifications are presented below.

9.3.2 Ecological Investigation Levels

There was a requirement to classify the soil according to physicochemical properties given that the above listed compounds. Adopted physicochemical parameters are presented in the results tables.

Selection of EIL threshold investigation limits are set out in the NEPM (2013) guidelines and require classification of the soil per specific soil and physicochemical properties which are presented in the results tables. The adopted land use scenarios presented in Table 15.

Table 15 Adopted Land Use Scenario For the Various Soil Bores

Land Use Scenario	Applicable Soil Bores
Areas of Ecological Significance	
Urban Residential & Public Open Space	All soil bores
Commercial & Industrial	

9.4 Findings

9.4.1 Ecological Screening Levels

Laboratory analytical results are presented in Appendix 5. Table 16compares soil analytical results for residual samples (non-excavated soil which is to remain at the site) against relevant NEPM ESL's. Concentrations which exceeded laboratory levels of reporting (LOR) are highlighted in bold, ESL exceedances are highlighted with a colored cell, and samples within the proposed excavation zone are marked with an X.

Of the 40 samples analysised, 12 had detections above the laboratory LOR and of these, 11 samples had exceedences above the ESL B guidelines for Urban residential and public opens space for Benzo(a)pyrene (B(a)p), TRH $C^6 - C^{10}$, $C^{10} - C^{16}$, and/ or $C^{16} - C^{34}$. All samples with exceedances were collected from shallow locations ranging from 0.1-0.2 m bgs, 0.3-0.4m bgs and 0.4-0.5m bgs.

8 out of the 11 exceedances are within the proposed excavation zone.

9.4.2 Ecological Investigation Levels

Laboratory analytical results are presented in Appendix 5. Table 17 compares soil analytical results for residual samples (non-excavated soil which is to remain at the site) against relevant ecological investigation limits (EIL's). Concentrations which exceeded laboratory LOR are highlighted indicated in bold, EIL exceedances are highlighted with a colored cell, and samples within the proposed excavation zone are marked with an X.

Of the 40 samples analysised, 15 samples had exceedances above the NEPM (2013) EIL threshold investigation limits for copper, nickel, zinc and lead for Urban residential and public opens space. All samples with exceedances were collected from shallow locations ranging from 0.1-0.2 m bgs, 0.3-0.4m bgs, 0.4-0.5m bgs and 1.0-1.1m bgs.

10 out of the 17 exceedances are within the proposed excavation zone.

Table 16 Summary of Soil Analytical Results Compared with ESL's

NEPM Ecological	Screenin	g Levels f	or Soil		ВТ	ΈX		РАН	TRH			
Bold - Indicates LO X - Indicates Samp Zone	R Exceedan le Within F	ices Proposed E	xcavation	٩	a	enzene	10	a) pyrene	- C10)	l0 - C16)	16 - C34)	34 - C40)
Colour Shading - >1 x, * 2-5 x, ** 5	Indicates 5-20 x, ***	ESL Excee 20-50 x, *	edances: **** >50 x	Benzen	Toluen	Ethylbe	Xylenes	Benzo(F1 (C6	F2 (>C3	F3 (>C:	F4 (>C3
				mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg
Sample ID	Sample Date	Soil Texture Class	Land Use	LOR 0.2	LOR 0.5	LOR 0.5	LOR 0.5	LOR 0.5	LOR 10	LOR 50	LOR 100	LOR 100
BH1 0.10m	17/6/17	COARSE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	0.8	<10	<50	250	<100
BH1 0.9m	17/6/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH2 0.1m	17/6/17	COARSE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	100	<100
BH2 0.9m	17/6/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH3 0.5m	17/6/17	COARSE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH3 2.3m	17/6/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH4 0.5m	17/6/17	COARSE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	2.2*	256	1780**	6380***	2200
BH4 1.0m	17/6/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH5 0.1m X	17/6/17	COARSE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	3.6**	<10	50	640*	240
BH5 3.0m	17/6/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH6 0.2m X	17/6/17	COARSE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	3.5*	<10	<50	460	<100
BH6 2.0m	17/6/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH6 3.0m	17/6/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH7 0.2m X	17/6/17	COARSE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	3.8**	<10	<50	280	<100
BH7 1.0m X	17/6/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH7 3.0m	17/6/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH8 1.0m X	17/6/17	COARSE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH8 0.5m X	1//6/1/	COARSE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH9 0.2m X	1//6/1/	COARSE		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	2.3*	<10	<50	140	<100
BH9 3.0m	17/6/17			<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
	17/0/17			<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5		<10	<50	<100	<100
BH10 1.0m X	17/6/17			<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	>60	<100
BH110.1111X	17/0/17			<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH12 0.5m A	12/12/17	FINE		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH12 1.0m BH13 0 4-0 5m X	12/12/17	COARSE		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH14 0 3-0 4m X	12/12/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	5.2**	<10	<50	370	110
BH14 1.0-1.1m	12/12/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	< 0.5	< 0.5	<0.5	< 0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH15 0.5-0.6m	12/12/17	COARSE	URBAN	<0.2	< 0.5	< 0.5	< 0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH16 1.0-1.1m X	12/12/17	COARSE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH16 2.0-2.1m X	12/12/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH16 2.9-3.0m	12/12/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH17 0.5-0.6m X	12/12/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH17 1.9-2.0m X	12/12/17	COARSE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH18 0.2-0.3m X	12/12/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH18 0.9-1.0m X	12/12/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH19 0.2-0.3m X	12/12/17	COARSE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	3.6**	<10	<50	530	160
BH19 0.9-1.0m X	12/12/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH20 0.5m	12/12/17	COARSE	URBAN	<0.2	< 0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	<100	<100
BH21 0.5m	12/12/17	FINE	URBAN	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	2.8*	<10	<50	140	<100

Table 17 Soil Analytical Results Compared Against Ecological Investigation Levels

NEPM Ecological	Investigatio												
Bold - Indicates LOF X - Indicates Sampl	R Exceedances le Within Prop	osed Excavat	tion Zor	ne									
Colour Shading - In >1 x, * 2-5 x, ** 5-2	ndicates ESL Ex 20 x, *** 20-50	ceedances:) x, **** >50 >	(
eD	e Date	nd Use ivity Class	:C (cmolc/kg)	_	ain Class	Copper (CEC)	Copper (pH)	Nickel	Zinc	Chromium III	Lead	Arsenic	Naphthalene
Sampl	Sampl	EIL Lar Sensiti	Soil CE	Soil pF	Soil Gr	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg
BH1 0.10m	17/06/2017	URBAN	10	4.5 (3)	COARSE	172	172	28	390	30	362	<5	<1
BH1 0.9m	17/06/2017	URBAN	35	4.5 (3)	FINE	16	16	6	17	7	26	<5	<1
BH2 0.1m	17/06/2017	URBAN	10	4.5 (3)	COARSE	53	53	22	329	23	364	<5	<1
BH2 0.9m	17/06/2017	URBAN	35	4.5 (3)	FINE	20	20	6	26	5	359	<5	<1
BH3 0.5m	17/06/2017	URBAN	20	4.5 (3)	COARSE	83	83	9	36	4	9	<5	<1
BH3 2.3m	17/06/2017	URBAN	45	4.5 (3)	FINE	16	16	20	65	8	11	<5	<1
BH4 0.5m	17/06/2017	URBAN	20	4.5 (3)	COARSE	116	116	16	473	10	4570	17	7
BH4 1.0m	17/06/2017	URBAN	45	4.5 (3)	FINE	17	17	8	25	13	16	<5	<1
BH5 0.1m X	17/06/2017	URBAN	10	4.5 (3)	COARSE	69	69	18	184	16	208	<5	<1
BH5 3.0m	17/06/2017	URBAN	35	4.5 (3)	FINE	8	8	6	24	23	13	18	<1
BH6 0.2m X	17/06/2017	URBAN	20	4.5 (3)	COARSE	122	122	20	941	20	1430	8	<1
BH6 2.0m	17/06/2017	URBAN	45	4.5 (3)	FINE	8	8	11	23	13	11	6	<1
BH6 3.0m	17/06/2017	URBAN	45	4.5 (3)	FINE	8	8	4	33	10	12	16	<1
BH7 0.2m X	17/06/2017	URBAN	20	4.5 (3)	COARSE	101	101	18	614	16	1140	8	<1
BH7 1.0m X	17/06/2017	URBAN	45	4.5 (3)	FINE	28	28	50	47	15	16	<5	<1
BH7 3.0m	17/06/2017	URBAN	45	4.5 (3)	FINE	<5	<5	3	13	6	5	<5	<1
BH8 1.0m X	17/06/2017	URBAN	20	4.5 (3)	COARSE	<5	<5	7	18	14	<5	<5	<1
BH8 0.5m X	17/06/2017	URBAN	20	4.5 (3)	COARSE	<5	<5	3	28	13	<5	<5	<1
BH9 0.2m X	17/06/2017	URBAN	0	4.5 (3)	COARSE	76	76	16	588	17	852	10	<1
BH9 3.0m	17/06/2017	URBAN	45	4.5 (3)	FINE	5	5	3	13	8	<5	<5	<1
BH10 0.1m X	17/06/2017	URBAN	10	4.5 (3)	COARSE	90	90	11	99	5	60	<5	<1
BH10 1.0m X	17/06/2017	URBAN	35	4.5 (3)	FINE	19	19	28	23	11	9	6	<1
BH11 0.1m X	17/06/2017	URBAN	0	4.5 (3)	COARSE	27	27	30	79	11	17	7	<1
BH12 0.5m X	12/12/2017	URBAN	35	6 (3)	FINE	32	32	14	28	18	10	5	<1
BH12 1.0m	12/12/2017	URBAN	45	4.5 (3)	FINE	39	39	72	45	16	11	8	<1
BH13 0.4-0.5m X	12/12/2017	URBAN	20	4.5 (3)	COARSE	16	16	13	53	7	<5	<5	<1
BH14 0.3-0.4m X	12/12/2017	URBAN	35	6 (3)	FINE	80	80	22	728	20	314	35	<1
BH14 1.0-1.1m	12/12/2017	URBAN	45	4.5 (3)	FINE	17	17	13	14	14	11	<5	<1
BH15 0.5-0.6m	12/12/2017	URBAN	20	4.5 (3)	COARSE	57	57	15	34	11	<5	<5	<1
BH16 1.0-1.1m X	12/12/2017	URBAN	20	4.5 (3)	COARSE	67	67	100	13	<4	<5	<5	<1
BH16 2.0-2.1m X	12/12/2017	URBAN	35	4.5 (3)	FINE	46	46	18	48	4	8	9	<1
BH16 2.9-3.0m	12/12/2017	URBAN	35	4.5 (3)	FINE	<5	<5	3	13	6	<5	<5	<1
BH17 0.5-0.6m X	12/12/2017	URBAN	45	4.5 (3)	FINE	24	24	16	32	17	12	<5	<1
BH17 1.9-2.0m X	12/12/2017	URBAN	10	4.5 (3)	COARSE	32	32	38	75	16	6	<5	<1
BH18 0.2-0.3m X	12/12/2017	URBAN	45	4.5 (3)	FINE	72	72	14	104	10	144	<5	<1
BH18 0.9-1.0m X	12/12/2017	URBAN	45	4.5 (3)	FINE	15	15	29	30	13	<5	<5	<1
BH19 0.2-0.3m X	12/12/2017	URBAN	10	4.5 (3)	COARSE	44	44	12	227	21	341	<5	<1
BH19 0.9-1.0m X	12/12/2017	URBAN	45	4.5 (3)	FINE	13	13	19	17	11	14	<5	<1
BH20 0.5m	12/12/2017	URBAN	20	4.5 (3)	COARSE	10	10	4	12	12	9	<5	<1
BH21 0.5m	12/12/2017	URBAN	35	4.5 (3)	FINE	49	49	15	157	12	238	6	<1
BH10 0.1m	17/06/2017	URBAN	10	4.5 (3)	COARSE	90	90	11	99	5	60	<5	<1
BH10 1.0m	17/06/2017	URBAN	35	4.5 (3)	FINE	19	19	28	23	11	9	6	<1
BH16 1.0-1.1m	12/12/2017	URBAN	20	4.5 (3)	COARSE	67	67	100	13	<4	<5	<5	<1
BH16 2.0-2 1m	12/12/2017	URBAN	35	4.5 (3)	FINE	46	46	18	48	4	8	9	<1
BH16 2.9-3 0m	12/12/2017	URBAN	35	4.5 (3)	FINE	<5	<5	3	13	6	<5	<5	<1
BH17 0.5-0 6m	12/12/2017	URBAN	45	4.5 (3)	FINE	24	24	16	32	17	12	<5	<1
BH17 1.9-2.0m	12/12/2017	URBAN	10	4.5 (3)	COARSE	32	32	38	75	16	6	<5	<1

10 SOIL HUMAN HEALTH DIRECT CONTACT ASSESSMENT

10.1 Guidelines

Guidelines presented herein are based on potential exposure of human receptors to soil impact which may include:

- Trench workers repairing or building services, typically to 1 m below ground surface (BGS). This classification is not dependent on the land use class.
- Onsite inhabitants which may be exposed to potential shallow soil impact in non-paved areas of the site; and
- Onsite excavation works which may include potential swimming pools (up to 3 m BGS); basement carparks; and deep foundations.

10.1.1 Land Use Classification

The NEPM (2013) guidelines have been referenced to ensure that the correct land use and density category has been adopted for the site and the surrounding properties (where applicable). As per NEPM 2013 guidelines, the adopted land use class is dependent on the building density and the opportunity for soil access by site occupants (exposure to potentially impacted soil). Aspects needing to be considered include:

- Whether the site is of sensitive land use such as a childcare center, preschool, primary school or aged care facility in which case land use Class A is applicable;
- The percentage of paved area to determine direct contact exposure risk and therefore classification as low or high density; and
- Classification based on residential, recreational or commercial/industrial setting.

10.1.2 Adopted Land Use Classification

The adopted land use class is presented in Table 18. Land use class is based on the opportunity for soil access as per NEPM 2013 guidelines.

A land use class D has been applied to all soil samples which is consistent with site commercial worker exposure to impacted soil and future trenching works after the development has been established.

Although soil exposure is unlikely a conservative approach has been applied to results where ground floor apartments are proposed: land use class B has been applied to the entire site.

Location	Land Use Class	Land Use Density	Paved Area	Sensitive Land Use
Al soil bores	D	high	Presumed 100%	No
All soil bores	В	high	Presumed 100%	No

 Table 18 Summary of Land Use Setting and Density for Determining Exposure Risk

Table 19 summarises the areas of the site in which the soil analytical results are expected to be relevant as well as the applicable land use class for defining the threshold limits.

Table 19	Summar	v of Land Us	e Class Ado	pted for Defining	g Soil Analy	vsis Threshold Limits
				c		

Soil Bores	Relevant Scenario	Adopted Land Use Class
All soil bores	Site development works and future trenching works	D
All soil bores	Future site users	В

10.1.3 Health Investigation & Screening Levels

The main exposure pathways and methods for assessing short term heath risk from contaminated soils are presented in Table 20. Vapour inhalation risk is addressed in Section 12 of this report.

Environmental Site Assessment. 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart. December 2017

Table 20	Summary of	Exposure l	Pathways and	Preliminary	(Tier 1) Methods for	or Assessing	Human	Exposure
Risk	-	_	-	-			_		-

Exposure Scenario	Contaminant Type	Tier 1 Assessment Method	Reference		
Vapour Inhalation – Indoor (PVI)		HSLs	NEPM (2013)		
Vapour Inhalation – Trench (PVI)	Petroleum	(addressed in PVI sections)	CRC CARE		
Dermal Contact	Hydrocarbons	HSLs	(Friebel & Nadebaum, 2011)		
Dust Inhalation	Metals				
Soil Ingestion	PAHs Organochlorides Phenols Herbicides Other Pesticides	Health Investigation Levels (HILs)	NEPM (2013)		

PVI – Petroleum Vapour Intrusion

10.2 Findings

10.2.1 Dermal Contact - Petroleum Hydrocarbons

Laboratory analytical results are presented in Appendix 5. Table 21 presents soil hydrocarbon analytical results compared against CRC CARE (Friebel & Nadebaum, 2011) HSL guidelines for assessing dermal contact risk. Concentrations which exceeded laboratory LOR are highlighted in bold, and HSL exceedances are highlighted with a colored cell indicating the highest HSL land used class which is exceeded.

Of the 40 samples analysed 11 had detections above the laboratory LOR and was one exceedance of HSL B guidelines for High Density Residential in BH4 0.5 of TPH $C^{16} - C^{34}$. BH4 is located near the historical interceptor trap.

Table 21 Soil Analytical Results Compared Against CRC CARE (Friebel & Nadebaum, 2011) Guidelines for Dermal Contact

CDC CADE		EP	080: BTE	XN		EP080/071: TRH					
CRC CARE	Health Screening							uo	uo	uo	
	Level						ion	acti	acti	acti	
				ane	les	ne	act	E E	СЦ Ц	Erc.	
Dermal Cont	act Hazard from Soil	a		nze	/len	ale	0 F1	C16	34	640	
Hyd	rocarbons'	Gen	ene	lbe	<u>×</u>	hth	C1(- 0	, u	- 4	
		3en:	lolu	Ethy	lota	Vap	- 90	, C1	, CŢ	Š	
Units		mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	
LOR		0.2	0.5	0.5	0.5	1	10	50	100	100	
HSL A Low De	ensity Residential	100	14000	4500	12000	1400	4400	3300	4500	6300	
HSL B High De	ensity Residential	140	21000	5900	17000	2200	5600	4200	5800	8100	
HSL C Recreat	tional	120	18000	5300	15000	1900	5100	3800	5300	7400	
HSL D Comme	ercial/Industrial	430	99000	27000	81000	11000	26000	20000	27000	38000	
Intrusive Mai	ntenance Worker	1100	120000	85000	130000	29000	82000	62000	85000	120000	
Date	Sample										
17/06/2017	BH1 0.10m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	250	<100	
17/06/2017	BH1 0.9m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
17/06/2017	BH2 0.1m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	100	<100	
17/06/2017	BH2 0.9m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
17/06/2017	BH3 0.5m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
17/06/2017	BH3 2.3m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
17/06/2017	BH4 0.5m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	7	256	1790	6380	2200	
17/06/2017	BH4 1.0m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
17/06/2017	BH5 0.1m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	50	640	240	
17/06/2017	BH5 3.0m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
17/06/2017	BH6 0.2m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	460	<100	
17/06/2017	BH6 2.0m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
17/06/2017	BH6 3.0m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
17/06/2017	BH7 0.2m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	280	<100	
17/06/2017	BH7 1.0m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
17/06/2017	BH7 3.0m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
17/06/2017	BH8 1.0m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
17/06/2017	BH8 0.5m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
17/06/2017	BH9 0.2m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	140	<100	
17/06/2017	BH9 3.0m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
17/06/2017	BH10 0.1m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
17/06/2017	BH10 1.0m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
17/06/2017	BH11 0.1m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	360	<100	
12/12/2017	BH12 0.5m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
12/12/2017	BH12 1.0m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
12/12/2017	BH13 0.4-0.5m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
12/12/2017	BH14 0.3-0.4m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	370	110	
12/12/2017	BH14 1.0-1.1m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
12/12/2017	BH15 0.5-0.6m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
12/12/2017	BH16 1.0-1.1m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
12/12/2017	BH16 2.0-2.1m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
12/12/2017	BH16 2.9-3.0m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
12/12/2017	BH17 0.5-0.6m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
12/12/2017	BH17 1.9-2.0m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
12/12/2017	BH18 0.2-0.3m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
12/12/2017	BH18 0.9-1.0m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
12/12/2017	BH19 0.2-0.3m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	530	160	
12/12/2017	BH190.9-1.0m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
12/12/2017	BH20 0.5m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	<100	<100	
12/12/2017	BH21 0.5m	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50	140	<100	

10.2.2 Dust Inhalation & Soil Ingestion

Combined dust inhalation and soil ingestion risk is assessed through the application of NEPM (2013) HIL's for exposure to soil contaminants. Laboratory analytical results are presented in Appendix 5. Soil analytical results are compared against the HIL's presented in Table 22. PAH concentrations which exceeded laboratory LOR are highlighted in bold, and for all results the HIL exceedances are highlighted with a colored cell indicating the highest HIL land used class which is exceeded, and samples within the proposed excavation zone are marked with an X.

All samples exceeding HIL B guideline limits are within the proposed excavation areas with the exception for the following:

• There was a single HIL D exceedance of Lead based on guidelines for *commercial land use*. At BH4 this sample was collected from 0.5m bgs. This sample is located next to the interceptor trap area.

Table 22 Soil Analytical Results Compared Against NEPM (2013) Health Investigation Limit Guidelines

Bold - Indicates LOR	EA055:															T:																		
Exceedance in Non Metalic	Moisture															Total																		
Compounds	Content	EG00	5T: Tot	al Me	tals by	ICP-A	S									Recov	EP07	75(SIN	/)В: Рс	olynuc	lear	Aroma	tic Hy	droc	arbon	s								
NEPM Health Investigation Levels (HIL's)	d @ 103°C																													0				(он/
Duct labolation and Call	drie																										ane	Ъ		rene	ene	e	l	Š
Dust Inhalation and Soil	nt (c						_																		ene		the	the		ıyd(race	/len	l	E
Ingestion Assessment	ntei						otal										0	lene	ne		ы		e		race		orar	oran	ene	3.cd	anth	(Jack	l	ene
	S			_		_	ш				ese		_	E			lene	thy	the		hre	ene	hen		nth		fluc	fluc	pyr	.2.3	h)a	h.i)	1	pyr
X - Indicates Sample Within	ture	лiс	Ē	lliun	Ē	niun	miu	Ħ	Der		gan	-	niun	diu		cury	tha	aph	aph	ene	ant	race	'ant	ne	(a)a	sene	o(b)	o(k)	o(a)	10(1	nz(a	o(g.		o(a)
Proposed Excavation Zone	Aois	rse	arit	ery	oro	adr	hro	oba	ddo	ead	Jan	lick	eler	ana	inc	Aero	lapł	cer	cer	Inoi	her	nth	Inoi	yre	enz	hry	enz	enz	enz	iabr	ibe	enz	ΑH	enz
	2	<				0	0	0	0		2	~	S	>	И	~	2	<	4	<u>ц</u>	P	4	<u>ш</u>	P	<u> </u>	0	<u> </u>	<u> </u>				<u> </u>		
		g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg	g/kg
Units	%	ũ	ĩ	ů	ũ	ũ	ũ	ũ	ů	ũ	ũ	ũ	ũ	ũ	ສີພ	ũ	ũ	Ĩ	ŝ	ŝ	ш	ũ	ũ	ш	ŝ	ũ	Ĕ	Ĕ	ũ	ŝ	ш	ũ	Ĕ	Ĕ
LOR	1	5	10	1	50	1	2	2	5	5	5	2	ъ	5	5	0.1	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5
HIL A Low Density Residential		100		60	4500	20		100	6000	300	3800	400	200		7400	40																	300	3
HIL B High Density Residential		500		90	40000	150		600	30000	1200	14000	1200	1400		60000	120																	400	4
HILC Recreational		300		90	20000	90		300	17000	600	19000	1200	700		30000	80																	300	з
		2000		500	25+05	900		4000	25+05	1500	60000	6000	10000		46+05	720												$ \neg $					4000	40
Sample date: Sample ID		3000		500	31103	500		4000	21105	1500	00000	0000	10000		41103	730												-					4000	40
17/06/2017 BH1 0 10m	12.2	~5	80	~1	<50	18	30	13	172	362	275	28	~ 5	41	390	0.6	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	0.6	<0.5	14	14	0.8	07	09	<0.5	0.8	<0.5	<0.5	0.5	71	1
17/06/2017 BH1 0.10m	12.2	< <u>5</u>	50	<1 <1	<50	10	30	15	1/2	302	140	20	10	41	330	0.0	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	0.0	<0.5	1.4	1.4	0.0	-0.F	0.5	<0.5	0.0	<0.5	<0.5	0.5	7.1	-0.5
17/06/2017 BH10.9m	25	<5	50	<1	<50	<1	/	4	10	26	148	0	<5	33	17	0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
17/06/2017 BH2 0.1m	15.1	<5	140	<1	<50	<1	23	6	53	364	176	22	<5	29	329	0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
17/06/2017 BH2 0.9m	23.4	<5	80	<1	<50	<1	5	6	20	359	256	6	<5	23	26	0.9	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
17/06/2017 BH3 0.5m	14.2	<5	40	<1	<50	<1	4	21	83	9	262	9	<5	67	36	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
17/06/2017 BH3 2.3m	16.5	<5	170	1	<50	<1	8	19	16	11	125	20	<5	29	65	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
17/06/2017 BH4 0.5m	33.7	17	400	1	<50	<1	10	13	116	4570	512	16	<5	28	473	1	4.9	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	1.1	<0.5	2.2	2.6	1.7	1.5	2.3	0.9	2.2	1.3	<0.5	1.6	22.3	2.8
17/06/2017 BH4 1.0m	26.6	<5	120	1	<50	<1	13	6	17	16	80	8	<5	51	25	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
17/06/2017 BH5 0.1m X x	13.1	<5	80	<1	<50	1	16	8	69	208	217	18	<5	30	184	0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	5.2	1.3	9.2	8.7	3.3	2.9	3.8	1.4	3.6	2.1	<0.5	2.7	44.2	4.7
17/06/2017 BH5 3.0m	19.3	18	10	<1	<50	<1	23	4	8	13	554	6	<5	54	24	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
17/06/2017 BH6 0.2m X x	34.6	8	900	<1	<50	2	20	11	122	1430	248	20	<5	28	941	1.5	<0.5	0.7	<0.5	< 0.5	1.7	0.7	5.2	5.5	3.2	3.0	4.0	1.4	3.5	2.0	<0.5	2.4	33.3	4.6
17/06/2017 BH6 2.0m	21.8	6	30	<1	<50	<1	13	8	8	11	1680	11	<5	31	23	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
17/06/2017 BH6 3 0m	21.0	16	<10	~1	<50	~1	10	~	8	12	70	1	-5	18	23	0.3	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
17/06/2017 BHZ 0.2m X x	21.0	0	920	~1	<50	1	16	10	101	1140	212	10	<5 <5	40	614	2.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	24	0.5	<0.5	<0.5	37	3.4	<0.5	1.6	30	20.5	~0.5	24	37.0	<0.5
17/06/2017 BH7 0.2017 X	26.7	0	1000	< <u>1</u>	<50	1	10	10	101	1140	100	10	10	40	014	2.1	<0.5	0.7	<0.5	<0.5	2.4	0.5	0.0	0.5	3.7	-0.F	4.1	1.0	3.0	2.0	0.5	2.4	37.8	3.3
17/06/2017 BH7 1.0m X X	20.7	<5	1090	5	<50	<1	15	67	28	16	198	50	<5	40	47	0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
17/06/2017 BH7 3.0m	22.8	<5	10	<1	<50	<1	6	3	<5	5	121	3	<5	24	13	1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
17/06/2017 BH8 1.0m X x	17.9	<5	20	<1	<50	<1	14	3	<5	<5	37	7	<5	50	18	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
17/06/2017 BH8 0.5m X x	12.8	<5	10	<1	<50	<1	13	2	<5	<5	51	3	<5	42	28	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
17/06/2017 BH9 0.2m X x	24.2	10	500	1	<50	<1	17	17	76	852	366	16	<5	43	588	1.6	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	1.8	0.7	4.1	4.2	2.3	2.1	2.5	1.1	2.3	1.2	<0.5	1.4	23.7	3
17/06/2017 BH9 3.0m	26.4	<5	30	<1	<50	<1	8	4	5	<5	55	3	<5	14	13	0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
17/06/2017 BH10 0.1m X x	5.5	<5	30	<1	<50	<1	5	15	90	60	279	11	<5	58	99	0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	0.5	<0.5	1.9	2.0	0.8	0.6	1.0	<0.5	1.0	0.7	<0.5	1.0	9.5	1.3
17/06/2017 BH10 1.0m X x	20.6	6	110	1	<50	<1	11	32	19	9	1490	28	<5	41	23	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
17/06/2017 BH11 0.1m X x	25.3	7	50	1	<50	<1	11	32	27	17	2260	30	<5	46	79	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH12 0.5m X x	22	5	220	1	<50	<1	18	13	32	10	116	14	<5	85	28	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH12 1.0m	19.5	8	660	4	<50	<1	16	368	39	11	1690	72	<5	65	45	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH13 0.4-0.5m X x	14.3	<5	20	1	<50	<1	7	6	16	<5	268	13	<5	23	53	< 0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH14 0 3-0 4m X x	28.9	35	180	<1	<50	<10	20	12	80	314	825	22	<5	61	728	0.8	<0.5	0.6	<0.5	<0.5	2.5	0.8	5.1	5.9	3.3	3.1	5.4	1.8	5.2	3.1	0.9	4.4	42.1	7.5
12/12/2017 BH14 1 0-1 1m	23.3	~5	480	1	<50	<1	14	14	17	11	54	12	~5	59	14	<0.0	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH15 0 5 0 6m	6	~	10	_1	~50	~1	11	12	57	~=	250	15	~5	20	2/	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
	0	5	10	<1	<50	<1	11	15	57	< 5	350	15	<5	39	34	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH16 1.0-1.1m X X	18.5	<5	230	<4	<50	<2	<4	33	0/	<5	1050	100	<5	69	13	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH16 2.0-2.1m X X	2/	9	90	1	<50	<1	4	13	46	8	760	18	<5	66	48	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH16 2.9-3.0m	16.7	<5	<10	<1	<50	<1	6	<2	<5	<5	10	3	<5	10	13	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH17 0.5-0.6m X x	23.2	<5	50	1	<50	<1	17	16	24	12	115	16	<5	70	32	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH17 1.9-2.0m X x	18.1	<5	220	<1	<50	<1	16	45	32	6	2410	38	<5	61	75	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH18 0.2-0.3m X x	22.1	<5	130	1	<50	<1	10	14	72	144	167	14	<5	53	104	1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH18 0.9-1.0m X x	17.3	<5	180	<5	<50	<3	13	17	15	<5	1100	29	<5	43	30	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH19 0.2-0.3m X x	19	<5	220	<1	<50	<1	21	9	44	341	208	12	<5	29	227	1.5	<0.5	0.5	<0.5	<0.5	1.7	1.0	6.1	6.6	2.9	2.7	4.1	1.4	3.6	1.9	<0.5	2.6	35.1	4.7
12/12/2017 BH19 0.9-1.0m X x	19.6	<5	2770	3	<50	<1	11	37	13	14	255	19	<5	43	17	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH20 0.5m	22.1	<5	40	<1	<50	<1	12	3	10	9	59	4	<5	48	12	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH21 0.5m	20.1	6	170	<1	<50	<1	12	11	49	238	301	15	<5	29	157	0.8	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	1.5	<0.5	3.5	3.7	2.6	2.1	3.4	1.1	2.8	1.5	<0.5	1.8	24.0	3.7
17/06/2017 BH10.0.1m	5.5	<5	30	<1	<50	<1	5	15	90	60	279	11	<5	58	99	0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	0.5	<0.5	1.9	2.0	0.8	0.6	1.0	<0.5	1.0	0.7	<0.5	1.0	9.5	1.3
17/06/2017 BH10 1.0m	20 6	5	110	1	~50	~1	11	22	10	0	1400	20	~5	<u>л</u> 1	22	<0.1	-0.5 20 F	-0.5 20 F	-0.5 20 E	<0.5	-0 E	-0.5 -0 E		<0 E	<0 E	<0 E		-0.5	 -0 E	۰., ۱	-0.5	 -0 =	-05	
12/12/2017 BH16 1 0 1 1m	10 5	0	220	1	<50	~1	11	32	19	-	1050	20	_>	41	13	<0.1	-0.5	~0.5	-0.5	~0.5	~0.5	~U.5	~0.5	~0.5	~0.5	~U.5	~0.5	~U.5	~0.5	~0.5	~0.5	~0.5	~0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BHI0 1.0-1.1M	10.5	0	230	<4	<50	<2	<4	33	0/	< 2	1050	100	<5 -5	69	13	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	~0.5	~0.5	<0.5	<0.5	~0.5	~0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<u>√</u> 0.5	<0.5	~0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH16 2.0-2.1m	27	9	90	1	<50	<1	4	13	46	8	760	18	<5	66	48	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH16 2.9-3.0m	16.7	<5	<10	<1	<50	<1	6	<2	<5	<5	10	3	<5	10	13	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH17 0.5-0.6m	23.2	<5	50	1	<50	<1	17	16	24	12	115	16	<5	70	32	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
12/12/2017 BH17 1.9-2.0m	18.1	<5	220	<1	<50	<1	16	45	32	6	2410	38	<5	61	75	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5

11 INDOOR INHABITANT PVI ASSESSMENT – HSL's

This PVI assessment has been conducted in accordance with relevant CRC CARE Technical Documentation and NEPM 2013 guidelines presented in references section of this report. The HSL assessment approach is generally the first (Tier 1) investigation phase adopted for assessing PVI risk at petroleum hydrocarbon (PHC) impacted sites. HSL guidelines have been applied for samples collected from the site to account for risks that may be associated with volatile hydrocarbon vapour intrusion into confined spaces where there may be an inhalation risk through longer term exposure. This does not constitute a full vapour risk assessment but provides additional information from which to further quantify any risk.

A detailed investigation (Tier 2 to 3) is recommended over an HSL assessment where an acute risk has been identified at the site (CRC CARE 2013) because of:

- Migrating product on surface soils beneath buildings;
- Strong PHC odors;
- Flammable risk in confined spaces; and/or
- Health complaints from occupants.

Based on the site visits, none of the above conditions have been identified at the site. If the outcome of this Tier 1 assessment reveals HSL exceedances for hydrocarbon vapour intrusion, a more detailed (Tier 2) assessment will be required to further evaluate the human health risk.

PVI risk is initially interpreted through the development of HSL threshold limits from the following classifications:

- The geology and or hydrogeology of the investigation point; and
- Land use sensitivity:

The resulting HSL threshold limits are compared with laboratory analytical results.

11.1 Selected Media for Assessing PVI Risk

Table 23 presents a summary of the preferred HSL approach to assessing PVI risk.

Media Analysed	Method	Limitations	Order of Preference
Soil Gas	Concentrations of a soil gas through a soil vapor probe	This approach provides the most reliable data in interpreting PVI risk, although direct modelling should be applied if concentrations exceed HSL threshold limits.	Primary
Groundwater	Concentrations of PHC in groundwater through deployment of monitoring wells	 Determining PVI risk based on groundwater is inherently conservative when interpreting vapour risk to account for not readily discernable preferential pathways. Reference may be drawn to alternative assessment approaches: 1) Application of site specific conditions to the CRC CARE model for assessing PVI risk 2) Soil gas interpretation for areas where a PVI risk is identified from groundwater analysis. 	Secondary
Soil	Concentrations of PHC in soil	Concentrations in soil may be subject variability due to soil moisture, organic content and oxygen ingress all which create significant bias in threshold values. Reliance is place on utilizing groundwater analysis over soil.	Tertiary

Table 23 Preferred Methods for Determining Site PVI Risk

11.2 Land Use Class

For surrounding properties, the potential PVI risk is characterized through application of CRC CARE HSL's for each individual properties based on their existing land use (NEPM 2013; Friebel & Nadebaum 2010). The CRC CARE guidelines have been referenced to ensure that the correct land use and density category has been adopted for surrounding land use to ensure health risks are consistent with the HSL models. Aspects considered include the:

- Sensitivity of the existing or potential land use;
- Percentage of paved area for defining potential vapour migration risk;
- Type of basement garage which may influence the confinement of PHC vapors;
- Presence of a slab or cavity for discerning vapour intrusion risk.

If hydrocarbon impacted soil is discerned at the site, consideration is given to downgradient receptors. Where applicable, land use class therefore considers:

- Downgradient receptors where onsite HSL exceedances have been identified in soil; and
- Variations in land use for different parts of the proposed development.

The following land use classes are applied:

- HSL D for all commercial spaces including the proposed Level 1 gym area, car parking and café areas;
- HSL D for all residential development above the Level 1 carpark (as per NEPM 2013) which identifies need for adequate ventilation in the basement which attenuates the hazard to residential spaces above the carpark; and
- HSL B for apartments located directly on bare earth to the north of the site.

11.3 Vapour Barrier Assessment

Soil and soil vapour HSL's are specific to each sample location and involves characterisation based on the following variables:

- Land use class;
- Average grain size class of material above the sample point based on USCS partitioning into either sand, silt or clay and making adjustment to the grain class according to the following:
 - Excluding the proposed excavated material;
 - Including the dominant grain class of any backfill; and
 - Making allowance for a slab vapour barrier which is considered to have equivalent vapour barrier qualities to clay material.
- Sample depths are defined by the final finished floor level at that location relative to the:
 - Soil above the soil sample;
 - \circ Soil vapour above the passive sampler borehole vapour barrier;
- Classifying vapour intrusion risk based on depth ranges:
 - Soil 0 to 1 m; 1 to 2 m; 2 to 4 m; greater than 4 m; and
 - Soil vapour 0 to 1 m; 1 to 2 m; 2 to 4 m; 4 to 8, greater than 8 m

Table 24 summarises soil and soil vapour bores and land use classification used to characterise PVI risk for various properties near the site.

Table 24	Classification	Used to	Access De	troloum V	onour I	ntrucion	Rick to]		ators from "	Sail
Table 24	Classification	Useu to	Аззезз ге	stroleum va	apour n	in usion	RISK LU	Local Kece	prors mom	3011

Location	Soil Bores	Soil Vapour	Land Use Class
Level 1 car Park Basement, Gym & Cafe	All Soil Bores	VP1 to VP4	D
Apartment on Level 2	BH10, BH16 & BH17	VP4	В

11.4 Soil Assessment Findings

Soil sampling results, Certificate of Analysis is presented in Appendix 5. Soil samples have been assessed against the elected NEPM (2013) HSL D (Table 25) and HSL B (Table 26) to determine potential hydrocarbon vapour risk to site users. Specific grain, depth and land use classes are presented in both tables.

Specific grain, depth and land use classes are presented with the tables. Concentrations which exceeded laboratory LOR are highlighted in bold, and HSL exceedances are highlighted with a colored cell. Samples within the excavation do not have a depth class and have been leveled 'Excavate''.

There no HSL D or HSL B exceedances in any of the soil samples for indoor vapour assessment.

Table 25	Soil Anal	ytical Results	Compared	Against	HSL	D
----------	-----------	----------------	----------	---------	-----	---

Soil Hydrocarbo Intrusion (NEP Soil Sample Ana	oil Hydrocarbon HSL's for Assessing Indoor Vapour Itrusion (NEPM 2013) oil Sample Analysis					EP080/071: TRH					
Bold - Indicates LO	OR Exceedances	5			ene	ne	oenzene	Xylenes	thalene		
Colour Shading	- Indicates HS 5-20 x. *** 20	SL Exceedar)-50 x. ****	1ces: >50 x		enze	oluei	thylb	otal)	lapht	ц.	2
, - ,	T , T	,			ш ()	⊢ ″	ш	<u> </u>	~	<u>ш</u>	<u>ш</u>
SampleID	Sample Date	Class	Class	HSL	LOR 0.2	Mg/kg	mg/кg LOR 0.5	mg/kg LOR 0.5	LOR 1	Mg/Kg	mg/kg LOR 50
BH1 0.10m	17/06/2017	0 - 1	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH1 0.9m	17/06/2017	0 - 1	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH2 0.1m	17/06/2017	0 - 1	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH2 0.9m	17/06/2017	0 - 1	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH3 0.5m	17/06/2017	0 - 1	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH3 2.3m	17/06/2017	2 - 4	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH4 0.5m	17/06/2017	0 - 1	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	7	256	1780
BH4 1.0m	17/06/2017	0 - 1	SAND	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH5 0.1m	17/06/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	50
BH5 3.0m	17/06/2017	2 - 4	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH6 0.2m	17/06/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH6 2.0m	17/06/2017	0 - 1	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH6 3.0m	17/06/2017	1 - 2	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH7 0.2m	17/06/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH7 1.0m	17/06/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH7 3.0m	17/06/2017	1 - 2	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH8 1.0m	17/06/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH8 0.5m	17/06/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH9 0.2m	17/06/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH9 3.0m	17/06/2017	1 - 2	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH10 0.1m	17/06/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH10 1.0m	17/06/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH11 0.1m	17/06/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
DUP	17/06/2017	2 - 4	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH12 0.5m	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH12 1.0m	12/12/2017	0 - 1	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH13 0.4-0.5m	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH14 0.3-0.4m	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH14 1.0-1.1m	12/12/2017	0 - 1	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH15 0.5-0.6m	12/12/2017	0 - 1	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH16 1.0-1.1m	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH16 2.0-2.1m	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH16 2.9-3.0m	12/12/2017	0 - 1	SAND	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH17 0.5-0.6m	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH17 1.9-2.0m	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH18 0.2-0.3m	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH18 0.9-1.0m	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH19 0.2-0.3m	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH19 0.9-1.0m	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH20 0.5m	12/12/2017	0 - 1	CLAY	D	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH21.0.5m	12/12/2017	0 - 1	SAND	D	<0.2	<0.5	<05	<0.5	<1	<10	<50

Soil Hydrocarbo Intrusion (NEPN Soil Sample Ana	il Hydrocarbon HSL's for Assessing Indoor Vapour trusion (NEPM 2013) il Sample Analysis						EP080: BTEXN						
Bold - Indicates LC	OR Exceedances	5			e	a	enzene	ylenes	alene				
Colour Shading >1 x, * 2-5 x, **	- Indicates HS 5-20 x, *** 20	SL Exceeda)-50 x, ****	nces: >50 x		Benzen	Toluen	Ethylb€	Total X	Naphth	F1	F2		
Sample ID	Sample Date	Depth	Grain	ЦСІ	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg		
Sample ID	Sample Date	Class	Class	ПЭL	LOR 0.2	LOR 0.5	LOR 0.5	LOR 0.5	LOR 1	LOR 10	LOR 50		
BH10 0.1m	17/06/2017	0 - 1	CLAY	В	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50		
BH10 1.0m	17/06/2017	0 - 1	CLAY	В	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50		
BH16 1.0-1.1m	12/12/2017	1 - 2	CLAY	В	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50		
BH16 2.0-2.1m	12/12/2017	2 - 4	CLAY	В	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50		
BH16 2.9-3.0m	12/12/2017	2 - 4	CLAY	В	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50		
BH17 0.5-0.6m	12/12/2017	0 - 1	SAND	В	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50		
BH17 1.9-2.0m	12/12/2017	1 - 2	CLAY	В	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50		

Table 26 Soil Analytical Results Compared Against HSL B

11.5 Soil Vapour Assessment Findings

Soil vapour intrusion risk to indoor receptors is best characterised through installation of soil vapour probes. Soil vapour analytical results are presented in Appendix 9. Soil samples have been assessed against the elected NEPM (2013) HSL D and HSL B

Table 27 to determine potential hydrocarbon vapour risk to site users. Specific grain, depth and land use classes are presented in both tables. Detected results are presented in, guideline exceedances are represented in a coloured cell and samples results that were non-detect but above the HSL guideline are bold.

All soil vapour samples collected from the selected depths do not exceed the NEPM HSL guidelines for PHC vapour exposure risk to indoor vapour intrusion risk.

Intrusion Ri	<u>SK (NEPMZU</u>	113)										
Soil Hydrocarb Intrusion (NEP Passive Soil Va	on Vapour HSL' M 2013) apour Analysis	s for Asse	ssing Indo	or Va	pour		EP		EP080/071: TRH			
Bold - Indicates L Colour Shading >1 x, * 2-5 x, *	L OR Exceedances g - Indicates HSI * 5-20 x, *** 20-		Benzene	Toluene	Ethylbenzene	Total Xylenes	Naphthalene	F1	F2			
					Doploymont	mg/m3	mg/m3	mg/m3	mg/m3	mg/m3	mg/m3	mg/m3
Sample ID	Sample Date	Depth Class	Grain Class	HSL	Duration (hours)	LOR 0.019	LOR 0.013	LOR 0.01	LOR 0.01	LOR 0.012	LOR 2.5	LOR 1
VP1	11/12/2017	1 - 2	CLAY	D	69.33	<0.019	0.017	<0.01	0.017	<0.012	<2.5	<1.0
VP2	11/12/2017	1 - 2	CLAY	D	68.83	<0.019	<0.013	<0.01	0.01	<0.012	<2.5	<1.0
VP3	11/12/2017	0 - 1	CLAY	D	68.17	<0.019	0.014	0.047	0.131	<0.012	13	2.4
VP4	11/12/2017	1 - 2	SAND	D	67.75	<0.019	<0.013	<0.01	0.01	<0.012	<2.5	<1.0
VP4	11/12/2017	2 - 4	CLAY	В	67.75	<0.019	<0.013	<0.01	0.01	<0.012	<2.5	<1.0
Dup	11/12/2017	1 - 2	SAND	D	67.95	< 0.019	< 0.013	< 0.01	0.01	< 0.012	<2.5	<1.0

Table 27Soil Vapour Analytical Results Compared Against NEPM HSLs for Assessing Petroleum VapourIntrusion Risk (NEPM2013)

12 TRENCH WORKER PVI ASSESSMENT – HSL's

12.1 Classification

The following Health Screening Assessment is based on hydrocarbon vapour intrusion risk to subsurface excavation workers within excavations. This is assessed through analysis of vapors from soil and soil vapours. Groundwater is generally not used to assess risk as threashold limits for all depth and grain classes are non-limiting. Land use classes are not applicable when assessing vapour intrusion into trenches.

Soil and soil vapour HSL's for assessing hydrocarbon risk to maintenance workers are based on CRC CARE Technical Report 10 guidelines (Friebel & Nadebaum 2011) and the following variables:

- Average grain size class of material above the sample point based on USCS partitioning into either sand, silt or clay;
- Sample depths are defined by proposed elevation of the development ground surface at that location relative to the:
 - Soil sample depth
 - Soil vapour point depth
- Classifying vapour intrusion risk based on depth ranges:
 - Soil 0 to 1 m; 1 to 2 m; 2 to 4 m; greater than 4 m; and
 - Soil vapour 0 to 1 m; 1 to 2 m; 2 to 4 m; 4 to 8, greater than 8 m

12.2 Soil Assessment Findings

Laboratory analytical results are presented in Appendix 5. Table 28 compares soil analytical results for residual samples (non-excavated soil which is to remain at the site) against relevant CRC CARE HSLs for shallow intrusive maintenance workers. Concentrations which exceeded laboratory LOR are highlighted in bold, and ESL exceedances are highlighted with a colored cell, and soil proposed to be excavated from the site are marked "Excavate".

None of the soil samples collected at the site exceeds the hydrocarbon HSL's for shallow intrusive maintenance workers.

Table 28	Summary of Soil	Analytical Result	s Compared	against	HSL's for	Assessing	PVI	Risk to	Trench
Workers									

CRC CARE Health for PHC Inhalatio Soil Sample Anal	Screening Lev n Risk To Tren vsis	el Assessme ch Workers	ent From		50		VN		50000//	74. 701
	y 010				EP	080: BIE	XN		EP080/0)/1: IRH
Bold - Indicates L Dark Grey Shadin >1 x, * 2-5 x, ** 5	OR Exceedanc 9g - Indicates F -20 x, *** 20-5	es ISL Exceedar 0 x, **** >50	nces:) x	Benzene	Toluene	Ethylbenzene	Total Xylenes	Naphthalene	C6 - C10 Fraction	>C10 - C16 Fraction
SampleID	Sample Date	Depth Class	Grain	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg
BH1 0.10m	17/06/2017	0 to 2m	CLAY	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH1 0.9m	17/06/2017	0 to 2m	CLAY	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH2 0.1m	17/06/2017	0 to 2m	CLAY	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH2 0.9m	17/06/2017	0 to 2m	CLAY	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH3 0.5m	17/06/2017	0 to 2m	CLAY	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH3 2 3m	17/06/2017	2 to 4m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH4 0 5m	17/06/2017	0 to 2m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	7	256	1790
BH4 1 0m	17/06/2017	0 to 2m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1 <1	<10	<50
BH5 0 1m	17/06/2017	ΕΧΟΔΥΔΤΕ		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	50
BH5 3.0m	17/06/2017	2 to 4m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH5 9.0m	17/06/2017			<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH6 2.0m	17/06/2017	0 to 2m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH6 3.0m	17/06/2017	0 to 2m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH7 0 2m	17/06/2017	ΕΧCΔVΔΤΕ		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH7 1.0m	17/06/2017	EXCAVATE		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	~1	<10	<50
BH7 3.0m	17/06/2017	0 to 2m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH7 3.0m	17/06/2017			<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH8 1.011	17/06/2017	EXCAVATE		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH8 0.5m	17/06/2017	EXCAVATE		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH9 0.2111	17/06/2017	0 to 2m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH9 3.011	17/06/2017			<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH10 0.1111	17/06/2017	EXCAVATE		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH10 1.011	17/06/2017	EXCAVATE		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH110.111	17/06/2017	EXCAVATE		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH12 0.5m	12/12/2017	0 to 2m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
	12/12/2017			<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH13 0.4-0.3III	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH14 0.3-0.4m	12/12/2017	0 to 2m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH14 1.0-1.111	12/12/2017	0 to 2m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH15 0.5-0.011	12/12/2017			<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH16 2.0 2.1m	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH16 2.0-2.111	12/12/2017	0 to 2m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH10 2.9-5.011	12/12/2017			<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH17 0.5-0.011	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH17 1.3-2.011	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH18 0.2-0.311	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH10 0.3 0.2m	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH19 0.2-0.3III	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
BH19 0.9-1.0m	12/12/2017	EXCAVATE	CLAY	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
	12/12/2017	0 to 2m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
	17/06/2017	0 to 2111		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	~1	<10	< <u>50</u>
	17/06/2017	0 to 2m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<5U
	12/12/2017	0 to 2m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
	12/12/2017	0 to 2m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
DT10 2.0-2.1M	12/12/2017	2 to 4m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
внію 2.9-3.0m	12/12/2017	2 to 4m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	<10	<50
	12/12/2017	0 to 2m		<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1 ~1	<10	<5U
10111/1.9-2.UM	112/12/201/	0 to 2m	LAY	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<1	10 <10	<50

12.3 Soil Vapour Assessment Findings

Laboratory analytical results are presented in Appendix 9. Table 29 compares soil vapour analytical results against relevant CRC CARE HSLs for shallow intrusive maintenance workers. Concentrations which exceeded laboratory LOR are highlighted in bold, and ESL exceedances are highlighted with a colored cell. All soil vapour samples collected from the selected depths do not exceed the CRC CARE (Friebel & Nadebaum, 2011) guidelines for PHC vapour exposure risk to trench workers (Table 29).

Table 29 Soil Vapour Analytical Results Compared Against CRC CARE Guidelines for Assessing Petrole	eum
Vapour Intrusion Risk to Trench Workers (CRC CARE - Friebel & Nadebaum, 2011)	

			``````````````````````````````````````				, ,			
CRC CARE Health S for PHC Inhalation	creening Level Risk To Trench	Assessme Workers	ent							
Passive Soil Vapou	ır Analysis					EP080/0	)71: TRH			
Bold - Indicates LO	R Exceedances					ene	ıes	ue	raction	6 Fraction
Dark Grey Shading >1 x, * 2-5 x, ** 5-2	Benzene	Toluene	Ethylbenze	Total Xyleı	Naphthale	C6 - C10 F	>C10 - C1			
				mg/m3	mg/m3	mg/m3	mg/m3	mg/m3	mg/m3	mg/m3
Sample ID	Sample Date	Depth Class	Grain Class	LOR 0.019	LOR 0.013	LOR 0.01	LOR 0.01	LOR 0.012	LOR 2.5	LOR 1
VP1	11/12/2017	0 to 2m	CLAY	<0.019	0.017	<0.01	0.017	<0.012	<2.5	<1.0
VP2	11/12/2017	0 to 2m	CLAY	<0.019	<0.013	<0.01	0.01	<0.012	<2.5	<1.0
VP3	11/12/2017	0 to 2m	CLAY	<0.019	0.014	0.047	0.131	<0.012	13	2.4
VP4	11/12/2017	0 to 2m	SAND	<0.019	<0.013	<0.01	0.01	<0.012	<2.5	<1.0
VP4	11/12/2017	2 to 4m	CLAY	<0.019	<0.013	<0.01	0.01	<0.012	<2.5	<1.0
Dup	11/12/2017	0 to 2m	SAND	<0.019	< 0.013	<0.01	0.01	< 0.012	<2.5	<1.0

# 13 SOIL DISPOSAL ASSESSSMENT

#### **13.1 Guidelines**

Soil which is excavated from the site for landfill disposal is to be assessed against Information Bulletin 105 (IB105) for Classification and Management of Contaminated Soil for Disposal. The EPA uses 4 categories to classify contaminated soil as per Table 30:

- (Level 1) Fill Material;
- (Level 2) Low Level Contaminated Soil;
- (Level 3) Contaminated Soil; and
- (Level 4) Contaminated Soil.

Fixed numerical values are presented for soil concentrations and leachable fraction concentrations.

# 13.2 Findings

The soil samples have been compared against IB105 guidelines for soil disposal see Table 31 and Table 32.. On average, the proposed excavated soil is classified as Level 2 contaminated based on barium, lead, zinc & benzo(a)pyrene. Most of this impact occurs at a shallow depth at the site. Barium is likely to be an artefact of background soils in the area and not a contaminant of concern at the site which may deem it as being classified Level 2.

The bulk of the impact occurs in shallow fill material at the site, and care should be taken to scraping the top 0.3 m from the site and stockpiling is separately from the remaining deep excavations. This is likely to bring the bulk excavations below 0.3 m BGS to Level 1.

Elevated lead concentrations in BH4 0.5 bring the soil classification to Level 4 (Table 31). However, when all soil hydrocarbon concentrations are averaged, the soil is reduced to level 2 classification. GES therefore recommends that any soil excavated at the site is stockpiled, sampled, analysised and transported to a licensed storage and handling facility for management of contaminated soil.

	Classification (with reference to Table 2)	Controlled Waste ¹	Comments
Fill Material ² (Level 1)	Soil that exhibits levels of contaminants below the limits defined under <i>Fill Material</i> in Table 2.	Unlikely	Soil classified as <i>Fill Material</i> can still be a 'pollutant' under the <i>Environmental Management and</i> <i>Pollution Control Act 1994</i> and needs to be responsibly managed.
Low Level Contaminated Soil (Level 2)	Soil that exhibits levels of contaminants above the limits defined under <i>Fill Material</i> but below the limits defined under <i>Low Level Contaminated Soil</i> in Table 2.	Likely	Where leachable concentrations have not been prescribed, maximum total concentrations will be used to classify the soil.
Contaminated Soil (Level 3)	Soil that exhibits levels of contaminants above the limits defined under <i>Low Level</i> <i>Contaminated Soil</i> but below the limits defined under <i>Contaminated Soil</i> in Table 2.	Yes	Where leachable concentrations have not been prescribed, maximum total concentrations will be used to classify the soil.
Contaminated Soil for Remediation (Level 4)	Soil that exhibits levels of contaminants above the limits defined under <i>Contaminated</i> <i>Soil</i> in Table 2 (regardless of the maximum total concentrations) is generally <b>not</b> considered acceptable for off- site disposal without prior treatment.	Yes	Soil that contains contaminants that do not have criteria for leachable concentrations (e.g. petroleum hydrocarbons), and the levels of contaminants exceed the maximum total concentrations listed in <i>Contaminated Soil</i> , are generally classified as <i>Contaminated Soil for</i> <i>Remediation</i> .

#### Table 30 Summary of IB105 Classification Guidelines

# Table 31 All Soil Analytical Results Compared Against IB105 Investigation Limits for soil Disposal

Informat	tion Bulletin 105	EG005T: Tota	al Metal	s by ICI	P-AES								EG035T	EP075	5(SIM)A	EP080:	BTEX			EP080	/071: TRH
X - Below P	nagement of ninated Soil For Disposal Proposed Finished oor Level	Arsenic	Barium	Beryllium	Cadmium	Chromium Total	Cobalt	Copper	Lead	Manganese	Nickel	Zinc	Mercury	Benzo(a)pyrene	Sum of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons	Benzene	Toluene	Ethylbenzene	Total Xylenes	C6 - C9 Fraction	C10 - C36 Fraction (sum)
Unit		mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	g mg/kg	mg/kg	g mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg
LUR		5	10	1	1	2	2	5	5	5	2	5	0.1	0.5	0.5	0.2	0.5	0.5	0.5	10	50
IB105 Level 1	Level Selected	20	300	2	3	50	100	100	300	500	60	200	1	0.08	20	1	1	3	14	65	1000
IB105 Level 2		200	3000	40	40	500	200	2000	1200	5000	600	14000	30	2	40	5	100	100	180	650	5000
IB105 Level 3		750	30000	400	400	5000	1000	7500	3000	25000	3000	50000	110	20	200	50	1000	1080	1800	1000	10000
IB105 Level 4		>750	>30000	) >400	>400	>5000	>1000	>7500	>3000	>25000	>3000	>50000	>110	>20	>200	>50	>1000	>1080	>1800	>1000	>10000
17/06/2017	RH1 0 10m	-F	80	-1	10	20	12	170	262	275	20	200	0.6	0.0	7 1	<0.2	<0 F	<0 F	<0 F	<10	200
17/06/2017	BH1 0.10m BH1 0.9m	<5	50	<1	 <1	30	4	1/2	26	148	28 6	17	0.8	0.8 <0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<u> </u>
17/06/2017	BH2 0.1m	<5	140	<1	<1	23	6	53	364	176	22	329	0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
17/06/2017	BH2 0.9m	<5	80	<1	<1	5	6	20	359	256	6	26	0.9	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
17/06/2017	BH3 0.5m	<5	40	<1	<1	4	21	83	9	262	9	36	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
17/06/2017	BH3 2.3m	<5	170	1	<1	8	19	16	11	125	20	65	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
17/06/2017	BH4 0.5m	17	400	1	<1	10	13	116	4570	512	16	473	1	2.2	22.3	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	132	9550
17/06/2017	BH4 1.0m	<5	120	1	<1	13	6	17	16	80	8	25	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
17/06/2017	BH5 3.0m	<5 18	10	<1	_1	10	8	69 8	13	554	18	24	0.5	3.0	44.Z	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	770
17/06/2017	BH6 0.2m X	8	900	<1	2	20	11	122	1430	248	20	941	1.5	3.5	33.3	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	540
17/06/2017	BH6 2.0m	6	30	<1	<1	13	8	8	11	1680	11	23	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
17/06/2017	BH6 3.0m	16	<10	<1	<1	10	<2	8	12	70	4	33	0.3	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
17/06/2017	BH7 0.2m X	8	820	<1	1	16	10	101	1140	213	18	614	2.1	3.8	37.8	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	310
17/06/2017	BH7 1.0m X	<5	1090	5	<1	15	67	28	16	198	50	47	0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
17/06/2017	BH7 3.0m	<5	10	<1	<1	6	3	<5	5	121	3	13	1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
17/06/2017	BH8 1.0m X	<5	20	<1	<1	14	3	<5	<5	37	7	18	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
17/06/2017	BH8 0.5m X BH9 0.2m X	<5	500	<1	<1	13	17	<5 76	<5 852	366	3 16	28	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
17/06/2017	BH9 3.0m	<5	30	<1	<1	8	4	5	<5	55	3	13	0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
17/06/2017	BH10 0.1m X	<5	30	<1	<1	5	15	90	60	279	11	99	0.1	1	9.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
17/06/2017	BH10 1.0m X	6	110	1	<1	11	32	19	9	1490	28	23	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
17/06/2017	BH11 0.1m X	7	50	1	<1	11	32	27	17	2260	30	79	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	380
12/12/2017	BH12 0.5m X	5	220	1	<1	18	13	32	10	116	14	28	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
12/12/2017	BH12 1.0m	8	660	4	<1	16	368	39	11	1690	72	45	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
12/12/2017	BH13 0.4-0.5m X	<5	180	1	<1	/	6 12	16	<5	268	13	53	<0.1	< 0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
12/12/2017	BH14 1.0-1.1m	<5	480	1	<10	14	14	17	11	54	13	14	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
12/12/2017	BH15 0.5-0.6m	<5	10	<1	<1	11	13	57	<5	350	15	34	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
12/12/2017	BH16 1.0-1.1m X	<5	230	<4	<2	<4	33	67	<5	1050	100	13	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
12/12/2017	BH16 2.0-2.1m X	9	90	1	<1	4	13	46	8	760	18	48	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
12/12/2017	BH16 2.9-3.0m	<5	<10	<1	<1	6	<2	<5	<5	10	3	13	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
12/12/2017	BH17 0.5-0.6m X	<5	50	1	<1	17	16	24	12	115	16	32	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
12/12/2017	BH17 1.9-2.0m X	<5	220	<1	<1	16	45	32	6	2410	38	75	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
12/12/2017	BH18 0.2-0.3m X	<5	130	1	<1	10	14	15	144	167	14	104	1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
12/12/2017	BH19 0.2-0.3m X	<5	220	<1	<1	21	9	44	341	208	12	227	1.5	3.6	35.1	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	610
12/12/2017	BH19 0.9-1.0m X	<5	2770	3	<1	11	37	13	14	255	19	17	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
12/12/2017	BH20 0.5m	<5	40	<1	<1	12	3	10	9	59	4	12	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
12/12/2017	BH21 0.5m	6	170	<1	<1	12	11	49	238	301	15	157	0.8	2.8	24	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
17/06/2017	BH10 0.1m	<5	30	<1	<1	5	15	90	60	279	11	99	0.1	1	9.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
17/06/2017	BH10 1.0m	6	110	1	<1	11	32	19	9	1490	28	23	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
12/12/2017	BH16 1.0-1.1m	<5	230	<4	<2	<4	33	67	<5	1050	100	13	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
12/12/2017	BH16 2.0-2.1m	9	90	1	<1	4	13	46	8	760	18	48	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
12/12/2017	BH17.0.5-0.6m	<5	50	<1 1	<1	0 17	<2 16	<5 24	<5 12	115	3 16	22	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
		· · · ·		· ·	· · ·	/		L							-0.0	-0.4					

	12/12/2017	BH17 1.9-2.0m	<5	220	<1	<1	16	45	32	6	2410	38	75	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50
--	------------	---------------	----	-----	----	----	----	----	----	---	------	----	----	------	------	------	------	------	------	------	-----	-----

#### **Information Bulletin 105** EG005T: Total Metals by ICP-AES EG035T EP075(SIM)A EP080: BTEX EP080/071: TRH **Classification and** Management of Sum of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons C10 - C36 Fraction (sum) **Contaminated Soil For** Disposal Chromium Total C9 Fraction Benzo(a)pyrene Ethylbenzene **Fotal Xylenes** X - Below Proposed Finished Manganese Beryllium Cadmium Mercury **Floor Level** Benzene Toluene Arsenic Barium Copper Cobalt Nickel .ead Zinc ė Unit mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg mg/kg LOR 10 2 0.5 0.5 0.2 0.5 0.5 0.5 5 1 1 2 5 5 5 2 5 0.1 10 50 Investigation Level Selected IB105 Level 1 20 300 2 3 50 100 100 300 500 60 200 1 0.08 20 1 1 3 14 65 1000 IB105 Level 2 200 3000 40 40 500 200 2000 1200 5000 600 14000 30 2 40 5 100 100 180 650 5000 25000 50000 50 1000 1080 1800 IB105 Level 3 750 30000 400 400 5000 1000 7500 3000 3000 110 20 200 1000 10000 >400 >1080 >1800 >1000 17/06/2017 BH5 0.1m X 18 0.5 3.6 44.2 <0.5 <0.5 770 <5 80 <1 1 16 8 69 208 217 184 <0.2 <0.5 <10 248 540 17/06/2017 BH6 0.2m X 8 900 <1 2 20 11 122 1430 20 941 1.5 3.5 33.3 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 16 614 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 17/06/2017 BH7 0.2m X 8 820 <1 1 10 101 1140 213 18 2.1 3.8 37.8 <0.2 <10 310 17/06/2017 BH7 1.0m X 1090 5 <1 15 67 28 198 50 47 0.1 <0.5 <0.5 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 <50 <5 16 17/06/2017 BH8 1.0m X <5 20 <1 <1 14 3 <5 <5 37 7 18 <0.1 <0.5 <0.5 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 <50 17/06/2017 BH8 0.5m X <5 10 <1 <1 13 2 <5 <5 51 3 28 <0.1 <0.5 <0.5 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 <50 17/06/2017 BH9 0.2m X 10 500 1 <1 17 17 76 852 366 16 588 1.6 2.3 23.7 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 <50 BH10 0.1m X 17/06/2017 <5 30 <1 5 15 90 279 11 99 0.1 1 9.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 <50 <1 60 <0.2 17/06/2017 BH10 1.0m X 6 110 1 <1 11 32 19 9 1490 28 23 <0.1 <0.5 <0.5 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 <50 17/06/2017 BH11 0.1m X 7 50 1 <1 11 32 27 17 2260 30 79 <0.1 <0.5 <0.5 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 380 12/12/2017 BH12 0.5m X 5 220 1 <1 18 13 32 10 116 14 28 <0.1 <0.5 <0.5 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 <50 12/12/2017 <5 <1 7 16 <5 13 <0.5 <10 BH13 0.4-0.5m X 20 1 6 268 53 <0.1 < 0.5 <0.5 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <50 12/12/2017 BH14 0.3-0.4m X 35 180 <1 <10 20 12 80 314 825 22 728 0.8 5.2 42.1 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 420 12/12/2017 <5 67 <5 1050 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 BH16 1.0-1.1m X 230 <4 <2 <4 33 100 13 <0.1 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <10 <50 BH16 2.0-2.1m X 90 46 760 12/12/2017 9 1 <1 4 13 8 18 48 <0.1 <0.5 <0.5 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 <50 12/12/2017 BH17 0.5-0.6m X <5 50 1 <1 17 16 24 12 115 16 32 <0.1 <0.5 <0.5 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 <50 12/12/2017 BH17 1.9-2.0m X <5 220 <1 <1 16 45 32 2410 38 75 <0.1 <0.5 <0.5 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 6 <50 12/12/2017 BH18 0.2-0.3m X <5 130 <1 10 14 72 167 14 104 <0.5 <0.5 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 <50 1 144 1 <0.5 12/12/2017 BH18 0.9-1.0m X <5 180 <3 13 17 15 <5 1100 29 30 <0.1 <0.5 <0.5 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <10 <50 <5 220 44 <0.5 610 12/12/2017 BH19 0.2-0.3m X <5 <1 21 9 341 208 12 227 1.5 3.6 <0.2 <0.5 <0.5 <10 <1 35.1 BH19 0.9-1.0m X 12/12/2017 <5 2770 3 37 13 14 255 19 17 <0.1 <0.5 <0.5 <0.2 <0.5 < 0.5 <0.5 <10 <50 <1 11 Averaging 4 321 0.8 0.3 14 18 48 312 479 19 225 0.5 1.2 12.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0 167

#### Table 32 Proposed excavated Soil Analytical Results only Compared Against IB105 Investigation Limits for soil Disposal With Averages Included

# 14 CONCEPTUAL SITE MODEL

# 14.1 Potential & Identified Sources of Contamination

#### 14.1.1 Potential Primary Sources

The primary potential sources of contamination impact at the site includes:

- Heavy metal and hydrocarbon impacted fill from historical site activities. Despite residential use, many older building sites around Hobart have background zinc, lead and PAH contamination;
- UST T1, T2, T3 and T4 and associated bowsers and fuel lines;
- Truck service pits within workshop;
- Interceptor trap and associated pipework;
- Vehicle wash-down areas; and
- Potential historical industrial activities occurring at the site including metalworks, and possible use of the site for servicing and storage of vehicles.

There may be other unknown potential sources of onsite or offsite impact (outside of the sampling areas) which GES are unaware of and therefore have not been investigated within this assessment.

Contaminates of potential concern associated with these potential sources have already been identified in a previous section.

#### 14.1.2 Identified Primary Sources

Identified primary sources include:

- Soil impact has been identified around the historical interceptor trap which is no longer in use but was in use until recently (within last 5 years);
- GES are not aware of any site tank decommissioning and it needs to be assumed that all tanks (identified or not identified) remain at the site. The tanks may present geotechnical hazards with ground instability issues if they are to remain, and therefore the UST's should be formally decommissioned.
- UST T1, T2 and the former bowser in Area B as well as Area C have not been investigated given the presence of the building obstructions. These are not an identified primary source and data gaps remain for this area of the site; and
- Heavy metal and hydrocarbon impacted fill has been identified within the upper 0.4 m of the site.

#### 14.1.3 Identified Secondary Sources

The following contaminants have been identified in soil at the site:

- Heavy metal and hydrocarbon impacted fill to depths of 0.4 m BGS; and
- Heavy metal and hydrocarbon impacted fill around the interceptor trap.
- There may be secondary soil impact around UST T1 and T2, as well as in Area C. This needs to be further investigated whilst the site is being excavated.

#### **14.2 Potential Receptors**

The following presents a summary of all potential receptors considered in the assessment.

### 14.2.1 Potential Future Onsite Receptors

Potential future onsite receptors including slab demolition, earth removal, development and occupancy stages are presented in Table 33.

Medium	Specific Onsite Receptor							
Soil	Site earthworks including soil removal							
	uture trench workers							
	Onsite inhabitants which may be exposed to:							
	• Excavated soil during trenching works;							
	Petroleum vapours sourcing from impacted soil							
Groundwater/Vanour	Onsite inhabitants which may be exposed to petroleum vapours sourcing from							
impacted groundwater								

 Table 33 Summary of Potential Future Onsite Receptors

#### 14.2.2 Potential Offsite Receptors

Heavy metal impacted groundwater may only pose a risk if it:

- Shallows and discharge into an inhabitable area where people may be in direct contact with it. Given groundwater is unlikely to shallow within 500 m of the site, this risk is considered low;
- Is used as a drinking water sourced which has been ruled out based on PEV's and higher salinity groundwater typical within the identified geological units;
- If it is to discharge into a nearby ecosystem. Given there are no nearby sensitive ecosystems within a 500m radius of the site, provided that a soil and water is managed during development works, there is a low risk that heavy metal and hydrocarbon impacted soil identified by EIL's and ESL exceedances will present a risk to ecosystem receptors.

Hydrocarbons may present a risk to offsite receptors if the hydrocarbons present a vapour intrusion risk.

Hydrocarbon or heavy metal impacted soil may present a risk to offsite receptors if it is not managed appropriately and allowed to erode from the site. The heavy metals, are unlikely to concentrate to the extent that they will cause heightened risk to receptors beyond what has been identified within this ESA.

Table 34 presents a summary of potential offsite receptors

Medium	Specific Offsite Receptor
Groundwater	PVI risk in downgradient first floor residential units
	PVI risk in downgradient ground floor commercial spaces
	Shallowing into backyards downgradient
	Drinking water use
	Ecosystem
Soil	Ecosystem impact from erosion and stormwater runoff

#### Table 34 Summary of Potential Offsite Receptors

### 14.3 Transport Mechanisms and Exposure Routes

#### 14.3.1 Incomplete Contaminant Exposure Pathways

Incomplete contaminant exposure pathways relate to present unmanaged risk. Table 35 presents a summary of potential receptors identified in desktop assessment of the site, with incomplete exposure pathways deducted based on the soil investigations. All offsite exposure pathways have been ruled out.

Medium	Specific Receptor	Pathways Ruled Out	Basis			
Groundwater	Onsite residential and commercial	Vapour inhalation	PVI risk not identified in			
Offundwater	receptors	sourcing from the site	passive vapour samplers			
	Downgradiant residential	Shallowing into	No shallowing groundwater			
	Downgradient residential	backyards	within 500 m radius			
	Human health	Drinking groundwater	Typical salinity values and reticulated water rule out groundwater as a drinking water PEV			
	Ecosystem	Shallowing into nearby rivulet	No ecosystem receptors identified at least within 500 m of the site			
Soil	Onsite residential and commercial	Vapour inhalation	PVI risk not identified in			
5011	receptors	sourcing from the site	passive vapour samplers			

 Table 35
 Summary of Incomplete Contaminant Exposure Pathways

#### 14.3.2 Potential Pathways

Potential and plausible transport mechanisms and exposure routes are presented in Table 36 and Figure 7 model. Incomplete exposure pathways are not included in Figure 7.

Although potential onsite receptors to petroleum vapour intrusion risk have been ruled out, a vapour intrusion risk to offsite receptors cannot be ruled out on the basis that:

- It is not known if there is impact sourcing from UST T1 & T2; and
- Onsite and offsite groundwater has not been investigated.

Medium	Specific Pathway	Receptors
Soil	Dust inhalation, soil ingestion & dermal contact	Construction workers*
		Onsite residential inhabitants*
		Future trench workers*
	Soil erosion and stormwater transport during construction phase	Marine ecosystem*
Groundwater	Indoor vapour intrusion	Downgradient residential or commercial receptors

 Table 36 Summary of Potential Complete Contaminant Exposure Pathways

* See Recommendations for Managed Risk Options

#### 14.3.3 Plausible Contaminant Exposure Pathway Details

Provided that the soil is adequately managed as indicated in the recommendations, plausible exposure pathways are not identified at the site.



Figure 7 Conceptual Site Model Identifying Contamination Source, Receptors and Transport Mechanisms/Exposure Routes

# **15 CONCLUSIONS**

# **15.1 Adopted Land Use Settings**

The following investigation limits were adopted for the site:

- Ecosystem Residential land use;
- Future land users soil direct contact risk- limited soil access (all paved) therefore:
  - HIL B for soil ingestion and dust inhalation risk to residence;
  - HIL D for soil ingestion and dust inhalation risk to commercial workers
- Future land users vapour inhalation risk
  - HSL D for Level 1 commercial workers
  - o HSL D for residence living above Level 1 carpark
  - HSL B for residence living on Level 2 built on ground surface
- Site development works and future (post development) trench workers:
  - Standard guidelines for assessing trench worker vapour intrusion risk;
  - Standard guidelines for assessing dermal contact risk; and
  - HIL D for assessing dust inhalation and soil ingestion risk

#### 15.2 Invasive Soil Assessment

The following conclusions can be made from the invasive soil assessment.

- GES are not aware of any tank decommissioning and it needs to be assumed that all tanks (identified or not identified) remain at the site.
- Site contamination findings are summarised:
  - Shallow soil impact has been identified in fill throughout the site within the top 0.3 to 0.4 m of the soil profile. Most of the identified impact is proposed to be excavated with a smaller amount to remain which is predominantly within guideline limits:
    - ESL exceedances have been identified based on a residential setting comprising benzo(a)pyrene and heavy oil compounds. Eight (8) exceedances are in the proposed excavation areas and three (3) which are to remain at the site beneath the new slab. Provided management measures are put in place, there is a LOW risk that the soil will present an environmental hazard;
    - EIL exceedances have been identified based on a residential setting comprising copper, nickel, zinc and lead. Ten (10) exceedances are in the proposed excavation areas and seven (7) which are to remain at the site beneath the new slab. Soil which is to remain at the site exceeds guidelines for copper and zinc. Provided management measures are put in place, there is a LOW risk that the soil will present an environmental hazard;
    - HIL B guidelines for assessing soil ingestion and dust inhalation risk are exceeded in six (6) samples at the site for assessing risk to future site users, of which all samples are proposed to be excavated except for BH4 0.5 m near the interceptor trap which exceeds HIL D. If the areas around the interceptor trap are excavated, there is an exposure risk to commercial workers, however based on available information, a risk to ongoing site users will be mitigated;
    - HSL D guidelines for assessing dermal contact risk to commercial workers have been identified in BH4 0.5 m near the interceptor trap (the same HIL D exceedance). Provided this impacted soil is removed, risk to future trench workers can be mitigated.
  - Investigation Area A Other than the identified site fill, no impact has been identified in the truck service area nor around UST T3 and T4;
  - **Investigation Area B** Other than the identified site fill, and impact around the interceptor trap, no impact has been identified. There remain data gaps in this Area B. Areas around former UST T1 and T2 as well as the nearby former bowser area have not been investigated given the presence of the building obstructions;

- Investigation Area C has not been investigated given the presence of the building and infrastructure obstructions; and
- Investigation Area D no soil impact has been identified in this area.
- Areas where data gaps have been identified will need to be addressed in a site contamination management plan (CMP);
- It has been identified that the bulk of the proposed excavated material averages out to Level 2 based on IB105 due to barium, lead, zinc and benzo(a)pyrene in the proposed excavation material. Barium is likely to be an artefact of background soils in the area and not a contaminant of concern at the site which may deem it as being classified Level 2. The bulk of the impact occurs in shallow fill material at the site, and care should be taken to scraping the top 0.3 m from the site and stockpiling is separately from the remaining deep excavations. This is likely to bring the bulk excavations below 0.3 m BGS to Level 1.

# 15.3 Potentially Contaminated Land Code

2015 Interim Statewide Planning Scheme codes for assessing development on contaminated site have been assessed.

### 15.3.1 Change of Use Standards

A contamination management plan (CMP) must be developed to manage contamination and associated risk to human health or the environment that will ensure the land is suitable for the intended use. Table 38 presents change of use standard performance criteria codes for assessing the proposed change of use from a commercial/industrial site to a residential development.

Performance Criteria E2.5 P1 Land is suitable for the intended use, having regard to:	Relevance	Management Options	Risk
(a) an environmental site assessment that demonstrates there is no evidence the land is contaminated; or	Given management measures, the subject land is not deemed to present a contamination risk .	Management options are presented in a separated contamination management plan (CMP) document.	LOW
(b) an environmental site assessment that demonstrates that the level of contamination does not present a risk to human health or the environment; or	An ESA document has been produced which has adequately addressed all foreseeable data gaps relating to site contamination impact on human health or the environment.	Risks are identified as being LOW provided that the CMP is followed.	LOW
(c) a plan to manage contamination and associated risk to human health and the environment that includes:			
(i) an environmental site assessment;	Recommendations herein and a formalized contamination management plan	The CMP is to address potential environmental and human health risks	LOW
(ii) any specific remediation and protection measures required to be implemented before excavation commences; and	No specific remediation measures are recommended. Protection measures identified in the CMP.	Appropriate excavation management, protection measures and soil erosion controls identified in CMP.	LOW
(iii) a statement that the excavation does not adversely impact on human health or the environment.	Proposed excavation works will not adversely impact on human health or the environment given CMP management recommendations.	Excavation stormwater runoff and erosion control measures are presented within the CMP.	LOW

Table 37 Interim Planning Scheme Development Standard Codes for Proposed Site Excavation Works

#### 15.3.2 Development Standards

There are no acceptable solutions to developing on potentially contaminated lands. Table 38 presents development standard performance criteria codes for assessing proposed site excavation works.

#### Table 38 Interim Planning Scheme Development Standard Codes for Proposed Site Excavation Works

Performance Criteria E2.6.2 P1 Excavation does not adversely impact on health and the environment, having regard to:	Relevance	Management Options	Risk
(a) an environmental site assessment that demonstrates there is no evidence the land is contaminated; or	Given management measures, the subject land is not deemed to present a contamination risk.	Management options are presented in a separated contamination management plan (CMP) document.	LOW
(b) a plan to manage contamination and associated risk to human health and the environment that includes:			
(i) an environmental site assessment;	Recommendations herein and a formalized contamination management plan	The CMP is to address potential environmental and human health risks	LOW
(ii) any specific remediation and protection measures required to be implemented before excavation commences; and	No specific remediation measures are recommended. Protection measures identified in the CMP.	Appropriate excavation management, protection measures and soil erosion controls identified in CMP.	LOW
(iii) a statement that the excavation does not adversely impact on human health or the environment.	Proposed excavation works will not adversely impact on human health or the environment given CMP management recommendations.	Excavation stormwater runoff and erosion control measures are presented within the CMP.	LOW

# **16 RECOMMENDATIONS**

When redevelopment work commences for the site, GES recommends that the following actions should be undertaken:

- A Contamination Management Plan will be required for the site to manage any potential risks during site works and should comply with the Hobart Interim Planning scheme.
- Further site assessment which should include but not be limited to;
  - All four USTs should be formally decommissioned as the USTs may present geotechnical hazards with ground instability issues if they remain. The removal of the USTs must comply with workplace standards and EPA reporting requirements. Note: The tank location plans should be used as a guide only and tank locations may be discerned by looking for signs of fill (sand or gravel), used to pack around the USTs;
  - Once USTs, associated infrastructure and surrounding soil have been removed the tank pits should be validated.
  - The interceptor trap should be removed, and remaining soil should be validated; and
  - Further investigations will be required under the footprint of the buildings, at a minimum in Area C for contamination.
- All excavated soil at the site should be stockpiled and assessed against IB105 guidelines for Classification and Management of Contaminated Soil for Disposal before it is transported to a licensed storage and handling facility for managing contaminated soil.
- Note the bulk of the contaminated soil impact occurs in shallow fill material. GES recommends separating stockpiles; and keeping the shallow material 0.0-0.4 m bgs separate. All remaining material is likely to be classified as Level 1 clean fill (with proof of analytical results).

Yours faithfully,

Sarah Joyce BSc (Hons) Environmental Geologist

# REFERENCES

Andrew and Mckellar design, 2017. Proposed Residential Unit Development – 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart for Hobart Properties & Securities Pty Ltd. And + design, Noosaville, Queensland (Aug, 2017).

ANZECC, 1992. Australian and New Zealand Guidelines for Fresh and Marine Water Quality. Australian and New Zealand Environment and Conservation Council and Agriculture and Resource Management Council of Australia and New Zealand.

ANZECC, 2000. Australian and New Zealand Guidelines for the Assessment and Management of *Contaminated Sites*. Australian and New Zealand Environment and Conservation Council and National Health and Medical Research Council.

AS/NZS 1726:1993. Geotechnical Site Investigations. Standards Australia, 1993.

AS 4482:2005 Guide to the sampling and investigation of potentially contaminated soil – Part 1: Non-volatile and semi-volatile compounds, Standards Australia, 2005.

AS/NZS 5667.1:1998 Water quality – Sampling, Part 1: Guidance on the design of sampling programs, sampling techniques and the preservation and handling of samples, Standards Australia, 1998.

AS/NZS 5667.11:1998 Water quality – Sampling, Part 11: *Guidance on the sampling of groundwater*, Standards Australia, 1998.

CRC CARE 2013, Petroleum Petroleum Vapour Intrusion assessment: Australian guidance, CRC CARE Technical Report no. 23, CRC for Contamination Assessment and Remediation of the Environment, Adelaide, Australia.

Davis, GB, Merrick, NP & McLaughlan, RG 2006, Protocols and techniques for characterising sites with subsurface petroleum hydrocarbons – a review, Technical Report no. 2, CRC for Contamination Assessment and Remediation of the Environment, Adelaide, Australia.

Davis, GB, Patterson, BM & Trefry, MG 2009a, Biodegradation of petroleum hydrocarbon vapours, Technical Report no. 12, CRC for Contamination Assessment and Remediation of the Environment, Adelaide, Australia.

Davis, GB, Wright, J & Patterson, BM 2009, Field assessment of vapours, CRC CARE Technical Report no. 13, CRC for Contamination Assessment and Remediation of the Environment, Adelaide, Australia.

Enrisks 2013. Review of Site Investigation Reports for 66 Regent Street, Sandy Bay. Environmental Risk Sciences. November 2013.

Freeze, R.A., and Cherry, J.A., 1979, Groundwater: Englewood Cliffs, NJ, Prentice-Hall, 604 p.

Friebel, E & Nadebaum, 2011, 'Health screening levels for petroleum hydrocarbons in soil and groundwater. Part 1: Technical development document', CRC for Contamination Assessment and Remediation of the Environment, CRC CARE Technical Report no. 10, Adelaide.

GES 2017. *Preliminary Environmental Site Assessment* 281a Elizabeth Street, North Hobart. Geo-Environmental Solutions. July 2017.

NEPC, 1999. Guideline on Data Collection, Sample Design and Reporting Schedule B (2), National Environmental Protection Measure (Assessment of Site Contamination), National Environment Protection Council, 1999. Measures as amended, taking into account amendments up to National Environment Protection (Assessment of Site Contamination) Amendment Measure 2013 (No. 1)

NEPM, 1999.Guideline on Investigation Levels for Soil and Groundwater, Schedule B (1), National Environment Protection (Assessment of Site Contamination) Measure, National Environment Protection Council, 1999. Measures as amended, taking into account amendments up to National Environment Protection (Assessment of Site Contamination) Amendment Measure 2013 (No. 1)

Queensland Government Natural Resources and Water 'Land Series' bulletin, Measuring Salinity. 2007. Managing Queensland's natural resources for today and tomorrow.

SGS, 2017: Waterloo Membrane Sampler *Installation Methodology*. SGS Environment, Health and Safety: <u>www.sgs.com.au</u>. December 2017.

# LIMITATIONS STATEMENT

This monitoring Report has been prepared in accordance with the scope of services between Geo-Environmental Solutions Pty. Ltd. (GES) and Hobart Properties & Securities Pty Ltd ('the Client'). To the best of GES's knowledge, the information presented herein represents the Client's requirements at the time of printing of the Report. However, the passage of time, manifestation of latent conditions or impacts of future events may result in findings differing from that described in this Report. In preparing this Report, GES has relied upon data, surveys, analyses, designs, plans and other information provided by the Client and other individuals and organisations referenced herein. Except as otherwise stated in this Report, GES has not verified the accuracy or completeness of such data, surveys, analyses, designs, plans and other information.

The scope of this study does not allow for the review of every possible soil and groundwater contaminant over the whole area of the site. Samples collected from the investigation area are assumed to be representative of the areas from where they were collected and indicative of the contamination status of the site at that point in time. The conclusions described within this report are based on these samples, the results of their analysis and an assessment of their contamination status.

This report does not purport to provide legal advice. Readers of the report should engage professional legal practitioners for this purpose as required.

No responsibility is accepted for use of any part of this report in any other context or for any other purpose by third party.

# Appendix 1 GES Staff

Geo-Environmental Solutions (GES) is a specialist geotechnical and environmental consultancy providing advice on all aspects of soils, geology, hydrology, and soil and groundwater contamination across a diverse range of industries.

Geo Environmental Solutions Pty Ltd:

- ACN 115 004 834
- ABN 24 115 004 834

#### **GES STAFF - ENGAGED IN SITE INVESTIGATION WORKS**

#### Dr John Paul Cumming B.Agr.Sc (Hons) Phd CPSS GAICD

- Principle Author and Principle Environmental Consultant
- PhD in Environmental Soil Chemistry from the University of Tasmania in 2007
- 15 years' experience in environmental contamination assessment and site remediation.

#### Ms Sarah Joyce BSc (Hons)

- Senior Environmental Scientist
- Honours in Geography and Environmental Science at the University of Tasmania in 2003;
- Undergraduate Degree Double Major in Geology and Geography & Environmental Science
- 15 years professional work experience and six years contaminated site assessment

#### Mr Kris Taylor Bsc (Hons)

- Senior Environmental & Engineering Geologist
- Honours in Environmental Geology at the University of Tasmania in 1998
- 15 years' experience in environmental contamination assessments and hydrogeology (including honours in mine site tailing pollution assessment)

#### Mr Aaron Plummer(Cert. IV)

- Soil Technician
- 3 years' experience in hydrocarbon and heavy metal contamination sampling of soils and groundwater.

#### GES STAFF – WITH CONTAMINATED SITES EXPERIENCE

#### Mr Grant McDonald (Adv. cert. hort.)

- Soil Technician
- 6 years' experience in hydrocarbon and heavy metal contamination sampling of soils and groundwater.
# **Appendix 2 Proposed Residential Unit Development Plans**



Environmental Site Assessment. 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart. December 2017







Environmental Site Assessment. 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart. December 2017











Location of BH2



Location of BH1



Location of BH3



Interceptor Trap



Interceptor Trap



View north, adjacent to office building, location of BH adjacent interceptor trap



Location of USTs - T3 and T4



Location of BH10

Environmental Site Assessment. 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart. December 2017



Location of BH10



Site Office



View South from Interceptor Trap



Workshop



Workshop



Vehicle Service Pit, Location of BH11

#### 01.07 lievels. pecific OC Additional Information Environmental Division mments on likely contaminant fiors, or samples requiring st ----Work Order Reference EM17170 ad Plastic. AG = Amber Glass Ungerserinet. AP - Aufreight Unpreserved Plastic. H = HC preserved Plastic: HS = HC) preserved Speciation bottle: SP = Sulfunc Preserved Plastic: F = Formaldehyde Preserved Glass. RECEIVED BY DATE/TIME ゴム C E E E etc Melbourne ANALYSIS REQUIRED including SUITES (NB. Suite Codes must be listed to attract suite price) bioH & Icenx3 Where Metals are required, specify Total (unfillered bothe required) or Dissofted (field fillered bothe required) RELINQUISHED BY DIGL DATE/TIME: Launcests Pfc 37 6 351 Parth N RIS (20 -(Circle) PResign Rei, Springsolie MR, 24 / 1 seimples methoumwineder eer-COC SEQUENCE NUMBER Rd. Porsaku SA 5095 3 der cino: RECEIVED BY: -DATE/TIME: **FREIGHT** Non Standard or urgent TAT (List due date): sterem ci Standard TAT (List due date): Non Standard or urgent TAT (List HA9/X3T8/H91 Ktaylor@geosolutions., prietime. (12/17 TOTAL RELINQUISHED BY: -5 CONTAINER INFORMATION NU0 Brisbane: 32 Strend St oh 07 JANS 7222 Ersentities NIA TYPE & PRESERVATIVE (refer to codes below) Sulfuric Fownsvibe 14 Pri07 4750 0009 E for some tests **TURNAROUND REQUIREMENTS :** -og 50 Vial (Steroard TAT may be tonger to e.g.. Uttra Trace Organics) ALS QUOTE NO.: 0438255259 Newcastle, 5 Rossigum Rd. Weinmenk NSW 2304 Ph 07 4908 5433 Framples newcastio@abenvio.com Sydney. 277 Virontijenk Rol. Smotholet NSW 2176 htt 92.8784.8555 Examples sydneygolisentation onits EDD FORMAT (or default): MATRIX SAMPLER MOBILE: ê CONTACT PH: L sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au jcumming@geosolutions.net.au jcumming@geosolutions.net.au; miran@geosolutions.net.au, DATE / TIME 5 SAMPLE DETAILS MATRIX: Solid(S) Water(W) 1 Auron Plummer 29 Kirksway Place, Battery Point, 7004 OMMENTS/SPECIAL HANDLING/STORAGE OR DISPOSAL: 29-50-19-2-04 01-0 m MI-1-0] 0.5-0-6 2.0.2. 14 ~ 1-1-101 0-2-0-60 0-2-0-5-0 CHAIN OF CUSTODY 0.3-0.4 くいう 5-0-7-0 ALS Laboratory: please tick > Geoenvironmental Solutions a-Jeyce SAMPLE ID Rus Tauton Gorringe 8H12 = VOA VIal HCI Preserved; VB = VOA Vial Sod = Zinc Acetate Preserved Bottle; E = EDTA Pre GH12 9413 第14 CC emailed to ALS? (YES / ND) 年ら BHIG BHIG BHILD BELL 61H17 318 RHI ROJECT MANAGER: mail Reports to: ORDER NUMBER nail Invoice to: LAB ID ROJECT: AMPLER: OFFICE: CLIENT: 2 ~ 3 ~ 40 3 2 80 2

# Appendix 4 Laboratory Chain of Custody (COC) and Sample Receipt Notification

Connental: 28 Kirksway Place, 28 Kirksway Place, 20 Mrs. 400 20 Mr

(1990) [0.02] Sectors and (1991)



Approved Date: 01/02/2016

Page 1 of 1

MEFM (47/3)

### **COC Melbourne**

ः - २२२ स

From:	Carol Walsh
Sent:	Friday, 15 December 2017 4:28 PM
To:	COC Melbourne
Subject:	Re-batch RE: EM1717027 - GEOENVSOL - Gorringe - 2 day TAT
Attachments:	EM1717027 - REBATCH.xlsm
Importance:	High
SR	
Please organise attached r	rebatch
Regards	
Carol	
From: Sarah Joyce [mailto Sent: Friday, 15 December To: Carol Walsh <carol.wa Cc: JP Cumming <jcummin Subject: re-batch RE: EM1</jcummin </carol.wa 	:sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au] r 2017 3:45 PM alsh@alsglobal.com> ig@geosolutions.net.au>; Kris Taylor <ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au> 717027 - GEOENVSOL - Gorringe</ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au>
Hi Carol,	
As discussed, please collec	ct a second sample from BH21 0.5m, your ID EM171027017 and rename it Duplicate.
As per the primary sample	please analyse for TPH/BTEX/PAH and 15 Metals.
As will the primary sample understand there will be a	es, we need a quick turnaround. Please provide results as soon as practically possible. I an additional charge associated with a rapid turnaround.
Thanks very much for you	r help.
Kind Regards,	6a. 10
Sarah Joyce	

GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS P/L 29 Kirksway Place, Battery Point, 7004 P: 0362231839 E: sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au

.

From: Carol Walsh [mailto:Carol.Walsh@alsglobal.com] Sent: Friday, 15 December 2017 3:15 PM To: Sarah Joyce <<u>sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au</u>> Subject: FW: EM1717027 - GEOENVSOL - Gorringe

1

#### Joyce

Please find attached updated COC showing Duplicate samples was "not received".

Kind regards,

#### Carol Walsh

Senior Client Services, Environmental

Springvale - Victoria

T +61 3 8549 9600 D +61 3 8549 9608 F +61 3 8549 9626 <u>carol.walsh@alsglobal.com</u> 4 Westall Road Springvale VIC 3171 AUSTRALIA

# MANAGING PROJECTS OVER THE CHRISTMAS PERIOD - CLICK FOR MORE DETAILS

Please note there is some variations to hours, sample and reporting times, and regional laboratories during Christmas/New Year.

We are keen for your feedback! I have nick here for your 1 annalise survey

EnviroMail™ 114 - Asbestos Fibre Identification by SEM/EDS EnviroMail™ 113 - Amoeba Confirmation PCR EnviroMail™ 112 - Algal Capabilities EnviroMail™ 111 - Analysis of VOCs by Thermal Desorption Analysis EnviroMail™ 110 - Identifying Hidden PFAS Chemicals in Environmental Samples and Firefighting Foams EnviroMail™ 00 - Summary of all EnviroMails™ by Category

Subscribe to EnviroMail[™] 🖾 LinkedIn 🖬 Find us on Facebook

Right Solutions • Right Partner www.alsglobal.com

From: Isaac Banko Sent: Tuesday, 12 December 2017 11:53 AM To: Shirley LeCornu <<u>shirley.lecornu@alsglobal.com</u>> Cc: Samples Melbourne <<u>Samples.Melbourne@alsglobal.com</u>> Subject: EM1717027 - GEOENVSOL - Gorringe

Hi Shirley,

Just a quick FYI regarding the attached batch - sample "Duplicate" was not received.

Regards,

Isaac Banko Sample Receipt Officer – Springvale Environmental



<u>T</u> +61 3 8549 9600 <u>D</u> +61 3 8549 9633 <u>F</u> +61 3 8549 9626 <u>isaac.banko@alsglobal.com</u>

2

2-4 Westall Rd Springvale Vic 3171 Australia

We are keen for your feedback! <u>Please click here for your 1 question survey</u>

EnviroMail™ 113 - Amoeba Confirmation PCR EnviroMail™ 112 - Algal Capabilities EnviroMail™ 111 - Analysis of VOCs by Thermal Desorption Analysis EnviroMail™ 110 - Identifying Hidden PFAS Chemicals in Environmental Samples and Firefighting Foams EnviroMail™ 00 - Summary of all EnviroMails™ by Category

Subscribe to EnviroMail™ III Follow us on LinkedIn

.

2

Right Solutions · Right Partner www.alsglobal.com

4

..

- -----

Contraction of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second s																						
LIENT NAME: GES			8	INTACT	PHONE	No: 6	223	839						v	BN: 24	511	18	00	t			
LIENT ADDRESS: 29 Kirkswowy	Place	6	SAI	MPLED	BY: H	Sent 1	Plum	- Ser						-1	AB QUO	TE NUM	BERS					
Battery Point			RE	SULTS	ROURI	ED BV	484	OLV	turn	aroon	() P	50 %	Sund	tog	Ana	vses Req	wired (A	nalyte +	Metho	(Code)		
ONTACT: SOMAN JUGGE	Burn	たも	S<	IAIL AD	PLO 15	S Joy	ye.	agen .	Bagaa	er. Sru	et au ;	jour ,	aprim	22	- 0.0							
URCHASE ORDER No:			Con	stainers/F	reservat	ion (pleas	c mark w	(th X)				(1)	viglass, P. 1	lastic)	R.	_	_					_
Client Sumple ID	Date	Matrix Sout Water	0.1 art	10 4 10 4	10 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0	ella di la d	10 Mail	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 124 9 11 124	821 19 10 10 10 10 10 10	<ul> <li>I. 125mL</li> <li>Filteri</li> <li>w. Ves0</li> </ul>	125 (1) 21 (1) 21 (1) 22 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 20 (1) 2	bud. 0. P1 fitt DH star	or de la	od voj							
(1730-11-10-067)	1-14		>		-	-	-		-	1			+	+	1	-				t	+	+
(020-01-NA-027)	-	-	5	-	+	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	+	F	1	-				1	+	-
193 (1730-AN-LU-066)			>			-							-	-	1						-	-
(2) - U130-AN-U0-0(2)	*		5									-	-	-	1					-	-	-
Nup (1730-AN-LU-069)	4		7			-	-			-		-			5					1		-
						_	_	-				_									-	
								-		-												
			-																			
			-		-	-	_		_			_	_	-	_							
		-			-		-	-				_			_							
		-		-		-							-		-	_						
			-	-	-	+	-	_		-		_	+	+		_				1	+	-
		-	-	-	+	-	-	-					-		-						+	
						-						-			+						+	-
																					-	
		_	-		_	-		-	-	-											-	_
	Totals:	_	-		_	_	_					_									-	
CHAI	N OF CUS	STODY RI	ECORD											Phe	ase Note:	Disselv	od metals	require fil	tering in 0	te field.		
hill method used for transport (sender to comp	dete): N.	+ Chill	i		Ū	il method	used for	transpos	r (sender	to compl	rie):			8	mments: (4	G. Highly c	ontamina	fod sample	les, report	aunbau bu	ments etc)	<u></u>
Sarah Jayee (Signa	Da	Date / Times	5	1230	TITE O	LASED D	S.	(auto)		(Signite	1	Date / Time		ž	HQT HQH	n Hyd	t Fo	8 3	BI	Ť.	Napl	thale
Conceled Robinson aller	1	5/2/17	9:0	Ch.	RIK	VED BY	8	90		(Signutu	-	Date / Time	-	~	Sontai	amole	×	ton	er-loo	Wey	vibran	8
Concerning the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second se																						



A.B.N. 44 000 964 278 10 / 585 Blackburn Road Notting Hill, Vic, 3168 Telephone: (03) 9574 3200

A.B.N. 44 000 964 278

# Sample Receipt Acknowledgement

To:	Sarah Joyce	From:	Sample Reception
Fax:		Pages:	(1) including this page
Co:	Geo-Environmental Solutions	Date:	15/12/2017
Email	sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au	Ref:	M171189

SGS has received your samples from the project listed below. If you have any enquiries please contact us quoting our reference number.

Project/Reference No .:	Supply & Analysis of WMS
Our Reference Number:	M171189
Date Received:	15-Dec-2017
Estimated date of report:	19-Dec-2017

This work is subject to COD terms. The report will not be released until payment has been received

Additional Information:

Samples received after 4 pm are considered as received on the next working day for turnaround purposes. Samples with a 24hr or 48hr TAT are considered as received on the next working day if received after 2:30pm. Surcharges for urgent turnaround requests may apply. All analytical work is conducted at our Melbourne office.

ranarytear work is considered at our metodatic office,

Sample Storage - All aqueous samples are stored for two weeks after reporting.

- All soils and other samples are stored for one month after reporting.

Please direct any technical or turnaround queries to Adam Atkinson at our Melbourne office.



# SGS

Specialist Laboratory Services

To the extent not increase the other provisions of this document and unless specifically agreed otherwise in writing by SGS, all SGS services are rendered in accordance with the applicable SGS General Conditions of Service accessible at English aspx as at the date of this document.

Attention is drawn to the limitations of liability and to the clauses of indemnification

Website: www.sgs.com.m Email: AU.SampleReceipt.Melbourne@sgs.com

PF-AU-ENV-NHC-QU-018.rpt / Ver 6 / 26.07.2017 / Page 1 of 1



### SAMPLE RECEIPT NOTIFICATION (SRN)

Work Order	EM1717027		
Client Contact Address	GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS KRIS TAYLOR 29 KIRKSWAY PLACE BATTERY POINT TASMANIA, AUSTRALIA 7004	Laboratory : El Contact : Si Address : 4 3	nvironmental Division Melbourne hirley LeCornu Westall Rd Springvale VIC Australia 171
E-mail Telephone Facsimile	ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au +61 03 6223 1839 +61 03 6223 4539	E-mail sh Telephone ++ Facuimile ++	hirley.lecomu@Alsglobal.com 61-3-8549 9630 61-3-8549 9601
Project Order number C-O-C number Site Sampler	Gorringe   AARON PLUMMER	Page : 1 Guide number : El GC Level : N	of 3 B2017GEOENVSOL0001 (EN/222/17) EPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Dates Date Samples Received Client Requested Due Date	12-Dec-2017 10:10 15-Dec-2017	Issue Oate Scheduled Reporting Date	12-Dec-2017 15-Dec-2017
Delivery Details Mode of Delivery No. of coolers/boxes Receipt Detail	Carrier	Security Seal Temperature No. of samples received / a	Intact. : 10.1°C - Ice Bricks present malysed : 18 / 18

#### General Comments

- This report contains the following information:
  - Sample Container(s)/Preservation Non-Compliances
  - Summary of Sample(s) and Requested Analysis
  - Preactive Holding Time Report
  - Requested Deliverables
- Please direct any queries related to sample condition / numbering / breakages to Client Services.
- Sample Disposal Aqueous (3 weeks), Solid (2 months) from receipt of samples.
- Analytical work for this work order will be conducted at ALS Springvale.
- Please refer to the Proactive Holding Time Report table below which summarises breaches of
  recommended holding times that have occurred prior to samples/instructions being received at
  the laboratory. The absence of this summary table indicates that all samples have been received
  within the recommended holding times for the analysis requested.

### RIGHT SOLUTIONS | RIGHT PARTNER

Issue Date	: 12-Dec-2017
Page	: 2 of 3
Work Order	EM1717027 Amendment 0
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS



Sample Container(s)/Preservation Non-Compliances

All comparisons are made against pretreatment/preservation AS, APHA, USEPA standards.

#### No sample container / preservation non-compliance exists.

#### Summary of Sample(s) and Requested Analysis

Some items described below may be part of a laboratory process necessary for the execution of client requested tasks. Packages may contain additional analyses, such 5 Metals (NEPM 2013 Suite - incl. Digestion) as the determination of moisture content and preparation tasks, that are included in the package. If no sampling time is provided, the sampling time will default 00:00 on the date of sampling. If no sampling date is provided, the sampling date will be assumed by the SOIL - S-07 FRH/BTEXN/PAH (SIM) laboratory and displayed in brackets without a time component 103 isture Content EA055-Matrix: SOIL SOIL - 5-03 Laboratory sample Client sampling Client sample ID OIL. ID date / time EM1717027-001 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH12 0.5m 1 1 1 1 1 1 EM1717027-002 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH12 1.0m 1 1 1 EM1717027-003 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH13 0.4-0.5m EM1717027-004 1 1 1 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH14 0.3-0.4m 1 EM1717027-005 1 1 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH14 1.0-1.1m 1 1 1 EM1717027-006 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH15 0.5-0.6m 1 EM1717027-007 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH16 1.0-1.1m 1 1 1 1 1 EM1717027-008 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH16 2.0-2.1m 1 1 1 EM1717027-009 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH16 2.9-3.0m 1 1 1 EM1717027-010 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH17 0.5-0.6m 1 1 1 EM1717027-011 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH17 1.9-2.0m EM1717027-012 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH18 0.2-0.3m 1 1 1 EM1717027-013 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH18 0.9-1.0m 1 1 1 1 1 1 EM1717027-014 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH19 0.2-0.3m 1 1 1 EM1717027-015 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH19 0.9-1.0m EM1717027-016 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH20 0.5m 1 1 1 1 1 EM1717027-017 12-Dec-2017 00:00 BH21 0.5m 1 15 Metals (NEPM Suite) WATER - W-07 TRH/BTEXN/PAH VATER - W-03. Matrix: WATER Client sampling Laboratory sample Client sample ID ID date / time EM1717027-019 11-Dec-2017 00:00 Rinsate 1 1

#### Proactive Holding Time Report

Issue Date	: 12-Dec-2017
Page Work Order	3 of 3 EM1717027 Amendment 0
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS



Sample(s) have been received within the recommended holding times for the requested analysis.

### Requested Deliverables

All Invoices		
- A4 - AU Tax Invoice (INV)	Email	smcintosh@geosolutions.net.au
JOHN PAUL CUMMING		
- *AU Certificate of Analysis - NATA (COA)	Email	jcumming@geosolutions.net.au
- *AU Interpretive QC Report - DEFAULT (Anon QCI Rep) (QCI)	Email	jcumming@geosolutions.net.au
- *AU QC Report - DEFAULT (Anon QC Rep) - NATA (QC)	Email	jcumming@geosolutions.net.au
- A4 - AU Sample Receipt Notification - Environmental HT (SRN)	Email	jcumming@geosolutions.net.au
- A4 - AU Tax Invoice (INV)	Email	jcumming@geosolutions.net.au
- Chain of Custody (CoC) (COC)	Email	jcumming@geosolutions.net.au
- EDI Format - ENMRG (ENMRG)	Email	jcumming@geosolutions.net.au
- EDI Format - XTab (XTAB)	Email	jcumming@geosolutions.net.au
KRIS TAYLOR		
- *AU Certificate of Analysis - NATA (COA)	Email	ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au
- *AU Interpretive QC Report - DEFAULT (Anon QCI Rep) (QCI)	Email	ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au
- *AU QC Report - DEFAULT (Anon QC Rep) - NATA (QC)	Email	ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au
- A4 - AU Sample Receipt Notification - Environmental HT (SRN)	Email	ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au
- Chain of Custody (CoC) (COC)	Email	ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au
- EDI Format - ENMRG (ENMRG)	Email	ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au
- EDI Format - XTab (XTAB)	Email	ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au
MIRAN		
- A4 - AU Tax Invoice (INV)	Email	miran@geosolutions.net.au
SARAH JOYCE		
- *AU Certificate of Analysis - NATA (COA)	Email	sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au
- *AU Interpretive QC Report - DEFAULT (Anon QCI Rep) (QCI)	Email	sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au
- *AU QC Report - DEFAULT (Anon QC Rep) - NATA (QC)	Email	sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au
- A4 - AU Sample Receipt Notification - Environmental HT (SRN)	Email	sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au
- A4 - AU Tax Invoice (INV)	Email	sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au
- Chain of Custody (CoC) (COC)	Email	sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au
- EDI Format - ENMRG (ENMRG)	Email	sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au
- EDI Format - XTab (XTAB)	Email	sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au



## SAMPLE RECEIPT NOTIFICATION (SRN)

Work Order	EM1717330		
Client Contact Address	GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS KRIS TAYLOR 29 KIRKSWAY PLACE BATTERY POINT TASMANIA, AUSTRALIA 7004	Laboratory : E Contact : S Address : 4 3	Environmental Division Melbourne Shirley LeCornu 4 Westall Rd Springvale VIC Australia 3171
E-mail Telephone Facsimile	: ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au : +61 03 6223 1839 : +61 03 6223 4539	E-mail : s Telephone : 4 Facsimile : 4	shirley.lecornu@Alsglobal.com +61-3-8549 9630 +61-3-8549 9601
Project Order number C-O-C number Site Sampler	: Gorringe    : AARON PLUMMER	Page : 1 Quote number : E QC Level : N	1 of 3 EB2017GEOENVSOL0001 (EN/222/17) NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Dates Date Samples Received Client Requested Due Date	: 12-Dec-2017 10:10 : 19-Dec-2017	Issue Date Scheduled Reporting Date	: 15-Dec-2017 • <b>19-Dec-2017</b>
Delivery Details Mode of Delivery No. of coolers/boxes Receipt Detail	: Samples On Hand :	Security Seal Temperature No. of samples received /	: Not Available : analysed : 1 / 1

#### General Comments

- This report contains the following information:
  - Sample Container(s)/Preservation Non-Compliances
  - Summary of Sample(s) and Requested Analysis
  - Proactive Holding Time Report
  - Requested Deliverables
- · Please direct any queries related to sample condition / numbering / breakages to Client Services.
- Sample Disposal Aqueous (3 weeks), Solid (2 months) from receipt of samples.
- Analytical work for this work order will be conducted at ALS Springvale.
- Please refer to the Proactive Holding Time Report table below which summarises breaches of
  recommended holding times that have occurred prior to samples/instructions being received at
  the laboratory. The absence of this summary table indicates that all samples have been received
  within the recommended holding times for the analysis requested.
- This is a rebatch of EM1717027

Issue Date	: 15-Dec-2017
Page	: 2 of 3
Work Order	EM1717330 Amendment 0
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS



Sample Container(s)/Preservation Non-Compliances

All comparisons are made against pretreatment/preservation AS, APHA, USEPA standards.

• No sample container / preservation non-compliance exists.

Summary of Sample(s) and Requested Analysis

Some items describe	ed below may	be part of a laboratory			
process necessary	for the executi	ion of client requested			
tasks. Packages m	ay contain ad	ditional analyses, such			
as the determination	n of moisture	content and preparation		- Dig	
tasks, that are included	I in the package.			ide	
If no sampling time	e is provided,	the sampling time will		5	
default 00:00 on the	date of samplin	g. If no sampling date			
is provided, the sa	mpling date wi	I be assumed by the		Sulte	
laboratory and dis	played in bra	ckets without a time		13	- A
component			2 -	12	E H
Matrix: COII			5-1 1	E D	M
WBUIX, SUIL			NOS O	10 N	5 N
Laboratory sample	Client sampling	Client sample ID	불흙	etal	S-180
ID	date / time		Nois	30II 15 N	S H
EM1717330-001 12	2-Dec-2017 00:00	Duplicate	1	1	1

#### Proactive Holding Time Report

Sample(s) have been received within the recommended holding times for the requested analysis.

Issue Date         : 15-Deo-2017           Page         : 3 of 3           Work Order         : EM1717330 Amendment 0           Client         : GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS		ALS
Requested Deliverables		
All Invoices		
<ul> <li>A4 - AU Tax Invoice (INV)</li> </ul>	Email	smcintosh@geosolutions.net.au
JOHN PAUL CUMMING		
<ul> <li>*AU Certificate of Analysis - NATA (COA)</li> </ul>	Email	jcumming@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>*AU Interpretive QC Report - DEFAULT (Anon QCI Rep) (QCI)</li> </ul>	Email	jcumming@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>*AU QC Report - DEFAULT (Anon QC Rep) - NATA (QC)</li> </ul>	Email	jcumming@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>A4 - AU Sample Receipt Notification - Environmental HT (SRN)</li> </ul>	Email	jcumming@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>Chain of Custody (CoC) (COC)</li> </ul>	Email	jcumming@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>EDI Format - ENMRG (ENMRG)</li> </ul>	Email	jcumming@geosolutions.net.au
- EDI Format - XTab (XTAB)	Email	jcumming@geosolutions.net.au
KRIS TAYLOR		
- *AU Certificate of Analysis - NATA (COA)	Email	ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>*AU Interpretive QC Report - DEFAULT (Anon QCI Rep) (QCI)</li> </ul>	Email	ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>*AU QC Report - DEFAULT (Anon QC Rep) - NATA (QC)</li> </ul>	Email	ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>A4 - AU Sample Receipt Notification - Environmental HT (SRN)</li> </ul>	Email	ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>Chain of Custody (CoC) (COC)</li> </ul>	Email	ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>EDI Format - ENMRG (ENMRG)</li> </ul>	Email	ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au
- EDI Format - XTab (XTAB)	Email	ktaylor@geosolutions.net.au
MIRAN		
<ul> <li>*AU Certificate of Analysis - NATA (COA)</li> </ul>	Email	miran@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>*AU Interpretive QC Report - DEFAULT (Anon QCI Rep) (QCI)</li> </ul>	Email	miran@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>*AU QC Report - DEFAULT (Anon QC Rep) - NATA (QC)</li> </ul>	Email	miran@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>A4 - AU Sample Receipt Notification - Environmental HT (SRN)</li> </ul>	Email	miran@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>Chain of Custody (CoC) (COC)</li> </ul>	Email	miran@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>EDI Format - ENMRG (ENMRG)</li> </ul>	Email	miran@geosolutions.net.au
- EDI Format - XTab (XTAB)	Email	miran@geosolutions.net.au
SARAH JOYCE		
<ul> <li>*AU Certificate of Analysis - NATA (COA)</li> </ul>	Email	sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>*AU Interpretive QC Report - DEFAULT (Anon QCI Rep) (QCI)</li> </ul>	Email	sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au
<ul> <li>*AU QC Report - DEFAULT (Anon QC Rep) - NATA (QC)</li> </ul>	Email	sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au
- A4 - AU Sample Receipt Notification - Environmental HT (SRN)	Email	sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au
- Chain of Custody (CoC) (COC)	Email	sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au
- EDI Format - ENMRG (ENMRG)	Email	sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au
- EDI Format - XTab (XTAB)	Email	sjoyce@geosolutions.net.au

Vapour Laboratory Chain of Custody (COC) and Sample Receipt Notification

# Appendix 5 Soil Quality Control Documentation

						EG02	20F: Diss	solved N	letals by	/ ICP-MS							EP080	)		EPC	80/071	L		EP080	0/071																						
Quality ( Blar	Control ks	Arsenic	Beryllium	Barium	Cadmium	Chromium	Cobalt	Copper	Lead	Manganese	Nickel	Selenium	Vanadium	Zinc	Boron	EP080: BTEXN Ethylbenzene	meta- & para-Xylene	ortho-Xylene	Total Xylenes	U FPDR0/071- Total Petroleum Hvdranarhons	C6 - C9 Fraction	C10 - C14 Fraction	C10 - C36 Fraction (sum)	0 ED000/0711 Total Bacovariable Hudeocarhone	Ervooy or 1: Total recoverable injuroual poils - C6 - C10 Fraction	C6 - C10 Fraction minus BTEX (F1)	>C34 - C40 Fraction	>C10 - C40 Fraction (sum)	Zudo - Cuto rracuori minusi Napriurarene (rz.) Naphthalene	Acenaphthylene	Acenaphthene	Phenanthrene	Anthracene	Pyrene	Benz(a) an thracene	Chrysene	Benzo(b+j)fluoranthene	Benzo(k)fluoranthene	Benzo(a)pyrene	Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene	Dibenz(a.h)anthracene	Benzo(g.h.i)perylene Sum of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons	Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (zero)	0	EP068A: Organochlorine Pesticides (OC)	alpha-BHC	Hexachlorobenzene (HCB)
Unit		mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	mg/L	0 μg/	L μg/L	μg/L	μg/L (	) 0	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	0 0	) µg/	L μg/L	μg/L μ	.g/L μg	/L μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	µg/L µ	ıg/L μg	/L μg/I	L μg/L	μg/L	μg/L	μg/L μ	μg/L μ	ug/L μ	g/L με	g/L μg	/L µg/l	0	0 n	ng/kg r	ng/kg
LOR		0.001	0.001	0.001	0.0001	0.001	0.001	0.001	0.001	0.001	0.001	0.01	0.01 0	0.005	0.05	0 2	2	2	2 (	) ()	20	50	50	0 0	) 20	20	100 1	.00 10	00 1	1	1	1	1 1	1	1	1	1	1	0.5	1	1 3	1 0.	5 0.5	0	0	0.05	0.05
Date	Sample																																														
17/06/2017	Rinsate	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	0.0001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.01	<0.01 <	0.005	< 0.05 <	0.00<1	<2	<2	<2 <2	<2	<1	<5	<20 <	50 <1	00 < 50	<50	<20 <	20 <1	00 < 100	<100	<100	<1.0 <	1.0 <1	.0 <1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0 <	<1.0 <	<1.0 <:	1.0 <1	L.0 <0	.5 <1.0	<1.0	<1.0 <	.0.5 <	0.5
11/12/2017	Rinsate	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.0001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.01	< 0.01	0.017	< 0.05 <	0.00<1	<2	<2	<2 <2	<2	<1	<5	<20 <	50 <1	00 < 50	<50	<20 <	20 <1	00 < 100	<100	<100	<1.0 <	1.0 <1	0 <1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0	<1.0 <	<1.0 <	(1.0 <	1.0 <1	L.0 <0	.5 <1.0	<1.0	<1.0 <	:0.5 <	:0.5

	EA055: Moisture Conten	nt EG005T	: Total M	Metals	by ICP-A	ES						EG	G035 EP075(SI	M)B: Polyn	uclear Arc	omatic H	lydrocar	bons											EP080	: BTEX			EPC	080: BTE	KN	EP080/07	1: Total F	Petroleu	um Hydroi	cart EPO8	80/071: To	stal Recc	verable F	lydrocart	Jons - NF	EPM 2010	) Draft			EP004: Orga	anic Matter
Duplicate Comparrison	Moisture Content (dried © 103*	Arsenic	Barium	Beryllium	Cadmium	Chromium Total	Cobalt Conner	copper Lead	Manganese	Nickel	Vanadium	Zinc	Mercury	Naphthalene	Acenaphthylene	Acenaphthene	Phenanthrene	Anthracene	Fluoranthene	Pyrene	Benz(a)anthracene	Chrysene Benzo(h)fluorenthene	Benzo(k)fluoranthene	Benzo(a)pyrene	Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene	Dibenz(a.h)anthracene	Benzo(g.h.i)perylene	Sum of polycyclic aromatic hydro	Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (WHO) Benzene	Toluene	Ethylbenzene	meta- & para-Xylene	ortho-Xylene	Sum of BTEX	Total Xylenes Naphthalene	C6 - C9 Fraction	C10 - C14 Fraction	C15 - C28 Fraction	C29 - C36 Fraction	utu - uso Fraction (sum)	Cb - C10 Fraction	-1 >C10 - C16 Fraction	>C16 - C34 Fraction	>C34 - C40 Fraction	>C10 - C40 Fraction (sum)	Aliphatic > C35	Aromatic C16-C35	Aromatic > C35 2-Bromonaphthalene	2-Fluorobiphenyl		Total Organic Carbon
17/06/2017 BH7 3.0m	22.8	<5	10	<1	<1	6	3 <	5 5	121	3	24	13	1 <	0.5	<0.5 <	0.5 <0	.5 <0.5	< 0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5 <	<0.5 <0	.5 <0.5	5 <0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5 <	:0.5 <	0.5 <0.	.2 <0.	5 <0.5	<0.5 <	:0.5 <	<0.2 <	0.5 <1	<10	<50	<100 <	<100 <5	50 <	10 <1	10 <50	<100	<100	<50	<0.2	<0.5 <	).5 <0.	.5 <0.5	5	<1
17/06/2017 DUP	22.2	<5	<10	<1	<1	6	6 5	5 7	98	5	24	13	1 <	0.5	<0.5 <	0.5 <0	.5 <0.5	< 0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5 <	<0.5 <0	.5 <0.5	5 <0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5 <	0.5 <	0.5 <0.	2 <0.	5 <0.5	<0.5 <	0.5 <	0.2 <	0.5 <1	<10	<50	<100 <	<100 <	50 <	10 <1	10 <50	<100	<100	<50	<0.2	<0.5 <	).5 <0.	.5 <0.5	5	<1
Relative Percentage Difference (RPD) %	2.7	NA	NA	NA	NA	0.0 66	6.7 N	A 33.	3 21.0	50.0	0.0	0.0 0	0.0 N	NA	NA	NA N	A NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA N	A NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA N		A N/	A NA	NA	NA	NA	NA NA	NA	NA	NA	NA N		A N	A NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA N	A N	A NA		NA
Method Detection Limit (MDL)	100	NA	NA	NA	NA	40 4	10 N	A NA	500	40	100 1	100	2 1	NA	NA	VA N		NA	NA	NA	NA	NA N	A NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA N		A NA		NA	NA	NA		NA	NA	NA	NA N		IA N		NA	NA	NA	NA	NA N		A NA		NA
MDI Class	MED	NONE	NONE		NONE			NE NO	IF MED	low	10W 10			ONE				FNONF	NONE	NONE	NONE				NONE	NONE			DNE NOI	NE NO		NONE N		ONE NO		NONE	NONE I			NF NO	DNF NO			NONE	NONE	NONE	NONE NO	NE NO	NE NON	IF N	NONE
RPD Compliance With MDI?	VES	VES	VES	VES	VES 1	/FS N		S VE	S YES	NO	YES N	/FS V	/FS V	/FS	VES N	FS VI	S YES	VES	VES	VES	YES	VES VE	S YES	VES	VES	VES	YES N	VES V	FS VE	S VE	S YES	VES	VES N	VES N	ES VES	VES	VES	VES	VES VE	FS V	FS VE	ES YES	YES	VES	YES	VES	YES Y	FS YE	S YES		YES
Deviation from MDI (%)	27	NONE	NONE		NONE	50 -	17 NO			0	50	50 5	50 NC	ONE					NONE							NONE						NONE N				NONE	NONE							NONE	NONE					IF N	NONE
	2,	110112					1/ 110	112 1101	. ,	Ť	50		50 NG	5112				-										0.112 1.10			12 110 112		0.112 11																		0.112
12/12/2017 BH21 0.5m	20.1	6	170	<1	<1	12 1	11 49	9 23	B 301	15	29 1	157 0	0.8 <0	0.5	<0.5 <	0.5 <0	.5 1.5	<0.5	3.5	3.7	2.6	2.1 3.	4 1.1	2.8	1.5	<0.5	1.8	24 3	.7 <0.	.2 <0.	5 < 0.5	<0.5 <	:0.5 <	<0.2 <	0.5 <1	<10	<50	<100 <	<100 <5	50 <	10 <1	.0 <50	140	<100	140	<0.2	<0.5 <	0.5 <0.	.5 <0.5	5	<1
12/12/2017 Duplicate	20.5	7	140	<1	<1	13 1	16 35	5 16	6 320	19	22 1	173 0	0.7 <0	0.5	<0.5 <	0.5 <0	.5 0.8	<0.5	2.4	2.7	1.8	1.6 2.	2 1	1.8	1	<0.5	1.1 1	6.4 2	.4 <0.	.2 <0.	5 <0.5	<0.5 <	:0.5 <	<0.2 <	0.5 <1	<10	<50	<100 <	<100 <5	50 <	10 <1	.0 <50	120	<100	120	<0.2	<0.5 <	).5 <0.	.5 <0.5	5	<1
Relative Percentage Difference (RPD) %	2.0	15.4	19.4	NA	NA	B.O 37	7.0 33	.3 35.	6 6.1	23.5	27.5	9.7 1	.3.3 N	NA	NA I	VA N	A 60.9	) NA	37.3	31.3	36.4 2	27.0 42	.9 9.5	43.5	40.0	NA	48.3 3	37.6 42	2.6 N/	A NA	A NA	NA	NA I	NA I	NA NA	NA	NA	NA	NA N	IA N	IA N	A NA	15.4	NA	15.4	NA	NA N	IA N/	A NA		NA
Method Detection Limit (MDL)	100	100	1000	NA	NA	40 4	40 10	0 50	0 500	40	100 5	500	2 N	NA	NA I	VA N	A 10	NA	10	10	10	10 1	0 10	10	10	NA	10	50 1	10 N/	A NA	A NA	NA	NA I	NA I	NA NA	NA	NA	NA	NA N	IA N	IA N	A NA	NA	NA	1000	NA	NA N	IA N/	A NA		NA
MDL Class	MED	LOW	MED N	NONE	NONE L	OW LC	DW LO	W ME	D MED	LOW	LOW N	/IED LC	OW NO	ONE	NONE NO	DNE NO	NE LOV	/ NONE	LOW	LOW	LOW	OW LO	W LOW	V LOW	LOW	NONE	LOW N	/IED LC	W NOI	NE NO	NO NO NE	NONE N	ONE N	ONE N		NONE	NONE I	NONE N	NONE NO	NE NO	DNE NO	NE NON	E NONE	NONE	LOW	NONE	NONE NO	NE NO	NE NON	IE N	<b>IONE</b>
RPD Compliance With MDL?	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES Y	'ES YE	S NC	) YES	YES	YES \	YES Y	YES Y	/ES	YES 1	'ES YI	S NO	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES YE	S YES	YES	YES	YES	YES 1	NO Y	'ES YE	S YE	S YES	YES	YES Y	YES 1	YES YES	YES	YES	YES	YES YE	ES Y	ES YE	S YES	YES	YES	YES	YES	YES Y	ES YE	S YES	; · · ·	YES
Deviation from MDL (%)	28	35	11	NONE	NONE	42 1	13 17	7 -6	24	26	23	20 3	37 NC	DNE	NONE NO	ONE NO	NE -11	NONE	13	19	14	23 7	40	7	10	NONE	2	-8	7 NOI	NE NOI	NE NONE	NONE N	ONE N	ONE NO	ONENONE	NONE	NONE I	NONE N	NONE NO	NE NO	DNE NO	NE NON	E NONE	NONE	35	NONE	NONE NO	NE NO	NE NON	IE N	IONE



# QUALITY CONTROL REPORT

Work Order	EM1717027	Page	: 1 of 11
Client	GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS	Laboratory	Environmental Division Melbourne
Contact	KRIS TAYLOR	Contact	: Shirley LeCornu
Address	29 KIRKSWAY PLACE BATTERY POINT TASMANIA, AUSTRALIA 7004	Address	: 4 Westall Rd Springvale VIC Australia 3171
Telephone	: +61 03 6223 1839	Telephone	: +61-3-8549 9630
Project	Gorringe	Date Samples Received	: 12-Dec-2017
Order number	i	Date Analysis Commenced	12-Dec-2017
C-O-C number		Issue Date	: 15-Dec-2017
Sampler	AARON PLUMMER		Hac-MRA NATA
Site			
Quote number	: EN/222/17		Accreditation No. 825
No. of samples received	: 18		Accredited for compliance with
No. of samples analysed	: 18		ISO/IEC 17025 - Testing

This report supersedes any previous report(s) with this reference. Results apply to the sample(s) as submitted. This document shall not be reproduced, except in full. This Quality Control Report contains the following information:

- Laboratory Duplicate (DUP) Report; Relative Percentage Difference (RPD) and Acceptance Limits
- Method Blank (MB) and Laboratory Control Spike (LCS) Report; Recovery and Acceptance Limits
- Matrix Spike (MS) Report; Recovery and Acceptance Limits

#### Signatories

This document has been electronically signed by the authorized signatories below. Electronic signing is carried out in compliance with procedures specified in 21 CFR Part 11.

Signatories	Position	Accreditation Category
Dilani Fernando	Senior Inorganic Chemist	Melbourne Inorganics, Springvale, VIC
Xing Lin	Senior Organic Chemist	Melbourne Organics, Springvale, VIC

### RIGHT SOLUTIONS | RIGHT PARTNER

Page	: 2 of 11
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



#### **General Comments**

The analytical procedures used by the Environmental Division have been developed from established internationally recognized procedures such as those published by the USEPA, APHA, AS and NEPM. In house developed procedures are employed in the absence of documented standards or by client request.

Where moisture determination has been performed, results are reported on a dry weight basis.

Where a reported less than (<) result is higher than the LOR, this may be due to primary sample extract/digestate dilution and/or insufficient sample for analysis. Where the LOR of a reported result differs from standard LOR, this may be due to high

Key :	Anonymous = Refers to samples which are not specifically part of this work order but formed part of the QC process lot
	CAS Number = CAS registry number from database maintained by Chemical Abstracts Services. The Chemical Abstracts Service is a division of the American Chemical Society.
	LOR = Limit of reporting
	RPD = Relative Percentage Difference
	# = Indicates failed QC
10 100	

#### Laboratory Duplicate (DUP) Report

The quality control term Laboratory Duplicate refers to a randomly selected intralaboratory split. Laboratory duplicates provide information regarding method precision and sample heterogeneity. The permitted ranges for the Relative Percent Deviation (RPD) of Laboratory Duplicates are specified in ALS Method QWI-EN/38 and are dependent on the magnitude of results in comparison to the level of reporting: Result < 10 times LOR: No Limit; Result between 10 and 20 times LOR; 0% - 50%; Result > 20 times LOR; 0% - 20%.

Sub-Matrix: SOIL						Laboratory I	Duplicate (DUP) Report		
Laboratory sample ID	Client sample ID	Method: Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	Original Result	Duplicate Result	RPD (%)	Recovery Limits (%)
EA055: Moisture Co	ontent (Dried @ 105-110	°C) (QC Lot: 1308993)							
EM1717027-001	BH12 0.5m	EA055: Moisture Content		1	%	22.0	22.3	1.61	0% - 20%
EM1717027-011	BH17 1.9-2.0m	EA055: Moisture Content		1	%	18.1	19.4	6.99	0% - 50%
EG005T: Total Meta	Is by ICP-AES (QC Lot	: 1308787)							Ni
EM1716985-001	Anonymous	EG005T: Beryllium	7440-41-7	1	mg/kg	<1	<1	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Cadmium	7440-43-9	1	mg/kg	<1	<1	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Barium	7440-39-3	10	mg/kg	50	50	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Chromium	7440-47-3	2	mg/kg	13	13	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Cobalt	7440-48-4	2	mg/kg	2	2	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Nickel	7440-02-0	2	mg/kg	5	5	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Arsenic	7440-38-2	5	mg/kg	<5	<5	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Copper	7440-50-8	5	mg/kg	6	6	RPD (%)           1.61           6.99           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           1.98           0.00           3.05	No Limit
		EG005T: Lead	7439-92-1	5	mg/kg	11	11	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Manganese	7439-96-5	5	mg/kg	41	41	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Selenium	7782-49-2	5	mg/kg	<5	<5	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Vanadium	7440-62-2	5	mg/kg	37	37	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Zinc	7440-66-6	5	mg/kg	16	16	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Boron	7440-42-8	50	mg/kg	<50	<50	0.00	No Limit
EM1717027-007	BH16 1.0-1.1m	EG005T: Beryllium	7440-41-7	1	mg/kg	<4	<4	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Cadmium	7440-43-9	1	mg/kg	<2	<2	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Barium	7440-39-3	10	mg/kg	230	230	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Chromium	7440-47-3	2	mg/kg	<4	<4	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Cobalt	7440-48-4	2	mg/kg	33	33	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Nickel	7440-02-0	2	mg/kg	100	102	1.98	0% - 20%
		EG005T: Arsenic	7440-38-2	5	mg/kg	<5	<5	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Copper	7440-50-8	5	mg/kg	67	69	3.05	0% - 50%

Page Work Order Client	: 3 of 11 : EM1717027 : GEO-ENVIRONMEN	NTAL SOLUTIONS							
Project	: Gorringe		Ē			Laboratory	Dualicate (DUD) Based		(763
Sub-Matrix: SOIL	Client comple ID		CAS Number	LOR	Unit	Original Deput	Duplicate (DOP) Report	000 /8/1	Deserve timite (%)
Eaboratory sample to	ale by ICR AES /OC Let	Method: Compound	CAS Number	LUK	Unit	Original Result	Dupicate Result	KPD (70)	Recovery Limits (%)
E00031, 10tal Met	BH16 1 0 1 1m	COOST   and	7430.02.1	6	malka	-5	15	0.00	No Limit
EW111021-001	DITIO NO-1. INI	EG0051: Lead	7439-96-5	5	mg/kg	1050	1080	2.64	0% - 20%
		EG005T: Selenium	7782-49-2	5	maika	<5	7	204	No Limit
		EG0051: Selenium	7440-62-2	5	mg/kg	69	71	2 70	0% - 50%
		EG0051, Valiadum	7440-66-6	5	mg/kg	12	13	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T. Zinc	7440-00-0	50	maika	<50	<50	0.00	No Limit
FORST THE D		EG0051: B0701	7440-42-0	50	inging	~50	~50	0.00	NO LINK
EG0351: Total Re	coverable mercury by Fi	MS (QC LOT: 1308788)	7100 07 0					0.00	NATION ACCURA
EM1716985-001	Anonymous	EG035T: Mercury	7439-97-6	0.1	mg/kg	<0.1	<0.1	0.00	No Limit
EM1/1/02/-00/	BH16 1.0-1.1m	EG035T: Mercury	/439-97-6	0.1	mg/kg	<0.1	<0.1	0.00	No Limit
EP075(SIM)B: Poly	nuclear Aromatic Hydro	ocarbons (QC Lot: 1308779)							p
EM1717027-001	BH12 0.5m	EP075(SIM): Naphthalene	91-20-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Acenaphthylene	208-96-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Acenaphthene	83-32-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Fluorene	86-73-7	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Phenanthrene	85-01-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Anthracene	120-12-7	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Fluoranthene	206-44-0	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Pyrene	129-00-0	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Benz(a)anthracene	56-55-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Chrysene	218-01-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Benzo(b+j)fluoranthene	205-99-2 205-82-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Benzo(k)fluoranthene	207-08-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Benzo(a)pyrene	50-32-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene	193-39-5	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Dibenz(a.h)anthracene	53-70-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Benzo(g.h.i)perylene	191-24-2	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
EM1717027-011	BH17 1.9-2.0m	EP075(SIM): Naphthalene	91-20-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Acenaphthylene	208-96-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Acenaphthene	83-32-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Fluorene	86-73-7	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Phenanthrene	85-01-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Anthracene	120-12-7	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Fluoranthene	206-44-0	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Pyrene	129-00-0	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Benz(a)anthracene	56-55-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5		No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Chrysene	218-01-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5		No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Benzo(b+j)fluoranthene	205-99-2 205-82-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Benzo(k)fluoranthene	207-08-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit

Page Work Order Client Project	: 4 of 11 : EM1717027 : GEO-ENVIRONMEN : Gorringe	NTAL SOLUTIONS							ALS
Sub-Matrix: SOIL			Γ			Laboratory	Duplicate (DUP) Report	65	
Laboratory sample ID	Client sample ID	Method: Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	Original Result	Duplicate Result	RPD (%)	Recovery Limits (%)
EP075(SIM)B: Poly	uclear Aromatic Hydro	carbons (QC Lot: 1308779) - continued							
EM1717027-011	BH17 1.9-2.0m	EP075(SIM): Benzo(a)pyrene	50-32-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
	- 1/- 0.1/10/00 00000000000000000000000000000	EP075(SIM): Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene	193-39-5	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Dibenz(a.h)anthracene	53-70-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Benzo(g.h.i)perylene	191-24-2	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
EP080/071: Total F	Petroleum Hydrocarbons	(QC Lot: 1308575)							
EM1717027-001	BH12 0.5m	EP080: C6 - C9 Fraction		10	mg/kg	<10	<10	0.00	No Limit
EM1717027-011	BH17 1.9-2.0m	EP080: C6 - C9 Fraction		10	mg/kg	<10	<10	0.00	No Limit
EP080/071: Total F	Petroleum Hydrocarbons	(QC Lot: 1308778)					1		
EM1717027-001	BH12 0.5m	EP071: C15 - C28 Eraction		100	ma/ka	<100	<100	0.00	No Limit
		EP071: C29 - C36 Fraction		100	ma/ka	<100	<100	0.00	No Limit
		EP071: C10 - C14 Fraction		50	ma/ka	<50	<50	0.00	No Limit
		EP071: C10 - C36 Fraction (sum)		50	ma/ka	<50	<50	0.00	No Limit
EM1717027-011	BH17 1.9-2.0m	EP071: C15 - C28 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100	0.00	No Limit
	Postania di Sanarata	EP071: C29 - C36 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100	0.00	No Limit
		EP071: C10 - C14 Fraction		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	0.00	No Limit
		EP071: C10 - C36 Fraction (sum)		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	0.00	No Limit
EP080/071: Total F	Recoverable Hydrocarbo	ns - NEPM 2013 Fractions (QC Lot: 1308575)						00.000	
EM1717027-001	BH12 0.5m	EP080: C6 - C10 Eraction	C6 C10	10	ma/ka	<10	<10	0.00	No Limit
EM1717027-011	BH17 1.9-2.0m	EP080: C6 - C10 Fraction	C6 C10	10	ma/ka	<10	<10	0.00	No Limit
EP080/071: Total F	Recoverable Hydrocarbo	ns - NEPM 2013 Fractions (OC Lot: 1308778)					4		1
EM1717027-001	BH12.0.5m	ED071: SC16_C24 Erection		100	ma/ka	<100	<100	0.00	No Limit
LIIIIIIULIOUI	DITI2 0.00	EP071: >C34 C40 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100	0.00	No Limit
		EP071: >C10 - C16 Fraction		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	0.00	No Limit
		EP071: >C10 - C40 Fraction (sum)		50	ma/ka	<50	<50	0.00	No Limit
EM1717027-011	BH17 1.9-2.0m	EP071: >C16 - C34 Fraction		100	ma/ka	<100	<100	0.00	No Limit
1778991011111111111111111111111111111111		EP071: >C34 - C40 Fraction		100	ma/ka	<100	<100	0.00	No Limit
		EP071: >C10 - C16 Fraction		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	0.00	No Limit
		EP071: >C10 - C40 Fraction (sum)		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	0.00	No Limit
EP080: BTEXN (Q	C Lot: 1308575)					12274	2.00259	Cristians.	
EM1717027-001	BH12.0.5m	EP080: Benzene	71-43-2	0.2	ma/ka	<0.2	<0.2	0.00	No Limit
	Ching blon	EP080: Toluene	108-88-3	0.5	ma/ka	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP080: Ethylbenzene	100-41-4	0.5	ma/ka	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP080: meta- & para-Xylene	108-38-3 106-42-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP080: ortho-Xylene	95-47-6	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP080: Naphthalene	91-20-3	1	mg/kg	<1	<1	0.00	No Limit
EM1717027-011	BH17 1.9-2.0m	EP080: Benzene	71-43-2	0.2	mg/kg	<0.2	<0.2	0.00	No Limit
		EP080: Toluene	108-88-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP080: Ethylbenzene	100-41-4	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
Vork Order	: EM1717027								
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	-------------------------------	----------------------------	----------------------	--------	-------	-----------------	------------------------	----------	--------------------
lient	: GEO-ENVIRONMEN	NTAL SOLUTIONS							ALS
roject	: Gorringe								(AL.
ub-Matrix: SOIL						Laboratory	Duplicate (DUP) Report	6	
Laboratory sample ID	Client sample ID	Method: Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	Original Result	Duplicate Result	RPD (%)	Recovery Limits (%
EP080: BTEXN (QC	C Lot: 1308575) - contin	nued							
EM1717027-011	BH17 1.9-2.0m	EP080: meta- & para-Xylene	108-38-3 106-42-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP080: ortho-Xylene	95-47-6	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP080: Naphthalene	91-20-3	1	mg/kg	<1	<1	0.00	No Limit
ub-Matrix: WATER						Laboratory	Duplicate (DUP) Report	17	
Laboratory sample ID	Client sample ID	Method' Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	Original Result	Duplicate Result	RPD (%)	Recovery Limits (%
EG020F: Dissolved	Metals by ICP-MS (QC	Lot: 1308955)							
EM1717028-002	Anonymous	EG020A-E: Cadmium	7440-43-9	0.0001	ma/L	<0.0001	<0.0001	0.00	No Limit
	, monymous	EG020A-F: Arsonic	7440-38-2	0.001	mg/L	0.005	0.005	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Bandium	7440-41-7	0.001	ma/l	<0.001	<0.001	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Berlyman	7440-39-3	0.001	mg/L	0.022	0.023	0.00	0% - 20%
		EG020A-F: Chromium	7440-47-3	0.001	ma/l	<0.001	<0.001	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Coholt	7440-48-4	0.001	mg/L	< 0.001	<0.001	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Copper	7440-50-8	0.001	mg/L	0.004	0.004	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Lead	7439-92-1	0.001	mg/l	<0.001	<0.001	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Manganese	7439-96-5	0.001	mg/L	0.013	0.013	0.00	0% - 50%
		EG020A-F: Nickel	7440-02-0	0.001	mg/L	0.010	0.011	0.00	0% - 50%
		EG020A-F: Zinc	7440-66-6	0.005	ma/l	0.046	0.049	6.56	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Selenium	7782-49-2	0.01	mg/L	<0.01	<0.01	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Vanadium	7440-62-2	0.01	mg/L	<0.01	<0.01	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Boron	7440-42-8	0.05	mg/l	<0.05	<0.05	0.00	No Limit
EM1716909-001	Anonymous	EG020A-F: Cadmium	7440-43-9	0.0001	mg/L	<0.0001	<0.0001	0.00	No Limit
UNM CONSTRUCTION	1 m (2) <b>4</b> ( ) 2 ( 22 (	EG020A-E: Arsenic	7440-38-2	0.001	mg/L	0.001	0.001	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Bervilium	7440-41-7	0.001	ma/L	<0.001	<0.001	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Barium	7440-39-3	0.001	ma/L	0.031	0.032	3.47	0% - 20%
		EG020A-F: Chromium	7440-47-3	0.001	mg/L	<0.001	< 0.001	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Cobalt	7440-48-4	0.001	mg/L	0.002	0.002	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Copper	7440-50-8	0.001	mg/L	0.001	0.001	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Lead	7439-92-1	0.001	mg/L	<0.001	<0.001	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Manganese	7439-96-5	0.001	mg/L	0.088	0.089	0.00	0% - 20%
		EG020A-F: Nickel	7440-02-0	0.001	mg/L	0.029	0.031	7,12	0% - 20%
		EG020A-F: Zinc	7440-66-6	0.005	mg/L	0.018	0.017	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Selenium	7782-49-2	0.01	mg/L	<0.01	<0.01	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Vanadium	7440-62-2	0.01	mg/L	<0.01	<0.01	0.00	No Limit
		EG020A-F: Boron	7440-42-8	0.05	mg/L	3.71	3.76	1.31	0% - 20%
EG035F: Dissolved	Mercury by FIMS (OC	Lot: 1308954)				A CHARLEND		00042044	
EM1716909-001	Anonymous	EG035E: Mercury	7439-97-6	0.0001	ma/L	<0.0001	<0.0001	0.00	No Limit
EM1717033-003	Anonymous	EG035F: Mercury	7439-97-6	0.0001	mg/L	<0.0001	<0.0001	0.00	No Limit
P080/071: Total P	etroleum Hydrocarbons	(OC Lot: 1309271)					1		
M1716909.001	Anonymous		lease lease	20	uo//	<20	<20	0.00	No Limit
and a subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequence of the subsequ				1 N N	LUC/L	220	144	W.UU	THE LETTER

Page Work Order Client Project	: 6 of 11 : EM1717027 : GEO-ENVIRONMEI : Gorringe	NTAL SOLUTIONS							ALS	
Sub-Matrix: WATER						Laboratory	Duplicate (DUP) Report	6 <u>0</u>		
Laboratory sample ID	Client sample ID	Method: Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	Original Result	Duplicate Result	RPD (%)	Recovery Limits (%)	
EP080/071: Total P	etroleum Hydrocarbons	(QC Lot: 1309271) - continued								
EM1717034-005	Anonymous	EP080: C6 - C9 Fraction		20	µg/L	<20	<20	0.00	No Limit	
EP080/071: Total R	ecoverable Hydrocarbo	ons - NEPM 2013 Fractions (QC Lot: 1309271)								
EM1716909-001	Anonymous	EP080: C6 - C10 Fraction	C6_C10	20	µg/L	<20	<20	0.00	No Limit	
EM1717034-005	Anonymous	EP080: C6 - C10 Fraction	C6_C10	20	µg/L	<20	<20	0.00	No Limit	
EP080: BTEXN (QC	C Lot: 1309271)									
EM1716909-001	Anonymous	EP080: Benzene	71-43-2	1	µg/L	<1	<1	0.00	No Limit	
		EP080: Toluene	108-88-3	2	µg/L	<2	<2	0.00	No Limit	
		EP080: Ethylbenzene	100-41-4	2	µg/L	<2	<2	0.00	No Limit	
		EP080: meta- & para-Xylene	108-38-3 106-42-3	2	µg/L	<2	<2	0.00	No Limit	
		EP080: ortho-Xylene	95-47-6	2	µg/L	<2	<2	0.00	No Limit	
		EP080: Naphthalene	91-20-3	5	µg/L	<5	<5	0.00	No Limit	
EM1717034-005	Anonymous	EP080: Benzene	71-43-2	1	µg/L	<1	<1	0.00	No Limit	
		EP080: Toluene	108-88-3	2	µg/L	<2	<2	0.00	No Limit	
		EP080: Ethylbenzene	100-41-4	2	µg/L	<2	<2	0.00	No Limit	
			EP080: meta- & para-Xylene	108-38-3 106-42-3	2	µg/L	<2	<2	0.00	No Limit
		EP080: ortho-Xylene	95-47-6	2	µg/L	<2	<2	0.00	No Limit	
		EP080: Naphthalene	91-20-3	5	µg/L	<5	<5	0.00	No Limit	

Page	: 7 of 11
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



### Method Blank (MB) and Laboratory Control Spike (LCS) Report

The quality control term Method / Laboratory Blank refers to an analyte free matrix to which all reagents are added in the same volumes or proportions as used in standard sample preparation. The purpose of this QC parameter is to monitor potential laboratory contamination. The quality control term Laboratory Control Spike (LCS) refers to a certified reference material, or a known interference free matrix spiked with target analytes. The purpose of this QC parameter is to monitor method precision and accuracy independent of sample matrix. Dynamic Recovery Limits are based on statistical evaluation of processed LCS.

Sub-Matrix: SOIL				Method Blank (MB)	Laboratory Control Spike (LCS) Report				
				Report	Spike	Spike Recovery (%)	Recovery	Limits (%)	
Method: Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	Result	Concentration	LCS	Low	High	
EG005T: Total Metals by ICP-AES (QCLot: 130878	7)								
EG005T: Arsenic	7440-38-2	5	mg/kg	<5	21.7 mg/kg	94.9	79	113	
EG005T: Barium	7440-39-3	10	mg/kg	<10	143 mg/kg	96.9	79	110	
EG005T: Beryllium	7440-41-7	1	mg/kg	<1	5.63 mg/kg	112	85	120	
EG005T: Boron	7440-42-8	50	mg/kg	<50	33.2 mg/kg	102	82	126	
EG005T: Cadmium	7440-43-9	1	mg/kg	<1	4.64 mg/kg	98.5	85	109	
EG005T: Chromium	7440-47-3	2	mg/kg	<2	43.9 mg/kg	103	83	109	
EG005T: Cobalt	7440-48-4	2	mg/kg	<2	16 mg/kg	107	78	112	
EG005T: Copper	7440-50-8	5	mg/kg	<5	32 mg/kg	101	78	108	
EG005T: Lead	7439-92-1	5	mg/kg	<5	40 mg/kg	94.9	78	106	
EG005T: Manganese	7439-96-5	5	mg/kg	<5	130 mg/kg	98.7	82	107	
EG005T: Nickel	7440-02-0	2	mg/kg	<2	55 mg/kg	104	82	111	
EG005T: Selenium	7782-49-2	5	mg/kg	<5	5.37 mg/kg	98.7	93	109	
EG005T: Vanadium	7440-62-2	5	mg/kg	<5	29.6 mg/kg	103	80	109	
EG005T: Zinc	7440-66-6	5	mg/kg	<5	60.8 mg/kg	103	82	111	
EG035T: Total Recoverable Mercury by FIMS (QC	Lot: 1308788)							19. 	
EG035T: Mercury	7439-97-6	0.1	mg/kg	<0.1	2.57 mg/kg	98.4	77	104	
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons	s (QCLot: 1308779)								
EP075(SIM): Naphthalene	91-20-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	97.4	75	131	
EP075(SIM): Acenaphthylene	208-96-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	94.5	70	132	
EP075(SIM): Acenaphthene	83-32-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	99.3	80	128	
EP075(SIM): Fluorene	86-73-7	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	99.0	70	128	
EP075(SIM): Phenanthrene	85-01-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	103	80	128	
EP075(SIM): Anthracene	120-12-7	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	1.5 mg/kg	103	72	126	
EP075(SIM): Fluoranthene	206-44-0	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	101	70	128	
EP075(SIM): Pyrene	129-00-0	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	104	80	125	
EP075(SIM): Benz(a)anthracene	56-55-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	87.8	70	130	
EP075(SIM): Chrysene	218-01-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	106	80	126	
EP075(SIM): Benzo(b+j)fluoranthene	205-99-2	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	86.3	71	124	
	205-82-3	0.5	maller	-0.5	2 maller	94.5	75	105	
EP075(SIM): Benzo(k)fluoranthene	207-08-9	0.5	mg/kg	<u.5< td=""><td>3 mg/kg</td><td>84.5</td><td>75</td><td>125</td></u.5<>	3 mg/kg	84.5	75	125	
EP0/5(SIM): Benzo(a)pyrene	50-32-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	93.0	70	125	
EP075(SIM): Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene	193-39-5	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	94.8	/1	128	
EP075(SIM): Dibenz(a.h)anthracene	53-70-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	95.0	72	126	
EP075(SIM): Benzo(g.h.i)perylene	191-24-2	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	94.9	68	127	

# Page : 8 of 11 Work Order : EM1717027 Client : GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS Project : Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL				Method Blank (MB)	Laboratory Control Spike (LCS) Report				
				Report	Spike	Spike Recovery (%)	Recovery	Limits (%)	
Method: Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	Result	Concentration	LCS	Low	High	
EP080/071: Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (	QCLot: 1308575)								
EP080: C6 - C9 Fraction		10	mg/kg	<10	36 mg/kg	92.6	70	127	
EP080/071: Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (	QCLot: 1308778)								
EP071: C10 - C14 Fraction		50	mg/kg	<50	806 mg/kg	107	65	131	
EP071: C15 - C28 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	3006 mg/kg	109	70	126	
EP071: C29 - C36 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	1584 mg/kg	104	70	122	
EP071: C10 - C36 Fraction (sum)		50	mg/kg	<50			1 <u>2222</u>	(2222)	
EP080/071: Total Recoverable Hydrocarbons	- NEPM 2013 Fractions (QCLo	t: 1308575)							
EP080: C6 - C10 Fraction	C6_C10	10	mg/kg	<10	45 mg/kg	92.7	68	125	
EP080/071: Total Recoverable Hydrocarbons	- NEPM 2013 Fractions (QCLo	t: 1308778)							
EP071: >C10 - C16 Fraction		50	mg/kg	<50	1160 mg/kg	109	68	130	
EP071: >C16 - C34 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	3978 mg/kg	108	72	116	
EP071: >C34 - C40 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	313 mg/kg	93.9	38	132	
EP071: >C10 - C40 Fraction (sum)		50	mg/kg	<50	30000	1000	97 <del>7777</del> 9	300,000	
EP080: BTEXN (QCLot: 1308575)									
EP080: Benzene	71-43-2	0.2	mg/kg	<0.2	2 mg/kg	87.7	74	124	
EP080: Toluene	108-88-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	2 mg/kg	99.0	77	125	
EP080: Ethylbenzene	100-41-4	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	2 mg/kg	92.7	73	125	
EP080: meta- & para-Xylene	108-38-3 106-42-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	4 mg/kg	103	77	128	
EP080: ortho-Xylene	95-47-6	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	2 mg/kg	106	81	128	
EP080: Naphthalene	91-20-3	1	mg/kg	<1	0.5 mg/kg	94.7	66	130	
Sub-Matrix: WATED			11	Method Blank (MB)	Laboratory Control Spike (LCS) Report				

Sub-Matrix: WATER	Method Blank (MB)	Laboratory Control Spike (LCS) Report						
				Report	Spike	Spike Recovery (%)	Recovery	Limits (%)
Method: Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	Result	Concentration	LCS	Low	High
EG020F: Dissolved Metals by ICP-MS (C	QCLot: 1308955)							
EG020A-F: Arsenic	7440-38-2	0.001	mg/L	<0.001	0.1 mg/L	100	91	107
EG020A-F: Beryllium	7440-41-7	0.001	mg/L	<0.001	0.1 mg/L	101	82	113
EG020A-F: Barium	7440-39-3	0.001	mg/L	<0.001	0.1 mg/L	98.2	84	106
EG020A-F: Cadmium	7440-43-9	0.0001	mg/L	<0.0001	0.1 mg/L	101	84	104
EG020A-F: Chromium	7440-47-3	0.001	mg/L	<0.001	0.1 mg/L	96.6	83	103
EG020A-F: Cobalt	7440-48-4	0.001	mg/L	<0.001	0.1 mg/L	96.2	83	106
EG020A-F: Copper	7440-50-8	0.001	mg/L	<0.001	0.1 mg/L	97.2	82	103
EG020A-F: Lead	7439-92-1	0.001	mg/L	<0.001	0.1 mg/L	97.4	83	105
EG020A-F: Manganese	7439-96-5	0.001	mg/L	<0.001	0.1 mg/L	98.0	83	105
EG020A-F: Nickel	7440-02-0	0.001	mg/L	<0.001	0.1 mg/L	93.8	82	106
EG020A-F: Selenium	7782-49-2	0.01	mg/L	<0.01	0.1 mg/L	96.3	82	109
EG020A-F: Vanadium	7440-62-2	0.01	mg/L	<0.01	0.1 mg/L	97.3	83	106
EG020A-F: Zinc	7440-66-6	0.005	mg/L	<0.005	0.1 mg/L	99.1	85	109

# Page : 9 of 11 Work Order : EM1717027 Client : GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS Project : Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: WATER		Method Blank (MB)		Laboratory Control Spike (LCS	6) Report			
				Report	Spike	Spike Recovery (%)	Recovery	Limits (%)
Method: Compound CAS N	lumber	LOR	Unit	Result	Concentration	LCS	Low	High
EG020F: Dissolved Metals by ICP-MS (QCLot: 1308955) - continue	ed							
EG020A-F: Boron 7440	-42-8	0.05	mg/L	<0.05	0.5 mg/L	102	84	116
EG035F: Dissolved Mercury by FIMS (QCLot: 1308954)								
EG035F: Mercury 7439	-97-6	0.0001	mg/L	<0.0001	0.01 mg/L	93.3	81	114
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons (QCLot: 13090)	20)					10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1		
EP075(SIM): Naphthalene 91	-20-3	1	µg/L	<1.0	10 µg/L	90.7	48	110
EP075(SIM): Acenaphthylene 208	-96-8	1	µg/L	<1.0	10 µg/L	100	49	124
EP075(SIM): Acenaphthene 83	-32-9	1	µg/L	<1.0	10 µg/L	95.6	53	117
EP075(SIM): Fluorene 86	-73-7	1	µg/L	<1.0	10 µg/L	101	54	118
EP075(SIM): Phenanthrene 85	-01-8	1	µg/L	<1.0	10 µg/L	101	57	119
EP075(SIM): Anthracene 120	-12-7	1	µg/L	<1.0	5 µg/L	86.5	51	113
EP075(SIM): Fluoranthene 206	-44-0	1	μg/L	<1.0	10 µg/L	96.2	59	123
EP075(SIM): Pyrene 129	-00-0	1	µg/L	<1.0	10 µg/L	89.0	58	123
EP075(SIM): Benz(a)anthracene 56	-55-3	1	µg/L	<1.0	10 µg/L	87.5	52	126
EP075(SIM): Chrysene 218	-01-9	1	μg/L	<1.0	10 µg/L	95.8	55	123
EP075(SIM): Benzo(b+j)fluoranthene 205 205	-99-2 -82-3	1	hð\r	<1.0	10 µg/L	93.1	52	131
EP075(SIM): Benzo(k)fluoranthene 207	-08-9	1	µg/L	<1.0	10 µg/L	92.4	57	126
EP075(SIM): Benzo(a)pyrene 50	-32-8	0.5	µg/L	<0.5	10 µg/L	85.2	56	126
EP075(SIM): Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene 193	-39-5	1	µg/L	<1.0	10 µg/L	95.2	53	123
EP075(SIM): Dibenz(a.h)anthracene 53	-70-3	1	µg/L	<1.0	10 µg/L	96.7	53	125
EP075(SIM): Benzo(g.h.i)perylene 191	-24-2	1	µg/L	<1.0	10 µg/L	93.2	53	125
EP080/071: Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (QCLot: 1309021)								1
EP071: C10 - C14 Fraction		50	µg/L	<50	3368 µg/L	58.1	58	134
EP071: C15 - C28 Fraction		100	µg/L	<100	14735 µg/L	68.0	60	133
EP071: C29 - C36 Fraction		50	µg/L	<50	7856 µg/L	66.3	54	137
EP080/071: Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (QCLot: 1309271)								<i>n</i>
EP080: C6 - C9 Fraction		20	µg/L	<20	360 µg/L	80.9	68	125
EP080/071: Total Recoverable Hydrocarbons - NEPM 2013 Fraction	is (QCLot:	1309021)						
EP071: >C10 - C16 Fraction		100	µg/L	<100	5225 µg/L	63.7	58	122
EP071: >C16 - C34 Fraction		100	µg/L	<100	19994 µg/L	66.7	56	132
EP071: >C34 - C40 Fraction	3222	100	µg/L	<100	1449 µg/L	67.8	58	137
EP080/071: Total Recoverable Hydrocarbons - NEPM 2013 Fraction	is (QCLot:	1309271)						
EP080: C6 - C10 Fraction C6	_C10	20	µg/L	<20	450 µg/L	77.3	66	123
EP080: BTEXN (QCLot: 1309271)				M.				1/
EP080: Benzene 71	-43-2	1	µg/L	<1	20 µg/L	87.1	74	123
EP080: Toluene 108	-88-3	2	µg/L	<2	20 µg/L	87.7	77	128
EP080: Ethylbenzene 100	-41-4	2	µg/L	<2	20 µg/L	82.9	73	126

# Page : 10 of 11 Work Order : EM1717027 Client : GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS Project : Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: WATER		Method Blank (MB)	Laboratory Control Spike (LCS) Report					
				Report	Spike	Spike Recovery (%)	Recovery Limits (%	
Method: Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	Result	Concentration	LCS	Low	High
EP080: BTEXN (QCLot: 1309271) - continued								
EP080: meta- & para-Xylene	108-38-3	2	µg/L	<2	40 µg/L	85.8	72	131
	106-42-3		2003078008			-= 108/8-0		
EP080: ortho-Xylene	95-47-6	2	µg/L	<2	20 µg/L	84.0	74	131
EP080: Naphthalene	91-20-3	5	µg/L	<5	5 µg/L	90.0	74	124

# Matrix Spike (MS) Report

The quality control term Matrix Spike (MS) refers to an intralaboratory split sample spiked with a representative set of target analytes. The purpose of this QC parameter is to monitor potential matrix effects on analyte recoveries. Static Recovery Limits as per laboratory Data Quality Objectives (DQOs). Ideal recovery ranges stated may be waived in the event of sample matrix interference.

Sub-Matrix: SOIL		Matrix Spike (MS) Report						
				Spike	SpikeRecovery(%)	Recovery L	imits (%).	
Laboratory sample ID	Client sample ID	Method: Compound	CAS Number	Concentration	MS	Low	High	
EG005T: Total Met	als by ICP-AES (QCLot: 1308787)							
EM1716985-002	Anonymous	EG005T: Arsenic	7440-38-2	50 mg/kg	87.6	78	124	
		EG005T: Barium	7440-39-3	50 mg/kg	100	71	135	
		EG005T: Beryllium	7440-41-7	50 mg/kg	103	85	125	
		EG005T: Cadmium	7440-43-9	50 mg/kg	94.7	84	116	
		EG005T: Chromium	7440-47-3	50 mg/kg	89.3	79	121	
		EG005T: Copper	7440-50-8	50 mg/kg	95.1	82	124	
		EG005T: Lead	7439-92-1	50 mg/kg	90.1	76	124	
		EG005T: Manganese	7439-96-5	50 mg/kg	78.8	68	136	
		EG005T: Nickel	7440-02-0	50 mg/kg	95.4	78	120	
		EG005T: Selenium	7782-49-2	50 mg/kg	85.8	71	125	
		EG005T: Vanadium	7440-62-2	50 mg/kg	82.1	76	124	
		EG005T: Zinc	7440-66-6	50 mg/kg	92.3	74	128	
EG035T: Total Re	coverable Mercury by FIMS (QCLot: 1308788)							
EM1716985-002	Anonymous	EG035T: Mercury	7439-97-6	5 mg/kg	93.5	76	116	
EP075(SIM)B: Poly	nuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons (QCLot: 1308)	779)						
EM1717027-003	BH13 0.4-0.5m	EP075(SIM): Acenaphthene	83-32-9	3 mg/kg	95.9	67	117	
		EP075(SIM): Pyrene	129-00-0	3 mg/kg	104	52	148	
EP080/071: Total P	Petroleum Hydrocarbons (QCLot: 1308575)							
EM1717027-002	BH12 1.0m	EP080: C6 - C9 Fraction		28 mg/kg	83.0	42	131	
EP080/071: Total P	Petroleum Hydrocarbons (QCLot: 1308778)							
EM1717027-002	BH12 1.0m	EP071: C10 - C14 Fraction		806 mg/kg	116	53	123	
		EP071: C15 - C28 Fraction		3006 mg/kg	118	70	124	
		EP071- C29 - C36 Eraction		1584 ma/ka	112	64	118	

Page	: 11 of 11
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL		Matrix Spike (MS) Report					
				Spike	SpikeRecovery(%)	Recovery I	limits (%)
aboratory sample ID	Client sample ID	Method: Compound	CAS Number	Concentration	MS	Low	High
P080/071: Total I	Recoverable Hydrocarbons - NEPM 20 ⁷	13 Fractions (QCLot: 1308575) - continued					
EM1717027-002	BH12 1.0m	EP080: C6 - C10 Fraction	C6_C10	33 mg/kg	81.5	39	129
P080/071: Total I	Recoverable Hydrocarbons - NEPM 20	13 Fractions (QCLot: 1308778)			W. Marine Mari		1
EM1717027-002	BH12 1.0m	EP071: >C10 - C16 Fraction		1160 mg/kg	117	65	123
		EP071: >C16 - C34 Fraction		3978 mg/kg	116	67	121
		EP071: >C34 - C40 Fraction	2015-1-	313 mg/kg	101	44	126
P080: BTEXN (G	CLot: 1308575)	the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second s					
M1717027-002	BH12 1.0m	EP080: Benzene	71-43-2	2 mg/kg	85.4	50	136
	- 1.84 (100-101-101-100-100)	EP080: Toluene	108-88-3	2 mg/kg	94.9	56	139
h-Matrix: WATER	-,l			M	atrix Spike (MS) Report		4
S-BIGGIA, HATER				Spike	SpikeRecovery(%)	Recovery I	Limits (%)
aboratory sample ID	Client sample ID	Method: Compound	CAS Number	Concentration	MS	Low	Hia
G020E: Dissolve	d Metals by ICP-MS (OCI of: 1308955)	werred. Comboard					
M1716909-001	Aponymous	EC020A E: Arconic	7440-38-2	0.2 mg/l	111	85	131
	, starymous	EG020AF: Readling	7440-41-7	0.2 mg/L	90.2	73	141
		EG020A-F: Barjum	7440-39-3	0.2 mg/L	107	75	127
		EG020A-F: Cadmium	7440-43-9	0.05 mg/L	101	81	133
		EG020A-F: Chromium	7440-47-3	0.2 mg/L	99.2	71	135
		EG020A-F: Cobalt	7440-48-4	0.2 mg/L	107	78	132
		EG020A-E: Copper	7440-50-8	0.2 mg/L	101	76	130
		EG020A-F: Lead	7439-92-1	0.2 mg/L	100	75	133
		EG020A-F: Manganese	7439-96-5	0.2 mg/L	97.4	64	134
		EG020A-F: Nickel	7440-02-0	0.2 mg/L	102	73	131
		EG020A-F: Vanadium	7440-62-2	0.2 mg/L	101	73	131
		EG020A-F: Zinc	7440-66-6	0.2 mg/L	97.1	75	131
G035F: Dissolve	d Mercury by FIMS (QCLot: 1308954)						
M1716914-001	Anonymous	EG035F: Mercury	7439-97-6	0.01 mg/L	93.2	70	120
P080/071: Total I	Petroleum Hydrocarbons (QCLot: 130	9271)			In checker of		1
M1717005-001	Anonymous	EP080: C6 - C9 Fraction		280 µg/L	60.8	43	125
P080/071: Total I	Recoverable Hydrocarbons - NEPM 20	13 Fractions (OCLot: 1309271)		1			1
EM1717005-001	Anonymous	EP080: C6 - C10 Fraction	C6 C10	330 µg/L	58.3	44	122
P080: BTEXN (C	CLot: 1309271)			1	h the first		4
EM1717005-001	Anonymous	ED080- Benzene	71-43-2	20 µg/l	76.3	68	130
		EP000. Belizene	108-88-3	20 µg/l	80.0	72	132



QA/QC Compliance Assessment to assist with Quality Review										
Work Order	EM1717027	Page	: 1 of 9							
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS	Laboratory	: Environmental Division Melbourne							
Contact	: KRIS TAYLOR	Telephone	: +61-3-8549 9630							
Project	: Gorringe	Date Samples Received	: 12-Dec-2017							
Site		Issue Date	: 15-Dec-2017							
Sampler	: AARON PLUMMER	No. of samples received	: 18							
Order number	2	No. of samples analysed	: 18							

This report is automatically generated by the ALS LIMS through interpretation of the ALS Quality Control Report and several Quality Assurance parameters measured by ALS. This automated reporting highlights any non-conformances, facilitates faster and more accurate data validation and is designed to assist internal expert and external Auditor review. Many components of this report contribute to the overall DQO assessment and reporting for guideline compliance.

Brief method summaries and references are also provided to assist in traceability.

# Summary of Outliers

### **Outliers : Quality Control Samples**

This report highlights outliers flagged in the Quality Control (QC) Report.

- <u>NO</u> Method Blank value outliers occur.
- <u>NO</u> Duplicate outliers occur.
- NO Laboratory Control outliers occur.
- NO Matrix Spike outliers occur.
- For all regular sample matrices, <u>NO</u> surrogate recovery outliers occur.

### **Outliers : Analysis Holding Time Compliance**

<u>NO</u> Analysis Holding Time Outliers exist.

### **Outliers : Frequency of Quality Control Samples**

• Quality Control Sample Frequency Outliers exist - please see following pages for full details.

### RIGHT SOLUTIONS | RIGHT PARTNER





#### **Outliers : Frequency of Quality Control Samples**

Quality Control Sample Type	C	ount	Ra	te (%)	Quality Control Specification	
Method	QC	Regular	Actual	Expected		
aboratory Duplicates (DUP)						
PAH/Phenols (GC/MS - SIM)	0	7	0.00	10.00	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard	
FRH - Semivolatile Fraction	0	7	0.00	10.00	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard	
fatrix Spikes (MS)						
PAH/Phenols (GC/MS - SIM)	0	7	0.00	5.00	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard	
RH - Semivolatile Fraction	0	7	0.00	5.00	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard	

### Analysis Holding Time Compliance

If samples are identified below as having been analysed or extracted outside of recommended holding times, this should be taken into consideration when interpreting results.

This report summarizes extraction / preparation and analysis times and compares each with ALS recommended holding times (referencing USEPA SW 846, APHA, AS and NEPM) based on the sample container provided. Dates reported represent first date of extraction or analysis and preclude subsequent dilutions and reruns. A listing of breaches (if any) is provided herein.

Holding time for leachate methods (e.g. TCLP) vary according to the analytes reported. Assessment compares the leach date with the shortest analyte holding time for the equivalent soil method. These are: organics 14 days, mercury 28 days & other metals 180 days. A recorded breach does not guarantee a breach for all non-volatile parameters.

Holding times for <u>VOC in soils</u> vary according to analytes of interest. Vinyl Chloride and Styrene holding time is 7 days; others 14 days. A recorded breach does not guarantee a breach for all VOC analytes and should be verified in case the reported breach is a false positive or Vinyl Chloride and Styrene are not key analytes of interest/concern.

Matrix: SOIL		- 1			Evaluation	: × = Holding time	breach ; 🗹 = With	n holding time
Method		Sample Date	Ex	draction / Preparation			Analysis	
Container / Client Sample ID(s)			Date extracted	Due for extraction	Evaluation	Date analysed	Due for analysis	Evaluation
EA055: Moisture Content (Dried @ 105-	-110°C)							01.
Soil Glass Jar - Unpreserved (EA055)								
BH12 0.5m,	BH12 1.0m,	12-Dec-2017		112220		12-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	1
BH13 0.4-0.5m,	BH14 0.3-0.4m,							
BH14 1.0-1.1m,	BH15 0.5-0.6m,							
BH16 1.0-1.1m,	BH16 2.0-2.1m,							
BH16 2.9-3.0m,	BH17 0.5-0.6m,							
BH17 1.9-2.0m,	BH18 0.2-0.3m,							
BH18 0.9-1.0m,	BH19 0.2-0.3m,							
BH19 0.9-1.0m,	BH20 0.5m,							
BH21 0.5m								
EG005T: Total Metals by ICP-AES								
Soil Glass Jar - Unpreserved (EG005T)								
BH12 0.5m,	BH12 1.0m,	12-Dec-2017	12-Dec-2017	10-Jun-2018	1	13-Dec-2017	10-Jun-2018	1
BH13 0.4-0.5m,	BH14 0.3-0.4m,							
BH14 1.0-1.1m,	BH15 0.5-0.6m,							
BH16 1.0-1.1m,	BH16 2.0-2.1m,							
BH16 2.9-3.0m,	BH17 0.5-0.6m,							
BH17 1.9-2.0m,	BH18 0.2-0.3m,							
BH18 0.9-1.0m,	BH19 0.2-0.3m,							
BH19 0.9-1.0m,	BH20 0.5m,							
BH21 0.5m								

Work Order	· EM1717027							
Client	GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS							
Project	Gorringe						(	ALS
ulatrix: SOII					Evaluation	v x = Holding time	broach : 🗸 = With	in holding tim
Wath X. SOIL		Comula Data	5	struction / Decouption	Evaluation	- riolung une	Applying	in noioing un
Container / Clinet Som	pla (D/c)	Sample Date		Reaction / Preparation	The structure		Analysis	Frankration
Container / Cherit Sam	perola	d.	Date extracted	Due for extraction	Evaluation	Date analysed	Due for analysis	Evaluation
EG035T: Total Reco	verable Mercury by FIMS					1		
Soil Glass Jar - Unpre	eserved (EG035T)	12-Dec-2017	12-Dec-2017	09- Jan-2018	1	13-Dec-2017	09- Jan-2018	1
BH12 0.3m,	BH14.0.2.0.4m	12-060-2011	12-000-2017	00-0011-2010	3	13-Dec-2011	00-041-2010	¥
BH14 1 0-1 1m	BH15 0.5-0.6m							
BH16 1 0-1 1m	BH16 2.0-2 1m							
BH16 2 9-3 0m	BH17.0.5-0.6m							
BH17 1 9-2 0m	BH18.0.2-0.3m							
BH18.0.9-1.0m	BH19.0.2-0.3m							
BH19.0.9-1.0m	BH20.0.5m							
BH21 0.5m	brize elsm,							
EP075(SIM)B: Polynu	clear Aromatic Hydrocarbons			d				1
Soil Glass Jar - Unpre	served (EP075(SIM))	1		1		1	1	1
BH12 0.5m,	BH12 1.0m,	12-Dec-2017	12-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	1	13-Dec-2017	21-Jan-2018	1
BH13 0.4-0.5m,	BH14 0.3-0.4m,							
BH14 1.0-1.1m,	BH15 0.5-0.6m,							
BH16 1.0-1.1m,	BH16 2.0-2.1m,							
BH16 2.9-3.0m,	BH17 0.5-0.6m,							
BH17 1.9-2.0m,	BH18 0.2-0.3m,							
BH18 0.9-1.0m,	BH19 0.2-0.3m,							
BH19 0.9-1.0m,	BH20 0.5m,							
BH21 0.5m								
EP080/071: Total Pet	roleum Hydrocarbons							
Soil Glass Jar - Unpre	served (EP071)	10 0	40 0 0047	20 Dec 2017		42 0 2047	21 1-2 2019	
BH12 0.5m,	BH12 1.0m,	12-Dec-2017	12-Dec-2017	20-Dec-2017	-	13-Dec-2017	21-3811-2010	~
BH13 0.4-0.5m,	BH14 0.3-0.4m,							
BH14 1.0-1.1m,	BH15 0.5-0.6m,							
BH16 1.0-1.1m,	BH16 2.0-2.1m,							
BH10 2.9-3.0m,	BH17 0.5-0.6m,							
BH17 1.9-2.0m,	BH10.0.2-0.3m							
BH10 0.9-1.0m	BH 19 0.2-0.311, BH 20.0 Em							
BH21.0.5m	8620 0.5m,							
Soil Glass Jar - Unpre	served (EP080)							
BH12 0.5m.	BH12 1.0m.	12-Dec-2017	12-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	1	14-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	1
BH13 0.4-0.5m.	BH14 0.3-0.4m,		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	10.400.088540.08860810	795	10.000 H29999529 578 128		10.00
BH14 1.0-1.1m,	BH15 0.5-0.6m,							
BH16 1.0-1.1m,	BH16 2.0-2.1m,							
BH16 2.9-3.0m,	BH17 0.5-0.6m,							
BH17 1.9-2.0m,	BH18 0.2-0.3m,							
BH18 0.9-1.0m,	BH19 0.2-0.3m,							
BH19 0.9-1.0m,	BH20 0.5m,							
BH21 0.5m								

Page	: 4 of 9
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



Matrix: SOIL					Evaluation	n: 🗴 = Holding time	breach ; 🗹 = With	in holding time
Method		Sample Date	E	xtraction / Preparation				
Container / Client Sample ID(s)			Date extracted	Due for extraction	Evaluation	Date analysed	Due for analysis	Evaluation
EP080/071: Total Recoverable Hydrocarbons -	NEPM 2013 Fractions							
Soil Glass Jar - Unpreserved (EP071)								
BH12 0.5m,	BH12 1.0m,	12-Dec-2017	12-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	-	13-Dec-2017	21-Jan-2018	1
BH13 0.4-0.5m,	BH14 0.3-0.4m,							
BH14 1.0-1.1m,	BH15 0.5-0.6m,							
BH16 1.0-1.1m,	BH16 2.0-2.1m,							
BH16 2.9-3.0m,	BH17 0.5-0.6m,							
BH17 1.9-2.0m,	BH18 0.2-0.3m,							
BH18 0.9-1.0m,	BH19 0.2-0.3m,							
BH19 0.9-1.0m,	BH20 0.5m,							
BH21 0.5m								
Soil Glass Jar - Unpreserved (EP080)			CONSTRUCT STREAM	anaran amanas		NTO 183 1 - 20130000	12012-220 10009225	24
BH12 0.5m,	BH12 1.0m,	12-Dec-2017	12-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	1	14-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	1
BH13 0.4-0.5m,	BH14 0.3-0.4m,							
BH14 1.0-1.1m,	BH15 0.5-0.6m,							
BH16 1.0-1.1m,	BH16 2.0-2.1m,							
BH16 2.9-3.0m,	BH17 0.5-0.6m,							
BH17 1.9-2.0m,	BH18 0.2-0.3m,							
BH18 0.9-1.0m,	BH19 0.2-0.3m,							
BH19 0.9-1.0m,	BH20 0.5m,							
BH21 0.5m								
EP080: BTEXN								
Soil Glass Jar - Unpreserved (EP080)			1	1				
BH12 0.5m,	BH12 1.0m,	12-Dec-2017	12-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	1	14-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	1
BH13 0.4-0.5m,	BH14 0.3-0.4m,					**************************************		
BH14 1.0-1.1m,	BH15 0.5-0.6m,							
BH16 1.0-1.1m,	BH16 2.0-2.1m,							
BH16 2.9-3.0m,	BH17 0.5-0.6m,							
BH17 1.9-2.0m,	BH18 0.2-0.3m,							
BH18 0.9-1.0m,	BH19 0.2-0.3m,							
BH19 0.9-1.0m,	BH20 0.5m,							
BH21 0.5m				_				
Matrix: WATER		25			Evaluation	n: × = Holdina time	breach : 🗸 = With	in holding time
Method		Sample Date	E	xtraction / Preparation		1	Analysis	
Container / Client Sample ID(s)		A Constant of Constant	Date extracted	Due for extraction	Evaluation	Date analysed	Due for analysis	Evaluation
EG020F: Dissolved Metals by ICP-MS								
Clear Plastic Bottle - Filtered; Lab-acidified (EG	020A-F)	1		1	1	1	-	
Rinsate	201200-110-140	11-Dec-2017				13-Dec-2017	09-Jun-2018	1
EG035F: Dissolved Mercury by FIMS								-
Clear Plastic Bottle - Filtered; Lab-acidified (EG	035F)							
Rinsate		11-Dec-2017	122220			13-Dec-2017	08-Jan-2018	1





Matrix: WATER				Evaluation	n: × = Holding time	breach ; 🗹 = With	in holding time
Method	Sample Date	E	draction / Preparation		Analysis		
Container / Client Sample ID(s)		Date extracted	Due for extraction	Evaluation	Date analysed	Due for analysis	Evaluation
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons			~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~				
Amber Glass Bottle - Unpreserved (EP075(SIM)) Rinsate	11-Dec-2017	12-Dec-2017	18-Dec-2017	3	13-Dec-2017	21-Jan-2018	1
EP080/071: Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons							
Amber Glass Bottle - Unpreserved (EP071) Rinsate	11-Dec-2017	12-Dec-2017	18-Dec-2017	1	13-Dec-2017	21-Jan-2018	1
Amber VOC Vial - Sulfuric Acid (EP080) Rinsate	11-Dec-2017	13-Dec-2017	25-Dec-2017	1	13-Dec-2017	25-Dec-2017	1
EP080/071: Total Recoverable Hydrocarbons - NEPM 2013 Fractions							
Amber Glass Bottle - Unpreserved (EP071) Rinsate	11-Dec-2017	12-Dec-2017	18-Dec-2017	7	13-Dec-2017	21-Jan-2018	1
Amber VOC Vial - Sulfuric Acid (EP080) Rinsate	11-Dec-2017	13-Dec-2017	25-Dec-2017	1	13-Dec-2017	25-Dec-2017	1
EP080: BTEXN							
Amber VOC Vial - Sulfuric Acid (EP080) Rinsate	11-Dec-2017	13-Dec-2017	25-Dec-2017	1	13-Dec-2017	25-Dec-2017	1

Page	: 6 of 9
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	; Gorringe



# **Quality Control Parameter Frequency Compliance**

The following report summarises the frequency of laboratory QC samples analysed within the analytical lot(s) in which the submitted sample(s) was(were) processed. Actual rate should be greater than or equal to the expected rate. A listing of breaches is provided in the Summary of Outliers.

Under Stample Type         Court         Rate (%)         Duality Control Specification           Addraw Markoal Markoal         Method         Provide         Evaluation           Addraw Schwall         Evaluation         Evaluation           Addraw Schwall         EVAluation         Evaluation           Addraw Schwall         EVAluation         Evaluation         Evaluation           Addraw Schwall         Eval	Matrix: SOIL				Evaluatio	on: 🗶 = Quality Co	ntrol frequency	not within specification ; 🖌 = Quality Control frequency within specific
Indexide         Method         OCC         Rinnahrer         Actual         Exacted         Evaluation           Sectional Disclosion (SUP)         Exacted         Exacted         Evaluation         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           AH/Pinoto (SIM)         EP075(SIM)         2         17         11.76         10.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           AH/Pinoto (SIM)         E0035T         2         20         10.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           AH/Pinoto (SIM)         E0035T         2         20         10.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           Visital Metals by (CP-AES         E0005T         2         17         11.76         10.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           Visital Metals by (CP-AES         E0035T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           Ath Metals by (CP-AES         E0035T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           Ath Metals by (CP-AES         E0005T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           Ath Metals by (DP-AES         E0005T	Quality Control Sample Type	5	Count			Rate (%)		Quality Control Specification
bioline Control         EAR Solution Control         NEPM 2018 B3 & ALS OC Standard           AHIPhonols (SM)         EPOTS (SM)         2         0         10.000         ✓         NEPM 2018 B3 & ALS OC Standard           Standard Standard         EEO Standard           Standard         EEO Standard           Standard         EEO Standard           Standard         EEO Standard           Standard         EEO Standard           Standard         EEO Standard           Standard         EEO Standard           Standard         EEO Standard           Standard         EEO Standard           Standard         EEO Standard           Standard         EEO Standard           Standard         EEO Standard           Standard         EEO Standard           Standard         EEO Standard           Standard         EEO Standard            EEO Standard </th <th>Analytical Methods</th> <th>Method</th> <th>00</th> <th>Regular</th> <th>Actual</th> <th>Expected</th> <th>Evaluation</th> <th></th>	Analytical Methods	Method	00	Regular	Actual	Expected	Evaluation	
Disture Content         EADOS         2         20         10.00         ✓         NEPM 2018 B3 A.LS OC Standard           HPPhonols (SIM)         EP075(SIM)         2         20         10.00         ✓         NEPM 2018 B3 A.LS OC Standard           stal Metals by ICP-AES         EG005T         2         20         10.00         ✓         NEPM 2018 B3 A.LS OC Standard           stal Metals by ICP-AES         EG005T         2         20         10.00         ✓         NEPM 2018 B3 A.LS OC Standard           H* Semivatide Fraction         EE007         2         17         11.76         10.00         ✓         NEPM 2018 B3 A.LS OC Standard           Nationary Control Samples (LCS)         E0075         1         20         5.60         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2018 B3 A.LS OC Standard           Nationary Control Samples (LCS)         E0005T         1         20         5.60         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2018 B3 A.LS OC Standard           Nationary Control Samples (LCS)         E0005T         1         20         5.60         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2018 B3 A.LS OC Standard           Nationary DP INIS         E0005T         1         77         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2018 B3 A.LS OC Standard           Nationa	Laboratory Duplicates (DUP)							
AH-Phonols (SIM)         EEP0 7(SIM)         2         17         11.76         10.00         ✓         NEFM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           Datal Mercury by FMS         EG035T         2         20         10.00         ✓         NEFM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           Stal Mercury by FMS         EG005T         2         20         10.00         ✓         NEFM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           RH - Semivabilie Fraction         EP071         2         17         11.76         10.00         ✓         NEFM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           HVolatiles/BTEX         EP076         2         17         11.76         10.00         ✓         NEFM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           HVolatiles/BTEX         EP075(SIM)         1         17         15.86         S.00         ✓         NEFM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           Attal Metals by (CP-AES         EG005T         1         20         S.00         ✓         NEFM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           Attal Metals by (CP-AES         EG005T         1         20         S.00         ✓         NEFM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           Attal Metals by (CP-AES         EG005T         1         20         S.00         ✓         NEFM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           HVolates/BTEX         EP075(S	Moisture Content	EA055	2	20	10.00	10.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
bial Meala by ICP-AES       EG035T       2       20       10.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EG005T       2       20       10.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP070       2       17       11.76       10.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Volatiles/BTEX       EP070       2       17       11.76       10.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         And Paral Synchronic Simples (LCS)       Hermologi Simples (LCS)       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         Atal Meata by (DF-AES       EG035T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP075       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         HV Obales/BTEX       EP060       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         Hal Meauxy by FIMS       E0035T       1       20       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         Hal Meata by (CP-AES       E0005T       1       20       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B	PAH/Phenols (SIM)	EP075(SIM)	2	17	11.76	10.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
blal Metals by (CP-AES         EG005T         2         20         10.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH Volatiles/BTEX         EP006         2         17         11.76         10.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH Volatiles/BTEX         EP008         2         17         11.76         10.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Abbratory Control Samples (LCS)         #         #         #         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Atal Mecury by FIMS         EE0035T         1         20         5.00         \$         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Atal Mecury by FIMS         EE0035T         1         20         5.00         \$         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Atal Mecury by FIMS         EE0035T         1         20         5.00         \$         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Ath Volatiles/BTEX         EP006         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Ath Volatiles/BTEX         EP006         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Ath Mecury by FIMS         EG035T         1         20         <	Total Mercury by FIMS	EG035T	2	20	10.00	10.00	5	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
RH - Semivalitie Fraction         EPO71         2         17         11.76         10.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           RH Volatiles/BTEX         EPO80         2         17         11.76         10.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           MH/Phenols (SIM)         EPO75(SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           Jail Mercury by FIMS         EG005T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           AtH Semivolatile Fraction         EG005T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           AtH Semivolatile Fraction         EPO71         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           AtH Semivolatile Fraction         EPO75(SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           AtH Mercury by FIMS         E0035T         1         20         5.00         S.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard           AtH Mercury by FIMS         E0035T         1         20         5.00         S.00         ✓	Total Metals by ICP-AES	EG005T	2	20	10.00	10.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
RH Volailes/BTEX       EP080       2       17       11.76       10.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         aboratory Control Samples (LCS)           NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         AtH Menois (SIM)       EG035T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         stal Metais by ICP-AES       EG035T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH Volailies/BTEX       EG035T       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH Volailies/BTEX       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH Volailies/BTEX       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         AtH Volailies/BTEX       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         AtH Volailies/BTEX       EG035T       1       20       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         Atl Metais by (CPAES       EG035T       1       20       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standar	TRH - Semivolatile Fraction	EP071	2	17	11.76	10.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
becatory Control Samples (LCS)           HiPPenois (SIM)         EP075(SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Jtal Mercury by FIMS         EG035T         1         20         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Jtal Metals by ICP-AES         EG005T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH > Semivolatile Fraction         EP071         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH > Semivolatile Fraction         EP071         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH > Semivolatile Fraction         EP075(SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Attal Metals by ICP-AES         EG035T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Attal Metals by ICP-AES         EG035T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Attal Metals by ICP-AES         EG035T         1         20 <t< td=""><td>TRH Volatiles/BTEX</td><td>EP080</td><td>2</td><td>17</td><td>11.76</td><td>10.00</td><td>1</td><td>NEPM 2013 B3 &amp; ALS QC Standard</td></t<>	TRH Volatiles/BTEX	EP080	2	17	11.76	10.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
AH/Phenois (SIM)         EP075 (SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           btal Mercury by FIMS         EG035T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH - Semivolatile Fraction         EG035T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH - Semivolatile Fraction         EP071         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH - Semivolatile Fraction         EP076         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           AH/Phenots (SIM)         EP075 (SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Atl Mercury by FIMS         EG035T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Atl Mercury by FIMS         EG035T         1         20         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Ath Metals/BEK         E0005T         1         20         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard <td>Laboratory Control Samples (LCS)</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	Laboratory Control Samples (LCS)							
blail Mercury by FIMS       EG035T       1       20       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard         Natal Metals by ICP-AES       EC005T       1       20       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard         RH + Semivolatile Fraction       EP071       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard         RH + Volatiles/BTEX       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard         ethod Blanks (MB)        #HOPEnols (SIM)       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard         stal Metals by ICP-AES       EC005T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard         stal Metals by ICP-AES       EC005T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard         stal Metals by ICP-AES       EC005T       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard         stal Metals by ICP-AES       EC005T       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard         stal Metals by ICP-AES       EC005T       1       17 <td>PAH/Phenols (SIM)</td> <td>EP075(SIM)</td> <td>1</td> <td>17</td> <td>5.88</td> <td>5.00</td> <td>1</td> <td>NEPM 2013 B3 &amp; ALS QC Standard</td>	PAH/Phenols (SIM)	EP075(SIM)	1	17	5.88	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
tail Metals by ICP-AES       EG0057       1       20       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2018 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP071       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP070       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH/Denots (SIM)       EP075(SIM)       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         AtI/Penots (SIM)       EP075(SIM)       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         stal Metals by ICP-AES       EG0057       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         stal Metals by ICP-AES       EG0057       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP071       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         atl Metals by ICP-AES       EG0057       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         stal Metals by ICP-AES       EG0057       1       2	Total Mercury by FIMS	EG035T	1	20	5.00	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
RH - Semivolatile Fraction         EP071         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH Volatiles/BTEX         EP060         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           ethod Blanks (MB)         EP075(SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           stal Metals by ICP-AES         EG005T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH - Semivolatile Fraction         EP075(SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH - Semivolatile Fraction         EP071         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH - Semivolatile Fraction         EP076(SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH Phenols (SIM)         EP076(SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           stal Mercury by FIMS         EG035T         1         20         5.00         5.00	Total Metals by ICP-AES	EG005T	1	20	5.00	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
RH Volatiles/BTEX         EP080         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           efford Elanks (ME)             NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           AH/Phenols (SIM)         EP075(SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Atal Metals by ICP-AES         EG005T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH - Semivolatile Fraction         EP071         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           aftx Splase (MS)         EP075(SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Atl Metals by ICP-AES         EP080         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           Atl Volatilies/BTEX         EP080         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           atl Metals by ICP-AES         EE0035T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard	TRH - Semivolatile Fraction	EP071	1	17	5.88	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
ethod Blanks (MB)         EP075(SIM)         I         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           AH/Phenols (SIM)         EG035T         1         20         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           otal Mercury by FIMS         EG035T         1         20         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH - Semivolatile Fraction         EP071         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH volatiles/BTEX         EP080         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           atix Spikes (MS)         EP075(SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           atix Spikes (MS)         EP075(SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           atal Metals by ICP-AES         EG035T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           atal Metals by ICP-AES         EG035T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard <t< td=""><td>TRH Volatiles/BTEX</td><td>EP080</td><td>1</td><td>17</td><td>5.88</td><td>5.00</td><td>5</td><td>NEPM 2013 B3 &amp; ALS QC Standard</td></t<>	TRH Volatiles/BTEX	EP080	1	17	5.88	5.00	5	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
AH/Phenols (SIM)         EP075(SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           btal Metals by ICP-AES         EG035T         1         20         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           AH/Phenols (SIM)         EG005T         1         20         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           AH- Semviolatile Fraction         ED071         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           RH Volatiles/BTEX         EP080         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           attrix Spikes (MS)         EP075(SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           attrix Spikes (MS)         EP075(SIM)         1         17         5.88         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           atl Metals by ICP-AES         EG005T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard           3tl Metals by ICP-AES         EG005T         1         20         5.00         5.00         ✓         NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard	Method Blanks (MB)							
ball Mercury by FIMS       EG035T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EG005T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP071       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Volatiles/BTEX       EP070       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         atix Spikes (MS)       atix Spikes (MS)        11       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         atal Mercury by FIMS       EG035T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         atal Mercury by FIMS       EG035T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         atal Metals by ICP-AES       EG005T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP071       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatiles/BTEX       E	PAH/Phenols (SIM)	EP075(SIM)	1	17	5.88	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
bala Metals by ICP-AES       EG005T       1       20       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP071       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH Volatiles/BTEX       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         atfx Spikes (MS)       Att/Phenols (SIM)       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         atfx Spikes (MS)       Att/Phenols (SIM)       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         atfx Spikes (MS)       E0035T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         atl Metals by ICP-AES       EG005T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EG005T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Valtiles/BTEX       EP0701       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         atl Volatiles/BTEX       EP0800       1       17	Total Mercury by FIMS	EG035T	1	20	5.00	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP071       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH Volatiles/BTEX       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         atrix Spikes (MS)          117       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         AH/Phenols (SIM)        EP075(SIM)       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         Atal Metals by ICP-AES       EG0057       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         AtH Volatiles/BTEX       EG0057       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         AtH Volatiles/BTEX       EG0057       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH Volatiles/BTEX       EP0701       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH Volatiles/BTEX       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH Volatiles/BTEX       Evaluation       Couru	Total Metals by ICP-AES	EG005T	1	20	5.00	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
RH Volatiles/BTEX       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         atrix Spikes (MS)       AH/Phenols (SIM)       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         AH/Phenols (SIM)       EG035T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         stal Mercury by FIMS       EG035T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         atal Metals by ICP-AES       EG005T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP075(SIM)       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH volatiles/BTEX       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH volatiles/BTEX       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH volatiles/BTEX       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH volatiles/BTEX       Ecount       Evaluation <td< td=""><td>TRH - Semivolatile Fraction</td><td>EP071</td><td>1</td><td>17</td><td>5.88</td><td>5.00</td><td>1</td><td>NEPM 2013 B3 &amp; ALS QC Standard</td></td<>	TRH - Semivolatile Fraction	EP071	1	17	5.88	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
atrix Spikes (MS)         AH/Phenols (SIM)       EP075(SIM)       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         otal Mercury by FIMS       EG035T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         otal Metals by ICP-AES       EG005T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP071       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP071       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP071       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH volatiles/BTEX       Evaluation: × = Quality Control frequency not within specification : ✓ = Quality Control frequency within specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification       ✓       Quality Control Specification         rativitical Methods       Method       OC       Renular       Actual       Evaluation	TRH Volatiles/BTEX	EP080	1	17	5.88	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
AH/Phenols (SIM)       EP075(SIM)       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         otal Mercury by FIMS       EG035T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         otal Metals by ICP-AES       EG005T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP071       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP071       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH Volatiles/BTEX       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         ttrix: WATER       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         altry Control Sample Type       Count       Rate (%)       Quality Control frequency not within specification : ✓ = Quality Control frequency within specification         altry Control Sample Type       Count       Rate (%)       Quality Control Specification         solved Mercury by FIMS       EG035F       2       20       10.00       In 0.00       <	Matrix Spikes (MS)							
botal Mercury by FIMS       EG035T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         otal Metals by ICP-AES       EG005T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP071       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH Volatiles/BTEX       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         attrix: WATER       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         valvtical Methods       Ev080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         valvtical Methods       Ev0800       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         vboratory Duplicates (DUP)       Evaluation: * = Quality Control frequency within specification       ✓ = Quality Control Specification         solved Mercury by FIMS       EG020A-F       2       20       10.00       10.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         solved Mercury by FIMS (GC/MS - Suite A       EG020A-F       2       8 <t< td=""><td>PAH/Phenols (SIM)</td><td>EP075(SIM)</td><td>1</td><td>17</td><td>5.88</td><td>5.00</td><td>1</td><td>NEPM 2013 B3 &amp; ALS QC Standard</td></t<>	PAH/Phenols (SIM)	EP075(SIM)	1	17	5.88	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
botal Metals by ICP-AES       EG005T       1       20       5.00       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP071       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH Volatiles/BTEX       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         atrix: WATER       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         vality Control Sample Type       Count       Evaluation: * = Quality Control frequency not within specification : ✓ = Quality Control frequency within specification       ✓       Quality Control Specification         valvtical Methods       Method       QC       Renular       Actual       Expected       Evaluation         solved Mercury by FIMS       EG035F       2       20       10.00       10.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         solved Mercury by FIMS - Suite A       EG020A-F       2       8       25.00       10.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         \H/Phenols (GC/MS - SIM)       EP075/SIM       0       7       0.00       10.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard	Total Mercury by FIMS	EG035T	1	20	5.00	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
RH - Semivolatile Fraction       EP071       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         RH Volatiles/BTEX       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         atrix: WATER       Evaluation: ★ = Quality Control frequency not within specification : ✓ = Quality Control frequency within specification : ✓ = Quality Control frequency within specification : ✓ = Quality Control frequency within specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control Specification : ✓ = Quality Control	Total Metals by ICP-AES	EG005T	1	20	5.00	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
RH Volatiles/BTEX       EP080       1       17       5.88       5.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         atrix: WATER       Evaluation: ≠ = Quality Control frequency not within specification : ✓ = Quality Control frequency within specification : ✓ = Quality Control frequency within specification : ✓ = Quality Control frequency within specification         atrix: WATER       Evaluation: ★ = Quality Control frequency within specification : ✓ = Quality Control frequency within specification         uality Control Sample Type       Count       Rate (%)       Quality Control Specification         palytical Methods       Method       QC       Regular       Expected       Evaluation         bioratory Duplicates (DUP)       solved Mercury by FIMS       EG035F       2       20       10.00       10.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         solved Metals by ICP-MS - Suite A       EG020A-F       2       8       25.00       10.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard         \H/Phenols (GC/MS - SIM)       EP075/SIM)       0       7       0.00       10.00       ✓       NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard	TRH - Semivolatile Fraction	EP071	1	17	5.88	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
atrix: WATER Evaluation: ¥ = Quality Control frequency not within specification : ✓ = Quality Control frequency within specification : ✓ = Quality Control frequency within specification : ✓ = Quality Control frequency within specification nalvitical Methods <u>OC</u> Repulsar Actual Expected Evaluation Quality Control Specification solved Methods <u>COUNT</u> <u>Repulsar</u> Actual Expected Evaluation <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u> <u>COUNT</u>	TRH Volatiles/BTEX	EP080	1	17	5.88	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
altix Control Sample Type Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Count Cou	ANTER				Evoluatio		ntrol frequency	not within exectification : Z = Quality Control frequency within exectific
Count     Count     Rate (%)     Regular     Rate (%)     Count     Count<	Quality Control Sample Type			Count	Lvaluatio	Data (%)	neor nequency	Ouslity Control Constitution
Aboratory Duplicates (DUP)     Excelored     NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard       issolved Mercury by FIMS     EG035F     2     20     10.00     10.00     NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard       ssolved Metals by ICP-MS - Suite A     EG020A-F     2     8     25.00     10.00     NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard       \H/Phenols (GC/MS - SIM)     EP075/SIM)     0     7     0.00     10.00     NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard	Analytical Methods	Method	00	Regular	Actual	Expected	Evaluation	Quanty Control Specification
Bioladiy Diplicates (DOP)         End of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second processing of the second procesing of the second processing of the second procesing of	Laboratani Dunlicatan (DUD)				Hottu	LABOULOU		
Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction         Construction	Dissolved Mercury by FIMS	EG035E	2	20	10.00	10.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
AH/Phenols (GC/MS - SIM) EP075(SIM) 0 7 0.00 10.00 PM NEW 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard	Dissolved Metals by ICP-MS - Suite A	EG020A-E	2	8	25.00	10.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
	PAH/Phenols (GC/MS - SIM)	EP075/SIM)	0	7	0.00	10.00		NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
RH - Semivolatile Fraction FP071 0 7 0.00 10.00 NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard	TRH - Semivolatile Fraction	EP071	0	7	0.00	10.00	~	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
RH Volatiles/BTEX FPOR0 2 19 10.53 10.00 V NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard	TRH Volatiles/BTEX	EP071	2	19	10.53	10.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
	Laboratani Cantral Samalan // CS)							
Boltatory Control Gamples (ECO) Solved Mercury by FIMS ECO35E 1 20 5.00 5.00 ✓ NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard	Dissolved Mercury by FIMS	EG035E	1	20	5.00	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard

# Page : 7 of 9 Work Order : EM1717027 Client : GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS Project : Gorringe



Matrix: WATER				Evaluatio	n: × = Quality Co	entrol frequency	not within specification ; 🖌 = Quality Control frequency within specification
Quality Control Sample Type		Count		Rate (%)			Quality Control Specification
Analvtical Methods	Method	00	Regular	Actual	Expected	Evaluation	
Laboratory Control Samples (LCS) - Continued							
Dissolved Metals by ICP-MS - Suite A	EG020A-F	1	8	12.50	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
PAH/Phenols (GC/MS - SIM)	EP075(SIM)	1	7	14.29	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
TRH - Semivolatile Fraction	EP071	1	7	14.29	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
TRH Volatiles/BTEX	EP080	1	19	5.26	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Method Blanks (MB)							
Dissolved Mercury by FIMS	EG035F	1	20	5.00	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Dissolved Metals by ICP-MS - Suite A	EG020A-F	1	8	12.50	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
PAH/Phenols (GC/MS - SIM)	EP075(SIM)	1	7	14.29	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
TRH - Semivolatile Fraction	EP071	1	7	14.29	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
TRH Volatiles/BTEX	EP080	1	19	5.26	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Matrix Spikes (MS)							
Dissolved Mercury by FIMS	EG035F	1	20	5.00	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Dissolved Metals by ICP-MS - Suite A	EG020A-F	1	8	12.50	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
PAH/Phenols (GC/MS - SIM)	EP075(SIM)	0	7	0.00	5.00	*	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
TRH - Semivolatile Fraction	EP071	0	7	0.00	5.00	*	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
TRH Volatiles/BTEX	EP080	1	19	5.26	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard

Page	: 8 of 9
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	; Gorringe



### **Brief Method Summaries**

The analytical procedures used by the Environmental Division have been developed from established internationally recognized procedures such as those published by the US EPA, APHA, AS and NEPM. In house developed procedures are employed in the absence of documented standards or by client request. The following report provides brief descriptions of the analytical procedures employed for results reported in the Certificate of Analysis. Sources from which ALS methods have been developed are provided within the Method Descriptions.

Analytical Methods	Method	Matrix	Method Descriptions
Moisture Content	EA055	SOIL	In house: A gravimetric procedure based on weight loss over a 12 hour drying period at 105-110 degrees C. This method is compliant with NEPM (2013) Schedule B(3) Section 7.1 and Table 1 (14 day holding time).
Total Metals by ICP-AES	EG005T	SOIL	In house: Referenced to APHA 3120; USEPA SW 846 - 6010. Metals are determined following an appropriate acid digestion of the soil. The ICPAES technique ionises samples in a plasma, emitting a characteristic spectrum based on metals present. Intensities at selected wavelengths are compared against those of matrix matched standards. This method is compliant with NEPM (2013) Schedule B(3)
Total Mercury by FIMS	EG035T	SOIL	In house: Referenced to AS 3550, APHA 3112 Hg - B (Flow-injection (SnCl2) (Cold Vapour generation) AAS) FIM-AAS is an automated flameless atomic absorption technique. Mercury in solids are determined following an appropriate acid digestion. Ionic mercury is reduced online to atomic mercury vapour by SnCl2 which is then purged into a heated quartz cell. Quantification is by comparing absorbance against a calibration curve. This method is compliant with NEPM (2013) Schedule B(3)
TRH - Semivolatile Fraction	EP071	SOIL	In house: Referenced to USEPA SW 846 - 8015A Sample extracts are analysed by Capillary GC/FID and quantified against alkane standards over the range C10 - C40. Compliant with NEPM amended 2013.
PAH/Phenols (SIM)	EP075(SIM)	SOIL	In house: Referenced to USEPA SW 846 - 8270D. Extracts are analysed by Capillary GC/MS in Selective Ion Mode (SIM) and quantification is by comparison against an established 5 point calibration curve. This method is compliant with NEPM (2013) Schedule B(3) (Method 502 and 507)
TRH Volatiles/BTEX	EP080	SOIL	In house: Referenced to USEPA SW 846 - 8260B. Extracts are analysed by Purge and Trap, Capillary GC/MS. Quantification is by comparison against an established 5 point calibration curve. Compliant with NEPM amended 2013.
Dissolved Metals by ICP-MS - Suite A	EG020A-F	WATER	In house: Referenced to APHA 3125; USEPA SW846 - 6020, ALS QWI-EN/EG020. Samples are 0.45µm filtered prior to analysis. The ICPMS technique utilizes a highly efficient argon plasma to ionize selected elements. Ions are then passed into a high vacuum mass spectrometer, which separates the analytes based on their distinct mass to charge ratios prior to their measurement by a discrete dynode ion detector.
Dissolved Mercury by FIMS	EG035F	WATER	In house: Referenced to AS 3550, APHA 3112 Hg - B (Flow-injection (SnCl2)(Cold Vapour generation) AAS) Samples are 0.45µm filtered prior to analysis. FIM-AAS is an automated flameless atomic absorption technique. A bromate/bromide reagent is used to oxidise any organic mercury compounds in the filtered sample. The ionic mercury is reduced online to atomic mercury vapour by SnCl2 which is then purged into a heated quartz cell. Quantification is by comparing absorbance against a calibration curve. This method is compliant with NEPM (2013) Schedule B(3)
TRH - Semivolatile Fraction	EP071	WATER	In house: Referenced to USEPA SW 846 - 8015A The sample extract is analysed by Capillary GC/FID and quantification is by comparison against an established 5 point calibration curve of n-Alkane standards. This method is compliant with the QC requirements of NEPM (2013) Schedule B(3)
PAH/Phenols (GC/MS - SIM)	EP075(SIM)	WATER	In house: Referenced to USEPA SW 846 - 8270D Sample extracts are analysed by Capillary GC/MS in SIM Mode and quantification is by comparison against an established 5 point calibration curve. This method is compliant with NEPM (2013) Schedule B(3)





Analytical Methods	Method	Matrix	Method Descriptions
TRH Volatiles/BTEX	EP080	WATER	In house: Referenced to USEPA SW 846 - 8260B Water samples are directly purged prior to analysis by Capillary GC/MS and quantification is by comparison against an established 5 point calibration curve. Alternatively, a sample is equilibrated in a headspace vial and a portion of the headspace determined by GCMS analysis. This method is compliant with the QC requirements of NEPM (2013) Schedule B(3)
Preparation Methods	Method	Matrix	Method Descriptions
Hot Block Digest for metals in soils sediments and sludges	EN69	SOIL	In house: Referenced to USEPA 200.2. Hot Block Acid Digestion 1.0g of sample is heated with Nitric and Hydrochloric acids, then cooled. Peroxide is added and samples heated and cooled again before being filtered and bulked to volume for analysis. Digest is appropriate for determination of selected metals in sludge, sediments, and soils. This method is compliant with NEPM (2013) Schedule B(3) (Method 202)
Methanolic Extraction of Soils for Purge and Trap	ORG16	SOIL	In house: Referenced to USEPA SW 846 - 5030A. 5g of solid is shaken with surrogate and 10mL methanol prior to analysis by Purge and Trap - GC/MS.
Tumbler Extraction of Solids	ORG17	SOIL	In house: Mechanical agitation (tumbler). 10g of sample, Na2SO4 and surrogate are extracted with 30mL 1:1 DCM/Acetone by end over end tumble. The solvent is decanted, dehydrated and concentrated (by KD) to the desired volume for analysis.
Separatory Funnel Extraction of Liquids	ORG14	WATER	In house: Referenced to USEPA SW 846 - 3510B 100 mL to 1L of sample is transferred to a separatory funnel and serially extracted three times using 60mL DCM for each extract. The resultant extracts are combined, dehydrated and concentrated for analysis. This method is compliant with NEPM (2013) Schedule B(3). ALS default excludes sediment which may be resident in the container.
Volatiles Water Preparation	ORG16-W	WATER	A 5 mL aliquot or 5 mL of a diluted sample is added to a 40 mL VOC vial for sparging.

Environmental Site Assessment. 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart. December 2017



# QUALITY CONTROL REPORT

Work Order	: EM1717330	Page	: 1 of 7
Client Contact Address	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS : KRIS TAYLOR : 29 KIRKSWAY PLACE BATTERY POINT TASMANIA AUSTRALIA 7004	Laboratory Contact Address	: Environmental Division Melbourne : Shirley LeCornu : 4 Westall Rd Springvale VIC Australia 3171
Telephone Project Order number C-O-C number Sampler Site Quote number No. of samples received No. of samples analysed	: +61 03 6223 1839 : Gorringe : : : AARON PLUMMER : : EN/222/17 : 1	Telephone Date Samples Received Date Analysis Commenced Issue Date	: +61-3-8549 9630 : 12-Dec-2017 : 12-Dec-2017 : 19-Dec-2017

This report supersedes any previous report(s) with this reference. Results apply to the sample(s) as submitted. This document shall not be reproduced, except in full. This Quality Control Report contains the following information:

- Laboratory Duplicate (DUP) Report; Relative Percentage Difference (RPD) and Acceptance Limits
- Method Blank (MB) and Laboratory Control Spike (LCS) Report; Recovery and Acceptance Limits
- Matrix Spike (MS) Report; Recovery and Acceptance Limits

### Signatories

This document has been electronically signed by the authorized signatories below. Electronic signing is carried out in compliance with procedures specified in 21 CFR Part 11.

Signatories	Position	Accreditation Category
Nancy Wang	2IC Organic Chemist	Melbourne Organics, Springvale, VIC
Nikki Stepniewski	Senior Inorganic Instrument Chemist	Melbourne Inorganics, Springvale, VIC

# RIGHT SOLUTIONS | RIGHT PARTNER

Page	: 2 of 7
Work Order	: EM1717330
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



Key :

The analytical procedures used by the Environmental Division have been developed from established internationally recognized procedures such as those published by the USEPA, APHA, AS and NEPM. In house developed procedures are employed in the absence of documented standards or by client request.

Where moisture determination has been performed, results are reported on a dry weight basis.

Where a reported less than (<) result is higher than the LOR, this may be due to primary sample extract/digestate dilution and/or insufficient sample for analysis. Where the LOR of a reported result differs from standard LOR, this may be due to high

Anonymous = Refers to samples which are not specifically part of this work order but formed part of the QC process lot CAS Number = CAS registry number from database maintained by Chemical Abstracts Services. The Chemical Abstracts Service is a division of the American Chemical Society. LOR = Limit of reporting RPD = Relative Percentage Difference

# = Indicates failed QC

### Laboratory Duplicate (DUP) Report

The quality control term Laboratory Duplicate refers to a randomly selected intralaboratory split. Laboratory duplicates provide information regarding method precision and sample heterogeneity. The permitted ranges for the Relative Percent Deviation (RPD) of Laboratory Duplicates are specified in ALS Method QWI-EN/38 and are dependent on the magnitude of results in comparison to the level of reporting: Result < 10 times LOR: No Limit; Result between 10 and 20 times LOR: 0% - 50%; Result > 20 times LOR: 0% - 20%.

Sub-Matrix: SOIL		Laboratory Duplicate (DUP) Report							
Laboratory sample ID	Clienz sample ID	Method: Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Uniz	Original Result	Duplicate Result	RPD (%)	Recovery Limits (%)
EA055: Moisture Co	ntent (Dried @ 105-110°C)	(QC Lot: 1323072)							
EM1717330-001	Duplicate	EA055: Moisture Content		1	%	20.5	19.8	3.64	0% - 20%
EG005T: Total Metal	s by ICP-AES (QC Lot: 132	2930)							
EM1717311-011	Anonymous	EG005T: Beryllium	7440-41-7	1	mg/kg	<1	<1	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Cadmium	7440-43-9	1	mg/kg	<1	<1	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Barium	7440-39-3	10	mg/kg	60	50	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Chromium	7440-47-3	2	mg/kg	20	20	0.00	0% - 50%
		EG005T: Cobalt	7440-48-4	2	mg/kg	6	6	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Nickel	7440-02-0	2	mg/kg	8	8	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Arsenic	7440-38-2	5	mg/kg	14	14	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Copper	7440-50-8	5	mg/kg	36	32	12.9	No Limit
		EG005T: Lead	7439-92-1	5	mg/kg	58	55	5.30	0% - 50%
		EG005T: Manganese	7439-96-5	5	mg/kg	208	223	6.72	0% - 20%
		EG005T: Selenium	7782-49-2	5	mg/kg	<5	<5	0.00	No Limit
		EG005T: Vanadium	7440-62-2	5	mg/kg	24	23	5.05	No Limit
		EG005T: Zinc	7440-66-6	5	mg/kg	194	213	9.41	0% - 20%
		EG005T: Boron	7440-42-8	50	mg/kg	<50	<50	0.00	No Limit
EG035T: Total Reco	verable Mercury by FIMS (	QC Lot: 1322931)							
EM1717311-011	Anonymous	EG035T: Mercury	7439-97-6	0.1	mg/kg	<0.1	<0.1	0.00	No Limit
EP075(SIM)B: Polyn	uclear Aromatic Hydrocarb	ons (QC Lot: 1322995)							
EM1717330-001	Duplicate	EP075(SIM): Naphthalene	91-20-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Acenaphthylene	208-96-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Acenaphthene	83-32-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Fluorene	86-73-7	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Phenanthrene	85-01-8	0.5	mg/kg	0.8	0.6	21.0	No Limit

Page Work Order Client Project	: 3 of 7 : EM1717330 : GEO-ENVIRONMEI : Gorringe	NTAL SOLUTIONS							ALS
Sub-Matric: SOIL			Γ			Laboratory	Duplicate (DUP) Report	i	
Laboratory sample ID	Client sample ID	Method: Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Uniz	Original Result	Duplicate Result	RPD (%)	Recovery Limits (%)
EP075(SIM)B: Polyr	uclear Aromatic Hydro	carbons (QC Lot: 1322995) - continued							
EM1717330-001	Duplicate	EP075(SIM): Anthracene	120-12-7	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
	an anti-contracto	EP075(SIM): Fluoranthene	208-44-0	0.5	mg/kg	2.4	1.9	23.5	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Pyrene	129-00-0	0.5	mg/kg	2.7	2.1	25.0	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Benz(s)anthracene	56-55-3	0.5	mg/kg	1.8	1.3	27.5	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Chrysene	218-01-9	0.5	mg/kg	1.6	1.2	29.6	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Benzo(b+j)fluoranthene	205-99-2 205-82-3	0.5	mg/kg	2.2	1.7	25.3	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Benzo(k)fluoranthene	207-08-9	0.5	mg/kg	1.0	0.6	41.1	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Benzo(a)pyrene	50-32-8	0.5	mg/kg	1.8	1.3	32.0	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene	193-39-5	0.5	mg/kg	1.0	0.7	35.4	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Dibenz(a.h)anthracene	53-70-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP075(SIM): Benzo(g.h.i)perylene	191-24-2	0.5	mg/kg	1.1	0.8	31.7	No Limit
EP080/071: Total Pe	troleum Hydrocarbons	(QC Lot: 1320673)							
EM1716847-048	Anonymous	EP080: C8 - C9 Fraction		10	mg/kg	<10	<10	0.00	No Limit
EM1717328-001	Anonymous	EP080: C6 - C9 Fraction		10	mg/kg	<10	<10	0.00	No Limit
EP080/071: Total Pe	troleum Hydrocarbons	(QC Lot: 1322994)						1002-10700	
EM1717330-001	Duplicate	EP071: C15 - C28 Eraction		100	ma/ka	<100	<100	0.00	No Limit
2000-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00		EP071: C29 - C36 Eraction		100	ma/ka	<100	<100	0.00	No Limit
		EP071: C10 - C14 Fraction		50	ma/ka	<50	<50	0.00	No Limit
		EP071: C10 - C38 Fraction (sum)		50	ma/ka	<50	<50	0.00	No Limit
EP080/071: Total Re	coverable Hydrocarbo	ns - NEPM 2013 Fractions (QC Lot: 1320673)		in the second		and a second			
EM1716847-048	Aponymous	EP090: C8 C10 Erection	08 C10	10	malka	<10	<10	0.00	No Limit
EM1717328-001	Anonymous	EP080: C6 - C10 Fraction	C8 C10	10	ma/ka	<10	<10	0.00	No Limit
EP020/071: Total R	eoverable Hydrocarbo	ns - NEPM 2013 Eractions //OC Lat: 12229941	00_0101	10		-10		0.00	ito Ennit
EM4747220 004	Dunlianta	ED074 2019 11801015 (QC LOC 1322334)		100	een/ke	120	<100	14.5	No Limit
LINT/1/330-001	Doplicate	EP071: 2010 - 034 Praction		100	marka	<100	<100	0.00	No Limit
		EP071, 2034 - 040 FISCION	1.1 <u>.1.1.1</u>	50	mo/ko	<50	<50	0.00	No Limit
		EP071: >C10 - C10 Fraction		50	marka	120	<50	87.4	No Limit
EDAGA, DTEXN (OC	1 -4- 42200723	EP071: 2010 - 040 Praction (sum)	Statistics of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the loca		mg ng				rio Linit
EP080: BTEAN (QC	Apprugate		71.42.2	0.2	ma/ka	<0.2	20.2	0.00	No Limit
EN11/1004/-040	Anonymous	EPUSO: Benzene	100.00.2	0.2	mg/kg	×0.2	<0.2	0.00	No Linit
		EP080: Toluene	100-00-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EPUSO: Ethylbenzene	100-41-4	0.0	mg/kg	×0.0	×0.0	0.00	No Limit
		EP080: meta- & para-Xylene	108-38-3	0.0	mgvkg	~0.0	50.0	0.00	NO LIMIL
		EP080: ortho-Xylene	95-47-6	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP080: Naphthalene	91-20-3	1	mg/kg	<1	<1	0.00	No Limit
EM1717328-001	Anonymous	EP080: Benzene	71-43-2	0.2	mg/kg	<0.2	<0.2	0.00	No Limit
		EP080: Toluene	108-88-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP080: Ethylbenzene	100-41-4	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit

Page Work Order Client Project	: 4 of 7 : EM1717330 : GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL S : Gominge	OLUTIONS							ALS
Sub-Matrix: SOIL						Laboratory D	uplicate (DUP) Report	r	
Laboratory sample ID	Clienz sample ID	Method: Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Uniz	Original Result	Duplicate Result	RPD (%)	Recovery Limits (%)
EP080: BTEXN (QC	Lot: 1320673) - continued								
EM1717328-001	Anonymous	EP080: meta- & para-Xylene	108-38-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
			108-42-3						
		EP080: ortho-Xylene	95-47-6	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	0.00	No Limit
		EP080: Naphthalene	91-20-3	1	mg/kg	<1	<1	0.00	No Limit

Page :	5 of 7
Work Order :	EM1717330
Client :	GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project :	Gorringe



### Method Blank (MB) and Laboratory Control Spike (LCS) Report

The quality control term Method / Laboratory Blank refers to an analyte free matrix to which all reagents are added in the same volumes or proportions as used in standard sample preparation. The purpose of this QC parameter is to monitor potential laboratory contamination. The quality control term Laboratory Control Spike (LCS) refers to a certified reference material, or a known interference free matrix spiked with target analytes. The purpose of this QC parameter is to monitor method precision and accuracy independent of sample matrix. Dynamic Recovery Limits are based on statistical evaluation of processed LCS.

Sub-Matrix: SOIL				Method Blank (MB)	Laboratory Control Spike (LCS) Report			
				Report	Spike	Spike Recovery (%)	Recovery	Limits (%)
Method: Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Uniz	Result	Concentration	LCS	Low	High
EG005T: Total Metals by ICP-AES (QCLot: 1322930)								
EG005T: Arsenic	7440-38-2	5	mg/kg	<5	21.7 mg/kg	86.4	79	113
EG005T: Barium	7440-39-3	10	mg/kg	<10	143 mg/kg	83.4	79	110
EG005T: Beryllium	7440-41-7	1	mg/kg	<1	5.63 mg/kg	92.5	85	120
EG005T: Boron	7440-42-8	50	mg/kg	<50	33.2 mg/kg	96.8	82	128
EG005T: Cadmium	7440-43-9	1	mg/kg	<1	4.64 mg/kg	94.3	85	109
EG005T: Chromium	7440-47-3	2	mg/kg	<2	43.9 mg/kg	90.7	83	109
EG005T: Cobalt	7440-48-4	2	mg/kg	<2	16 mg/kg	86.4	78	112
EG005T: Copper	7440-50-8	5	mg/kg	<5	32 mg/kg	82.9	78	108
EG005T: Lead	7439-92-1	5	mg/kg	<5	40 mg/kg	88.7	78	106
EG005T: Manganese	7439-96-5	5	mg/kg	<5	130 mg/kg	86.3	82	107
EG005T: Nickel	7440-02-0	2	mg/kg	<2	55 mg/kg	88.4	82	111
EG005T: Selenium	7782-49-2	5	mg/kg	<5	5.37 mg/kg	96.8	93	109
EG005T: Vanadium	7440-62-2	5	mg/kg	<5	29.6 mg/kg	84.9	8D	109
EG005T: Zinc	7440-66-6	5	mg/kg	<5	60.8 mg/kg	87.6	82	111
EG035T: Total Recoverable Mercury by FIMS (QCLo	t: 1322931)							
EG035T: Mercury	7439-97-6	0.1	mg/kg	<0.1	2.57 mg/kg	83.6	77	104
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons(	QCLot: 1322995)							
EP075(SIM): Naphthalene	91-20-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	96.4	75	131
EP075(SIM): Acenaphthylene	208-96-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	97.6	70	132
EP075(SIM): Acenaphthene	83-32-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	98.4	8D	128
EP075(SIM): Fluorene	86-73-7	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	108	70	128
EP075(SIM): Phenanthrene	85-01-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	104	8D	128
EP075(SIM): Anthracene	120-12-7	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	1.5 mg/kg	110	72	126
EP075(SIM): Fluoranthene	206-44-0	0.5	mg/kg	⊲0.5	3 mg/kg	111	70	128
EP075(SIM): Pyrene	129-00-0	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	115	8D	125
EP075(SIM): Benz(a)anthracene	56-55-3	0.5	mg/kg	⊲0.5	3 mg/kg	100	70	130
EP075(SIM): Chrysene	218-01-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	108	8D	128
EP075(SIM): Benzo(b+j)fluoranthene	205-99-2	0.5	mg/kg	⊲0.5	3 mg/kg	92.5	71	124
	205-82-3							
EP075(SIM): Benzo(k)fluoranthene	207-08-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	103	75	125
EP075(SIM): Benzo(a)pyrene	50-32-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	84.5	70	125
EP075(SIM): Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene	193-39-5	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	85.2	71	128
EP075(SIM): Dibenz(a.h)anthracene	53-70-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3 mg/kg	89.8	72	128
EP075(SIM): Benzo(g.h.i)perylene	191-24-2	0.5	mg/kg	⊲0.5	3 mg/kg	81.0	68	127

# Page : 6 of 7 Work Order : EM1717330 Client : GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS Project : Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL	Method Blank (MB) Laboratory Control Spike (LCS) Report							
		100		Report	Spike	Spike Recovery (%)	Recovery	Limits (%)
Method: Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	Result	Concentration	LCS	Low	High
EP080/071: Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (Q	CLot: 1320673)							
EP080: C6 - C9 Fraction		10	mg/kg	<10	36 mg/kg	86.8	70	127
EP080/071: Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (Q	CLot: 1322994)							
EP071: C10 - C14 Fraction		50	mg/kg	<50	806 mg/kg	95.1	80	120
EP071: C15 - C28 Fraction	<u>199</u>	100	mg/kg	<100	3006 mg/kg	98.2	84	115
EP071: C29 - C36 Fraction	<u>1947</u>	100	mg/kg	<100	1584 mg/kg	98.9	80	112
EP071: C10 - C36 Fraction (sum)		50	mg/kg	<50	2. <b></b> .		( <u></u> -)	
EP080/071: Total Recoverable Hydrocarbons -	NEPM 2013 Fractions (QCLo	t: 1320673)						
EP080: C8 - C10 Fraction	C6_C10	10	mg/kg	<10	45 mg/kg	84.6	68	125
EP080/071: Total Recoverable Hydrocarbons -	NEPM 2013 Fractions (QCLo	t: 1322994)						
EP071: >C10 - C16 Fraction	<u></u> [	50	mg/kg	<50	1160 mg/kg	96.8	83	117
EP071: >C16 - C34 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	3978 mg/kg	99.1	82	114
EP071: >C34 - C40 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	313 mg/kg	100	73	115
EP071: >C10 - C40 Fraction (sum)		50	mg/kg	<50	10 <del>000</del> 11	( <del></del> )	10 <del>001</del> 1	
EP080: BTEXN (QCLot: 1320673)								
EP080: Benzene	71-43-2	0.2	mg/kg	<0.2	2 mg/kg	88.1	74	124
EP080: Toluene	108-88-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	2 mg/kg	88.9	77	125
EP080: Ethylbenzene	100-41-4	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	2 mg/kg	85.8	73	125
EP080: meta- & para-Xylene	108-38-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	4 mg/kg	89.7	77	128
	108-42-3							
EP080: ortho-Xylene	95-47-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	2 mg/kg	92.9	81	128
EP080: Naphthalene	91-20-3	1	mg/kg	<1	0.5 mg/kg	81.0	66	130

### Matrix Spike (MS) Report

The quality control term Matrix Spike (MS) refers to an intralaboratory split sample spiked with a representative set of target analytes. The purpose of this QC parameter is to monitor potential matrix effects on analyte recoveries. Static Recovery Limits as per laboratory Data Quality Objectives (DQOs). Ideal recovery ranges stated may be waived in the event of sample matrix interference.

Sub-Matric SOIL	/b-Matric: SOIL			Maurix Spike (MS) Report					
		10		Spike	SpikeRecovery(%)	Recovery l	Limits (%)		
Laboratory sample ID	Client sample ID	Method: Compound	CAS Number	Concentration	MS	Low	High		
EG005T: Total Me	tals by ICP-AES (QCLot: 1322930)								
EM1717330-001	Duplicate	EG005T: Barium	7440-39-3	50 mg/kg	80.4	71	135		
		EG005T: Lead	7439-92-1	50 mg/kg	94.5	76	124		
EM1717330-001	Duplicate	EG005T: Arsenic	7440-38-2	50 mg/kg	98.6	78	124		
	- 142 - 142	EG005T: Beryllium	7440-41-7	50 mg/kg	101	85	125		
		EG005T: Cadmium	7440-43-9	50 mg/kg	92.4	84	118		
		EG005T: Chromium	7440-47-3	50 mg/kg	100	79	121		
		EG005T: Copper	7440-50-8	50 mg/kg	94.4	82	124		

# Page : 7 of 7 Work Order : EM1717330 Client : GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS Project : Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL				Mautx Spike (MS) Report				
				Spike	SpikeRecovery(%)	Recovery	Limius (%)	
Laboratory sample ID	Client sample ID	Method: Compound	CAS Number	Concentration	MS	Low	High	
EG005T: Total Met	als by ICP-AES (QCLot: 1322930) -	continued						
EM1717330-001 Duplicate		EG005T: Manganese	7439-96-5	50 mg/kg	# Not Determined	68	138	
		EG005T: Nickel	7440-02-0	50 mg/kg	90.4	78	120	
		EG005T: Selenium	7782-49-2	50 mg/kg	88.8	71	125	
		EG005T: Vanadium	7440-62-2	50 mg/kg	94.7	76	124	
		EG005T: Zinc	7440-66-6	50 mg/kg	84.6	74	128	
EG035T: Total Re	coverable Mercury by FIMS (QCLot	: 1322931)						
EM1717330-001	Duplicate	EG035T: Mercury	7439-97-6	5 mg/kg	97.6	76	116	
EP080/071: Total P	etroleum Hydrocarbons (QCLot: 13	320673)			1			
EM1716847-050	Anonymous	EP080: C6 - C9 Fraction	1777	28 mg/kg	67.8	42	131	
EP080/071: Total P	etroleum Hydrocarbons (QCLot: 13	322994)						
EM1717330-001	Duplicate	EP071: C10 - C14 Fraction		806 mg/kg	95.7	53	123	
	- 19	EP071: C15 - C28 Fraction	( <del>)</del>	3006 mg/kg	97.1	70	124	
		EP071: C29 - C36 Fraction	3 <del>7111</del>	1584 mg/kg	97.0	64	118	
EP080/071: Total F	ecoverable Hydrocarbons - NEPM 2	2013 Fractions (QCLot: 1320673)						
EM1716847-050	Anonymous	EP080: C6 - C10 Fraction	C8_C10	33 mg/kg	64.5	39	129	
EP080/071: Total F	tecoverable Hydrocarbons - NEPM 2	2013 Fractions (QCLot: 1322994)						
EM1717330-001	Duplicate	EP071: >C10 - C18 Fraction	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	1160 mg/kg	97.2	65	123	
		EP071: >C16 - C34 Fraction	222	3978 mg/kg	97.6	67	121	
		EP071: >C34 - C40 Fraction		313 mg/kg	94.4	44	126	
EP080: BTEXN (Q	CLot: 1320673)							
EM1716847-050	Anonymous	EP080: Benzene	71-43-2	2 mg/kg	81.2	50	136	
100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100		EP080: Toluene	108-88-3	2 mg/kg	85.7	58	139	



QA/QC Compliance Assessment to assist with Quality Review					
Work Order	EM1717330	Page	: 1 of 5		
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS	Laboratory	: Environmental Division Melbourne		
Contact	KRIS TAYLOR	Telephone	: +61-3-8549 9630		
Project	: Gorringe	Date Samples Received	: 12-Dec-2017		
Site	;	Issue Date	: 19-Dec-2017		
Sampler	: AARON PLUMMER	No. of samples received	:1		
Order number	:	No. of samples analysed	:1		

This report is automatically generated by the ALS LIMS through interpretation of the ALS Quality Control Report and several Quality Assurance parameters measured by ALS. This automated reporting highlights any non-conformances, facilitates faster and more accurate data validation and is designed to assist internal expert and external Auditor review. Many components of this report contribute to the overall DQO assessment and reporting for guideline compliance.

Brief method summaries and references are also provided to assist in traceability.

### Summary of Outliers

#### **Outliers : Quality Control Samples**

#### This report highlights outliers flagged in the Quality Control (QC) Report.

- <u>NO</u> Method Blank value outliers occur.
- <u>NO</u> Duplicate outliers occur.
- NO Laboratory Control outliers occur.
- Matrix Spike outliers exist please see following pages for full details.
- For all regular sample matrices, NO surrogate recovery outliers occur.

### **Outliers : Analysis Holding Time Compliance**

NO Analysis Holding Time Outliers exist.

### **Outliers : Frequency of Quality Control Samples**

• Quality Control Sample Frequency Outliers exist - please see following pages for full details.

# RIGHT SOLUTIONS | RIGHT PARTNER

Page	: 2 of 5
Work Order	: EM1717330
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



### **Outliers : Quality Control Samples**

Duplicates, Method Blanks, Laboratory Control Samples and Matrix Spikes

Matrix: SOIL

Compound Group Name	Laboratory Sample ID	Client Sample ID	Analyte	CAS Number	Data	Limits	Comment
Matrix Spike (MS) Recoveries							
EG005T: Total Metals by ICP-AES	EM1717330-001	Duplicate	Manganese	7430-98-5	Not Determined	3 <b></b> 7	MS recovery not determined, background level greater than or equal to 4x spike level.

### Outliers : Frequency of Quality Control Samples

2uality Control Sample Type	0	Count		≘ (%)	Quality Control Specification	
Method	QC	Regular	Actual	Expected	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
fatrix Spikes (MS)						
24LUObasala (CIM)	0	4	0.00	5.00	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS OC Standard	

### Analysis Holding Time Compliance

If samples are identified below as having been analysed or extracted outside of recommended holding times, this should be taken into consideration when interpreting results.

This report summarizes extraction / preparation and analysis times and compares each with ALS recommended holding times (referencing USEPA SW 846, APHA, AS and NEPM) based on the sample container provided. Dates reported represent first date of extraction or analysis and preclude subsequent dilutions and reruns. A listing of breaches (if any) is provided herein.

Holding time for leachate methods (e.g. TCLP) vary according to the analytes reported. Assessment compares the leach date with the shortest analyte holding time for the equivalent soil method. These are: organics 14 days, mercury 28 days & other metals 180 days. A recorded breach does not guarantee a breach for all non-volatile parameters.

Holding times for <u>VOC in soils</u> vary according to analytes of interest. Vinyl Chloride and Styrene holding time is 7 days; others 14 days. A recorded breach does not guarantee a breach for all VOC analytes and should be verified in case the reported breach is a false positive or Vinyl Chloride and Styrene are not key analytes of interest/concern.

Matrix: SOIL				Evaluation	n: x = Holding time	breach ; 🗹 = Withi	n holding time
Method	Sample Date	Extraction / Preparation				Analysis	
Container / Cilent Sample ID(s)		Date extracted	Due for extraction	Evaluation	Date analysed	Due for analysis	Evaluation
EA055: Moisture Content (Dried @ 105-110°C)					1	10	
Soil Glass Jar - Unpreserved (EA055) Duplicate	12-Dec-2017				18-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	~
EG005T: Total Metals by ICP-AES							
Soil Glass Jar - Unpreserved (EG005T) Duplicate	12-Dec-2017	18-Dec-2017	10-Jun-2018	1	18-Dec-2017	10-Jun-2018	1
EG035T: Total Recoverable Mercury by FIMS							
Soil Glass Jar - Unpreserved (EG035T) Duplicate	12-Dec-2017	18-Dec-2017	09-Jan-2018	1	18-Dec-2017	09-Jan-2018	~
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons							
Soil Glass Jar - Unpreserved (EP075(SIM)) Duplicate	12-Dec-2017	18-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	1	18-Dec-2017	27-Jan-2018	~
EP080/071: Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons							
Soil Glass Jar - Unpreserved (EP080) Duplicate	12-Dec-2017	12-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	1	14-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	1
Soil Glass Jar - Unpreserved (EP071) Duplicate	12-Dec-2017	18-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	1	18-Dec-2017	27-Jan-2018	1





Matric: SOIL				Evaluation	: 🗴 = Holding time	breach ; 🗸 = Withi	n holding time.	
Method	Sample Date	Extraction / Preparation			Analysis			
Container / Client Sample ID(s)		Date extracted	Due for extraction	Evaluation	Date analysed	Due for analysis	Evaluation	
EP080/071: Total Recoverable Hydrocarbons - NEPM 2013 Fractions								
Soil Glass Jar - Unpreserved (EP080) Duplicate	12-Dec-2017	12-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	~	14-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	~	
Soil Glass Jar - Unpreserved (EP071) Duplicate	12-Dec-2017	18-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	~	18-Dec-2017	27-Jan-2018	~	
EP080: BTEXN								
Soil Glass Jar - Unpreserved (EP080) Duplicate	12-Dec-2017	12-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	1	14-Dec-2017	26-Dec-2017	1	

Page	: 4 of 5
Work Order	: EM1717330
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



# **Quality Control Parameter Frequency Compliance**

The following report summarises the frequency of laboratory QC samples analysed within the analytical lot(s) in which the submitted sample(s) was(were) processed. Actual rate should be greater than or equal to the expected rate. A listing of breaches is provided in the Summary of Outliers.

Matrix: SOIL				Evaluation	n: 🗴 = Quality Co	introl frequency i	not within specification ; 🗸 = Quality Control frequency within specification.
Quality Control Sample Type		Co	ount		Rate (%)		Quality Control Specification
Analytical Methods	Method	QC	Reaular	Actual	Expected	Evaluation	
Laboratory Duplicates (DUP)							
Moisture Content	EA055	1	1	100.00	10.00	<ul> <li>Image: A set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the</li></ul>	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
PAH/Phenols (SIM)	EP075(SIM)	1	1	100.00	10.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Total Mercury by FIMS	EG035T	1	2	50.00	10.00	~	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Total Metals by ICP-AES	EG005T	1	2	50.00	10.00	<ul> <li>Image: A set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the</li></ul>	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
TRH - Semivolatile Fraction	EP071	1	2	50.00	10.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
TRH Volatiles/BTEX	EP080	2	17	11.76	10.00	~	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Laboratory Control Samples (LCS)							
PAH/Phenols (SIM)	EP075(SIM)	1	1	100.00	5.00	~	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Total Mercury by FIMS	EG035T	1	2	50.00	5.00	✓	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Total Metals by ICP-AES	EG005T	1	2	50.00	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
TRH - Semivolatile Fraction	EP071	1	2	50.00	5.00	~	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
TRH Volatiles/BTEX	EP080	1	17	5.88	5.00	<ul> <li>Image: A set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the</li></ul>	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Method Blanks (MB)							
PAH/Phenois (SIM)	EP075(SIM)	1	1	100.00	5.00	×	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Total Mercury by FIMS	EG035T	1	2	50.00	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Total Metals by ICP-AES	EG005T	1	2	50.00	5.00	~	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
TRH - Semivolatile Fraction	EP071	1	2	50.00	5.00	~	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
TRH Volatiles/BTEX	EP080	1	17	5.88	5.00	~	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Matrix Spikes (MS)							
PAH/Phenols (SIM)	EP075(SIM)	0	1	0.00	5.00	×	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Total Mercury by FIMS	EG035T	1	2	50.00	5.00	~	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
Total Metals by ICP-AES	EG005T	2	2	100.00	5.00	<ul> <li>Image: A set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the</li></ul>	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
TRH - Semivolatile Fraction	EP071	1	2	50.00	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard
TRH Volatiles/BTEX	EP080	1	17	5.88	5.00	1	NEPM 2013 B3 & ALS QC Standard

Page	: 5 of 5
Work Order	: EM1717330
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



# **Brief Method Summaries**

The analytical procedures used by the Environmental Division have been developed from established internationally recognized procedures such as those published by the US EPA, APHA, AS and NEPM. In house developed procedures are employed in the absence of documented standards or by client request. The following report provides brief descriptions of the analytical procedures employed for results reported in the Certificate of Analysis. Sources from which ALS methods have been developed are provided within the Method Descriptions.

Analytical Methods	Method	Matrix	Method Descriptions
Moisture Content	EA055	SOIL	In house: A gravimetric procedure based on weight loss over a 12 hour drying period at 105-110 degrees C. This method is compliant with NEPM (2013) Schedule B(3) Section 7.1 and Table 1 (14 day holding time).
Total Metals by ICP-AES	EG005T	SOIL	In house: Referenced to APHA 3120; USEPA SW 846 - 6010. Metals are determined following an appropriate acid digestion of the soil. The ICPAES technique ionises samples in a plasma, emitting a characteristic spectrum based on metals present. Intensities at selected wavelengths are compared against those of matrix matched standards. This method is compliant with NEPM (2013) Schedule B(3)
Total Mercury by FIMS	EG035T	SOIL	In house: Referenced to AS 3550, APHA 3112 Hg - B (Flow-injection (SnCl2) (Cold Vapour generation) AAS) FIM-AAS is an automated flameless atomic absorption technique. Mercury in solids are determined following an appropriate acid digestion. Ionic mercury is reduced online to atomic mercury vapour by SnCl2 which is then purged into a heated quartz cell. Quantification is by comparing absorbance against a calibration curve. This method is compliant with NEPM (2013) Schedule B(3)
TRH - Semivolatile Fraction	EP071	SOIL	In house: Referenced to USEPA SW 846 - 8015A Sample extracts are analysed by Capillary GC/FID and quantified against alkane standards over the range C10 - C40. Compliant with NEPM amended 2013.
PAH/Phenols (SIM)	EP075(SIM)	SOIL	In house: Referenced to USEPA SW 846 - 8270D. Extracts are analysed by Capillary GC/MS in Selective Ion Mode (SIM) and quantification is by comparison against an established 5 point calibration curve. This method is compliant with NEPM (2013) Schedule B(3) (Method 502 and 507)
TRH Volatiles/BTEX	EP080	SOIL	In house: Referenced to USEPA SW 846 - 8260B. Extracts are analysed by Purge and Trap, Capillary GC/MS. Quantification is by comparison against an established 5 point calibration curve. Compliant with NEPM amended 2013.
Preparation Methods	Method	Matrix	Method Descriptions
Hot Block Digest for metals in soils sediments and sludges	EN69	SOIL	In house: Referenced to USEPA 200.2. Hot Block Acid Digestion 1.0g of sample is heated with Nitric and Hydrochloric acids, then cooled. Peroxide is added and samples heated and cooled again before being filtered and bulked to volume for analysis. Digest is appropriate for determination of selected metals in sludge, sediments, and soils. This method is compliant with NEPM (2013) Schedule B(3) (Method 202)
Methanolic Extraction of Soils for Purge and Trap	ORG16	SOIL	In house: Referenced to USEPA SW 846 - 5030A. 5g of solid is shaken with surrogate and 10mL methanol prior to analysis by Purge and Trap - GC/MS.
Tumbler Extraction of Solids	ORG17	SOIL	In house: Mechanical agitation (tumbler). 10g of sample, Na2SO4 and surrogate are extracted with 30mL 1:1 DCM/Acetone by end over end tumble. The solvent is decanted, dehydrated and concentrated (by KD) to the desired volume for analysis.

# **Appendix 6 Soil Vapour Quality Control Documentation**

# SGS

Report N*: M171189

#### QUALIFIERS / NOTES FOR REPORTED RESULTS

- FOI Practical Quantitation (2011)
- nd Not Detected The analytic was not detected above the reported FQL
- a locationed Simple to perfore this evolution
- 1 Territative identification based on computer library search of mana spectra-
- ME Not saleslated and/or Notolta kelow PDL
- We No Vallace, Canister received above standard area spheric pressure
- ar Not Repetted for analysis
- 8. Rejected Result secults for this analysis failed QC chards.
- 30 been-Guarditation result quantifiation based on a generic response factor for the class of analytic
- 1M Mappropriate method of analysis for this compound
- If Unlake to practice Guality Control data high levels of compounds is sample interfaced with analysis of DC results.
- We double to precide Quality Control data-Samparas failed QCabalas due to sample matrix effects
- A Analytic detected at a lovel above the linear registric of addression suries.
- 1 Estimated result. NATA accorditation does not cover asimulations.
- E1 These compareds co-elete.
- Farmalet Rai Determent
- C7 Elevated concentration. Results reported from contain table analysis
- ** Sample shows non-petroleum hydrocarkins profile

This demonstration is proved, our the Clevel's behavior for the Company solution to General Conditions of Service contribution requires and account Modulat http://www.agr.com/inst/formers and Conditions/General Conditions-of-Services-English, aspec The Clevel Summentum is in security to the Institution of Modulary, solution finations and procedulation issues

Any other holder of Pin decements advanted that information constructed to mass inflats the Company's heldings of the time of the decements only and within the lives of Direct Instructions, if any. The Company's use requestility is to be Court and the document document as month parties to a transaction from assessing of the instructed.

The report must not be reportantly acception full.

Page 5 of 5

# Appendix 7 Soil Bore logs

	GES	PROJECT: Gorring	je ES/	4				Lo	g of BH	1
G	EO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:				EASTING:	526000		GDA94	
~	SOLUTIONS	Hobart F	Properti	es & Secu	rities	NORTHING:	5252993		GDA94	
BC	RING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, N	orth Hoba	rt		100000	ELEVATION	AND DATUM:	42.2	m AHD	
DR	ILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ntal Solutio	ons			TOTAL DEPT	H (m): 1			
EG	UIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	LC	GGED 8	SY:A. Plum	mer	NATURAL (m	k	WATER TAB	LE (m):	
SA	MPLING: Core	D	ATE: 1	7/06/2017	1110211	1				
O DEPTH O (metres)	MATERIAL DESCRIPTION	ahty M	A Lithology	Laboratory Sample M10.0	Field PID (ppm)	IB105 Ana Benyamu Benyamu Cosentium Cosentium SC Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosentium Cosenti	Normal Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson Andrewson	PAH Sum Beurene Beurene Ebyberzene Ebyberzene TPH CB - CD TPH CB - CD TPH CB - CD	MONITORING WELL	ELEVATION (metres)
0.1	FILL - GRAVEL & assorted debris,		0.00				<u>a</u> <u>a</u>	111111		E-42.1
0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5	brown/grey, slightly moist, dense, many brick fragments FILL - Mixed Clayey SAND & Sandy CL brown/grey, moist, stiff, low plasticity ov (Clay fraction has medium plasticity)	vred SM AY: verail M	CL							41.9
0.6	Sandy CLAY: grey/brown, moist, stiff, medium plasticity, common fine charcos fragment, some shell grit. No Refusal	al	CL	BH1 0.9m						41.6
Tas E	PA IB105 CLASSIFICATION. Level 1 2	Level 2; 🚺 L	evel 3;	4 Level 4	SAMPLE	IN EXCAVATI		ROXIMATE G	ROUNDFLOOR L	EVEL

Go	orringe	e ESA	4	1			Lo	g of BH	2
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL CU	ENT:				EASTING:	525998		GDA94	
SOLUTIONS HO	bart P	roperti	es & Securi	ities	NORTHING:	5252990		GDA94	
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, North	Hobart	6			ELEVATION A	AND DATUM:	42.1	m AHD	
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environmental	Solutio	ns			TOTAL DEPT	H (m). 1			
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	LO	GGED E	YA. Plum	ner	NATURAL (m	E.	WATER TAB	LE (m):	
SAMPLING: Core	DA	те: 1	7/06/2017						-
H SS MATERIAL DESCRIPTION	Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	IB105 Ana IB105 Ana Internet Internet Internet Internet Internet	Vice IL Exceed	AH Sum erzene ouene phylicerzene dat Xytemes PH C10-C18 DH C10-C18 0 8F Excerted	MONITORING WELL	ELEVATION (metres)
0.0 FILL - Sandy GRAVEL: dark brown, slighty	м	GW.	BH2.0.1m	1	2	2			£
0.1 - moist, medium dense to dense FILL - GRAVEL & assorted debris, 0.2 brown/grey, slightly moist, dense, many red	SM	GWo							41.9
0.3 brick fragments FILL - Mixed Clayey SAND & Sandy CLAY:	-								41.8
0.4 0.5 0.5	м	CL							41.6
0.8 0.7 0.7 medium plasticity, common fine charcoal fragment, some shell grit. No Refusal 0.9	м	CL	BH2 0.9m	]	2				41.3

	GES	Gorring	; ge ES/	<b>\</b>					Lo	g of BH	3
GI	EO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:				EASTING:	525984	3		GDA94	
	SOLUTIONS	Hobart	Properti	es & Secu	rities	NORTHING:	525298	9		GDA94	_
BOR	RING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, N	orth Hoba	art			ELEVATION	AND DATUM	1: 41	1.5	m AHD	
DRI	LLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ntal Solut	ions			TOTAL DEP	TH (m): 3				
EQ	JIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	L	OGGED E	YA. Plum	mer	NATURAL (r	n):	WA	TER TAB	ILE (m):	
SAN	IPLING: Core	1	DATE: 1	7/06/2017	-						Г
(metres)	MATERIAL DESCRIPTION	Molethine	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	IB105 An IB105 An United United United United United	alyte IL Exce	edance uns Hu auszus	PH C1-C3 PH C1-C3 PH C1-C3 PH C1-C3 PH C10-C38 OB E Excavated	MONITORING WELL	ELEVATION
0.1	FILL - Concrete		P			Jemmo 000033	28304<04		e mare table		4
1.2 1.3 1.4	FILL - Clayey GRAVEL: grey/brown, sli moist, medium dense	ghtly Si		BH3 0.5m	]			Ш			adam and and and and
6 .7 .8 .9	Silty CLAY: dark grey-brown, moist, stift high plasticity	t. N	СН								մամամամա
0 1 2 3 4 5 6	Silty CLAY: pale brown, moist, stiff, higt plasticity - plasticity decreasing with dep	n oth									մասնանանունուն
7 8 9 0 1 1 2 3		N	СН	BH3 2.3m	]						urburdandanihurdanih
4 5 6 7 8	Silty GRAVEL: yellow/pale brown, dry, dense, weathered silt/mudstone. No Re	very fusal	00000000000000000000000000000000000000								and and and and and and and

	GES	PROJECT Gorring	e ES/	4				Lo	g of BH	4
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL CUE			JENT:			EASTING: 525982 GDA94				
SOLUTIONS Hob			roperti	es & Sec	urities	NORTHING: 5253010 GDA94				
BO	RING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, N	orth Hobai	t			ELEVATION A	ND DATUM	42.8	m AHD	
DR	ILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ntal Solutio	ons			TOTAL DEPT	H (m): 2			
EQ	UIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	LC	GGED	ay A. Plur	nmer	NATURAL (m)	c)]	WATER TAB	ILE (m):	
SA	MPLING: Core	D	ATE: 1	7/06/201	7					1
DEPTH (metres)	MATERIAL DESCRIPTION	Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	B105 Ana	And the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second s	And And And And And And And And And And	MONITORING WELL	ELEVATION (metres)
0.0	FILL - Concrete			24543		R880000321	1355222E	278608#He		*
0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7	FILL - Clayey GRAVEL grey/brown, slip moist, medium dense, many red brick fragments	ghtly SM		BH4 0.5m		2 242	22	2 23		42.7 42.6 42.5 42.4 42.3 42.4 42.3 42.2 42.2
0.0 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8	Silty CLAY: dark grey-brown, moist, firm stiff, high plasticity Silty CLAY: pale brown, moist, stiff, high plasticity. No Refusal	n to M	сн сн	BH4 1.0m						41.8 41.8 41.6 41.6 41.4 41.6 41.4 41.4 41.2 41.2 41.2 41.2 41.2
1.9										E 40.8
Tas El	PA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 12	Level 2; 🚺 l	evel 3;	4 Level 4	SAMPL	E IN EXCAVATIO		ROXIMATE G	ROUNDFLOOR	LEVEL

		Gorrin	ge E	SA				Lo	og of BH	5
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL CUE						EASTING: 525979 GDA94				
SOLUTIONS Hobard				rt Properties & Securities			NORTHING: 5253010 GDA94			
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart						ELEVATION	AND DATUM	42.9	m AHD	
DRILLING (	CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ntal Solu	lions			TOTAL DEP	TH (m): 3			
EQUIPMEN	IT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	. 1	OGGE	DBY.A. Plun	nmer	NATURAL (r	n):	WATER TA	BLE (m):	
SAMPLING	Core	ŝ	DATE:	17/06/2017	8				Ι	Т
(metres)	MATERIAL DESCRIPTION		USCS	Lithology Laboratory Sample	Field PID (com)	B105 Ar	alyte IL Excee upper U upper out of the second second	Automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyrement automotopyre	MONITORING WELL	Pri chi la mana
0 FILL -	Sandy GRAVEL: brown/grey, slip medium dense to dense, some s fragments	ghty mall )	A G	• BH5 0.1m		R##000033	20102255	33	-	*
2 FILL - 3 moist 4	Gravelly CLAY: dark brown/black stiff, medium plasticity	K,								dundundundu
6 Silty C 7 plasti 8 9 0 1 2 3	CLAY: pale brown, moist, stiff, higi alty	h	1 Cł	4						մավամամավահանուն
4 Silty C 5 plastic 6 7 8 9 0 1 2 3 4	CLAY: red/orange, moist, stiff, hig ity	n P	I CI	4						shandran handran front and and and and and
5 Silty 5 6 very s 7 8 9	Sandy CLAY: red/orange/yellow, n tiff, medium plasticity. No Refusal	noist, I		BH5 3.0m						minuturinuturi

EASTING: 525966 GDA94															
NG: 5253047 GDA94															
ELEVATION AND DATUM: 44.3 m AHD															
)EPTH (m): 3															
L (m): WATER TABLE (m):															
Analyte IL Exceedances RC - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 1															
23 22 32															
Π															
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS IORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street. 1	CLIENT		LOP	•									Lo	g of BH	17
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	-----------------	----------	-------------------	----------------------	--------------------	--------------------------------------	-------------	-------	---------------------------------------------	----------------------------------------	-----	--------------------------------	------------------------------------------	--------------------	----
SOLUTION S IORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street. 1						EAS	TING	ŝ	5259	73				GDA94	
ORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street. I	Hobar	t Pr	operti	es & Secu	ities	NOR	THIN	а:	52530	042			- 9	GDA94	_
	North Hol	bart	5			ELEN	ATIO	N AN	DDAT	UM:	44	1.4	8.9	m AHD	
RILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environm	ental Solu	utior	15			TOT	L DE	ртн	(m):	3					
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	)	LOG	GED B	Y.A. Plum	mer	NATI	JRAL	(m):		2	WA	TER	TAB	ILE (m):	
SAMPLING: Core		DAT	TE: 1	7/06/2017											Τ
MATERIAL DESCRIPTION		Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	orenic organi organi organi	ander under	Analy	Arcoury Dromium VI CETs Mon+Osidim	DT elc theroit benzo(3)pytene 00		Phythenzone of onal Xytenes	PH C1-C0 PH C10-C36 0 Be Escavaled	MONITORING WELL	;
FILL - Concrete		1	P	252.45	12	HC III II II	000.	1220	2044		100	- 1111			1
FILL - Clayey SAND: dark brown/blac	k,	M		BH7 0.2m	1	2	22	2	2	3	z	П	П		
FILL - Silty Sandy CLAY: dark brown/b moist, stiff, medium plasticity, 10% fine gravel & brick fragments	black, e	м	CL											14 15 16	
Silty CLAY: brown, moist, stiff, high pla	asticity ed.	M	СН	BH7 1.0m	]	22					11				
moist, stiff, high plasticity. No Refusal		м	СН	BH7 3.0m	]				12	П					×

States States	Gorr	inge	e ESA									Lo	og of I	BH	B
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIEN	T:				EAS	TING:	52	5969	)			GDA94		
SOLUTIONS	Hoba	rt Pi	ropertie	es & Secur	ities	NOR	THING	52	5304	0		- 9	GDA94		
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street,	North Ho	bart	i.			ELEV	ATION	AND	DATU	W: A	14.6	5	m AHD		
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environm	ental Sol	lutio	ns			TOTA	L DEP	TH (m	) 3						
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	0	LO	GGED B	Y.A. Plum	ner	NATU	IRAL (I	n):		W	ATE	R TAB	SLE (m):		
SAMPLING: Core		DA	те: 1	7/06/2017											Γ
MATERIAL DESCRIPTION		Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	nenk anun ariun ariun ariun	105 Ar	alyte i	Extra transmission of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second seco	uns Hv	Stylborzono 0	PH C1- C3 PH C1- C38 0 Be Excended	MONITOR	ING	the set of the set
FILL - Concrete FILL - SAND some clay (Packing/Fat orange/grey-brown, moist, medium de FILL - SAND some clay (Packing/Fat orange/grey-brown, moist, medium de Sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r moist, stiff, high plasticity. No Refusal FILL - SAND some clay (Packing/Fat orange/grey-brown, moist, medium de Sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/r sitty CLAY: mottled pale br	Sand), nse ed,	м	P SC	BH8 0.5m BH8 1.0m	]									2	անանականանունունունունունունունունունունունությունուն
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 9		М	CH												alanalanalanalanalanalanalanalanal

	Gorring	e ES/	4			L	og of BH	9
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:			EASTING:	525965		GDA94	_
SOLUTIONS	Hobart P	Properti	ies & Securities	NORTHING:	5253042		GDA94	_
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, Nor	th Hoba	1		ELEVATION	AND DATUM:	44.6	m AHD	_
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environment	al Solutio	ons		TOTAL DEPT	H (m): 3			
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	LC	GGED	BY:A. Plummer	NATURAL (m	)r	WATER TA	BLE (m):	_
SAMPLING: Core	D	ATE: 1	7/06/2017				Τ	Т
MATERIAL DESCRIPTION	Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample Field PID (ppm)	IB105 And IB105 And United United United United United	alyte IL Excee Augustation (1) Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation Augustation	NH Sum erzene Nuene Bytkorzene Bytkorzene Bytkoli - C38 Bytkoli - C38	MONITORING WELL	
FILL - Concrete		P	BH9 0.2m	2 2 2	22 2			mulu
FILL - Clayey SAND: dark brown/black, moist, medium dense	м	SC						data data data
Silty CLAY: brown, moist, stiff, high plasti	city							
and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second se	м	CH						
Silty Sandy CLAY: pale brown, moist, ver stiff, medium plasticity, 20% fine to coarse gravel	y a M	CL						
X							S	×
Silty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/red, moist, stiff, high plasticity	м	СН						
FILL - SAND some clay (Packing/Fat San orange/grey-brown, moist, medium dense Side wall of Tank Pit has been scalloped	d), t. out M	sc	1 X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X					
Silty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/red, moist, stiff, high plasticity. No Refusal	м	СН	BH9 3.0m		TT (			

GES	PROJECT	je ES/	<b>N</b>				Lo	g of BH1	0
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:			5	EASTING:	525970		GDA94	
SOLUTIONS	Hobart F	Properti	es & Secu	rities	NORTHING:	5253045	9	GDA94	
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, N	North Hoba	rt			ELEVATION	AND DATUM:	45.5	m AHD	
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ental Soluti	ons			TOTAL DEP	TH (m): 1			
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	L	OGGED E	Y A. Plum	mer	NATURAL (r	n):	WATER TAB	ILE (m):	
SAMPLING: Core	D	ATE: 1	7/06/2017	8 2					
MATERIAL DESCRIPTION	Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	IB105 An IB105 An Jose Jose Jose Jose Jose Jose Jose Jose	alyte IL Exceedures with the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second	NH Sum berzene obuene 19/Menszene 19/Menszene 19/Menszene 19/Menszene 19/Menszene 19/Menszene 19/Menszene 19/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Menszene 10/Mensz	MONITORING WELL	ELEVATION (metres)
0.0 FILL - GRAVEL: brown/grey, slightly m 0.1 dense	oist, SM	GWo	BH10 0.1m			2012012012			45.4
0.1 Gense 0.2 Sandy Silty CLAY: brown, moist, very s 0.3 medium plasticity 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0	stiff, M	CL	BH10 1.0m						43.4 45.3 45.2 44.5 44.9 44.8 44.7 44.6 44.5
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 1	Level 2:	Level 3;	Level 4	SAMPLI	E IN EXCAVAT		ROXIMATE G	ROUNDFLOOR L	EVEL

GES	PROJECT: Gorringe ESA	Lo	og of BH11
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:	EASTING: 525967	GDA94
SOLUTIONS	Hobart Properties & Securities	NORTHING: 5253067	GDA94
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, N	lorth Hobart	ELEVATION AND DATUM: 43.9	m AHD
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ental Solutions	TOTAL DEPTH (m): 0.15	
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	LOGGED BY:A. Plummer	NATURAL (m): WATER TA	BLE (m):
SAMPLING: Core	DATE: 17/06/2017		T T
MATERIAL DESCRIPTION	Molsture USCS Lthology Sample Sample (ppm)	Baronne Baronne Baronne Baronne Baronne Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Categorie Catego	MONITORING WELL
Refusal			
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 1	Level 2 D Level 3 4 Level 4 SAMPL		ROUNDFLOOR LEVEL

	GES	PROJECT: Gorring	e ES/	4				Lo	g of BH1	2
G	EO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:				EASTING:	525994		GDA94	
-	SOLUTIONS	Hobart P	roperti	es & Secu	rities	NORTHING:	5253042	9	GDA94	
во	RING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, N	lorth Hobart	6			ELEVATION	AND DATUM:	43.7	m AHD	
DR	ILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ental Solutio	ns			TOTAL DEPT	H (m): 1.2			
EQ	UIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UD	LO	GGED B	YA. Plun	nmer	NATURAL (m	)r	WATER TAB	ILE (m):	
SA	MPLING: Direct Push	DA	TE: 1	1/12/2017	,					
DEPTH (metres)	MATERIAL DESCRIPTION	Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	B105 And B105 And united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united united unite	ityte IL Exceed	NH Sum enzene enzene Phylonzone PH CID- CIB PH CID- CIB PH CID- CIB PH CID- CIB PH CID- CIB PH CID- CIB	MONITORING WELL	ELEVATION (metres)
0.0	FILL - Concrete Slab		P		1	kee000033:	50304<04 B	a me u es pe		E-43.6
0.2	FILL - CLAVEY GRAVEL brown/grev									-43.5
0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6	Slightly moist, dense Sandy SILTY CLAY: brown/grey/orang- moist, stiff, medium plasticity SILTY CLAY: brown/grey, moist, stiff, h plasticity. End	e, M ligh	CI	BH12 0.5m						43.4 43.3 43.2 43.1
0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1	¢	М	сн	BH12 1.0m		22 3 2:			3	43.0 42.9 42.8 42.7 42.6
Tas E	PA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 1	Level 2; 🚺 L	evel 3;	4 Level 4	SAMPL	E IN EXCAVATI		ROXIMATE G	ROUNDFLOOR L	EVEL

GES	PROJECT: Gorringe ESA	1.	og of BH13
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:	EASTING: 526000	GDA94
SOLUTIONS	Hobart Properties & Securities	NORTHING: 5253030	GDA94
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, N	North Hobart	ELEVATION AND DATUM: 43.3	m AHD
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ental Solutions	TOTAL DEPTH (m): 0.55	
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UD	LOGGED BY:A. Plummer	NATURAL (m): WATER TA	BLE (m):
SAMPLING: Direct Push	DATE: 11/12/2017		
H (Setted and Anterial Description	Molsture USCS Lutholdgy Laboratory Sample Sample (ppm)	IB105 Analyte IL Exceedances 002-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214 00-0214	(setter) MONITORING WELL MODITORING
0.0 FILL - Concrete Slab 0.1	Ρ	KURCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC	43.2
0.3 Extremely Weathered SILTSTONE (CI SILT): orange/trace pale purple mottler 0.4 to slightly moist, dense, very low rock s 0.5	ayey s, dry stre SM ML BH13 0.4-0.5m		43.0 42.9 <b>X</b> 42.8
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 1	Level 2; ] Level 3; 4 Level 4 SAMPL		SROUNDFLOOR LEVEL

GES	PROJECT Gorring	e ESA	ι.						l	_0	g of BH1	4
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:				EAST	ING:	52598	7		G	DA94	
SOLUTIONS	Hobart F	Properti	es & Secu	rities	NORT	HING:	52530	23		G	DA94	
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, N	orth Hoba	rt			ELEVA	TION A	ND DATL	м: 4	3.2	п	AHD	
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ental Solutio	ons			TOTAL	DEPTH	(m): 1	.5				
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UD	LC	OGGED E	Y.A. Plun	mer	NATUR	RAL (m)	8	W	ATER T	ABL	E (m):	
SAMPLING: Direct Push	D	ATE: 1	1/12/2017	6						Т	and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second sec	
	Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	rtenkc anum orykum admium bitemium	105 Anal	te L unpercention	and uns Hy number	Duene 00 By/benzene 00 Hial Xvienes 00 PH C6- C0	PH C10 - C36 0 Be Excerned	MONITORING WELL	ELEVATION
0.0 FILL - Concrete Slab 0.1 0.2		P		14	KBBOD	00332	<u>0304&lt;6</u>	10.001.0	nemee.	Her.		43
0.3         FILL - GRAVEL: blue/grey, slightly mois loose, medium to coarse (20-40mm) clip angular Dolerite gravel           0.5         FILL - SANDY CLAY: dark brown, mois stiff, medium plasticity, few fine gravels	st, SM ean st, M	GW•	BH14 0.3-0	40	2	22	2	33			5	42
0.6 Sandy SILTY CLAY: mottled dark 0.7 brown/orange, moist, stiff, medium plas 0.8	sticity	СІ										42.
0.9 SILTY CLAY: olive-brown, moist, firm to 1.0 stiff, high plasticity. END 1.1	0		BH14 1.0-1	10	2		I	Ш				42.
1211 13111 1411	м	СН										41.1
	li muni di 1991 -	aug 2.	Instal	62140	EINEVA	AUATI2	NI Se .	0000	(11.) · · · ·		01100520001	Eller

C E S	PROJECT: Gorringe ESA	L	og of BH15
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:	EASTING: 525995	GDA94
SOLUTIONS	Hobart Properties & Securities	NORTHING: 5252997	GDA94
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, N	lorth Hobart	ELEVATION AND DATUM: 42.25	m AHD
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ental Solutions	TOTAL DEPTH (m): 0.6	
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UD	LOGGED BY:A. Plummer	NATURAL (m): WATER TA	BLE (m):
SAMPLING: Direct Push	DATE: 11/12/2017		
	Maisture USCS Lithology Laboratory Sample Field PID (ppm)	B105 Analyte IL Exceedances unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage unstage u	I BIO Externation
ATERIAL DESCRIPTION 0.0 FILL - Concrete Slab 0.1 0.2 0.3 FILL - SAND: yellow-grey, slightly moist 0.5 0.6 FILL - CLAYEY GRAVEL: yellow-brown/grey, slightly moist, dens 0.5 0.6	В В В В В В В В В В В В В В	Anternet         Bottom           Bottom         Bottom           Construction         Construction	42.2 442.1 442.0 41.9 41.8 41.7

GES	Gorringe E	ESA				Lo	g of BH1	16
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:			EASTING:	525979		GDA94	_
SOLUTIONS	Hobart Prop	erties & Se	curities	NORTHING:	5253059		GDA94	-
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, No	rth Hobart			ELEVATION	AND DATUM:	45	m AHD	_
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environmen	tal Solutions	1		TOTAL DEPT	H (m): 3.5			
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UD	LOGG	ED BY A. PIL	Immer	NATURAL (m	۶.	WATER TAB	LE (m):	_
SAMPLING: Direct Push	DATE	11/12/20	17					Т
MATERIAL DESCRIPTION	Moisture	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	IB105 And IB105	Note IL Excee	AH Sum AH Sum outere Physics PH C10 - C18 PH C10 - C18 O BE Excented	MONITORING WELL	
FILL - Concrete Slab		Р	10	K88000033	202024021			-
FILL - GRAVEL (FCR): brown-grey, sligh moist, medium dense FILL - GRAVELLY CLAY: dark grey-brow	tly SM G	w.						
SILTY CLAY: pale olive-grey, moist, stiff, high plasticity								
	мс	H						
Silty CLAYEY GRAVEL: pale yellow/grey dry, dense		0 8H16 1.0	-1.1m	2	2			
	DOOO	6°~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~						
Silty GRAVELLY CLAY: orange/yellow, slightly moist, very stiff, low plasticity								
		вн16 2.0	-2.1m	2				
Silty CLAYEY GRAVEL: pale yellow/grey	D	°°°°°°						X
Gravelly SILTY CLAY: pale yellow-grey/n moist, stiff, low to medium plasticity. END	ed,	2						
	мс	вн16 2.9 Х.	-3.0m					

	GES	Gorrin	nge	ESA									Lo	g of BH1	7
GI	O-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT					EAS	TING:	52	5973	ŝ.		(	3DA94	
	SOLUTIONS	Hobar	t Pr	opertie	es & Secur	ities	NOR	THING	: 52	5306	9		¢	GDA94	
BOR	ING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, No	orth Hob	art	10 8			ELEV	ATION	AND	DATUN	n: 4	5.5	r	n AHD	
DRIL	LING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environmen	ntal Solu	ition	ns			TOTA	L DEP	TH (m	2.	7				
EQU	IPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UD		LOC	GGED B	Y.A. Plumr	ner	NATU	RAL	m):		W	ATER	TAB	LE (m):	
SAM	PLING: Direct Push		DA	TE: 1	1/12/2017									- and the second second	Г
(metres)	MATERIAL DESCRIPTION		Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	rrenk artum artum admium	105 A	nalyte i	L Exce	edenning mercen	Divition 00 Divition 00 Diviti	PH C6 - C0 PH C10 - C06 0 Bt Excerned	MONITORING WELL	PI CLATION
1	FILL - SANDY GRAVEL: grey/brown, slightly moist, dense	s	SM	 GWo		10	R BBOI	1002	221120	22403		1-41-			E.
u funtumin	FILL - Gravelly CLAYEY SAND: dark brown, slightly moist, medium dense	5	SM .	•••											ndundundu
dantantantantan la	SILTY CLAY: olive brown/orange/trace r moist, stiff, high plasticity	red,	м	СН	ВН17 0.5-0.6	, m			III						ոնամասնանուն
1 2 3 4 5 5 7 8 9 9 0	Extremely Weathered SANDSTONE/SILTSTONE (banded): yellow/orange, slightly moist, dense, len of medium plasticity clay at 1.8	ise S	SM		BH17 1.9-2.0	c all c			2						administration for the device of a
1 2 3 4 5 6															and and and and and and and

GES	PROJECT: Gorring	e ES/	4						Lo	g of BH1	8
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:				EASTING:	525	981		(	GDA94	
SOLUTIONS	Hobart P	roperti	es & Secu	rities	NORTHING	525	3041		-	GDA94	
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, N	lorth Hobar	t			ELEVATION	AND DA	TUM:	43.8	8 1	n AHD	
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ental Solutio	ons			TOTAL DE	PTH (m):	2				
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UD	LO	GGED	ay A. Plum	mer	NATURAL	(m):	3	WATE	R TAB	LE (m):	
SAMPLING: Direct Push	D/	ATE: 1	1/12/2017	i.							1
T (Seta Bata B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B	Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	IB105 A unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius unius u u u u u u u u u u u u u u u u u u	nalyte IL south and a south and a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a south a sout	Exceed white of the second	enzene ouene ouene bybeszone	otal Xyamaa 1 PH cd - c0 PH c10 - c08 0 Be Exceeded	MONITORING WELL	ELEVATION
0.0 FILL - Concrete Slab		1200	1000	10	R8800003	226204	205.81	2001200	ee pe		Ē.,,
0.1 0.2 SILTY CLAY: dark grey/black, moist, st 0.3 high plasticity 0.4 0.5	uff, M	СН	BH18 0.2-0.1	3		2					43 43 43 43
0.6 Sandy SILTY CLAY: dark brown, moist 0.7 very stiff, high plasticity 0.8 0.9	м	СН	BH18 0.9-1.	0m		2			111		43. 43. 43.
1.0 Silty GRAVELLY CLAY: pale yellow-gre slightly moist, very stiff, low to meidum plasticity 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6	ey. M	CI		L							42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42
1.7 SILTY CLAY: orange/yellow/grey, mois 1.8 very stiff, medium plasticity, high silt content. END	t, M	сі									42
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 142	Level 2- DI	evel 3-	Level 4	SAMPI	E IN EXCAVA	TION	APPR	OXIM	ATE G		EVE

GES	PROJECT: Gorring	e ES/	4				L	og of BH1	19
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:				EASTING:	525964		GDA94	
SOLUTIONS	Hobart P	roperti	es & Secu	rities	NORTHING: 5253033 GDA94				
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, N	North Hobar	t			ELEVATION A	ND DATUM:	44.1	m AHD	
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ental Solutio	ns			TOTAL DEPT	1 (m): 2			
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UD	) LO	GGED 8	BY:A. Plum	mer	NATURAL (m)	6	WATER T	ABLE (m):	
SAMPLING: Direct Push	D/	TE: 1	1/12/2017						
MATERIAL DESCRIPTION	Molsture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	IB105 Ana IB105 Ana Index Index Index Index Index Index	Ate IL Excee	dances Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene Britene	MONITORING WELL	ELEVATION (metres)
0.0 FILL - Concrete Slab				24	emm00000322	N3044041	000000000	<b>*</b> =1	Ē
0.1 0.2 FILL - GRAVEL: dark brown-grey, moi 0.3 GRAVEL: dark brown-grey, moi 0.4 plasticity 0.5 0.6	st, M high M	GW.	BH19 0.2-0.3	3m	2	22	12		43.9 43.8 43.7 43.6 43.5
0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 SILTY CLAY: orange/red, moist, stiff, f 1.1 plasticity. END 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5	ligh M	CH	Вн190.9-1.0	-ac	22				43.4 43.3 43.2 43.1 43.0 42.9 42.8 42.8 42.7 42.6
1.7									42.4
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION	Level 2 🐻 L	evel 3:	Level 4	SAMPL	E IN EXCAVATIO		ROXIMATE	GROUNDELOOR I	EVEL

	GES	PROJECT Gorring	je ES/	4				Lo	g of BH2	20
G	EO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:				EASTING:	525973		GDA94	
-	SOLUTIONS	Hobart F	Properti	es & Sec	urities	NORTHING:	525298	2 (	GDA94	
во	RING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, N	orth Hoba	rt			ELEVATION	AND DATUM	42 1	m AHD	
DR	ILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ntal Soluti	ons			TOTAL DEPT	H (m): 1.1	1		
EQ	UIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UD	LC	OGGED 8	BY A. Plur	nmer	NATURAL (n	B):	WATER TAB	LE (m):	
SA	MPLING: Direct Push	D	ATE: 1	1/12/201	7					
DEPTH (metres)	MATERIAL DESCRIPTION	Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	iB105 An units units units units	alyte IL Exce	An Calo - Calo Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene Marcene	MONITORING WELL	ELEVATION (metres)
0.0	FILL - Concrete		P	1254		888000052	28505288	18795055Hb		41.9
0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5	FILL - Clayey GRAVEL grey/brown, sli moist, medium dense	ghtly SM		ВН20 0.5m	١		T			41.8 41.7 41.6 41.5
0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9	Silty CLAY: dark grey-brown, moist, stif high plasticity	м	СН							41.4 41.3 41.2 41.1 41.1
Tas E	PA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 12	Level 2; 🚺 l	evel 3;	4 Level 4	SAMPL	E IN EXCAVAT		PROXIMATE G	ROUNDFLOOR L	EVEL

	Gorri	inge	ESA										Lo	g of BH2	1
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIEN	T:			3	EAS	STING	5:	526	5002	ž.		1	GDA94	
SOLUTIONS	Hoba	rt Pr	opertie	es & Securi	ties	NORTHING: 5252990 GDA94									
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street,	North Ho	bart	5			ELE	VATIO	ON A	ND D	ATUN	1: 4	2.7	1	m AHD	
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environm	nental Sol	lutio	ns			TOT	AL D	EPTH	i (m):	1.	ŕ				
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540U	D	LO	GGED B	Y.A. Plumn	ner	NAT	URAL	. (m)	6		W	ATER	TAB	ILE (m):	
SAMPLING: Direct Push		DA	TE: 1	1/12/2017											
MATERIAL DESCRIPTION	8	Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	tenk; enum enyllum	B105	Anal asautius	yte IL IA winners	Exce	edan uns Hv	Nuene 80 Nyflorizono 90 nal Xvienes	PH CIL- C0 PH C10- C36 0 Be Excerted	MONITORING WELL	ELEVATION (metres)
0.0 FILL - Sandy GRAVEL: dark brown, s	slighty	M	GW.	26546	1	Remon	0000	322	220	5<05		ie die	s pps		Eure
0.2 FILL - GRAVEL & assorted debris, brown/grey, slightly moist, dense, ma	iny red	SM	GWo												42.5
0.3 brick fragments FILL - Mixed Clayey SAND & Sandy 0 brown/grey, moist, stiff, low plasticity 0.5 (Clay fraction has medium plasticity)	CLAY: overall	м	CL	BH21 0.5m	]	Ш			Í		32		Ē		42.4
0.6 Sandy CLAY: grey/brown, moist, stiff 0.7 medium plasticity, common fine chard fragment, some shell grit. No Refusal 0.9 1.0	coal	м	CI												42.1 42.0 41.9 41.8 41.8

## Appendix 8 Soil Analytical Results - Certificate of Analysis

#### Environmental CERTIFICATE OF ANALYSIS Work Order EM1717027 Page 1 of 18 **Glient** GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS Laboratory Environmental Division Melbourne Contact KRIS TAYLOR Contact Shirley LeComu Address Address 4 Westall Rd Springvale VIC Australia 3171 29 KIRKSWAY PLACE BATTERY POINT TASMANIA, AUSTRALIA 7004 Teléphone +61 03 6223 1839 Telephone +61-3-8549 9630 Project Gorringe Date Samples Received 12-Dec-2017 10:10 Order number Date Analysis Commenced ----12-Dec-2017 C-O-C number Issue Date 15-Dec-2017 13:29 NAT Sampler AARON PLUMMER Site ( and the Quote number EN/222/17 Accreditation No. 825 No. of samples received 18 Accredited for compliance with 150/IEC 17025 - Testing No. of samples analysed 18 This report supersedes any previous report(s) with this reference. Results apply to the sample(s) as submitted. This document shall not be reproduced, except in full. This Certificate of Analysis contains the following information: General Comments Analytical Results Surrogate Control Limits Additional information pertinent to this report will be found in the following separate attachments: Quality Control Report, QAQC Compliance Assessment to assist with **Quality Review and Sample Receipt Notification.** Signatories This document has been electronically signed by the authorized signatories below. Electronic signing is carried out in compliance with procedures specified in 21 CFR Part 11. Position Accreditation Category

Signatoriaa Dilani Fernando

Xing Lin

Senior Inorganic Chemist Senior Organic Chemist Melbourne Inorganics, Springvale, VIC Melbourne Organics, Springvale, VIC

RIGHT SOLUTIONS RIGHT PARTNER

Page	: 2 of 18
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	Gorringe



#### General Comments

The analytical procedures used by the Environmental Division have been developed from established internationally recognized procedures such as those published by the USEPA, APHA, AS and NEPM. In house developed procedures are employed in the absence of documented standards or by client request.

Where moisture determination has been performed, results are reported on a dry weight basis.

Where a reported less than (<) result is higher than the LOR, this may be due to primary sample extract/digestate dilution and/or insufficient sample for analysis.

Where the LOR of a reported result differs from standard LOR, this may be due to high moisture content, insufficient sample (reduced weight employed) or matrix interference.

When sampling time information is not provided by the client, sampling dates are shown without a time component. In these instances, the time component has been assumed by the laboratory for processing purposes.

Where a result is required to meet compliance limits the associated uncertainty must be considered. Refer to the ALS Contact for details.

- Key: CAS Number = CAS registry number from database maintained by Chemical Abstracts Services. The Chemical Abstracts Service is a division of the American Chemical Society. LOR = Limit of reporting
  - * = This result is computed from individual analyte detections at or above the level of reporting
  - ø = ALS is not NATA accredited for these tests.
  - ~ = Indicates an estimated value.
- EG005T:EM1717027_004, 007 and 013 have been diluted prior to metal analysis due to sample matrix. LORs have been raised for Beryllium, Cadmium and Chromium
- EG020F: Zinc results for EM1717027-019 have been confirmed by re-preparation and re-analysis.
- Benzo(a)pyrene Toxicity Equivalent Quotient (TEQ) is the sum total of the concentration of the eight carcinogenic PAHs multiplied by their Toxicity Equivalence Factor (TEF) relative to Benzo(a)pyrene. TEF values are provided in brackets as follows: Benz(a)anthracene (0.1), Chrysene (0.01), Benzo(b+j) & Benzo(k)fluoranthene (0.1), Benzo(a)pyrene (1.0), Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene (0.1), Dibenz(a.h)anthracene (1.0), Benzo(g.h.i)perylene (0.01). Less than LOR results for 'TEQ Zero' are treated as zero, for 'TEQ 1/2LOR' are treated as half the reported LOR, and for 'TEQ LOR' are treated as being equal to the reported LOR. Note: TEQ 1/2LOR and TEQ LOR will calculate as 0.6mg/Kg and 1.2mg/Kg respectively for samples with non-detects for all of the eight TEQ PAHs.
- Benzo(a)pyrene Toxicity Equivalent Quotient (TEQ) is the sum total of the concentration of the eight carcinogenic PAHs multiplied by their Toxicity Equivalence Factor (TEF) relative to Benzo(a)pyrene. TEF values are provided in brackets as follows: Benz(a)anthracene (0.1), Chrysene (0.01), Benzo(b+j) & Benzo(k)fluoranthene (0.1), Benzo(a)pyrene (1.0), Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene (0.1), Dibenz(a.h)anthracene (1.0), Benzo(g.h.i)perylene (0.01). Less than LOR results for 'TEQ Zero' are treated as zero.

Page	: 3 of 18
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL (Matrix: SOIL)		Clie	ent sample ID	BH12 0.5m	BH12 1.0m	BH13 0.4-0.5m	BH14 0.3-0.4m	BH14 1.0-1.1m
	Clie	ent sampli	ng date / time	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717027-001	EM1717027-002	EM1717027-003	EM1717027-004	EM1717027-005
111			-	Result	Result	Result	Result	Result
EA055: Moisture Content (Drie	d @ 105-110°C)							
Moisture Content		1.0	%	22.0	19.5	14.3	28.9	23.2
EG005T: Total Metals by ICP-A	ES			and the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distance of the second distanc				
Arsenic	7440-38-2	5	mg/kg	5	8	<5	35	<5
Barium	7440-39-3	10	mg/kg	220	660	20	180	480
Beryllium	7440-41-7	1	mg/kg	1	4	1	<1	1
Boron	7440-42-8	50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	<50	<50
Cadmium	7440-43-9	1	mg/kg	<1	<1	<1	<10	<1
Chromium	7440-47-3	2	mg/kg	18	16	7	20	14
Cobalt	7440-48-4	2	mg/kg	13	368	6	12	14
Copper	7440-50-8	5	mg/kg	32	39	16	80	17
Lead	7439-92-1	5	mg/kg	10	11	<5	314	11
Manganese	7439-96-5	5	mg/kg	116	1690	268	825	54
Nickel	7440-02-0	2	mg/kg	14	72	13	22	13
Selenium	7782-49-2	5	mg/kg	<5	<5	<5	<5	<5
Vanadium	7440-62-2	5	mg/kg	85	65	23	61	59
Zinc	7440-66-6	5	mg/kg	28	45	53	728	14
EG035T: Total Recoverable M	ercurv by FIMS							
Mercury	7439-97-6	0.1	mg/kg	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	0.8	<0.1
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aro	matic Hydrocarbons							
Naphthalene	91-20-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Acenaphthylene	208-96-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	0.6	<0.5
Acenaphthene	83-32-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Fluorene	86-73-7	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Phenanthrene	85-01-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	2.5	<0.5
Anthracene	120-12-7	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	0.8	<0.5
Fluoranthene	206-44-0	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	5.1	<0.5
Pyrene	129-00-0	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	5.9	<0.5
Benz(a)anthracene	56-55-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	3.3	<0.5
Chrysene	218-01-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	3.1	<0.5
Benzo(b+j)fluoranthene	205-99-2 205-82-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	5.4	<0.5
Benzo(k)fluoranthene	207-08-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	1.8	<0.5
Benzo(a)pyrene	50-32-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0,5	<0.5	5.2	<0.5
Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene	193-39-5	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	3.1	<0.5
Dibenz(a.h)anthracene	53-70-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	0.9	<0.5

Page	: 4 of 18
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL (Matrix: SOIL)		Cli	ent sample ID	BH12 0.5m	BH12 1.0m	BH13 0.4-0.5m	BH14 0.3-0.4m	BH14 1.0-1.1m
	Cli	ent sampli	ng date / time	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717027-001	EM1717027-002	EM1717027-003	EM1717027-004	EM1717027-005
			-	Result	Result	Result	Result	Result
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aromatic H	vdrocarbons - Conti	nued			anavarras			
Benzo(g.h.i)perylene	191-24-2	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	4.4	<0.5
^ Sum of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbon	IS	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	42.1	<0.5
^ Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (zero)		0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	7.5	<0.5
^ Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (half LOR)	2022	0.5	mg/kg	0.6	0.6	0.6	7.5	0.6
[^] Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (LOR)		0.5	mg/kg	1.2	1.2	1.2	7.5	1.2
EP080/071: Total Petroleum Hydrocart	bons							
C6 - C9 Fraction		10	mg/kg	<10	<10	<10	<10	<10
C10 - C14 Fraction		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	<50	<50
C15 - C28 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100	<100	210	<100
C29 - C36 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100	<100	210	<100
^ C10 - C36 Fraction (sum)		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	420	<50
EP080/071: Total Recoverable Hydroc	arbons - NEPM 201	3 Fractio	ns					
C6 - C10 Fraction	C6_C10	10	mg/kg	<10	<10	<10	<10	<10
^A C6 - C10 Fraction minus BTEX (F1)	C6_C10-BTEX	10	mg/kg	<10	<10	<10	<10	<10
>C10 - C16 Fraction		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	<50	<50
>C16 - C34 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100	<100	370	<100
>C34 - C40 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100	<100	110	<100
^ >C10 - C40 Fraction (sum)		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	480	<50
^ >C10 - C16 Fraction minus Naphthalene (F2)		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	<50	<50
EP080: BTEXN		-						
Benzene	71-43-2	0.2	mg/kg	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2
Toluene	108-88-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Ethylbenzene	100-41-4	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
meta- & para-Xylene	108-38-3 106-42-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
ortho-Xylene	95-47-6	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
^ Sum of BTEX		0.2	mg/kg	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2
^ Total Xylenes	S	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Naphthalene	91-20-3	1	mg/kg	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
EP075(SIM)S: Phenolic Compound Su	rrogates							
Phenol-d6	13127-88-3	0.5	%	87.4	84.6	87.9	75.4	102
2-Chiorophenol-D4	93951-73-6	0.5	%	74.5	76.8	80.8	71.1	88.0
2.4.6-Tribromophenol	118-79-6	0.5	%	55.5	51.6	51.7	62.3	64.0

Page	5 of 18
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL (Matrix: SOIL)		Clie	nt sample ID	BH12 0.5m	BH12 1.0m	BH13 0.4-0.5m	BH14 0.3-0.4m	BH14 1.0-1.1m
	Cli	ent samplir	ig date / time	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717027-001	EM1717027-002	EM1717027-003	EM1717027-004	EM1717027-005
				Result	Result	Result	Result	Result
EP075(SIM)T: PAH Surrogates								
2-Fluorobiphenyl	321-60-8	0.5	%	79.3	78.4	80.3	87.6	92.2
Anthracene-d10	1719-06-8	0.5	%	107	110	113	92.7	91.1
4-Terphenyl-d14	1718-51-0	0.5	%	107	106	109	103	117
EP080S: TPH(V)/BTEX Surrogates								
1.2-Dichloroethane-D4	17060-07-0	0.2	%	79.6	73.7	77.5	82.1	75.3
Toluene-D8	2037-26-5	0.2	%	78.6	82.0	78.7	90.4	87.0
4-Bromofluorobenzene	460-00-4	0.2	%	99.7	105	94.6	103	110

Page	: 6 of 18
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL (Matrix: SOIL)		Clie	ant sample ID	BH15 0.5-0.6m	BH16 1.0-1.1m	BH16 2.0-2.1m	BH16 2.9-3.0m	BH17 0.5-0.6m
10	Clie	ent sampli	ng date / time	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717027-006	EM1717027-007	EM1717027-008	EM1717027-009	EM1717027-010
1			-	Result	Result	Result	Result	Result
EA055: Moisture Content (Drie	ed @ 105-110°C)				and an and a second		L. 0.1772	D. Same
Moisture Content		1.0	%	6.0	18.5	27.0	16.7	23.2
EG005T: Total Metals by ICP-A	AES							
Arsenic	7440-38-2	5	mg/kg	<5	<5	9	<5	<5
Barium	7440-39-3	10	mg/kg	10	230	90	<10	50
Beryllium	7440-41-7	1	mg/kg	<1	<4	1	<1	1
Boron	7440-42-8	50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	<50	<50
Cadmium	7440-43-9	1	mg/kg	<1	<2	<1	<1	<1
Chromium	7440-47-3	2	mg/kg	11	<4	4	6	17
Cobalt	7440-48-4	2	mg/kg	13	33	13	<2	16
Copper	7440-50-8	5	mg/kg	57	67	46	<5	24
Lead	7439-92-1	5	mg/kg	<5	<5	8	<5	12
Manganese	7439-96-5	5	mg/kg	350	1050	760	10	115
Nickel	7440-02-0	2	mg/kg	15	100	18	3	16
Selenium	7782-49-2	5	mg/kg	<5	<5	<5	<5	<5
Vanadium	7440-62-2	5	mg/kg	39	69	66	10	70
Zinc	7440-66-6	5	mg/kg	34	13	48	13	32
EG035T: Total Recoverable M	ercury by FIMS							
Mercury	7439-97-6	0.1	mg/kg	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aro	omatic Hydrocarbons							
Naphthalene	91-20-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Acenaphthylene	208-96-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Acenaphthene	83-32-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Fluorene	86-73-7	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Phenanthrene	85-01-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Anthracene	120-12-7	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Fluoranthene	206-44-0	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0,5
Pyrene	129-00-0	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Benz(a)anthracene	56-55-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Chrysene	218-01-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Benzo(b+j)fluoranthene	205-99-2 205-82-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Benzo(k)fluoranthene	207-08-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Benzo(a)pyrene	50-32-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene	193-39-5	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Dibenz(a.h)anthracene	53-70-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5

Page	: 7 of 18
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL (Matrix: SOIL)		Cli	ent sample ID	BH15 0.5-0.6m	BH16 1.0-1.1m	BH16 2.0-2.1m	BH16 2.9-3.0m	BH17 0.5-0.6m
	Cli	ent sampli	ing date / time	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717027-006	EM1717027-007	EM1717027-008	EM1717027-009	EM1717027-010
			_	Result	Result	Result	Result	Result
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aromatic H	vdrocarbons - Conti	nued			te instante			
Benzo(g.h.i)perylene	191-24-2	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
^ Sum of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons	s	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
^ Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (zero)		0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
^ Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (half LOR)	2002	0.5	mg/kg	0.6	0.6	0.6	0.6	0.6
^ Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (LOR)		0.5	mg/kg	1.2	1.2	1.2	1.2	1.2
EP080/071: Total Petroleum Hydrocarb	ions							
C6 - C9 Fraction		10	mg/kg	<10	<10	<10	<10	<10
C10 - C14 Fraction		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	<50	<50
C15 - C28 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100	<100	<100	<100
C29 - C36 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100	<100	<100	<100
^ C10 - C36 Fraction (sum)		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	<50	<50
EP080/071: Total Recoverable Hydroca	rbons - NEPM 201	3 Fractio	ns					
C6 - C10 Fraction	C6 C10	10	mg/kg	<10	<10	<10	<10	<10
[^] C6 - C10 Fraction minus BTEX	C6 C10-BTEX	10	mg/kg	<10	<10	<10	<10	<10
(F1)	1.5							
>C10 - C16 Fraction		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	<50	<50
>C16 - C34 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100	<100	<100	<100
>C34 - C40 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100	<100	<100	<100
^ >C10 - C40 Fraction (sum)		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	<50	<50
^ >C10 - C16 Fraction minus Naphthalene		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	<50	<50
(F2)						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
EP080: BTEXN								
Benzene	71-43-2	0.2	mg/kg	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2
Toluene	108-88-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Ethylbenzene	100-41-4	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
meta- & para-Xylene	108-38-3 106-42-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
ortho-Xylene	95-47-6	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
^ Sum of BTEX		0.2	mg/kg	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2
^ Total Xylenes	1,	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Naphthalene	91-20-3	1	mg/kg	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
EP075(SIM)S: Phenolic Compound Sur	rogates							
Phenol-d6	13127-88-3	0.5	%	87.4	87.1	83.5	78.2	82.4
2-Chiorophenol-D4	93951-73-6	0.5	%	80.4	77.7	78.0	69.6	82.6
2.4.6-Tribromophenol	118-79-6	0.5	%	65.0	49.6	56.1	54.2	55.5

Page	: 8 of 18
Work Order	EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL (Matrix: SOIL)		Clie	nt sample ID	BH15 0.5-0.6m	BH16 1.0-1.1m	BH16 2.0-2.1m	BH16 2.9-3.0m	BH17 0.5-0.6m
	Cli	ent samplin	g date / time	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00
Compound	Client sample ID         BH15 0.5-0.6n           Client sampling date / time         12-Dec-2017 00:0           CAS Number         LOR         Unit           321-60-8         0.5         %           321-60-8         0.5         %           1719-06-8         0.5         %           17060-07-0         0.2         %           17060-07-0         0.2         %           91.5         0.2         %	EM1717027-006	EM1717027-007	EM1717027-008	EM1717027-009	EM1717027-010		
- 53				Result	Result	Result	Result	Result
EP075(SIM)T: PAH Surrogates								
2-Fluorobiphenyl	321-60-8	0.5	%	80.3	81.2	87.3	84.7	81.1
Anthracene-d10	1719-06-8	0.5	%	85.8	82.5	99.4	110	106
4-Terphenyl-d14	1718-51-0	0.5	%	108	111	107	103	112
EP080S: TPH(V)/BTEX Surrogates								
1.2-Dichloroethane-D4	17060-07-0	0.2	%	87.0	78.7	80.5	83.7	81.9
Toluene-D8	2037-26-5	0.2	%	91.5	75.6	89.7	88.5	90.7
4-Bromofluorobenzene	460-00-4	0.2	%	111	91.6	105	106	106

Page	: 9 of 18
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL (Matrix: SOIL)		Clie	ent sample ID	BH17 1.9-2.0m	BH18 0.2-0.3m	BH18 0.9-1.0m	BH19 0.2-0.3m	BH19 0.9-1.0m
	Clic	ent sampli	ng date / time	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717027-011	EM1717027-012	EM1717027-013	EM1717027-014	EM1717027-015
			-	Result	Result	Result	Result	Result
EA055: Moisture Content (Drie	d @ 105-110°C)				ananasa.			
Moisture Content		1.0	%	18.1	22.1	17.3	19.0	19.6
EG005T: Total Metals by ICP-A	NES			State of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Division of the Local Div				
Arsenic	7440-38-2	5	mg/kg	<5	<5	<5	<5	<5
Barium	7440-39-3	10	mg/kg	220	130	180	220	2770
Beryllium	7440-41-7	1	mg/kg	<1	1	<5	<1	3
Boron	7440-42-8	50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	<50	<50
Cadmium	7440-43-9	1	mg/kg	<1	<1	<3	<1	<1
Chromium	7440-47-3	2	mg/kg	16	10	13	21	11
Cobalt	7440-48-4	2	mg/kg	45	14	17	9	37
Copper	7440-50-8	5	mg/kg	32	72	15	44	13
Lead	7439-92-1	5	mg/kg	6	144	<5	341	14
Manganese	7439-96-5	5	mg/kg	2410	167	1100	208	255
Nickel	7440-02-0	2	mg/kg	38	14	29	12	19
Selenium	7782-49-2	5	mg/kg	<5	<5	<5	<5	<5
Vanadium	7440-62-2	5	mg/kg	61	53	43	29	43
Zinc	7440-66-6	5	mg/kg	75	104	30	227	17
EG035T: Total Recoverable M	ercury by FIMS							
Mercury	7439-97-6	0.1	mg/kg	<0.1	1.0	<0.1	1.5	<0.1
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aro	matic Hydrocarbons							15505771
Naphthalene	91-20-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Acenaphthylene	208-96-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	0.5	<0.5
Acenaphthene	83-32-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Fluorene	86-73-7	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Phenanthrene	85-01-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	1.7	<0.5
Anthracene	120-12-7	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	1.0	<0.5
Fluoranthene	206-44-0	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	6.1	<0.5
Pyrene	129-00-0	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	6.6	<0.5
Benz(a)anthracene	56-55-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	2.9	<0.5
Chrysene	218-01-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	2.7	<0.5
Benzo(b+j)fluoranthene	205-99-2 205-82-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	4.1	<0.5
Benzo(k)fluoranthene	207-08-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	1.4	<0.5
Benzo(a)pyrene	50-32-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0,5	<0.5	3.6	<0.5
Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene	193-39-5	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	1.9	<0.5
Dibenz(a.h)anthracene	53-70-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5

Page	: 10 of 18
Work Order	; EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL (Matrix: SOIL)		Cli	ent sample ID	BH17 1.9-2.0m	BH18 0.2-0.3m	BH18 0.9-1.0m	BH19 0.2-0.3m	BH19 0.9-1.0m
	Cli	ent sampli	ing date / time	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717027-011	EM1717027-012	EM1717027-013	EM1717027-014	EM1717027-015
				Result	Result	Result	Result	Result
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aromatic H	ydrocarbons - Conti	nued						
Benzo(g.h.i)perylene	191-24-2	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	2.6	<0.5
^ Sum of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbon	s	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	35.1	<0.5
^ Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (zero)		0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	4.7	<0.5
^ Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (half LOR)	1000	0.5	mg/kg	0.6	0.6	0.6	4.9	0.6
[^] Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (LOR)		0.5	mg/kg	1.2	1.2	1.2	5.2	1.2
EP080/071: Total Petroleum Hydrocart	oons							
C6 - C9 Fraction		10	mg/kg	<10	<10	<10	<10	<10
C10 - C14 Fraction		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	<50	<50
C15 - C28 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100	<100	310	<100
C29 - C36 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100	<100	300	<100
^ C10 - C36 Fraction (sum)		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	610	<50
EP080/071: Total Recoverable Hydroca	arbons - NEPM 201	3 Fractio	ns					
C6 - C10 Fraction	C6 C10	10	mg/kg	<10	<10	<10	<10	<10
^ C6 - C10 Fraction minus BTEX	C6 C10-BTEX	10	mg/kg	<10	<10	<10	<10	<10
(F1)								
>C10 - C16 Fraction		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	<50	<50
>C16 - C34 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100	<100	530	<100
>C34 - C40 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100	<100	160	<100
^ >C10 - C40 Fraction (sum)		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	690	<50
^ >C10 - C16 Fraction minus Naphthalene		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	<50	<50	<50
(F2)								
EP080: BTEXN								
Benzene	71-43-2	0.2	mg/kg	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2
Toluene	108-88-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Ethylbenzene	100-41-4	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
meta- & para-Xylene	108-38-3 106-42-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
ortho-Xylene	95-47-6	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
^ Sum of BTEX		0.2	mg/kg	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2	<0.2
^ Total Xylenes	1,	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5
Naphthalene	91-20-3	1	mg/kg	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
EP075(SIM)S: Phenolic Compound Su	rrogates							
Phenol-d6	13127-88-3	0.5	%	85.2	99.4	93.4	95.5	87.3
2-Chlorophenol-D4	93951-73-6	0.5	%	84.6	86.3	81.1	81.5	80.1
2.4.6-Tribromophenol	118-79-6	0.5	%	58.0	69.9	64.2	76.2	61.4

Page	: 11 of 18
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL (Matrix: SOIL)		Client sample ID		BH17 1.9-2.0m	BH18 0.2-0.3m	BH18 0.9-1.0m	BH19 0.2-0.3m	BH19 0.9-1.0m
	Cli	ent samplir	ng date / time	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717027-011	EM1717027-012	EM1717027-013	EM1717027-014	EM1717027-015
- 23				Result	Result	Result	Result	Result
EP075(SIM)T: PAH Surrogates								
2-Fluorobiphenyl	321-60-8	0.5	%	88.2	87.1	89.5	86.7	82.2
Anthracene-d10	1719-06-8	0.5	%	81.7	92.6	82.3	93.1	82.9
4-Terphenyl-d14	1718-51-0	0.5	%	111	106	106	103	98.1
EP080S: TPH(V)/BTEX Surrogates								
1.2-Dichloroethane-D4	17060-07-0	0.2	%	80.9	72.5	78.3	82.9	77.2
Toluene-D8	2037-26-5	0.2	%	86.8	76.1	86.7	90.9	81.3
4-Bromofluorobenzene	460-00-4	0.2	%	106	93.3	105	109	103

Page	: 12 of 18
Work Order	; EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL		Clie	ent sample ID	BH20 0.5m	BH21 0.5m	Same	19200	0.000
	Clic	ent samplii	ng date / time	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00			
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717027-016	EM1717027-017	*******		
		A DANIOUC	Street States	Result	Result	<u>602</u> 1		
EA055: Moisture Content (Dried	(@ 105-110°C)			-Andreas -	La casimira di s		1	
Moisture Content		1.0	%	22.1	20.1			
EG005T: Total Metals by ICP-A	S			and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second secon				
Arsenic	7440-38-2	5	mg/kg	<5	6			
Barium	7440-39-3	10	mg/kg	40	170			
Beryllium	7440-41-7	1	mg/kg	<1	<1			
Boron	7440-42-8	50	mg/kg	<50	<50		14222	1
Cadmium	7440-43-9	1	mg/kg	<1	<1		S <b></b>	
Chromium	7440-47-3	2	mg/kg	12	12	(1012)	7 <u>9499</u>	2 and a
Cobalt	7440-48-4	2	mg/kg	3	11			
Copper	7440-50-8	5	mg/kg	10	49			
Lead	7439-92-1	5	mg/kg	9	238	( <u>1917</u> )	22.538	2.538
Manganese	7439-96-5	5	mg/kg	59	301			
Nickel	7440-02-0	2	mg/kg	4	15		2000	1.000
Selenium	7782-49-2	5	mg/kg	<5	<5		1	1.22
Vanadium	7440-62-2	5	mg/kg	48	29			
Zinc	7440-66-6	5	mg/kg	12	157		U <u>erre</u>	
EG035T: Total Recoverable Me	reury by FIMS						1	
Mercury	7439-97-6	0.1	mg/kg	<0.1	0.8	1202	1 1.22	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aron	natic Hydrocarbons							
Naphthalene	91-20-3	0.5	ma/ka	<0.5	<0.5			
Acenaphthylene	208-96-8	0.5	ma/ka	<0.5	<0.5			
Acenaphthene	83-32-9	0.5	ma/ka	<0.5	<0.5	1		
Fluorene	86-73-7	0.5	ma/ka	<0.5	<0.5			
Phenanthrene	85-01-8	0.5	ma/ka	<0.5	1.5			
Anthracene	120-12-7	0.5	ma/ka	<0.5	<0.5	10.004	0 <u>222</u>	
Fluoranthene	206-44-0	0.5	ma/ka	<0.5	3.5			
Pyrene	129-00-0	0.5	ma/ka	<0.5	3.7	2		2
Benz(a)anthracene	56-55-3	0.5	ma/ka	<0.5	2.6			
Chrysene	218-01-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	2.1	terror o	0.000	04607
Benzo(b+j)fluoranthene	205-99-2 205-82-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3.4	100 M	10000	1
Benzo(k)fluoranthene	207-08-9	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	1.1			(
Benzo(a)pyrene	50-32-8	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	2.8	2000000		
Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene	193-39-5	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	1.5			
Dibenz(a,h)anthracene	52-70-3	0.5	ma/ka	<0.5	<0.5	(1000) (1000)	anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anterese anteres	Contraction of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second seco

Page	: 13 of 18
Work Order	; EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL (Matrix: SOIL)		Cli	ent sample ID	BH20 0.5m	BH21 0.5m	Name:	1	2) <del>1000</del>
	Cli	ent sampli	ng date / time	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00	19222		
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717027-016	EM1717027-017	******		
			-	Result	Result	<u> 6112</u>		
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aromatic H	drocarbons - Conti	nued						
Benzo(g.h.i)perylene	191-24-2	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	1.8		(	
^ Sum of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons		0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	24.0			
^ Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (zero)		0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	3.7	(****)	Serie	S and a
A Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (half LOR)	2002	0.5	mg/kg	0.6	3.9		5	1
[^] Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (LOR)		0.5	mg/kg	1.2	4.2	0.000	N. S.	1.000
EP080/071: Total Petroleum Hvdrocarb	ons				de la companya de la companya de la companya de la companya de la companya de la companya de la companya de la			
C6 - C9 Fraction		10	mg/kg	<10	<10		Same .	S
C10 - C14 Fraction		50	mg/kg	<50	<50			
C15 - C28 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100			
C29 - C36 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100	( and a	1	
⁶ C10 - C36 Fraction (sum)		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	( <u>1111</u> 9	21 <u>2-22</u>	71-121
EP080/071: Total Recoverable Hydroca	rbons - NEPM 201	3 Fractio	ns					
C6 - C10 Fraction	C6 C10	10	mg/kg	<10	<10	1 <u>1111</u> 1	1	1
C6 - C10 Fraction minus BTEX	C6 C10-BTEX	10	mg/kg	<10	<10			
(F1)	100							1 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 -
>C10 - C16 Fraction		50	mg/kg	<50	<50	( <u>1995</u> )	77 <u>222</u>	10000
>C16 - C34 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	140		S. <del>arres</del>	Saure
>C34 - C40 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	<100		8.222	8
>C10 - C40 Fraction (sum)		50	mg/kg	<50	140	0.00000	1.5558.	11.55576
>C10 - C16 Fraction minus Naphthalene		50	mg/kg	<50	<50			
(F2)								
EP080: BTEXN								
Benzene	71-43-2	0.2	mg/kg	<0.2	<0.2			
Toluene	108-88-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5		1.000	1.000
Ethylbenzene	100-41-4	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	( <del></del> )	1	(
meta- & para-Xylene	108-38-3 106-42-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5		1997	(4 <u>184</u>
ortho-Xylene	95-47-6	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	(****)		(: <del></del>
Sum of BTEX		0.2	mg/kg	<0.2	<0.2	( <b>111</b> )		
∖ Total Xylenes	S <del></del>	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	<0.5	( <del>199</del> 4)	1.1 <del>.1.1.1</del> .	1.0000
Naphthalene	91-20-3	1	mg/kg	<1	<1	(*****)		
EP075(SIM)S: Phenolic Compound Sur	rogates			No. of Concession, name	Line Line			
Phenol-d6	13127-88-3	0.5	%	89.3	85.4		() <u>2000</u>	(1999)
2-Chiorophenoi-D4	93951-73-6	0.5	%	80.5	73.1			
2.4.6-Tribromophenol	118-79-6	0.5	%	68.0	71.6		1	Times

Page	: 14 of 18
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL (Matrix: SOIL)		Clie	nt sample ID	BH20 0.5m	BH21 0.5m			() <del>)</del>
	Cli	ent samplin	ig date / time	12-Dec-2017 00:00	12-Dec-2017 00:00			
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717027-016	EM1717027-017	*******		Constant.
-11				Result	Result	482		
EP075(SIM)T: PAH Surrogates								
2-Fluorobiphenyl	321-60-8	0.5	%	83.6	83.4			
Anthracene-d10	1719-06-8	0.5	%	82.7	91.7			
4-Terphenyl-d14	1718-51-0	0.5	%	101	102		Serve.	
EP080S: TPH(V)/BTEX Surrogates								
1.2-Dichloroethane-D4	17060-07-0	0.2	%	93.4	73.0			13 <b></b>
Toluene-D8	2037-26-5	0.2	%	106	82.5	7 <u>202</u> 8	17222	1922
4-Bromofluorobenzene	460-00-4	0.2	%	123	98.9			3.0000

Page	: 15 of 18
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: WATER (Matrix: WATER)		Clier	nt sample ID	Rinsate	57 <b></b> 57			1
100 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000	Cl	ient samplin	g date / time	11-Dec-2017 00:00				
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717027-019				
			-	Result	1202	482		-
EG020F: Dissolved Metals by ICP-MS	3							
Arsenic	7440-38-2	0.001	mg/L	<0.001			( and a	
Boron	7440-42-8	0.05	mg/L	<0.05	1022			
Barium	7440-39-3	0.001	mg/L	<0.001			S and the	S <del>and a</del>
Beryllium	7440-41-7	0.001	mg/L	<0.001			5 <b></b>	5 <u>-112</u>
Cadmium	7440-43-9	0.0001	mg/L	<0.0001	3255		5.000	5.000
Cobalt	7440-48-4	0.001	mg/L	<0.001			0.000	0.000
Chromium	7440-47-3	0.001	mg/L	<0.001			(	(
Copper	7440-50-8	0.001	mg/L	<0.001			(1999)	2. <del>2.00</del>
Manganese	7439-96-5	0.001	mg/L	<0.001				
Nickel	7440-02-0	0.001	mg/L	<0.001	1000		21,000	
Lead	7439-92-1	0.001	mg/L	<0.001			(	()
Selenium	7782-49-2	0.01	mg/L	<0.01	1.11	1 <u>1220</u> 5	10 <u></u>	11 <u></u>
Vanadium	7440-62-2	0.01	mg/L	<0.01				
Zinc	7440-66-6	0.005	mg/L	0.017	1951			02000
EG035E: Dissolved Mercury by EIMS			and the second second					
Mercury	7439-97-6	0.0001	mg/L	<0.0001	2002	1	1. 844	8.000
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aromatic	Hydrocarbons							
Naphthalene	91-20-3	1.0	µg/L	<1.0	1000	5 <u>2225</u> 7	N <u>222</u>	N <u>222</u>
Acenaphthylene	208-96-8	1.0	µg/L	<1.0	****			2. <del></del>
Acenaphthene	83-32-9	1.0	µg/L	<1.0			2 <b></b> 2	2 <u>2 2 2 2 2</u>
Fluorene	86-73-7	1.0	µg/L	<1.0	0.000	(2000)		1.000
Phenanthrene	85-01-8	1.0	µg/L	<1.0	( <del></del>			() <del></del>
Anthracene	120-12-7	1.0	µg/L	<1.0	1000	<u>HEZZW</u> E	0.222	0 <u>.048</u>
Fluoranthene	206-44-0	1.0	µg/L	<1.0				
Pyrene	129-00-0	1.0	µg/L	<1.0			2000 C 2000	2 <u>2018</u>
Benz(a)anthracene	56-55-3	1.0	µg/L	<1.0				
Chrysene	218-01-9	1.0	µg/L	<1.0				
Benzo(b+j)fluoranthene	205-99-2 205-82-3	1.0	µg/L	<1.0	2222		/ <u>////2</u>	1. N <u>CC12</u> 8
Benzo(k)fluoranthene	207-08-9	1.0	µg/L	<1.0				2
Benzo(a)pyrene	50-32-8	0.5	µg/L	<0.5		- 2000		3 <u></u>
Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene	193-39-5	1.0	µg/L	<1.0				
Dibenz(a.h)anthracene	53-70-3	1.0	µg/L	<1.0				
Benzo(g.h.i)perylene	191-24-2	1.0	µg/L	<1.0	<u>1995</u>	( <u>111</u>	21 <u>232</u>	Market Contraction
^ Sum of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbo	ins	0.5	ug/l	<0.5				

Page	: 16 of 18
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: WATER (Matrix: WATER)		Clie	nt sample ID	Rinsate				(internet)
180 - 18 11	Clie	ent samplir	ng date / time	11-Dec-2017 00:00				
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717027-019	******			
				Result	<u>2554</u>	400	<u> </u>	100
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aromatic Hy	drocarbons - Conti	nued						
^ Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (zero)		0.5	µg/L	<0.5				
EP080/071: Total Petroleum Hydrocarb	ons							
C6 - C9 Fraction		20	µg/L	<20				1
C10 - C14 Fraction		50	µg/L	<50				
C15 - C28 Fraction		100	µg/L	<100				
C29 - C36 Fraction	(LLL)	50	µg/L	<50	200		1222	14222
^ C10 - C36 Fraction (sum)		50	µg/L	<50				
EP080/071: Total Recoverable Hydroca	rbons - NEPM 201	3 Fraction	IS			W//	····	
C6 - C10 Fraction	C6 C10	20	µg/L	<20				
[^] C6 - C10 Fraction minus BTEX (F1)	C6_C10-BTEX	20	µg/L	<20	21111			
>C10 - C16 Fraction		100	ug/L	<100				
>C16 - C34 Fraction		100	ug/L	<100			1000	0.000
>C34 - C40 Fraction		100	ug/L	<100				
^ >C10 - C40 Fraction (sum)		100	ug/L	<100				
^ >C10 - C16 Fraction minus Naphthalene		100	ug/L	<100	- <u></u>	1222	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
(F2)	1000	3350	10	1.1979,20,				
FP080- BTEXN		14					50°	
Benzene	71-43-2	1	µg/L	<1				
Toluene	108-88-3	2	µg/L	<2			1	10000
Ethylbenzene	100-41-4	2	µg/L	<2	1222		1	Name -
meta- & para-Xylene	108-38-3 106-42-3	2	µg/L	<2				5 <b></b>
ortho-Xylene	95-47-6	2	µg/L	<2			2	
^ Total Xylenes		2	µg/L	<2				
^ Sum of BTEX		1	µg/L	<1				
Naphthalene	91-20-3	5	µg/L	<5	2 3392			19222
EP075(SIM)S: Phenolic Compound Sur	rogates							
Phenol-d6	13127-88-3	1.0	%	30.6				
2-Chlorophenol-D4	93951-73-6	1.0	%	70.7				7
2.4.6-Tribromophenol	118-79-6	1.0	%	74.4	2001	( <u>1112</u> )		2 <u></u>
EP075(SIM)T: PAH Surrogates								
2-Fluorobiphenyl	321-60-8	1.0	%	80.6	1.000	5100	1 v	2 <u></u>
Anthracene-d10	1719-06-8	1.0	%	85.4				
4-Terphenyl-d14	1718-51-0	1.0	%	83.6				2000

Page	: 17 of 18
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: WATER (Matrix: WATER)		Clie	ent sample ID	Rinsate	11 <b>11 11 1</b> 1		 
- 140 - 62 - 1	Cli	ent samplir	ng date / time	11-Dec-2017 00:00	2.00		 
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717027-019			 timeter.
- 214				Result		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	 
EP080S: TPH(V)/BTEX Surrogates							
1.2-Dichloroethane-D4	17060-07-0	2	%	102			 
Toluene-D8	2037-26-5	2	%	103			 
4-Bromofluorobenzene	460-00-4	2	%	104			 Stores

Page	: 18 of 18
Work Order	: EM1717027
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	Gorringe

## Surrogate Control Limits

Sub-Matrix: SOIL		Recovery Limits (%)			
Compound	CAS Number	Low	High		
EP075(SIM)S: Phenolic Compound	Surrogates				
Phenol-d6	13127-88-3	54	125		
2-Chlorophenol-D4	93951-73-6	65	123		
2.4.6-Tribromophenol	118-79-6	34	122		
EP075(SIM)T: PAH Surrogates					
2-Fluorobiphenyl	321-60-8	61	125		
Anthracene-d10	1719-06-8	62	130		
4-Terphenyl-d14	1718-51-0	67	133		
EP080S: TPH(V)/BTEX Surrogates					
1.2-Dichloroethane-D4	17060-07-0	51	125		
Toluene-D8	2037-26-5	55	125		
4-Bromofluorobenzene	460-00-4	56	124		
Sub-Matrix: WATER		Recovery	Limits (%)		
Compound	CAS Number	Low	High		
EP075(SIM)S: Phenolic Compound	Surrogates				
Phenol-d6	13127-88-3	10	46		
2-Chlorophenol-D4	93951-73-6	23	104		
2.4.6-Tribromophenol	118-79-6	28	130		
EP075(SIM)T: PAH Surrogates					
2-Fluorobiphenyl	321-60-8	36	114		
Anthracene-d10	1719-06-8	51	119		
4-Terphenyl-d14	1718-51-0	49	127		
EP080S: TPH(V)/BTEX Surrogates					
1.2-Dichloroethane-D4	17060-07-0	73	129		
Toluene-D8	2037-26-5	70	125		
4-Bromofluorobenzene	460-00-4	71	129		





## **CERTIFICATE OF ANALYSIS**

Work Order	: EM1717330	Page	: 1 of 6		
Client	GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS	Laboratory	: Environmental Division Melbourne		
Contact	KRIS TAYLOR	Contact	: Shirley LeCornu		
Address	29 KIRKSWAY PLACE	Address	: 4 Westall Rd Springvale VIC Australia 3171		
	BATTERY POINT TASMANIA, AUSTRALIA 7004				
Telephone	: +61 03 6223 1839	Telephone	: +61-3-8549 9630		
Project	: Gorringe	Date Samples Received	: 12-Dec-2017 10:10		
Order number	:	Date Analysis Commenced	: 12-Dec-2017		
C-O-C number	:	Issue Date	: 19-Dec-2017 15:12		
Sampler	: AARON PLUMMER		Hac-MRA NATA		
Site	:				
Quote number	: EN/222/17		Manual Automation Man 201		
No. of samples received	:1		Accredited for compliance with		
No. of samples analysed	:1		ISO/IEC 17025 - Testing		

This report supersedes any previous report(s) with this reference. Results apply to the sample(s) as submitted. This document shall not be reproduced, except in full.

This Certificate of Analysis contains the following information:

- General Comments
- Analytical Results
- Surrogate Control Limits

Additional information pertinent to this report will be found in the following separate attachments: Quality Control Report, QA/QC Compliance Assessment to assist with Quality Review and Sample Receipt Notification.

#### Signatories

This document has been electronically signed by the authorized signatories below. Electronic signing is carried out in compliance with procedures specified in 21 CFR Part 11.

Signatories	Position	Accreditation Category
Nancy Wang	2IC Organic Chemist	Melbourne Organics, Springvale, VIC
Nikki Stepniewski	Senior Inorganic Instrument Chemist	Melbourne Inorganics, Springvale, VIC

#### RIGHT SOLUTIONS | RIGHT PARTNER

Page	: 2 of 6
Work Order	: EM171733D
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



#### General Comments

The analytical procedures used by the Environmental Division have been developed from established internationally recognized procedures such as those published by the USEPA, APHA, AS and NEPM. In house developed procedures are employed in the absence of documented standards or by client request.

Where moisture determination has been performed, results are reported on a dry weight basis.

Where a reported less than (<) result is higher than the LOR, this may be due to primary sample extract/digestate dilution and/or insufficient sample for analysis.

Where the LOR of a reported result differs from standard LOR, this may be due to high moisture content, insufficient sample (reduced weight employed) or matrix interference.

When sampling time information is not provided by the client, sampling dates are shown without a time component. In these instances, the time component has been assumed by the laboratory for processing purposes.

Where a result is required to meet compliance limits the associated uncertainty must be considered. Refer to the ALS Contact for details.

Key: CAS Number = CAS registry number from database maintained by Chemical Abstracts Services. The Chemical Abstracts Service is a division of the American Chemical Society.

LOR = Limit of reporting

* = This result is computed from individual analyte detections at or above the level of reporting

ø = ALS is not NATA accredited for these tests.

~ = Indicates an estimated value.

This is a rebatch of EM1717027

Benzo(a)pyrene Toxicity Equivalent Quotient (TEQ) is the sum total of the concentration of the eight carcinogenic PAHs multiplied by their Toxicity Equivalence Factor (TEF) relative to Benzo(a)pyrene. TEF values are provided in brackets as follows: Benz(a)anthracene (0.1), Chrysene (0.01), Benzo(b+j) & Benzo(k)fluoranthene (0.1), Benzo(a)pyrene (1.0), Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene (0.1), Dibenz(a.h)anthracene (1.0), Benzo(g.h.i)perylene (0.01). Less than LOR results for 'TEQ Zero' are treated as zero, for 'TEQ 1/2LOR' are treated as half the reported LOR, and for 'TEQ LOR' are treated as being equal to the reported LOR. Note: TEQ 1/2LOR and TEQ LOR will calculate as 0.6mg/Kg and 1.2mg/Kg respectively for samples with non-detects for all of the eight TEQ PAHs.

# Page : 3 of 6 Work Order : EM1717330 Client : GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS Project : Gorringe



Sub-Matrix: SOIL (Matrix: SOIL)	Client sample ID			Duplicate							
	Client sampling date / time			12-Dec-2017 00:00							
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717330-001							
				Result							
EA055: Moisture Content (Dried @ 105-110°C)											
Moisture Content		1.0	%	20.5							
EG005T: Total Metals by ICP-AES											
Arsenic	7440-38-2	5	mg/kg	7							
Barium	7440-39-3	10	mg/kg	140							
Beryllium	7440-41-7	1	mg/kg	<1							
Boron	7440-42-8	50	mg/kg	<50							
Cadmium	7440-43-9	1	mg/kg	<1							
Chromium	7440-47-3	2	mg/kg	13							
Cobalt	7440-48-4	2	mg/kg	16							
Copper	7440-50-8	5	mg/kg	35							
Lead	7439-92-1	5	mg/kg	166							
Manganese	7439-96-5	5	mg/kg	320							
Nickel	7440-02-0	2	mg/kg	19							
Selenium	7782-49-2	5	mg/kg	<5							
Vanadium	7440-62-2	5	mg/kg	22							
Zinc	7440-66-6	5	mg/kg	173							
EG035T: Total Recoverable Mercur	y by FIMS										
Mercury	7439-97-6	0.1	mg/kg	0.7							
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aromatic	: Hydrocarbons										
Naphthalene	91-20-3	0.5	mg/kg	⊲0.5							
Acenaphthylene	208-96-8	0.5	mg/kg	⊲0.5							
Acenaphthene	83-32-9	0.5	mg/kg	⊲0.5							
Fluorene	86-73-7	0.5	mg/kg	⊲0.5							
Phenanthrene	85-01-8	0.5	mg/kg	0.8							
Anthracene	120-12-7	0.5	mg/kg	⊲0.5							
Fluoranthene	206-44-0	0.5	mg/kg	2.4							
Pyrene	129-00-0	0.5	mg/kg	2.7							
Benz(a)anthracene	56-55-3	0.5	mg/kg	1.8							
Chrysene	218-01-9	0.5	mg/kg	1.6							
Benzo(b+j)fluoranthene	205-99-2 205-82-3	0.5	mg/kg	2.2							
Benzo(k)fluoranthene	207-08-9	0.5	mg/kg	1.0							
Benzo(a)pyrene	50-32-8	0.5	mg/kg	1.8							
Indeno(1.2.3.cd)pyrene	193-39-5	0.5	mg/kg	1.0							
Dibenz(a.h)anthracene	53-70-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5							
# Page : 4 of 6 Work Order : EM1717330 Client : GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS Project : Gorringe



#### Analytical Results

Sub-Matrix: SOIL (Matrix: SOIL)		Clie	ent sample ID	Duplicate	 	 
	Cli	ent sampli	ng date / time	12-Dec-2017 00:00	 	 
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717330-001	 	 
				Result	 	 
EP075(SIM)B: Polynuclear Aromatic Hyd	drocarbons - Conti	inued				
Benzo(g.h.i)perylene	191-24-2	0.5	mg/kg	1.1	 	 
^ Sum of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons		0.5	mg/kg	16.4	 	 
^ Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (zero)		0.5	mg/kg	2.4	 	 
^ Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (half LOR)		0.5	mg/kg	2.7	 	 
^ Benzo(a)pyrene TEQ (LOR)		0.5	mg/kg	2.9	 	 
EP080/071: Total Petroleum Hydrocarbo	ns					
C6 - C9 Fraction		10	mg/kg	<10	 	 
C10 - C14 Fraction		50	mg/kg	<50	 	 
C15 - C28 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	 	 
C29 - C36 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	 	 
^ C10 - C36 Fraction (sum)		50	mg/kg	<50	 	 
EP080/071: Total Recoverable Hydrocar	bons - NEPM 201	3 Fraction	ns			
C6 - C10 Fraction	C8_C10	10	mg/kg	<10	 	 
[^] C6 - C10 Fraction minus BTEX	C6_C10-BTEX	10	mg/kg	<10	 	 
(F1)						
>C10 - C16 Fraction		50	mg/kg	<50	 	 
>C16 - C34 Fraction		100	mg/kg	120	 	 
>C34 - C40 Fraction		100	mg/kg	<100	 	 
^ >C10 - C40 Fraction (sum)		50	mg/kg	120	 	 
* >C10 - C16 Fraction minus Naphthalene		50	mg/kg	<50	 	 
(F2)						
EP080: BTEXN						
Benzene	71-43-2	0.2	mg/kg	⊲0.2	 	 
Toluene	108-88-3	0.5	mg/kg	⊲0.5	 	 
Ethylbenzene	100-41-4	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	 	 
meta- & para-Xylene	108-38-3 106-42-3	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	 	 
ortho-Xylene	95-47-6	0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	 	 
^ Sum of BTEX		0.2	mg/kg	⊲0.2	 	 
^ Total Xylenes		0.5	mg/kg	<0.5	 	 
Naphthalene	91-20-3	1	mg/kg	<1	 	 
EP075(SIM)S: Phenolic Compound Surro	ogates					
Phenol-d6	13127-88-3	0.5	%	89.7	 	 
2-Chlorophenol-D4	93951-73-6	0.5	%	85.3	 	 
2.4.6-Tribromophenol	118-79-6	0.5	%	75.6	 	 

Page	: 5 of 8
Work Order	: EM1717330
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe



#### Analytical Results

Sub-Matrix: SOIL (Matrix: SOIL)		Clie	ent sample ID	Duplicate	 	 
	Cli	ient sampli	ng date / time	12-Dec-2017 00:00	 	 
Compound	CAS Number	LOR	Unit	EM1717330-001	 	 
				Result	 	 
EP075(SIM)T: PAH Surrogates						
2-Fluorobiphenyl	321-60-8	0.5	%	110	 	 
Anthracene-d10	1719-06-8	0.5	%	113	 	 
4-Terphenyl-d14	1718-51-0	0.5	%	110	 	 
EP080S: TPH(V)/BTEX Surrogates						
1.2-Dichloroethane-D4	17080-07-0	0.2	%	73.0	 	 
Toluene-D8	2037-26-5	0.2	%	82.5	 	 
4-Bromofluorobenzene	460-00-4	0.2	%	98.9	 	 

Page	: 6 of 8
Work Order	: EM1717330
Client	: GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS
Project	: Gorringe

#### Surrogate Control Limits

Sub-Matrix: SOIL		Recovery	Limits (%)
Compound	CAS Number	Low	High
EP075(SIM)S: Phenolic Compound Surrogates			
Phenol-d6	13127-88-3	54	125
2-Chlorophenol-D4	93951-73-6	65	123
2.4.6-Tribromophenol	118-79-6	34	122
EP075(SIM)T: PAH Surrogates			
2-Fluorobiphenyl	321-60-8	61	125
Anthracene-d10	1719-06-8	62	130
4-Terphenyl-d14	1718-51-0	67	133
EP080S: TPH(V)/BTEX Surrogates			
1.2-Dichloroethane-D4	17060-07-0	51	125
Toluene-D8	2037-28-5	55	125
4-Bromofluorobenzene	460-00-4	56	124



Environmental Site Assessment. 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart. December 2017

#### **Appendix 9 Soil Vapour Analytical Results**



Chartered Chemists

19-Dec-2017

A.B.N. 44 000 964 278 10 / 585 Blackburn Road Notting Hill, Vic, 3168 Telephone: (03) 9574 3200

> REPORT NUMBER: M171189 Site/Client Ref: Supply & Analysis of WMS

**Geo-Environmental Solutions** 

86 Queen Street Sandy Bay TAS 7005 Attention: Sarah Joyce

#### **CERTIFICATE OF ANALYSIS**

SAMPLES:

Five samples were received for analysis

DATE RECEIVED:

15-Dec-2017

15-Dec-2017

See Attached Results

DATE COMMENCED:

METHODS:

Please refer to attached pages for results.

RESULTS: Please refer to a Note: Results are based on samples as received at SGS laboratories

Results in airbourne concentrations are calculated using data provided by the client

**REPORTED BY:** 

Nap

Majid Abdolali Chemist



NATA Accredited Laboratory Number: 2562 Corporate Site Number: 14420 Accredited for compliance with ISO/IEC 17025.

Page 1 of 5



# ANALYTICAL RESULTS

# Matrix: Passive Sampler

# Method: MA-5.WL.04 Volatile Organics

Sample units are expressed in µg/m^a

#### Test Started: 15/12/2017

Analyte Name	Leeder ID Client ID Sampled Date PQL	2017016059 VP1 1730-AN-LU-067 14/12/2017	2017016060 VP2 1730-AN-LU-070 14/12/2017	2017016061 VP3 1730-AN-LU-066 14/12/2017	2017016062 VP4 1730-AN-LU-068 14/12/2017	2017016063 Dup 1730-AN-LU-069 14/12/2017
Benzene		<19	<19	<18	<19	<18
Ethylbenzene		<10	<10	47	<10	<9.9
Naphthalene		<13	<12	<12	<13	<12
Toluene		17	<13	14	<13	<12
o-Xylene		<10	<10	21	<10	<10
m&p-Xylenes		17	<10	110	<10	<10

#### Matrix: Passive Sampler

Method: MA-5.WL.03 Volatile Organics

Sample units are expressed in µg total

	Leeder ID Client ID	2017016064 Method
Analyte Name	Sampled Date PQL	Blank
Benzene	0.05	nd
Ethylbenzene	0.05	nd
Naphthalene	0.05	nd
Toluene	0.05	nd
o-Xylene	0.05	nd
m&p-Xylenes	0.05	nd

#### Matrix: Passive Sampler

Method: MA-30.AIR.04 Total Recoverable Hydrocarbons Sample units are expressed in mg/m³

	Leeder ID Client ID	2017016059 VP1	2017016060 VP2	2017016061 VP3	2017016062 VP4	2017016063 Dup
		1730-AN-LU-067	1730-AN-LU-070	1730-AN-LU-066	1730-AN-LU-068	1730-AN-LU-069
Analyte Name	Sampled Date PQL	14/12/2017	14/12/2017	14/12/2017	14/12/2017	14/12/2017
C6-C10		<2.5	<2.5	14	<2.5	<2.5
C6-C10 (ex 8TEX)		<2.5	<2.5	13	<2.5	<2.5
>C10-C16		<1.0	<1.0	2.4	<1.0	<1.0
>C10-C16 (less Naphthal	ene)	<1.0	<1.0	2.4	<1.0	<1.0

Test Started: 15/12/2017

Test Started: 15/12/2017



# ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Test Started: 15/12/2017

Matrix: Passive Sampler Method: MA-30.AIR.03 Total Recoverable Hydrocarbons

Sample units are expressed in µg total

	Leeder ID Client ID	2017016064 Method
Analyte Name Sa	mpled Date PQL	Blank
C6-C10	5	nd
C6-C10 (ex BTEX)	5	nd
>C10-C16	5	nd
>C10-C16 (less Naphthalene	5	nd

Page 3 of 5



# QA/QC RESULTS

Test Started: 15/12/2017

#### Matrix: Passive Sampler Method: MA-5.WL.03 Volatile Organics

Quality Control Results are expressed in Percent Recovery of expected result

	Leeder ID	2017016065	2017016066
	Client ID	Method	Method
Analyte Name	Sampled Date PQL	Spike	Spike Dup
Benzene		114	113
Ethylbenzene		100	96
Toluene		106	104
o-Xylene		100	98
m&p-Xylenes		102	99



#### **QUALIFIERS / NOTES FOR REPORTED RESULTS**

- PQL Practical Quantitation Limit
- nd Not Detected The analyte was not detected above the reported PQL.
- is Insufficient Sample to perform this analysis.
- T Tentative identification based on computer library search of mass spectra.
- NC Not calculated and/or Results below PQL
- NV No Vacuum, Canister received above standard atmospheric pressure
- nr Not Requested for analysis.
- R Rejected Result results for this analysis failed QC checks.
- SQ Semi-Quantitative result quantitation based on a generic response factor for this class of analyte.
- IM Inappropriate method of analysis for this compound
- U Unable to provide Quality Control data high levels of compounds in sample interfered with analysis of QC results.
- UF Unable to provide Quality Control data- Surrogates failed QCchecks due to sample matrix effects
- Analyte detected at a level above the linear response of calibration curve.
- E Estimated result. NATA accreditation does not cover estimated results.
- C1 These compounds co-elute.
- -- Parameter Not Determined
- CT Elevated concentration. Results reported from carbon tube analysis
- ** Sample shows non-petroleum hydrocarbon profile

This document is issued, on the Client's behalf, by the Company under its General Conditions of Service available on request and accessible at http://www.sgs.com/en/Tems-and-Conditions/General-Conditions-of-Services-English.aspx. The Client's attention is drawn to the limitation of liability, indemnification and jurisdiction issues defined therein.

Any other hold er of this document is advised that information contained hereon reflects the Company's findings at the time of its intervention only and within the limits of Client's instructions, if any. The Company's sole responsibility is to its Client and this document does not exonerate parties to a transaction from exercising all their rights and obligations under the transaction documents

This report must not be reproduced, except in full.

Page 5 of 5



#### APPENDIX ONE.

CHAIN OF CUSTODY DOCUMENT

-Chain of Custody Record

																						-
CLIENT NAME: C.ES	8		1.53	CONTAC	T PHON	E No: 6	223	1839						AB	× 24	115 0	10	34				
CLIENT ADDRESS: 29 Kirkswo	y Place	6	20	SAMPLE	D BY:	Porot	Ha	make						1	B QUOT	ENUMB	R2					
forther harding	D.		2	RESULT	S REQUI	RED BV:	100	- OUV	turn	arour	@ P	50%	Sunt	tore	Analy	es Requir	vd (Analy	te + Met	hod Code	-	ł	
CONTACT: SOMAN JOYCE PROJECT REF. COMPAGE - 6	le Burne	いも	- 01	SCOSO	UDRESS	5.100 S	He San	Nican	Oge	r. Sro	at au,	Jour (	Sprim	100							_	
PURCHASE ORDER No:				Container	s/Preserv	ation (ples	we mark	with X)				- P	rulas, P.a	Pint I	~		_	-			-	_
Client Sumple ID	Date Sampled	Math Soll Was	Sed.	A.I-IL. Jar0(i) n.a.	0.1-1.0 time(0) Nat:	Nation 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	mil III- ii)(II) (I SOH H2S	11 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	1251 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 1259 100 100 1259 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 10	L 125nd Pithe Vev	6 8 8 8 6 8 8 8	H III	NEGW :	od voj		- 14 <u></u>	_				
VP1 (1730-AN-LU-067)	10 the	-	>		T	-	-	+					+				+	-			+	1
4P2 (1730-AN-40-070)	н	-	>			-	-	$\vdash$	-	-		-	┝	3			-	-			-	
VP3 (1730-AN-LU-066)	3		>	-				-					-	>			-				+	
VP4 (1730-AN-40-068)			>				-	-				$\vdash$	$\vdash$	12			-	-			+	-
Pup (1730-AN-LV-069)	4		7											2								
		-																			_	
						-	-	-	-	-		-	+	+	-						-	
		-				-	-	-	_	-		-		-		į		_			-	_
							-				_	+	_	_	_							
		-					-	-	_	-	_		+	+	-			-			+	
		-				-	-	-		-		-	-	+	-						. 9	-
		-					-				-			+				-			-	
		-				-	-	-	-	-	-	-	+	+			-	-			+	-
					1	-						-		+			+	+			+	
		_				-								$\vdash$	-		+	-			-	
				-		-	-					-	$\vdash$	+			-	-			-	
	Totals:	H					$\vdash$					$\vdash$		┝	L		╞	-		t	┝	
CH	AIN OF CUE	STODY	RECOR	KD										Please	e Note:	Disserved .	netals requi	re filtering	in the field.			
Chill method used for transport (sender to con	uplete): N.	t Ch	100		0	hill metho	d used for	r transpo	ert (sende	r to compl	rte):			Ge	ments: (eg	Highly cont	aminated s	amplies, rej	orting requ	inements el	ũ	
Sarah Jaye (	Real	1046 / Tit	11-	123	.#	TLEASED	DVI V	Name		(Signatu	5	Date / Link		Nute	T PH	+ 15 + 15	ET L	E E E	XEX	Nat	hthale	2
BECENDERY COMPANY (Search Company)	1	5/2/	7 9	ochn	*	DCEIVED	163 C	in the second		(Signutu	-	Date / Time		Ø	main	1 1	3 ( ×	atere	8	ondura	8	
Termorature an aanute receipt:	°C 0	S upon	and a linear	VA cr	2	with the second		-	ľ				1 March	╀	8							

PF-AU-ENV-NHC-QU-007.xlsx / Ver 5 / 08.02.2017 / Page 1 of 1

CONTAMINATION MANAGEMENT PLAN

# **66 BURNETT STREET**

# **NORTH HOBART**

# DECEMBER 2017 (AMENDED 29 MARCH 2018)



Geo-Environmental Solutions P/L 29 Kirksway Place, Battery Boint7005. Ph 6223 1839 Fax 6223 4539

1 INT	RODUCTION	
1.1	SITE DETAILS	3
1.2	BACKGROUND	4
1.3	OBJECTIVES	4
1.4	IMPLEMENTING THE CONTAMINATION MANAGEMENT PLAN	4
2 SOII	CONTAMINATION ASSESSMENT	6
2.1	Assessment Criteria	6
2.2	Soil Assessment Results	6
2.2.	1 Health Investigation Levels	
2.2.	2 Health Screening Levels	
2.2.	3 IB105 Investigation Limits for Soil Disposal	
3 MIN	IIMIZATION OF POTENTIAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS	9
3.1	SOIL EXCAVATION AND MANAGEMENT	9
3.1.	1 Prior to Commencement	
3.1.	2 During Excavation Works	9
3.1.	3 Dust Control	
3.2	STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AND SEDIMENT CONTROL	
4 MIN	IIMIZATION OF POTENTIAL HEALTH RISKS	
4.1	Exposure Routes	11
4.2	CONTROL MEASURES	
LIMITATI	ONS STATEMENT	
REFEREN	CES	
APPENDI	X 1 BOREHOLE LOGS	
APPENDI	X 2 – SITE INDUCTION FORM	

# 1 Introduction

This Contamination Management Plan (CMP) is written for the proposed redevelopment of the property at 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart, Hobart - hereby referred to as 'The Site' (Figure 1). Geo-Environmental Solutions Pty. Ltd. (GES) were engaged to prepare a site the CMP. A copy of the document should be accessible by the project manager at all times during site development work.

This CMP has been prepared by a suitably qualified and experience practitioner in accordance with procedures and practices detailed in NEPM (2013) guidelines and key regulations and policies identified in the References section of this document.



Figure 1-The LISTMap showing the location of the site, site outlined in Red.

# 1.1 Site Details

Site details are presented in Table 1.

#### **Table 1 Site Details** SITE LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart. Identified as 281a Elizabeth Street, North Hobart in the PESA (GES 2017) INVESTIGATION AREA 281a Elizabeth Street which has a second entrance at 66 Burnett Street. Limits approximately defined by borehole extent SITE ELEVATION & GRADIENT 41.7 to 46.2 m Australian Height Datum (AHD) over 110m with a 2.5° or 4.5% increase to the northern end of the site. SITE SURFACING The surface of the site is 95 % concrete and 5% gravel fill. TITLE REFERENCES The investigation area includes the following title reference for 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart: CT 26099/4 SITE OWNER Hobart Properties & Securities Pty Ltd PREVIOUS LANDUSE **Residential Properties** SITE SURROUNDING LAND ZONING Tasmanian Interim Planning Scheme 2015 The majority of the site is zone '23.0 Commercial' Drive way from Elizabeth Street is Zoned '15.0 Urban Mixed Use' SITE LAND USE Commercial Land Use for the maintenance and repairs of a range of cars and trucks SURROUNDING LAND USE: NE: Commercial Properties; SE to NW: Mixed Urban use – Café's and Restaurants; N Light Industrial premises.

# 1.2 Background

GES completed a *Preliminary Environmental Site Assessment* (PESA) in July 2017 (GES 2017a) and an *Environmental Site Assessment* (ESA) in December 2017 (GES, 2017b) at the site which included a Tier 1 Health Risk Assessment (HRA) to assess any potential soil contamination risks which may arise due to proposed site building development works.

The ESA assessed the site based on its sensitive land use and concluded that the proposed works are acceptable and will not adversely impact upon human health or the environment provisional to implementation of measures identified within this CMP.

The following recommendations were presented in the original ESA document:

When redevelopment work commences for the site, GES recommends that the following actions should be undertaken:

- A Contamination Management Plan will be required
- Further Environmental Site Assessment which should include but not be limited to;
  - All four underground storage tanks (confirmed and suspected) should be formally decommissioned and tank pits should be validated.
  - The interceptor trap should be removed, and remaining soil should be validated; and
  - Further investigations will be required under the footprint of the buildings, at a minimum in Area C for contamination.
- All excavated soil at the site should be stockpiled and assessed against IB105 guidelines
- GES recommends separating stockpiles; and keeping the shallow material 0.0-0.4 m bgs separate. All remaining material is likely to be classified as Level 1 clean fill (with proof of analytical results).

## 1.3 Objectives

The purpose of this CMP is to identify the site hazards associated with residual contamination from soil, minimise risks to site workers and the environment, and advise of safety measures to implement during any future excavation or construction works that may occur at the site.

The CMP includes information and guidance in relation to:

- Identifying measures to minimise human health hazards and potential environmental impacts during site excavation works.
- Outlining procedures to be followed relating to excavation during construction or maintenance works.
- Providing information relating to management of exposed soil surfaces and off-site soil disposal.

#### 1.4 Implementing the Contamination Management Plan

It will be the responsibility of the owner(s) of the site to implement of this CMP. The owner(s) of the site may at times expressly delegate responsibility for site management as appropriate. The site owner(s) retains overall responsibility for implementation of this CMP and any modifications required should site conditions change.

The owner(s) of the site are responsible for the distribution of this CMP to any building or development contractors working on site and these contractors must also comply with the requirements of this CMP.

To manage potential health risks, the advice stipulated in this CMP should be followed by all persons involved in works or other activities at the site that may result in the disturbance and/or excavation of soil within the ESA investigation areas.



Figure 2 Site Plan

# 2 Soil Contamination Assessment

Given that petroleum hydrocarbons are a contaminate of concern at the site, Health Screening Level (HSL) limits were applicable to the assessment in addition to Health Investigation levels (HIL's) for heavy metals.

There was no observed tiles or asbestos sheeting fragments within the soils which may have warranted the need to collect samples for asbestos analysis.

# 2.1 Assessment Criteria

The reported soil analytical results were compared to the following relevant investigation guidelines suitable for assessment of soil contamination:

#### NEPM (2013) Schedule B1, Guideline on Investigation Levels for Soil.

- Health Screening Levels (HSL's) –setting D for current commercial use and for mixed use with ground floor parking/commercial space and setting B residential for a small area of the proposed development;
- Health Investigation Limit (HIL B) residential with full paving;
- Environmental Investigation Levels (EIL's) have been developed for selected metal and organic substances in an urban residential and public open space setting based on the following soil properties:
  - Fine grained soil class
  - Soil pH of 6.0
  - Cation Exchange Capacity of 25 cmol/kg
  - 30% Clay

**EPA Tasmania (2010) Information Bulletin 105 (IB105)** – Classification and Management of Contaminated Soil for Disposal, November 2010.

# 2.2 Soil Assessment Results

#### 2.2.1 Health Investigation Levels

Soil samples were collected during borehole drilling works across the site. A total of 20 primary samples were collected from locations across the site and submitted to a National Association of Testing Authorities (NATA) registered laboratory for analysis of identified contaminants of potential concern (COPC) which included the following.

Soil analytical results are compared against the HIL's.

- There was one exceedance of HIL B guidelines for hydrocarbons for High Density Residential in BH4 0.5 of TPH  $C^{16} C^{34}$ . BH4 is located near the historical interceptor trap.
- Several samples exceed HIL B guidelines for heavy metals and B(a)P for High Density Residential use and one sample exceeded HIL D

Mitigation measures relating to the identified risks are detailed in Section 3 & 4.

# 2.2.2 Health Screening Levels

Soil hydrocarbon analytical results were compared against CRC CARE HSL guidelines for assessing dermal contact hazard as per guidelines for intrusive maintenance workers and HSL B guidelines for residential use.

None of the soil samples collected at the site exceeds the hydrocarbon HSL's for assessing vapour intrusion risk to shallow intrusive maintenance workers or site inhabitants.

# 2.2.3 IB105 Investigation Limits for Soil Disposal

The soil samples have been compared against IB105 guidelines for soil disposal. Elevated lead & TPH, and B(a)P concentrations on site in a number of samples show level 2 & 3 contaminated material (Table 2). The bulk of the impact occurs in shallow fill material at the site, and care should be taken to excavate the top 0.3 m from the site and stockpiling separately from the

Geo-Environmental Solutions Pty Ltd - Contamination Management Plan - 66 Burnett Street

remaining deep excavations. This is likely to bring the bulk excavations below 0.3 m BGS to Level 1. GES therefore recommends that all soil excavated at the site is sorted, stockpiled, and transported to a licensed storage and handling facility for managing contaminated soil as required.

The borehole logs in appendix 1 highlight the depths of contaminates detected and the material consistency, type and colour to aid identification on site.

Informati	ion Bulletin 105	EG005T: Tota	al Metals	by ICF	P-AES								EG035T	EP075	i(SIM)A	EP080: BTEX			EP080/071: TRH			
Contami D X - Below P Flo	agement of inated Soil For Disposal roposed Finished Dor Level	Arsenic	Barium	Beryllium	Cadmium	Chromium Total	Cobalt	Copper	read	Manganese	Nickel	Zinc	Mercury	Benzo(a)pyr ene	Sum of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons	Benzene	Toluene	Ethylbenzene	Total Xylenes	C6 - C9 Fraction	C10 - C36 Fraction (sum)	
Unit		mg/kg	 mg/kg	 mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	 mg/kg	 mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	ng/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	
LOR		5	10	1	1	2	2	5	5	5	2	5	0.1	0.5	0.5	0.2	0.5	0.5	0.5	10	50	
Investigation I IB105 Level 1	Level Selected	20	300	2	3	50	100	100	300	500	60	200	1	0.08	20	1	1	3	14	65	1000	
IB105 Level 2		200	3000	40	40	500	200	2000	1200	5000	600	14000	30	2	40	5	100	100	180	650	5000	
IB105 Level 3		750	30000	400	400	5000	1000	7500	3000	25000	3000	50000	110	20	200	50	1000	1080	1800	1000	10000	
TB105 Level 4		>/50	>30000	>400	>400	>5000	>1000	>/500	>3000	>25000	>3000	>50000	>110	>20	>200	>50	>1000	>1080	>1800	>1000	>10000	
17/06/2017	BH1 0.10m	<5	80	<1	18	30	13	172	362	275	28	390	0.6	0.8	7.1	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	300	
17/06/2017	BH1 0.9m	<5	50	<1	<1	7	4	16	26	148	6	17	0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
17/06/2017	BH2 0.1m	<5	140	<1	<1	23	6	53	364	176	22	329	0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
17/06/2017	BH2 0.9m	<5	80	<1	<1	5	6	20	359	256	6	26	0.9	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
17/06/2017	BH3 0.5m BH3 2.3m	<5	170	< <u>1</u>	<1	4	19	16	9 11	125	20	65	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
17/06/2017	BH4 0.5m	17	400	1	<1	10	13	116	4570	512	16	473	1	2.2	22.3	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	132	9550	
17/06/2017	BH4 1.0m	<5	120	1	<1	13	6	17	16	80	8	25	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
17/06/2017	BH5 0.1m X	<5	80	<1	1	16	8	69	208	217	18	184	0.5	3.6	44.2	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	770	
17/06/2017	BH5 3.0m	18	10	<1	<1	23	4	8	13	554	6	24	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
17/06/2017	BH6 0.2m X	8	900	<1	2	20	11	122	1430	248	20	941	1.5	3.5	33.3	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	540	
17/06/2017	BH6 2.0m	16	30	<1	<1	13	8	8	11	1680	11	23	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
17/06/2017	BH7 0.2m X	8	820	<1	1	16	10	101	1140	213	18	614	2.1	3.8	37.8	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	310	
17/06/2017	BH7 1.0m X	<5	1090	5	<1	15	67	28	16	198	50	47	0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
17/06/2017	BH7 3.0m	<5	10	<1	<1	6	3	<5	5	121	3	13	1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
17/06/2017	BH8 1.0m X	<5	20	<1	<1	14	3	<5	<5	37	7	18	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
17/06/2017	BH8 0.5m X	<5	10	<1	<1	13	2	<5	<5	51	3	28	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
17/06/2017	BH9 0.2m X	10	500 20	1	<1	17 °	17	76	852	366	16 2	588	1.6	2.3	23.7	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
17/06/2017	BH10 0.1m X	<5	30	<1	<1	5	15	90	60	279	11	99	0.1	1	9.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
17/06/2017	BH10 1.0m X	6	110	1	<1	11	32	19	9	1490	28	23	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
17/06/2017	BH11 0.1m X	7	50	1	<1	11	32	27	17	2260	30	79	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	380	
12/12/2017	BH12 0.5m X	5	220	1	<1	18	13	32	10	116	14	28	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH12 1.0m	8	660	4	<1	16	368	39	11	1690	72	45	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH13 0.4-0.5m X	<5	20	1	<1	7	6	16	<5	268	13	53	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH14 0.3-0.4m x	<5	480	1	<1	14	14	17	11	54	13	14	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH15 0.5-0.6m	<5	10	<1	<1	11	13	57	<5	350	15	34	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH16 1.0-1.1m X	<5	230	<4	<2	<4	33	67	<5	1050	100	13	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH16 2.0-2.1m X	9	90	1	<1	4	13	46	8	760	18	48	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH16 2.9-3.0m	<5	<10	<1	<1	6	<2	<5	<5	10	3	13	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH17 0.5-0.6m X	<5	220	1	<1	17	16	24	6	2/10	28	32 75	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH17 1.3-2.0m X	<5	130	1	<1	10	43 14	72	144	167	14	104	1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH18 0.9-1.0m X	<5	180	<5	<3	13	17	15	<5	1100	29	30	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH19 0.2-0.3m X	<5	220	<1	<1	21	9	44	341	208	12	227	1.5	3.6	35.1	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	610	
12/12/2017	BH19 0.9-1.0m X	<5	2770	3	<1	11	37	13	14	255	19	17	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH20 0.5m	<5	40	<1	<1	12	3	10	9	59	4	12	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH21 0.5m	6	170	<1	<1	12	11	49	238	301	15	157	0.8	2.8	24	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
17/06/2017	BH10 1 0m	<5 6	30 110	<1 1	<1	5	32	90 10	6U Q	1490	28	99 99	0.1 <0.1	1 <05	9.5 <0 5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH16 1.0-1.1m	<5	230	<4	<2	<4	33	67	<5	1050	100	13	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH16 2.0-2.1m	9	90	1	<1	4	13	46	8	760	18	48	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH16 2.9-3.0m	<5	<10	<1	<1	6	<2	<5	<5	10	3	13	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH17 0.5-0.6m	<5	50	1	<1	17	16	24	12	115	16	32	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	
12/12/2017	BH17 1.9-2.0m	<5	220	<1	<1	16	45	32	6	2410	38	75	<0.1	<0.5	<0.5	<0.2	<0.5	<0.5	<0.5	<10	<50	

# Table 2 – All soil results compared to IB105 for disposal

Geo-Environmental Solutions Pty Ltd - Contamination Management Plan - 66 Burnett Street

# 3 Minimization of Potential Environmental Impacts

Potential health exposure risks during any excavations or subsurface works may be associated with:

- Soil excavation and management
- Movement of soil
- Stormwater management and sedimentation

To minimise potential environmental impacts, all work must be conducted in accordance with the guidance set out in this plan as well as any relevant EPA Tasmania guidelines. A site specific soil and water management plan has also been prepared by the building designer for the site.

# 3.1 Soil Excavation and Management

The following procedures must be carried out prior to, during and following the completion of any soil excavation and/or surface cover disturbance at the site.

#### 3.1.1 Prior to Commencement

- Contractors and workers must be made aware of the potential soil contamination and be familiar with the requirements of the CMP.
- Contractors must prepare a site-specific Health and Safety Plan covering their workers at the site for any anticipated risks.

#### 3.1.2 During Excavation Works – Stockpile Management

Soil from the site must be managed so as not to cause environmental harm in accordance with the Environmental Management and Pollution Control (Waste Management) Regulations, 2000 and the Environmental Management and Pollution Control Act (EMPCA, 1994). Harm can be caused from contaminated soils leaching further underground, leaving the site through wind (as dust) or carried off site with rain (as runoff stormwater).

It will be necessary for the soil to be classified for disposal or reuse in accordance with *IB 105* (EPA Tasmania, 2010). The initial soil laboratory results (Table 2) indicate that the material is Level 2 to 3 material and suitable for remediation and disposal at a licensed facility;

To prevent contaminated soil leaving the site (by wind or water), excavated soil, if being stored for greater than 12 hours, must be stockpiled in or on an impervious surface or in a water tight skip bin and covered with an impermeable layer (such as PVC plastic 2mm thick).

Alternately if soil is to be removed off site to an approved storage and handling facility, it should only be done by a licensed contractor.

Site Operator should consider separating the most contaminated soil (0.0 to 0.3m bgs from across the entire site plus the soil around the historical interceptor trap) during excavation works to limit the cost of soil disposal and/or remediation required.

#### 3.1.3 Dust Control

Generation of dust can spread contaminated soil or create a nuisance. Measures that can be undertaken to assist in minimising the generation of dust include:

- Minimise movement of equipment on the site.
- Minimise excavation and movement of soils.
- Use a water spray only as required to dampen work areas if excess dust is generated.
- Use a water spray only as required to dampen soil prior to and during excavation if excess dust is generated.
- Avoid soil excavations that create dust on windy days.

Geo-Environmental Solutions Pty Ltd - Contamination Management Plan - 66 Burnett Street

- Keep soil stockpiles covered at all times possible, with an impermeable membrane (eg. plastic sheeting) to minimise generation of dust and to limit runoff of sediment.
- Avoid extended stockpiling of soil.

# 3.2 Stormwater Management and Sediment Control

Measures to minimise the potential for contamination of stormwater and migration of contaminants include:

- Install drainage and/or grade soil surfaces to minimise pooling of water on exposed soils. Exposed surfaces should ideally be covered with clean aggregate to minimize trafficking of mud, vehicle washdown procedures, reduce soil erosion, and general site disturbance.
- Place sediment control devices around stormwater drains and stockpiles as required.
- Ensure vehicles and equipment are free from excess soil when leaving the site, to avoid tracking soil off-site.
- Establish an equipment wash down area if necessary.
- Keep stockpiles covered and sealed at all times possible
- Avoid extended stockpiling of soil.
- Clean up any soil spilt on roads adjoining the site.
- Avoid conducting vehicle or machinery maintenance on-site.
- Ensure any fuel, oil or other chemicals are stored safely and securely and are prevented from leaking.
- Repair or remove any leaking containers or machinery from the site.
- Clean up any spilt fuel, oil or other chemicals as soon as possible.
- Check sediment control measures regularly (at least daily) and clean and maintain as necessary.
- Inspect sediment control measures more frequently during rain periods, to check they are adequate for site conditions.

# 4 Minimization of Potential Health Risks

Work procedures conducted on the site must be in accordance with relevant Occupational Health and Safety (OH&S) Regulations. It is the responsibility of the principal contractor that site workers are made aware of the OH&S issues at the site.

Engaged companies/contractors must prepare a site-specific Health and Safety Plan covering their workers at the site.

## 4.1 Exposure Routes

Potential hazards for site workers associated with the presence of contaminants in isolated areas of soil which may be encountered during excavation or construction works must be considered as part of the overall Health and Safety Plan for the site, including:

- Ingestion of contaminated soil.
- Inhalation of dust or vapours.
- Dermal (skin) contact.

#### 4.2 Control Measures

Personnel working at or visiting the site during any construction (including demolition and excavation) works must be provided with an induction briefing, based on the example Site Induction Record provided in Appendix 2. This induction record may be incorporated into the general site induction procedure. The principal contractor may delegate responsibility for the induction briefing to their environmental consultant.

Measures that must be undertaken to manage exposure of site workers to contaminants include:

- Avoid handling of potentially contaminated soil and/or water.
- Wash hands before eating, drinking or smoking.
- Avoid activities that may introduce soil and/or water to the mouth, such as nail biting.
- Remove soiled clothing and footwear before entering a designated clean area and before leaving the site.
- Use personal protective equipment (PPE) as required. In addition to hard hats, safety boots, safety glasses and hearing protection, this equipment may include:
  - Long sleeved shirt and long trousers
  - Dust masks

The principal contractor must ensure that site workers and visitors are provided with:

- Site safety induction briefing.
- Adequate hand washing facilities.
- A designated clean area for storage and consumption of food and drink.

All excavations in the area of underground fuel infrastructure must be screened with a LEL meter and/or PID to screen the area for explosive and potentially harmful hydrocarbon vapours. No hot works are permitted on site without clearance by a suitability qualified person that the area or infrastructure is free of vapours.

## LIMITATIONS STATEMENT

This Management Plan has been prepared in accordance with the scope of services between Geo-Environmental Solutions Pty. Ltd. (GES) and Hobart Properties & Securities ('the Client'). To the best of GES's knowledge, the information presented herein represents the Client's requirements at the time of printing of the Report. However, the passage of time, manifestation of latent conditions or impacts of future events may result in findings differing from that described in this Report. In preparing this Report, GES has relied upon data, surveys, analyses, designs, plans and other information provided by the Client and other individuals and organisations referenced herein. Except as otherwise stated in this Report, GES has not verified the accuracy or completeness of such data, surveys, analyses, designs, plans and other information.

The scope of this study does not allow for the review of every possible soil and groundwater contaminant over the whole area of the site. Soil samples collected from the investigation area are assumed to be representative of the areas from where they were collected and indicative of the contamination status of the site. The conclusions described within this report are based on these samples, the results of their analysis and an assessment of their contamination status.

This report does not purport to provide legal advice. Readers of the report should engage professional legal practitioners for this purpose as required.

No responsibility is accepted for use of any part of this report in any other context or for any other purpose by third party.

Geo-Environmental Solutions Pty Ltd - Contamination Management Plan - 66 Burnett Street

#### REFERENCES

Key regulations, legislation and policies considered most applicable to soil and groundwater management during any intrusive site works (excavation, construction or maintenance) include:

Australian Standard: AS 4482.1-2005 Guide to the investigation and sampling of potentially contaminated soil. Part 1: Non-volatile and semi-volatile compounds

Australian Standard: AS 4482.2-1999 Guide to the sampling and investigation of potentially contaminated soil. Part 2: Volatile substances

CRC CARE 2013, Petroleum Petroleum Vapour Intrusion assessment: Australian guidance, CRC CARE Technical Report no. 23, CRC for Contamination Assessment and Remediation of the Environment, Adelaide, Australia.

DPIWE (1997) – State Policy on Water Quality Management, 1997.

Environmental Management and Pollution Control (Waste Management) Regulations 2000.

Environmental Management and Pollution Control Act (1994).

Friebel, E & Nadebaum, 2011, 'Health screening levels for petroleum hydrocarbons in soil and groundwater. Part 1: Technical development document', CRC for Contamination Assessment and Remediation of the Environment, CRC CARE Technical Report no. 10, Adelaide.

Geo-Environmental Solutions (2017a). Preliminary Environmental Site Assessment. 281a Elizabeth Street, North Hobart. Geo Environmental Solutions, 86 Queen Street, Sandy Bay, 7005. July 2017.

Geo-Environmental Solutions (2017b). Environmental Site Assessment. 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart. Geo Environmental Solutions, 29 Kirskway Place, Battery Point, 7004. December 2017.

Information Bulletin 105: Classification and Management of Contaminated Soil for Disposal (November 2010), EPA Tasmania.

NEPM, 1999. Guideline on Investigation Levels for Soil and Groundwater, Schedule B (1), National Environment Protection (Assessment of Site Contamination) Measure, National Environment Protection Council, 1999. Measures as amended, taking into account amendments up to National Environment Protection (Assessment of Site Contamination) Amendment Measure 2013 (No. 1)

# APPENDIX 1 Borehole Logs

GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS     CLENT: Hobar Properties & Securities     EASTING 528000     GDA94       BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart     ELEVATION AND DATUM: 42.2     MAHD       BURLING CONFERTION: 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart     ELEVATION AND DATUM: 42.2     MAHD       BURLING CONFERTION: 60 Burnett Street, North Hobart     ELEVATION AND DATUM: 42.2     MAHD       BURLING CONFERTION: 0     Direct Plush Core     LOGGED BY A. Plummer     NATURAL (m): WATER TABLE (m):       SAMPLING: Core     DATE: 1706/2017     Hilling Analytic LECONFERTION     Water TABLE (m):       Burnett, contain dense to dense throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the to tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the tool mover provide work of the strenge of the tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited for the tool of throwinger, sightly most, dense, many edited fo	GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL       CLIENT:       EASTING:       526000       GDA94         BORING LOCATION:       66 Burnett Street, North Hobart       ELEVATION AND DATUM:       42.2       m AHD         DRILLING CONTRACTOR:       Geo-Environmental Solutions       TOTAL DEPTH (m):       1         EQUIPMENT/METHOD:       Direct Push Core       LOGGED BY:A. Plummer       NATURAL (m):       WATER TABLE (m):         SAMPLING:       Core       DATE:       17/06/2017       IB105 Analyte IL Exceedances       MONITORING         UP       MATERIAL DESCRIPTION       91       00       FILL - Sandy GRAVEL: dark brown, slighty       M       GW BH1 0.10m       IB 00 Analyte IL Exceedances       MONITORING         0.0       FILL - Sandy GRAVEL: dark brown, slighty       M       GW BH1 0.10m       IB 00 Analyte IL Exceedances       MONITORING         0.1       FILL - Sandy GRAVEL: dark brown, slighty       M       GW BH1 0.10m       IB 02 Analyte IL Exceedances       MONITORING         0.2       FILL - Sandy GRAVEL: dark brown, slighty       M       GW BH1 0.10m       IB 02 Analyte IL Exceedances       MONITORING         0.3       FILL - Sandy GRAVEL: dark brown, slighty       M       GW BH1 0.10m       IIII 0.10m       IIIII 0.10m       IIIII 0.10m       IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
SOLUTIONS     Hobart Properties & Securities     NORTHNG:     5252993     ODA94       BORNALICATION:     66 Burnett Street, North Hobart     ELEVATION AND DATUM:     42.2     m AHD       DRILING CONTRACTOR:     Geo-Environmental Solutions     TOTAL DEPTH (m):     1       DEUMENTHEND:     Direct Push Core     LOOGED BY A. Plummer     NATURAL (m):     Watter Table (m):       AMPLING:     Core     DATE:     17/06/2017     BUIG Anayte IL Eccentarios     MONTONING       Hull:     Sandy CRAVEL dark troon, silutify     M. CW- Best 0.10m     Date:     12.1     Date:     0.00       Hull:-Sandy CRAVEL dark troon, silutify     M. CW- Best 0.10m     Date:     12.1     Date:     0.00       Hull:-Sandy CRAVEL dark troon, silutify     M. CW- Best 0.10m     Date:     Date:     0.00     0.00       Hull:-Sandy CRAVEL dark troon, silutify     M. CW- Best 0.10m     Date:     Date:     0.00     0.00       Clay traction has medium plastoly coronic     M. CW- Best 0.10m     Date:     Date:     Date:     0.00       Baddy CLAY Tyreytybrown, most, stiff, M. Mull:     M. CU     M. CU     Date:     0.00     0.00       Baddy CLAY Tyreytybrown, most, stiff, M. Mull:     M. CU     Date:     Date:     0.00     0.00       Baddy CLAY Tyreytybrown, most, stiff, M. Mull:	S       O       L       U       T       I       NORTHING:       5252993       GDA94         BORING LOCATION:       66 Burnett Street, North Hobart       ELEVATION AND DATUM:       42.2       m AHD         DRILLING CONTRACTOR:       Geo-Environmental Solutions       TOTAL DEPTH (m):       1         EQUIPMENT/METHOD:       Direct Push Core       LOGGED BY:A. Plummer       NATURAL (m):       WATER TABLE (m):         SAMPLING:       Core       DATE:       17/06/2017       IIII 105 Analyte IL Exceedances       MONITORING         MATERIAL DESCRIPTION       angle of the top of the top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of top of t
DORING LOCATION:         66 Burnet! Street, North Hobart         ELEVATION AND DATUM.         42.2         mAHD           DRUMENTMETHOC:         Direct Push Core         LOGGED P'A. Plummer         NATURAL (m):	BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart       ELEVATION AND DATUM: 42.2 m AHD         DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environmental Solutions       TOTAL DEPTH (m): 1         COMPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core       LOGGED BY:A. Plummer       NATURAL (m): WATER TABLE (m):         SAMPLING: Core       DATE: 17/06/2017         MATERIAL DESCRIPTION       ON of other set to dense       MONITORING WELL         O.0       FILL - Sandy GRAVEL: dark brown, slighty on sit, dense, many red brown/grey, slightly moist, dense, many red brown/grey, moist, stiff, low plasticity overall (Clay fraction has medium plasticity)       M       QUI PLANT & CLAY: grey/brown, moist, stiff, neduum plasticity, common fine charcoal
DELLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environmental Solutions to COLLED BY A. Plummer NATURAL (m): 1 EQUIMENTALTHOD: Direct Push Core CATE: 17/06/2017 UNATER TABLE (m): 1 SAMPLING: Core CATE: 17/06/2017 UNATER TABLE (m): 1 UNATER	DRILLING CONTRACTOR:       Geo-Environmental Solutions       TOTAL DEPTH (m):       1         EQUIPMENT/METHOD:       Direct Push Core       LOGGED BY:A. Plummer       NATURAL (m):       WATER TABLE (m):         SAMPLING:       Core       DATE:       17/06/2017       MATURAL (m):       WATER TABLE (m):         MATERIAL DESCRIPTION       and the second debris, brick fragments       MONITORING (m) and the second debris, brick fragments       MONITORING (m) and the second debris, brick fragments       M       GW+ BH1 0.10m       Image: Second debris, brick fragments       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A       A
EQUIPMENTMETHOD:     Direct Plush Core     LOGGED BY:A. Plummer     NATURAL (m):     WATERTABLE (m):       MATERNAL DESCRIPTION     understand     unders	EQUIPMENT/METHOD:       Direct Push Core       LOGGED BY:A. Plummer       NATURAL (m):       WATER TABLE (m):         SAMPLING:       Core       DATE:       17/06/2017       Image: Core
SAMELING         Core         DATE:         17/06/2017         Image: Core of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second s	SAMPLING: Core       DATE: 17/06/2017         Head 300       MATERIAL DESCRIPTION       Solution of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second sec
Hardburg         MATERIAL DESCRIPTION         Image: Construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the construction of the consteneet of the construction o	H       MATERIAL DESCRIPTION       Monitoring         0.0       FILL - Sandy GRAVEL: dark brown, slighty       M       GW • BH1 0.10m       Image: Single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of the single of
0.0       = ViL Sandy GAVEL car known, sighty       M       GW- B+t 0.10m       III 2 22 2       2       III - Micked Carey Constraints       IIII  - Micked Carey Constraints	0.0       FILL - Sandy GRAVEL dark brown, slighty         0.1       moist, medium dense to dense         0.2       BILL - GRAVEL & assorted debris,         brown/grey, slightly moist, dense, many red       SM         0.3       FILL - Mixed Clayey SAND & Sandy CLAY:         0.4       brown/grey, moist, stiff, low plasticity overall         0.5       Clay fraction has medium plasticity         0.6       Sandy CLAY: grey/brown, moist, stiff,         0.7       medium plasticity, common fine charcoal
Sandy CLAY: grey/brown, moist, stiff,         Redum plasticity, common fine charcoal         Image: regulation of the charcoal<	0.6 Sandy CLAY: grey/brown, moist, stiff, 0.7 medium plasticity, common fine charcoal
	0.8     Image: Mark transmission of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second

	PROJE Gorr	ест: inge	ESA	A Contraction of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second se								L	_00	l of	BH	2
	CLIEN	т.				FA	STING		5259	98			G	DA94		
$\frac{\text{GLOPENVIRONMENTAL}}{\text{SOLUTIONS}}$	Hoba	rt Pr	opertie	es & Secu	rities	NO	RTHIN	G:	5252	990			G	DA94		
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street,	I North Ho	bart				ELE		DN AN	ID DAT	TUM:	42	2.1	m	AHD		
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environm	ental So	lutior	าร			тот	al de	EPTH	(m):	1						
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	)	LOG	GED B	Y:A. Plum	mer	NAT	URAL	. (m):			WAT	ER T	ABLE	E (m):		
SAMPLING: Core		DA	TE: 1	7/06/2017												
ATERIAL DESCRIPTION ATERIAL DESCRIPTION 0.0 FILL - Sandy GRAVEL: dark brown, s 0.1 moist, medium dense to dense FILL - GRAVEL & assorted debris, 0.2 brown/grey, slightly moist, dense, mar 0.3 FILL - Mixed Clayey SAND & Sandy C 0.4 brown/grey, moist, stiff, low plasticity of 0.5 (Clay fraction has medium plasticity) 0.6 Sandy CLAY: grey/brown, moist, stiff, 0.7 medium plasticity, common fine charco fragment, some shell grit. No Refusal 0.9 1.0	ighty ny red CLAY: overall	DAT environmental market of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second secon		7/06/2017				Analy essentiation of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second seco					TPH C10 - C36	MONITA WE		Understanding (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 1;	2] Level 2;	3 Le	vel 3; Z	Level 4	SAMPLI	E IN E	XCAV		V X	APPI	ROXI	MATE	E GR(	DUNDF	LOOR L	EVEL



	PROJECT: Gorringe ESA	L	og of BH4
		EASTING: 525082	GDA94
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	Hobart Properties & Securities	NORTHING: 5253010	GDA94
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street.	North Hobart	ELEVATION AND DATUM: 42.8	m AHD
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environm	nental Solutions	TOTAL DEPTH (m): 2	
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Cord	e LOGGED BY:A. Plummer	NATURAL (m): WATER TA	ABLE (m):
SAMPLING: Core	DATE: 17/06/2017		
MATERIAL DESCRIPTION	Moisture USCS Lithology Laboratory Sample Field PID Field PID	IB105 Analyte IL Exceedances Basenia Basenia Basenia Basenia Basenia Basenia Basenia Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve Conserve	Do Be Excavated 1 MONITORING WELL ELE VATION
0.0 FILL - Concrete 0.1 0.2- FILL - Clayey GRAVEL: grey/brown, s moist, medium dense, many red brick 0.3- fragments 0.4- 0.5- 0.6- 0.7- 0.8-	slightly SM GC O O O O O O O O O O O O O	2 242 22 32 23	42.7 42.6 42.5 42.4 42.3 42.2 42.2 42.1 42.1 42.0
0.9 Silty CLAY: dark grey-brown, moist, fi 1.0 stiff, high plasticity 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 Silty CLAY: pale brown, moist, stiff, h plasticity. No Refusal 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9	irm to M CH M CH		41.9 41.8 41.7 41.6 41.5 41.5 41.4 41.3 41.2 41.2 41.1 41.0 40.9 40.8
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION:	2 Level 2; 3 Level 3; 4 Level 4 SAMPL	E IN EXCAVATION X APPROXIMATE	GROUNDFLOOR LEVEL

	PROJI <b>Gori</b>	ECT: <b>ing</b>	e ESA	٨											Lc	og of	BH	5
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIEN	IT:				EA	STI	NG:	5	5259	979					GDA94	•	
$\frac{\text{GLO ERVINCERMENTALE}}{\text{SOLUTIONS}}$	Hoba	art P	ropertie	es & Secu	rities	NO	RTH	ING:	5	5253	010	)				GDA94		
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, 1	North He	obar	t			ELI	EVA	TION	AND	D DA	тим	: 4	42	.9		m AHD	)	
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ental Sc	lutic	ons			то	TAL	DEP	TH (I	m):	3							
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	•	LC	GGED E	Y:A. Plum	mer	NA	TUR	RAL (r	n):			W	/AT	ER	TAE	BLE (m):		
SAMPLING: Core		DA	ATE: 1	7/06/2017														
H (Set to the total D E MATERIAL DESCRIPTION		Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	Arsenic Barium Berylium	Cadmium Chromium Cohalt	Copper Copper Manganese	Nickel Zinc	Chromium VI	DDT etc 30	Benzo(a)pyrenep	Benzene 30 Toluene	Total Xylenes	TPH C0 - C9 TPH C10 - C36 To Be Excavated	MONIT W	oring Ell	ELEVATION (metres)
0.0 FILL - Sandy GRAVEL: brown/grey, sl 0.1 moist, medium dense to dense, some	ighty small	м	GWo	BH5 0.1m								33			Ī		:	42.8
0.2 FILL - Gravelly CLAY: dark brown/blac	ck,																	-42.7
		м	CI															E42.6
0.5																		E-42.4
0.6 Silty CLAY: pale brown, moist, stiff, hig	gh	-																E-42.3
0.7 plasticity																		E-42.2
																		E ^{42.1}
1.0		м	СН															E 41.9
1.1-																		E-41.8
1.2-																		E-41.7
1.3																		E-41.6
1.4 Silty CLAY: red/orange, moist, stiff, hig	gh																	E 41.5
																		E 41.4
1.7-																		E-41.2
1.8																		E-41.1
1.9		м	СН															E-41.0
																		E ^{40.9}
2.2																		E-40.7
2.3																		E-40.6
2.4																		E-40.5
2.5 Silty Sandy CLAY: red/orange/yellow,	moist,	-																E 40.4
	ai																	$E_{40.2}^{40.3}$
2.8		M	CL															40.1
2.9				PU5 2 0m					, , , ,						-			E-40.0
1			<u> </u>	515 5.011								Ш	Ш					E _{39.9}
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: □Level 1:12	Level 2;	3 L	.evel 3; ∡	Level 4	SAMPLI	EINE	EXCA	AVAT	ION	] <b>x</b>	APF	PRC	DXIN	ЛАТ	ĒG	ROUND	FLOOR L	EVEL

	PROJE Gorr	ECT:	e ESA	A													Lo	og of	BH	6
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIEN	T:				E.	AST	ING	):	5	525	966	3					GDA94	1	
S O L U T I O N S	Hoba	nrt F	Propertie	es & Secur	rities	N	ORT	HIN	IG:	5	525	304	17					GDA94	4	
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, I	North Ho	ba	rt			EL	.EV	ΑΤΙΟ	DN .	AND	D DA		M:	4	4.	3		m AHC	)	
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environm	ental So	lutio	ons			тс	ΟΤΑ	L DI	EPT	- H (I	m):	3								
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	•	LC	OGGED E	BY:A. Plum	mer	N/	ΑTU	RAL	_ (m	ı):			,	WA	٩ΤΕ	R	TAE	BLE (m):		
SAMPLING: Core		D	ATE: 1	7/06/2017																
H (SS) H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H		Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	Arsenic Barium	Cadmium Chromium Chromium	Copper Copper	Lead Manganese	Zinc Moreino		Aldrin+Dieldrin A	Phenol Benzo(a)pyrene	Benzene	Toluene	Totál Xylenes	TPH C10 - C36 To Be Excevated	MONI W	TORING /ELL	ELEVATION (metres)
0.0 FILL - Concrete			Р																	E-44.2
0.2 FILL - Clayey SAND: dark brown/black	۲,	м	sc	BH6 0.2m	]	2	Π	2	3	22	2		3	2		Π	Π			E-44.1
0.3 FILL - Silty Sandy CLAY: dark brown/k	olack,				-															E-44.0
0.4 moist, stiff, medium plasticity, 10% fine gravel & brick fragments	e	м	CL																	E-43.9
																				E43.8
0.7 ∃ Silty CLAY: brown, moist, firm, high pl	asticity																			E-43.6
0.8		м	СН																	E-43.5
0.9																				E-43.4
1.0	ed,																			E-43.3
Quartz gravel from 1.95-2.0m containi	ng f																			E ^{43.2}
1.3																				E-43.0
1.4																				E-42.9
1.5-																				42.8
1.6																				E 42.7
																				E42.6
1.9													_	_			-			E-42.4
2.0		м	СН	BH6 2.0m		Ш			2				Ц				Ц			E-42.3
2.1																				E-42.2
2.2																				E-42.1
2.4																				E ^{42.0}
2.5-																				E-41.8
2.6																				E-41.7
2.7-																				E-41.6
2.8					_															E ^{41.5}
				BH6 3.0m																E _{41.3}
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 1;	2 Level 2;	<b>3</b> L	_evel 3; Z	1 Level 4	SAMPL	EIN	EXC	CAV	ATI	ON	] >	< AF	PR	302	KIM	AT	EG	ROUND	FLOOR I	_EVEL

GES	PROJE Gorr	ECT: ing	e ESA	N												L	og	of	BH	7
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIEN	T:				EA	\ST	ING	:	5	259	973					GD	A94		
OLO PROPERTIES AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND	Hoba	art P	Propertie	es & Secur	ities	NC	RT	HIN	G:	5	253	3042	2				GD	A94		
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, I	North Ho	bai	t			EL	EV	ΑΤΙΟ	DN /	AND	DA	TUN	/1:	44	1.4		m A	٩HD		
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environm	ental So	lutio	ons			тс	ТА	l de	EPT	H (n	n):	3						-		
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	)	LC	GGED E	Y:A. Plumr	ner	NA	TU	RAL	. (m	):			V	VAT	ΓER	tA	BLE (	(m):		
SAMPLING: Core		D	ATE: 1	7/06/2017																
H (Se H L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L		Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	Arsenic Barium Bervlium I	Cadmium Chromium	Copper	-ead		Chromium VI TI	Aldrin+Dieldrin X ODT etc 30	Benzo(a)pyrene	Senzene 20 Toluene 30	Ethylbenzene 0	TPH C6 - C9 TPH C10 - C36	To Be Excavated	ONIT( WE	ORING LL	ELEVATION (metres)
0.0 FILL - Concrete			Р	1	1														•	E14 3
0.2 FILL - Clayey SAND: dark brown/black moist, medium dense	Κ,	М	SC	BH7 0.2m	]	2		2	2	22	2		32							44.3
0.3 FILL - Silty Sandy CLAY: dark brown/t	olack,																			E-44.1
gravel & brick fragments	-	М	CL																	43.9
0.6 Silty CLAY: brown, moist, stiff, high pla	asticity																			E-43.8
0.7																				E-43.7
0.9					1	_	-							-						-43.5
1.0		м	СН	BH7 1.0m		22	2								Ц.	Ш				E-43.4
																				E-43.3
																				43.2 43.1
1.4																				-43.0
1.5 Silty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/re	ed,																			E-42.9
1.6 * moist, stiff, high plasticity. No Refusal																			>	42.8 E
																				42.7 42.6
1.9																				E-42.5
2.0																				E-42.4
2.1																				E-42.3 E
2.2		м	СН																	E-42.2
2.4																				E-42.0
2.5																				E-41.9
2.6																				E-41.8
2.7-																				E-41.7
2.9					-															E41.6
╡				BH7 3.0m						2										E _{41.4}
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION:	2 Level 2;	<u>3</u> L	evel 3;	4 Level 4 د	SAMPL	EINI	EXC	CAV	ATI	ON	] ×	AP	PRC		IMA	TE	GROL	JNDF	_OOR L	EVEL

	PROJECT: Gorringe ESA	Log of BH8
	CLIENT:	EASTING: 525969 GDA94
$\frac{\text{GEOPENVIRONMENTAL}}{\text{SOLUTIONS}}$	Hobart Properties & Securities	NORTHING: 5253040 GDA94
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, I	North Hobart	ELEVATION AND DATUM: 44.6 m AHD
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environm	nental Solutions	TOTAL DEPTH (m): 3
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	e LOGGED BY: A. Plummer	NATURAL (m): WATER TABLE (m):
SAMPLING: Core	DATE: 17/06/2017	
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core SAMPLING: Core MATERIAL DESCRIPTION 0.0 FILL - Concrete 0.1 0.2 FILL - SAND some clay (Packing/Fat 3 0.3 orange/grey-brown, moist, medium de 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 Silty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/m 1.8 moist, stiff, high plasticity. No Refusal 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4	e LOGGED BY:A. Plummer DATE: 17/06/2017 and an an an an an an an an an an an an an	NATURAL (m):         WATER TABLE (m):           IB105 Analyte IL Exceedances         Image: Construction of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the secon

	PROJECT Gorring	∵ ge ESA	Ą								Lo	g of	BHS	•
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:				EAS	STING:	5	25965			(	GDA94		
S O L U T I O N S	Hobart I	Properti	es & Securi	ities	NOF	RTHING	e: 5	253042			(	GDA94		
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, N	North Hoba	nt			ELE	VATIO	N AND	DATUM	: 44	4.6	r	n AHD		
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ental Soluti	ons			тот	AL DE	PTH (n	n): <b>3</b>						
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	L	OGGED E	BY:A. Plumr	ner	ΝΑΤ	URAL	(m):		WA	TER	ТАВ	LE (m):		
SAMPLING: Core	C	DATE: 1	7/06/2017											
H (set te te te te te te te te te te te te te te	Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	Arsenic Barium Berylium	Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Contro	Manganese Nickel Zinc Mercurv	Chromium VI PCB's Aldrin+Dieldrin DDT etc Phenol	Benzo(a)pyrenep PAH Sum Benzene	Ethylbenzene	TPH C6 - C9 TPH C10 - C36 To Be Excavated	MONITO WE	DRING LL	ELEVATION (metres)
0.0 FILL - Concrete		Р												44.5
0.2 FILL - Clayey SAND: dark brown/black 0.3 moist, medium dense	., M	SC	BH9 0.2m	]	2	2	22		32					44.4
0.5 Silty CLAY: brown, moist, stiff, high pla 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9	isticity M	СН												44.1 44.0 43.9 43.8 43.8
1.0       Silty Sandy CLAY: pale brown, moist, v         1.1       stiff, medium plasticity, 20% fine to coa         1.2       gravel         1.3       1.4         1.5       1.6         1.7       1.7	very arse	CL												43.6 43.5 43.4 43.3 43.2 43.2 43.1 43.0 43.0
1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 Silty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/re 2.2 moist, stiff, high plasticity 2.3 2.4 2.5	d, M	CH											>	42.8 42.7 42.6 42.5 42.4 42.3 42.3 42.2 42.2
<ul> <li>FILL - SAND some clay (Packing/Fat S orange/grey-brown, moist, medium der Side wall of Tank Pit has been scallope</li> <li>Silty CLAY: mottled pale brown/grey/re moist, stiff, high plasticity. No Refusal</li> </ul>	Sand), nse. ed out M ed, M	SC	BH9 3.0m	]										42.0
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 1;2	Level 2; 3	Level 3;	4 Level 4 S	SAMPLE	E IN E	XCAVA	TION	× APF	PROX	IMAT	TE GI	ROUNDF	_OOR LI	EVEL

	PROJECT: Gorringe ESA		Log of BH10
	CLIENT:	EASTING: 525970	GDA94
$\frac{\text{GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL}}{\text{SOLUTIONS}}$	Hobart Properties & Securities	NORTHING: 5253045	GDA94
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street,	North Hobart	ELEVATION AND DATUM: 45.5	5 m AHD
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environm	ental Solutions	TOTAL DEPTH (m): 1	
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	E LOGGED BY: A. Plummer	NATURAL (m): WATE	R TABLE (m):
SAMPLING: Core	DATE: 17/06/2017		
	Moisture Moisture Lithology Laboratory Sample Field PID (ppm)	IB105 Analyte IL Exceedances Bartemic Conserved IB105 Analyte IL Exceedances IB105 Analyte IB105 Analyte	
B E       0.0       FILL - GRAVEL: brown/grey, slightly r         0.1       dense         0.2       Sandy Silty CLAY: brown, moist, very         0.3       medium plasticity         0.4       0.5         0.6       0.7         0.8       0.9         1.0       1.0	noist, SM GWO stiff, M CL BH10 1.0m		Image: state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state stat
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 1;	2 Level 2; 3 Level 3; 4 Level 4 SAMPL		ATE GROUNDFLOOR LEVEL

	PROJECT: Gorringe ESA	L	og of BH11
	CLIENT:	EASTING: 525967	GDA94
$\frac{\text{GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL}}{\text{SOLUTIONS}}$	Hobart Properties & Securities	NORTHING: 5253067	GDA94
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street,	North Hobart	ELEVATION AND DATUM: 43.9	m AHD
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environm	ental Solutions	TOTAL DEPTH (m): 0.15	
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Direct Push Core	E LOGGED BY: A. Plummer	NATURAL (m): WATER TA	ABLE (m):
SAMPLING: Core	DATE: <b>17/06/2017</b>		
H (Seather and the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the section of the se	Moisture USCS Lithology Laboratory Sample Field PID (ppm)	IB102 Variable II Exceeded Barenne Barenne Barenne Barenne Barenne Barenne Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese Manganese M	MONITORING WELL HEATION MONITORING WELL HEATION
0.0 FILL - Concrete	P BH11 0.1m	2	
Silty CLAY: yellow/orange/brown, moi	st, <u>M</u> CH		F Internet
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION:	2 Level 2; 3 Level 3; 4 Level 4 SAMPL		GROUNDFLOOR LEVEL

	PROJECT: Gorringe ESA		Log of BH12
	CLIENT:	EASTING: 525994	GDA94
S O L U T I O N S	Hobart Properties & Securities	NORTHING: 5253042	GDA94
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, 1	North Hobart	ELEVATION AND DATUM:	43.7 <b>m AHD</b>
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ental Solutions	TOTAL DEPTH (m): 1.2	
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UE	) LOGGED BY: A. Plummer	NATURAL (m):	WATER TABLE (m):
SAMPLING: Direct Push	DATE: 11/12/2017		
	Moisture USCS Lithology Laboratory Sample Field PID (ppm)	Barlum Barlum Gamilum Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper Copper C	Hances Barzenson Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen Handragen
h + b       MATERIAL DESCRIPTION         0.0       FILL - Concrete Slab         0.1       -         0.2       FILL - CLAYEY GRAVEL: brown/grey,         0.3       slightly moist, dense         Sandy SILTY CLAY: brown/grey/orang         0.4       moist, stiff, medium plasticity         0.5       SILTY CLAY: brown/grey, moist, stiff, 1         0.6       plasticity. End         0.7       0.8         0.9       1.0         1.1       1.2	Image: sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sympletic sy		Image: Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base of Base o
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION:	2 Level 2; 3 Level 3; 4 Level 4 SAMPL		ROXIMATE GROUNDFLOOR LEVEL

	PROJECT: Gorringe ESA	L	og of BH13			
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:	EASTING: <b>526000</b>	GDA94			
SOLUTIONS	Hobart Properties & Securities	NORTHING: 5253030	GDA94			
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart		ELEVATION AND DATUM: 43.3	m AHD			
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environmental Solutions		TOTAL DEPTH (m): 0.55				
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UD LOGGED BY:A. Plummer		NATURAL (m): WATER TABLE (m):				
SAMPLING: Direct Push	DATE: 11/12/2017					
Image: Second state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state state sta	Stavey ss, dry	IB105 Analyte IT Exceedances Bartimum and an analysis and an analysis for the second minimum and an an an an an an an an an an an an an	MONITORING WELL WELL 43.2 43.1 443.0			
0.4 to slightly moist, dense, very low rock	stre SM ML BH13 0.4-0.5m		- <b>4</b> 2.9 42.8			
CEC	PROJECT:		log of BH14			
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	-----------------------------------------------------------------------------	--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	------------------------------	--	--	--
	Gorringe ESA					
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:	EASTING: 525987	GDA94			
SOLUTIONS	Hobart Properties & Securities	NORTHING: 5253023 GDA94				
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street,	North Hobart	ELEVATION AND DATUM: 43.2	m AHD			
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environm	ental Solutions	TOTAL DEPTH (m): 1.5				
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UE	D LOGGED BY: A. Plummer	NATURAL (m): WATER	TABLE (m):			
SAMPLING: Direct Push	DATE: 11/12/2017					
H Gauta Material description	Moisture USCS Lithology Laboratory Sample Field PID (ppm)	rtreenic aaruum Shomuum Shomuum Shomuum Shomuum Aaruu Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Shomuum Sheres Sheres Shomuum Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sheres Sher	ELEVATIO (metres)			
0.0 FILL - Concrete Slab 0.1- 0.2-	P		43.1 43.0			
0.3 FILL - GRAVEL: blue/grey, slightly mc loose, medium to coarse (20-40mm) c 0.4 angular Dolerite gravel FILL - SANDY CLAY: dark brown, moi 0.5 stiff, medium plasticity, few fine gravel	sist, SM GW BH14 0.3-0.4m	2 22 2 33	42.9 42.8 -42.7			
0.6 Sandy SILTY CLAY: mottled dark 0.7 brown/orange, moist, stiff, medium pla 0.8	asticity M CI		42.6 42.5 42.4			
0.9 SILTY CLAY: olive-brown, moist, firm 1.0 stiff, high plasticity. END 1.1	to	2	42.3			
1.2 1.3 1.4	MCH		42.0 44.9 41.9 41.8			
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION:	2] Level 2; 3] Level 3; 4 Level 4 SAMPL		E GROUNDFLOOR LEVEL			

CEC		Log of BH15	
	Gorringe ESA		
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:	EASTING: 525995	GDA94
S O L U T I O N S	Hobart Properties & Securities	NORTHING: 5252997	GDA94
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, N	lorth Hobart	ELEVATION AND DATUM:	42.25 <b>m AHD</b>
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ental Solutions	TOTAL DEPTH (m): 0.6	
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UD	LOGGED BY: A. Plummer	NATURAL (m):	WATER TABLE (m):
SAMPLING: Direct Push	DATE: 11/12/2017		
HE MATERIAL DESCRIPTION	Moisture USCS Lithology Sample Field PID (ppm)	Bartum Bartum Bartum Bartum Bartum Bartum Coppet Coppet Lead Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury Mercury M	ELEVATION ELEVATION ELEVATION ELEVATION ELEVATION ELEVATION ELEVATION ELEVATION
0.0 FILL - Concrete Slab 0.1 0.2 FILL - SAND: yellow-grey, slightly mois 0.3 Noose FILL - CLAYEY GRAVEL: 0.4 yellow-brown/grey, slightly moist, dens 0.5 Refusal 0.6	e. SM GC 0 0 8 BH15 0.5-0.6m		42.2 42.1 42.0 41.9 41.8 41.7

GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL       CLIENT:       EASTING:       525979       GDA94         SOLUTION:       66 Burnett Street, North Hobart       NORTHING:       5253059       GDA94         BORING LOCATION:       66 Burnett Street, North Hobart       ELEVATION AND DATUM:       45       m AHD	
SOLUTION:       66 Burnett Street, North Hobart       Hobart Properties & Securities       NORTHING:       5253059       GDA94         BORING LOCATION:       66 Burnett Street, North Hobart       ELEVATION AND DATUM:       45       m AHD	
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart ELEVATION AND DATUM: 45 m AHD	
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environmental Solutions TOTAL DEPTH (m): 3.5	
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UD LOGGED BY:A. Plummer NATURAL (m): WATER TABLE (m):	
SAMPLING: Direct Push DATE: 11/12/2017	
Matterial Constraints Matterial Straints Moisture Moisture Moisture Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Moisture Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Cabant Caban	ELEVATION (metres)
0.0 FILL - Concrete Slab 0.1 P	44.9 44.8
FILL - GRAVEL (FCR): brown-grey, slightly         0.3       moist, medium dense         FILL - GRAVELLY CLAY: dark grey-brown,         moist, stiff, medium plasticity	44.7 44.6
0.5 SILTY CLAY: pale olive-grey, moist, stiff, 0.6- high plasticity	-44.5 -44.4
0.7 M CH	44.3
0.9       Silty CLAYEY GRAVEL: pale yellow/grey, 1.0         dry, dense       0         1.1       22	44.1 44.0
1.2- 1.3- D GC	43.8 -43.7
	43.6 43.5
1.6     Silty GRAVELLY CLAY: orange/yellow,       1.7     slightly moist, very stiff, low plasticity	43.4 43.3
1.8- 1.9- 2.0	43.2
2.0 2.1 Silty CLANEX CRAVELy adda vallaw/gray	43.0 42.9
2.2 dry, dense	42.8
$D G\hat{C}_{O}$	42.6
	42.5
2.7 Gravelly SILTY CLAY: pale yellow-grey/red, 2.8 moist, stiff, low to medium plasticity. END	42.3
2.9 3.0 3.1	42.1 42.0
3.1 3.2-	41.9 41.8
3.3 3.4	41.7 41.6
	<b>└─</b> 41.5
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 1;2 Level 2; 3 Level 3; 4 Level 4 SAMPLE IN EXCAVATION 🗙 APPROXIMATE GROUNDFLOOR I	EVEL

	PROJECT: Gorring	e ESA	N N								Lo	g of BH1	7
	CLIENT				EASTING: 525073						GDA94		
$\frac{\text{GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL}}{\text{SOLULT LONS}}$	Hobart F	roperti	es & Securi	ties	EASTING. 525975								
	North Hoba	+			FLE				· /	55			
										0.0			
FOURIERING CONTINUE TO COOPTOIL				or			m).	). 2.1	10/0	TED	тлр	1 E (m):	
SAMPLING: Direct Push			1/12/2017						VVP		TAD		
	,u		\/12/2017			B105 Ai	nalyte	IL Excee	danc	es	ъ Т		NO
	Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratori Sample	Field PID (ppm)	Arsenic Barium Berylium Cadmium	Chromium Cobalt Copper Lead	Manganese Nickel Zinc Mercury	Chromium VI PCB's Aldrin+Dieldrin DDT etc Phenol	Benzo(a)pyrene PAH Sum Benzene	Toluene Ethylbenzene Total Xylenes	TPH C6 - C9 TPH C10 - C36 To Be Excavate	MONITORING WELL	ELEVATIO (metres
0.0 FILL - SANDY GRAVEL: grey/brown, 0.1 slightly moist, dense	SM	GWo										-	E-45.4
0.2 = FILL - Gravelly CLAYEY SAND: dark		> • • • 7.7.7.7.7											E-45.3
0.3 brown, slightly moist, medium dense	SM	////											E-45.2
0.4													-45.1
0.5 SILTY CLAY: olive brown/orange/trace	e red,		BH17 0.5-0.6	m									45.0 44 9
													E-44.8
0.8	м	СН											E-44.7
0.9													E-44.6
1.0													E-44.5
1.1 Extremely Weathered													E-44.4
1.2 SANDSTONE/SILTSTONE (banded): yellow/orange, slightly moist, dense, 1	ense												E-44.3
1.3 of medium plasticity clay at 1.8													E44.2
1.5													E-44.0
1.6													E-43.9
1.7													E-43.8
1.8													E-43.7
1.9	SM		BH17 1.9-2.0	m			2				Π		E-43.6
				J									E 43.5
2.1													E ^{43.4}
2.3													E-43.2
2.4													E-43.1
2.5													E-43.0
2.6													42.9
1		1	I										42.8
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 1;	2 Level 2; <b>3</b> L	evel 3;	Level 4 S	AMPLI	E IN EX	KCAVA	ΓΙΟΝ		PROX		TE G	ROUNDFLOOR L	EVEL

		PROJECT Gorring	: ge ESA	4									L	-0	gof BH	18	
G	EO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:				EASTING: 525981 G						DA94					
SOLUTIONS Hobart Properties & Securities						NO	RTHIN	IG:	52	5304	1			G	DA94		
во	RING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, N	lorth Hoba	rt			ELE	VATIO	A NC	ND [	DATUN	Л: <b>4</b>	43.	8	m	AHD		
DR	ILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environme	ental Soluti	ons			то	FAL DI	EPTI	H (m)	: 2							
EQ	UIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UD	L	OGGED E	BY: <b>A. Plum</b> r	ner	NA	FURAL	_ (m)	):		W	ATE	ER T.	ABL	E (m):		
SA	MPLING: Direct Push	C	ATE: 1	1/12/2017													
DEPTH (metres)	MATERIAL DESCRIPTION	Moisture	USCS Lithology	Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm)	Arsenic Barium Berylium	Chromium Chromium Cobalt Copper	Lead Manganese Nickel	Zinc Mercury Chromium VI	DDT etc	Benzo(a)pyrene a	Toluene Ethvlbenzene	Total Xylenes TPH C6 - C9	TPH C10 - C36 To Be Excavated	MONITORING WELL	ELEVATION (metres)	
0.0 =	FILL - Concrete Slab		Р													43.7	
0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5	SILTY CLAY: dark grey/black, moist, s high plasticity	iff, M	СН	ВН18 0.2-0.3	m				2							-43.6 -43.5 -43.4 -43.3	
0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9	Sandy SILTY CLAY: dark brown, moist very stiff, high plasticity	, M	СН		1.	(TTT		0								-43.2 -43.1 -43.0 -42.9	
1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6	Silty GRAVELLY CLAY: pale yellow-gr slightly moist, very stiff, low to meidum plasticity	ey, M	CI	BH18 0.9-1.0	im J			2								42.8 42.7 42.6 42.5 42.4 42.4 42.3 42.3	
1.7 1.8 1.9	SILTY CLAY: orange/yellow/grey, mois very stiff, medium plasticity, high silt content. END	t, M	CI													42.1 42.0 41.9 41.8	
Tas E	PA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 1;[2]	Level 2; <b>3</b>	Level 3;	4 Level 4 S	SAMPLE		XCAV		DN		PRO		IATE	GR	OUNDFLOOR	LEVEL	

	PROJECT: Gorringe ESA		Log of BH19		
G F O - F N V I R O N M F N T A I	CLIENT:	EASTING: 525964	GDA94		
$\frac{\text{GEO-ERVIROUMERTALE}}{\text{SOLUTIONS}}$	Hobart Properties & Securities	NORTHING: 5253033	GDA94		
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street,	North Hobart	ELEVATION AND DATUM: 44.1	m AHD		
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environm	ental Solutions	TOTAL DEPTH (m): 2			
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540U	D LOGGED BY: A. Plummer	NATURAL (m): WATE	R TABLE (m):		
SAMPLING: Direct Push	DATE: 11/12/2017				
H (s) H L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L	Moisture USCS Lithology Laboratory Sample Field PID (ppm)	Bartemic Bartemic Bartemic Bartemic Catomium Contentium Contentium Contentium Contentium Contentium Contentium Contentium Contentium Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury Marcury M			
h b b c       MATERIAL DESCRIPTION         0.0       FILL - Concrete Slab         0.1       -0.2         FILL - GRAVEL: dark brown-grey, mo         0.3       dense         SILTY CLAY: olive-brown, moist, stiff, plasticity         0.5       0.6         0.7       0.8         0.9       1.0         SILTY CLAY: orange/red, moist, stiff, plasticity. END         1.2       1.3         1.3       1.4         1.5       1.6         1.7       1.8         1.9	ist, high       M       P       P         M       GW       BH19 0.2-0.3m       BH19 0.2-0.3m         high       M       CH       BH19 0.9-1.0m         high       M       CH       BH19 0.9-1.0m		WELL       III         III       III         IIII       IIII         IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII		
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 1;	2 Level 2; 3 Level 3; 4 Level 4 SAMPL		ATE GROUNDFLOOR LEVEL		

		L	og of BH20				
G F O - F N V I R O N M F N T A I	CLIENT:	EASTING:	525973	GDA94			
$\frac{\text{GLO ERVIRORMENTAL}}{\text{S O L U T I O N S}}$		5252982	GDA94				
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street,	North Hobart	ELEVATION	ELEVATION AND DATUM: 42 m AHD				
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environm	ental Solutions	TOTAL DEPT	TH (m): <b>1.1</b>				
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UI	D LOGGED BY: A. Plur	mmer NATURAL (m	): WATER TA	BLE (m):			
SAMPLING: Direct Push	DATE: 11/12/201	7					
H G H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H	Moisture USCS Lithology Laboratory Sample	Field PID (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (ppm) (p	Zinckel Zinckel Mercury Crinomium V Crinomium V AcCB's Panol DDT etc Panol Banzene Banzene Totutene Totutene Totutene Totutene Total Veres TPH C6-C9 TPH C6-C9 TPH C6-C6	Do Be Excavated BUINOLINOW FLE VATIOI (metres)			
0.0 FILL - Concrete	Р			<b>4</b> 1.9			
0.2 FILL - Clayey GRAVEL: grey/brown, s 0.3 moist, medium dense 0.4	slightly SM GC BH20 0.5n	n		41.8 41.7 41.6 41.5			
0.6 Silty CLAY: dark grey-brown, moist, s 0.7 high plasticity 0.8 0.9	tiff, M CH			41.4 41.3 41.2 41.2 41.1			
1.0				E-41.0			
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 1;	2 Level 2; 3 Level 3; 4 Level 4	SAMPLE IN EXCAVATI	ON X APPROXIMATE	GROUNDFLOOR LEVEL			

	PROJEC ⁻ Gorrin	⊤: ge ESA	<b>\</b>								Lo	og of I	BH2	1
GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL	CLIENT:				EAS	TING:	5	26002	2			GDA94		
$\frac{\text{SECONTROLUMENTAL}}{\text{SOLUTIONS}}$	Hobart	Propertie	es & Secu	rities	NORTHING: 5252990					GDA94				
BORING LOCATION: 66 Burnett Street, I	North Hoba	art			ELEV	ATION	AND	DATU	M: 4	42.	7	m AHD		
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: Geo-Environm	ental Solut	tions			тоти	AL DEF	PTH (m	n): <b>1</b> .	.1					
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UE	<b>)</b> L	OGGED B	Y:A. Plum	mer	ΝΑΤΙ	JRAL (	m):		Ŵ	/ATE	R TA	BLE (m):		
SAMPLING: Direct Push	I	DATE: 1	1/12/2017											
EQUIPMENT/METHOD: Geoprobe 540UE SAMPLING: Direct Push MATERIAL DESCRIPTION 0.0 FILL - Sandy GRAVEL: dark brown, sl 0.1 FILL - GRAVEL & assorted debris, 0.2 brown/grey, slightly moist, dense, mar brick fragments FILL - Mixed Clayey SAND & Sandy C 0.4 brown/grey, moist, stiff, low plasticity of (Clay fraction has medium plasticity) 0.6 Sandy CLAY: grey/brown, moist, stiff, 0.7 medium plasticity, common fine charco fragment, some shell grit. No Refusal 0.9 1.0 1.1	D L	A CL	BH21 0.5m	mer Liefd PID				In the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second se	W eedar				RING	N (1991) N (199
Tas EPA IB105 CLASSIFICATION: Level 1;	2 Level 2; 3	Level 3;	4 Level 4	SAMPLE	E IN EX	(CAVA	TION	🗙 AF	PPRC	XIM	ATE G	GROUNDFL	OOR LI	EVEL

#### RECORD OF SITE INDUCTION AND APPRECIATION OF CMP

#### **APPENDIX 2 – Site Induction Form**

#### 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart

I have been informed of the contents of the CMP and the responsibilities I have in ensuring that the CMP is adhered to relating to the following issues:

- Understanding the site contamination status
- $\bullet$  Understanding the potential health impacts for site workers associated with site contamination
- Understanding the potential environmental impacts associated with site contamination
- Understanding how to reduce the risks to human health and the environment
- Maintaining documentation related to upholding the CMP

#### SOIL MANAGEMENT

- Excavation and stockpiling of soil at the site
- Movement of soil around the site
- Off-site disposal of soil
- Import of fill to the site
- Dust control

#### WATER MANAGEMENT

• • Stormwater management and sediment control

I HEREBY ACCEPT THESE RESPONSIBILITIES.

NAME: .....COMPANY:....

SIGNED ......DATE .....

INDUCTED BY: .....DATE

## RECORD OF SITE INDUCTION AND APPRECIATION OF CMP

#### Please sign on once you have read the CMP

Date	Name/ Company	Signature



# ARCHAEOLOGICAL SERVICES

433 Dorans Road Sandford Hobart Tasmania

Mobile: 0408 561 934 Email: <u>parryk@netspace.net.au</u> Web site <u>www.arctas.com.au</u>













# STATEMENT OF ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL & ARCHAEOLOGICAL METHOD STATEMENT

# **66 BURNETT STREET, NORTH HOBART**



Report prepared for Hobart Properties & Securities Pty Ltd By IRENE INC. & TASARC 5th June 2018

# CONTENTS

#### PART 1.STATEMENT OF ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL

1.0	INTRO	DUCTION	See Appendix
	1.1	Scope	See Appendix
	1.2	Site and existing development	See Appendix
	1.3	Proposed development	See Appendix
2.0	SITE D	DESCRIPTION	See Appendix
3.0	STATU	JTORY CONTROLS	See Appendix
	3.1	Tasmanian Heritage Register	
	3.2	Hobart Interim Planning Scheme 2015	See Appendix
	3.2.1	Development Standards for Places of Archaeological Potential	See Appendix
4.0	SITE H	IISTORY	See Appendix
	4.1	History of settlement in the area	See Appendix
	4.2	Historical phases	See Appendix
	4.3	Known disturbance history	See Appendix
5.0	ніято	RIC STRUCTURAL DEVELOPMENTS	4
	5.1	Pre 1830's	4
	5.2	Late 1830's	4
	5.3	1850's-1900	4
	5.4	Post 1900	4
6.0	HISTO	RICAL ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL ZONING	6
	6.1	Medium to High Archaeological potential	6
	6.2	Minimal to Low Archaeological potential	6
7.0	HISTO	RICAL ARCHAEOLOGY ENCOUNTERED IN URBAN CONTEXTS	8
	7.1	Structural footings	8
	7.2	Sub-floor archaeological deposits	8
	7.3	Cellars	8
	7.4	Privy cesspits	8
	7.5	Rubbish pits	8
	7.6	Hard landscaped areas	8
	7.7	Drainage features	
8.0	ABOR	IGINAL ARCHAEOLOGY	9
9.0	RECO	MMENDATIONS	9

#### PART 2. ARCHAEOLOGICAL METHOD STATEMENT

10.0	STATUTORY COMPLIANCE	10
11.0	CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES	10
12.0	ARCHAEOLOGICAL CONSULTANCY RESPONSIBILITIES	10
13.0	JOB VARIATIONS/CONSTRAINTS	10
14.0	SITE RESEARCH DESIGN	11
15.0	SITE BASED METHODOLOGY	11
16.0	ANALYSIS OF RECOVERED ARTEFACTS	11
17.0	COMPLETION OF FINAL REPORT	11
18.0	POTENTIAL FOR INTERPRETATION OF ARCHAEOLOGICAL DISCOVERIES	12
19.0	POTENTIAL FOR IN SITU PRESERVATION OF ARCHAEOLOGICAL DISCOVERIES	12
20.0	APPENDIX 20.1 Site History (Sections 1 through 4)	<b>13</b> 13

# PART 1 STATEMENT OF ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL

#### 5.0 HISTORIC STRUCTURAL DEVELOPMENTS

This section seeks to summarise the known physical developments on the subject site including all known structures throughout the known period of historical occupancy. A site plan overleaf shows the locations of these structures.

#### 5.1 Pre-1830's

There do not appear to have been any permanent structures erected on the site prior to the mid to late 1830's which is consistent with the known site history of the bulk of the North Hobart area. At this time, only the frontages onto major thoroughfares such as Elizabeth Street were being developed leaving areas to the rear structurally empty.

#### 5.2 Late 1830's

The land settlement pattern in north Hobart started to change however in the late 1830's as properties rearward of street side allotments were taken up as semi-rural venues for the purposes of food production or light industry. The land comprising the subject area was a beneficiary of this expansion as street side properties on Elizabeth street saw the construction of more infrastructure such as sheds and cottages to the rear of the main street. These now encroached and occupied the western edge of the subject area. However, at the same time the bulk of the property remained the domain of orchards and market gardens.

#### 5.3 1850's-1900

This period was one of intensification whereby yet more buildings were added to the western periphery of the subject site. Older out-buildings and cottages dating from the pre-1840's were demolished and new additions erected in their stead. But the bulk of the site remained planted with various food stuffs.

#### 5.4 Post 1900

The first half of the 20th century saw limited developments occur on the previously un-utilised farm lands. These were limited to sheds providing additional storage capacity for grown products and related equipment. However, from the 1950's the previously empty farmland allotments were acquired and developed by industry, most notably Gorringe's Garage complex. The arrival of industry also required the demolition of the rearward historic features related to the Elizabeth Street allotments for more substantive vehicle access. The present day structural landscape is a direct reflection of this period with no subsequent developments evident.



FIGURE 1. SITE PLAN SHOWING LOCATIONS AND EXTENT OF KNOWN HISTORIC FEATURES

#### 6.0 HISTORICAL ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL ZONING

This section seeks to summarise the various zones of archaeological potential within the subject property based on:

- Areas of known historic (19th century) structural occupancy
- Areas of known mid-20th century industrial structural occupancy
- The probability that resident historic structures and features have survived mid-20th century re-developments throughout the subject area

Two differing zone types have been adopted for the subject area. These have been based on the fact the site only exhibits two distinct areas of historic land usage:

- 1) The western periphery where culturally significant developments related to those properties on Elizabeth Street occurred between the late 1830's and 1900 (Section 6.1 below).
- 2) The remainder of the site where food production activities and associated lack of structural development prevailed until the 1950's when culturally insignificant industrial activities moved in (Section 6.2 below).

#### 6.1 Medium to High Archaeological potential

This area encompasses the western periphery of the subject area that accommodated a large number of out-buildings and small cottage-based domiciles related to adjacent properties on Elizabeth Street which they former a part of. These were erected between the late 1830's and 1900 and potentially consist of two generations of layered structural occupancy; hence its rating as an area of MEDIUM/HIGH Archaeological potential.

#### 6.2 Minimal to Low Archaeological potential

This area encompasses those parts of the subject area that hosted only open area agricultural pursuits between the early 19th and mid-20th centuries. Such areas comprise the greater bulk of the subject area (in excess of 55%). Because very little building related activity occurred here (in favour of planted food crops), this zone has been deemed to be of MINIMAL/LOW Archaeological potential.

Both zones are defined overleaf in Figure 2.



FIGURE 2. SITE PLAN SHOWING ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL ZONES WITHIN SUBJECT AREA Aqua blue solid areas are Minimal/Low potential zones requiring no additional works Clear areas defined by solid black outlines are Medium/High potential zones requiring excavation

#### 7.0 TYPICAL TYPES OF HISTORICAL ARCHAEOLOGY ENCOUNTERED IN URBAN CONTEXTS

This section seeks to clarify the types of archaeological features likely to be encountered within the area of Medium to High Archaeological Significance.

#### 7.1 Structural footings

These features typically consist of the stone or brick footings of buildings that have survived the demolition process. Although all fabric from the roof line down to the wall bases was generally demolished, any trenched or otherwise buried features such as footings were generally left *in situ* and a new construction level laid down over these remains as a labour-saving device. This method prevailed until mechanisation allowed machinery to remove elements of the building landscape more efficiently.

#### 7.2 Sub-floor archaeological deposits

During occupancy, detritus inevitably slipped through the timber floors of that period and gathered beneath alongside the bearers. This material included those items associated with the actual construction (worker's items) but more commonly the occupants. These deposits survived because they occurred at the same lower level as the adjacent building footings (7.1). Deposited contents include personal items such as women's personal items (jewellery, buttons, beads) children's toys (ceramic dolls, game tokens, marbles) and men's effects such as gambling items, smoking paraphernalia and concealed alcohol or pharmaceutical elixirs.

#### 7.3 Cellars

Underground cellars and basements occurring on sloping ground are often revealed in association with dwellings, public houses and public buildings. Demolition works tended to merely backfill these with resident soils and rubbish. As such their excavation often reveals information about the surrounding building fabric and style that is not revealed at the ground level.

#### 7.4 Privy cesspits

Although ostensibly serving as utilitarian toilet venues, these pits also offered a good locale to dispose of unwanted rubbish. Rubbish disposal often included items such as contraband, things specific to the resident trade or business, and treasured items that had become broken; hence their untimely disposal. These features inevitably survive because they too were sub-surface features.

#### 7.5 Rubbish pits

Because rubbish disposal had not yet become a civic responsibility, any opportunity was taken to dispose of unwanted items including kitchen rubbish. Although unwanted at the time these things often help in better understanding the lifestyles and personalities of the residents. Once again, as sub-surface features these pits tended to survive the historic demolition process.

#### 7.6 Hard landscaped areas

In addition to the structures erected on an allotment, adjacent yard-spaces were laid out to accommodate garden areas or high traffic thoroughfares involving carts, coaches and horses. These areas were often defined by paved sandstone and brick, compacted surfaces (crushed shell, ash, timber) or cobbling. As flat surfaces these features also generally survived the demolition process and serve to better define the location of historic activities on site.

#### 7.7 Drainage features

Historic attempts to better drain the Hobartian landscape often involved very labour intensive and exotic solutions involving underground engineering and use of all manner of materials. Once described and mapped these features can even assist in the dating of the site if all other indicators have been removed by demolition works.

#### 8.0 ABORIGINAL ARCHAEOLOGY

The presence of Aboriginal archaeological remnants is not overly anticipated at the subject site due to:

- The expected intensity of disturbance between the current ground level and the historic layers beneath
- The absence of landscape components such as water sources and promontories that might have made the subject area attractive to Aboriginal occupancy

However, protocols related to the discovery of Aboriginal archaeological discoveries are emplaced in the attached Archaeological Method Statement (Part 2).

#### 9.0 **RECOMMENDATIONS**

The results of this desk top investigation recommend that:

- Construction proceed in all areas deemed to be of **Minimal/Low Archaeological potential** without previous archaeological investigation. However, the discovery of any archaeological features during said activities should be reported to the consultant archaeologist for immediate assessment and mitigation.
- Areas deemed to be of Medium/High Archaeological potential be subject to a predetermined archaeological excavation strategy involving ground clearance and excavation of exposed historic features as defined in the attached 'Archaeological Method Statement' (Part 2).

Both these areas are delineated in Figure 2.

# PART 2 ARCHAEOLOGICAL METHOD STATEMENT

This document seeks to provide both a justification and methodology for the safe and ethical excavation of archaeological elements situated within the subject area.

#### **10.0 STATUTORY COMPLIANCE**

In association with the attached Statement of Archaeological Potential (SOAP), this Method Statement must form part of the relevant Development Application to the Hobart City Council (HCC). No construction or archaeological based works should occur without a permit.

#### **11.0 CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES**

Unless otherwise negotiated the client is responsible for the provision of the following:

- On site running water
- Perimeter fencing around the defined subject area
- Results from any and all engineering assessments of the site's sub-surface
- All 'Dial and Dig' data pertaining to the location and disposition of all services
- The safe demolition of all requisite above ground features without impacting on the subsurface that may contain sensitive archaeology
- Any traffic management responses
- A safe and currently rated mechanised excavator of no less than 5-ton capacity
- The engagement of a suitably qualified surveyor to locate and record the locations of all significant archaeological features
- Payment for on site excavation works and 'post dig' analysis, report authorship and printing

#### 12.0 ARCHAEOLOGICAL CONSULTANCY RESPONSIBILITIES

Unless otherwise negotiated the Archaeological consultant is responsible for the provision of the following:

- A licenced excavator operator to undertake mechanised excavation at the archaeologist's discretion
- The preparation of a Safe Work Method Statement (SWMS) addressing responsible and safe work practices for the consultancy's management and staff
- Archaeological excavation works as recommended in this report or subsequent negotiations based on up-dated construction-based information

#### 13.0 JOB VARIATIONS/CONSTRAINTS

The following factors are considered 'circumstances beyond the legal control of the archaeological consultant' and may result in the calendrical or financial alteration of the negotiated contract.

- Inclement weather that prevents safe or professionally responsible excavation activities
- Alteration to the existing excavation footprint by third parties
- Contamination issues relating to any evident chemical/bio hazards based on site-based evidence or prior advisement
- The discovery of Aboriginal materials that may require consultation with the relevant statutory body (Aboriginal Heritage Tasmania) or its nominees

- The discovery of any unanticipated (extraordinary discoveries) will require the immediate notification of the appropriate authorities
- The discovery of any human forensic remains will likewise require the immediate notification of the Tasmanian Police and the State Coroner

#### 14.0 SITE RESEARCH DESIGN

The excavation of archaeological sites not only expose physical fabric and artefacts. The disposition of both entities offers additional information about the physical development of the site that may assist in providing further information on the following:

- The urban development of Hobart (Town) during the 19th century
- The development of North Hobart as a satellite suburb of Hobart during the first generations of European settlement
- The nature of occupancy of the resident buildings within the subject area
- The nature and identities of the occupants themselves
- The professional activities that may have occurred on the site that are not evident in the historic record

The recovery of such information may also have broader implications for other research fields.

#### 15.0 SITE BASED METHODOLOGY

In order to most efficiently expose, excavate, record and recover portable items of significance from the subject area, the following activities will be undertaken:

- A mechanical excavator will be used to strip all existing hard surfaces and overburden above the archaeological layers and deposits
- Any archaeological features and deposits will be hand stripped and excavated
- All features will be recorded in a field note book and digitally photographed
- The location and extent of all features will be recorded by a licenced surveyor
- All excavated artefacts will be bagged according to location and removed off site for analysis (See Section 16.0 below)

#### 16.0 ANALYSIS OF RECOVERED ARTEFACTS

After recovery, all artefacts will be assessed for their capacity to impart information about their identity and relevance to the site. Unrevealing (non-diagnostic) artefacts will be discarded leaving a core collection that will undergo a cleaning and analysis process which will:

- attempt to identify and date the artefacts
- draw meaning from their presence on site
- explain their ultimate relevance to the site and the historic activities undertaken there

#### 17.0 COMPLETION OF FINAL REPORT

The results of the historical research, on-site excavation and artefact analysis will be combined to best explain the nature and contents of the subject area's archaeology. This will be collectively written up in a report that will be distributed to all interested parties.

#### 18.0 POTENTIAL FOR ON SITE INTERPRETATION OF ARCHAEOLOGICAL DISCOVERIES

Some of Hobart's recent private and public building developments now include displays relating to the resident archaeological investigations undertaken there. These displays include:

- Interesting artefacts that may uniquely relate to the site or the history of Hobart
- Text and images explaining the historical/physical development of the site
- Biographical 'cameos' of interesting persons and/or activities known to have occurred at the site

Such a display would be housed sympathetically within a publicly accessible area within the development. It would also be designed and displayed in a professional manner.

#### 19.0 POTENTIAL FOR IN SITU PRESERVATION OF ARCHAEOLOGICAL DISCOVERIES

In the event that sub-surface remains discovered during the archaeological excavation are found to be sufficiently unusual or interesting to the broader community, consideration should be given to their retention and ultimate display within the new development.

#### 20.0 APPENDIX

20.1 Site History report

# 66 BURNETT STREET, NORTH HOBART

Site History Report

Last Updated - 19 December 2017 Author - Jacqui Blowfield

This report is subject to copyright the owner of which is Planning Tas Pty Ltd, trading as Ireneinc Planning and Smith Street Studio. All unauthorised copying or reproduction of this report or any part of it is forbidden by law and is subject to civil and criminal penalties as set out in the Copyright Act 1968. All requests for permission to reproduce this report or its contents must be directed to Irene Duckett.

#### TASMANIA

49 Tasma Street, North Hobart, TAS 7000 Tel (03) 6234 9281 Fax (03) 6231 4727 Mob 0418 346 283 Email planning@ireneinc.com.au

**ireneinc** PLANNING & URBAN DESIGN

# CONTENTS

CONT	ENTS	2
1. IN 1.1	TRODUCTION SCOPE	3
1.2	SITE AND EXISTING DEVELOPMENT	3
1.3	PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT	3
2. SI ⁻	TE DESCRIPTION	4
3. ST	ATUTORY CONTROLS	6
3.1	TASMANIAN HERITAGE REGISTER	6
3.2	HOBART INTERIM PLANNING SCHEME 2015	6
3.2.1	Development Standards for Places of Archaeological Potential	7
4. SI ⁻	TE HISTORY	8
4.1	HISTORY OF SETTLEMENT IN THE AREA	8
4.2	HISTORICAL PHASES	11
4.3	DISTURBANCE HISTORY	18
4.4	ARCHAEOLOGICAL SIGNIFICANCE AND POTENTIAL	19
5. CC	DNCLUSION	20

# 1. INTRODUCTION

#### 1.1 SCOPE

Ireneinc Planning have been engaged to prepare a report which details the history of the subject land in light of the proposed development at 66 Burnett Street, North Hobart.

#### 1.2 SITE AND EXISTING DEVELOPMENT

The land comprising the site is 66 Burnett Street (Title ref: 26099/4).

This property currently contains large existing buildings currently operating as Donald Gorringe Reconditioning and Spare Parts Pty Ltd, an automotive repair centre and machining workshop. The proposal will include demolition of the existing buildings.

#### 1.3 PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

The proposed use and development will provide a multistorey apartment building which will provide residential and visitor accommodation and include a 3 storey building in the Elizabeth Street access which will include a ground commercial, and residential accommodation above.

The main part of the development will be comprised of a 2 level podium with parking, storage, visitor accommodation and gym, above this there will be 5 levels of apartments.

The development will include some extent of site excavation for approximately 1/3 the site area with a depth between 1-2m, with the maximum cut required in the area of the L1 Gym to approximately 2.5m as detailed in the architectural plans.

# 2. SITE DESCRIPTION



Figure 1: Topographic Plan with site highlighted (LISTMap)



Figure 2: Aerial Plan with site highlighted (LISTMap)

The following images provide a description of the site, its existing development and surrounds.



Figure 3: Elizabeth Street accessway from entry



Figure 4: from inside site viewing southeast along boundary with 285 Elizabeth Street



Figure 5: from inside site viewing north, to 64 Burnet Street office building and beyond, to buildings located opposite in Burnett Street



Figure 6: from inside site viewing along rear boundary of 285 Elizabeth Street southeast towards Tasma Street



Figure 7: from inside site viewing northwest towards rear of 297 Elizabeth Street & Republic including sandstone wall along boundary



Figure 8: Burnett St accessway, showing existing shared access and parking area

# 3. STATUTORY CONTROLS

#### 3.1 TASMANIAN HERITAGE REGISTER

The area around the site contains a substantial number of heritage listed places (mapped in the figure below), the subject land is not listed. The nearest built fabric of heritage significance, is the rear boundary wall of 299 Elizabeth Street (the Republic Bar & Café, formally the Empire Hotel) which is located adjacent to the access to the subject land.



Figure 9: The subject land is outlined in red, THC listed places outlined in dark blue, HIPS Heritage Places are shaded in dark blue, HIPS Heritage Precincts are outlined in mid blue and HIPS Places of Archaeological Potential shaded in light blue.

#### 3.2 HOBART INTERIM PLANNING SCHEME 2015

The Historic Heritage Code of the *Hobart Interim Planning Scheme 2015* contains provisions related to Heritage Places, Heritage Precincts, Cultural Landscape Precincts and Places of Archaeological Potential.

The preceding figure identifies the various listed places (including the THC listed places) in and around the subject land.

The Purpose of the Historic Heritage Code is:

E13.1.1 To recognise and protect the historic cultural heritage significance of places, precincts, landscapes and areas of archaeological potential by regulating development that may impact on their values, features and characteristics.

The subject land is not a Heritage Place. The adjacent sandstone wall at the rear of the Republic (previously Empire Hotel) is, however the proposal does not intend buildings or works which would impact on the heritage fabric, as the area adjacent to this boundary is being retained as access utilising the existing crossover.

The majority of the subject land is not within a Heritage Precinct, the exception being the access strip from Elizabeth Street which is within the NH6 -Elizabeth Street - Precinct.

The majority of the site (all area except the Elizabeth Street access area) is at the north-eastern edge of the mapped area of Archaeological Potential, also as detailed in the preceding figure.

#### 3.2.1 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR PLACES OF ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL

The following provisions are relevant to the site, except the Elizabeth Street access strip which falls outside.

E13.10.1 Building, Works and Demolition	
<b>Objective:</b> To ensure that building, works and demolition at a place of archaeological potential is planned and implemented in a manner that seeks to understand, retain, protect, preserve and otherwise appropriately manage significant archaeological evidence.	
A1	P1
Building and works do not involve excavation or ground disturbance.	Buildings, works and demolition must not unnecessarily impact on archaeological resources at places of archaeological potential, having regard to:
	<ul> <li>(a) the nature of the archaeological evidence, either known or predicted;</li> </ul>
	(b) measures proposed to investigate the archaeological evidence to confirm predictive statements of potential;
	(c) strategies to avoid, minimise and/or control impacts arising from building, works and demolition;
	(d) where it is demonstrated there is no prudent and feasible alternative to impacts arising from building, works and demolition, measures proposed to realise both the research potential in the archaeological evidence and a meaningful public benefit from any archaeological investigation;
	(e) measures proposed to preserve significant archaeological evidence 'in situ'.

# 4. SITE HISTORY

#### 4.1 HISTORY OF SETTLEMENT IN THE AREA

The history of the area is detailed in *North Hobart Heritage Areas - A detailed Assessment*, Prepared by Katheryn Bennett for Hobart City Council:

The section of Elizabeth Street that crosses this part of North Hobart was laid out by 1828, as were the intersecting cross streets of Warwick, Burnett, and Colville Streets.³³ It was in the later years of the nineteenth century that Tasma, Pitt, Lefroy, and Swan Streets were created.

Development along Elizabeth Street appears to have been considerably advanced by the late 1830s, particularly between Warwick Street and Arthur Street (which was the northern town boundary). The importance of Elizabeth Street grew as it became the 'Road to the Interior", for it was by this road that places further north could be reached ...

Despite this development, land further north between Arthur and Federal Streets was still largely rural in function by the 1840s. William Shoobridge's farm, part of which fronted onto Elizabeth Street, was established in 1822, and operated until the 1860s. There were also several dairies within the area, one was located at the corner of Elizabeth and Burnett Streets in the 1830s. Market gardens and orchards were also established in the early years. In the 1820s, for example, the licensee of the Dallas Arms Inn (now 313A Elizabeth Street) applied for a further three acres to enable him to establish a market garden.³⁵

Numerous industries were established from the early days. In the 1820s, Henry Condell established a brewery at a site now occupied by Condell Place. A plough manufactory run by Mr Holdship was operating from what is now 279 Elizabeth Street in the 1830s; and a blacksmith's shop was started by Benjamin Holroyd at 350 Elizabeth Street in the 1860s³⁶. ...

In the 1890s, the area became increasingly built up due to the introduction of a tram service to the area, the main line ran along Elizabeth Street. By the early 1900s, both sides of Elizabeth Street were substantially built upon, and had become a densely packed commercial/residential strip. Stores were to be found on nearly every corner, and family businesses, such as Soundy's Department Store (established in 1883), were regularly patronised by the locals.

The site originally formed part of a number of grants, to Robert Frost, Ann Maria Chandler, John Brown and Abraham Rheuben as detailed in the following extract from the former Lands

³³ Vincent, R., 1999, North Hobart Heritage Study, p38.
35 Vincent, R., 1999, North Hobart Heritage Study, pp41-42.
36 Ibid, pp48-49.

Department Town Grant Charts:



Figure 10: Town Grants Chart with subject land outlined in red (LISTMap)

The pattern of development for the area is also described in Sprent's Book of the 1840's described in the following figures:



Figure 11: Sprents Book with subject land outlined in red (LISTMap)



Figure 12: Sprents Book with subject land outlined in red (LISTMap)

The above figure describes the subject land located aligning with the rear of boundary of the 4 grant lots with buildings largely clustered towards Elizabeth Street, although there is a building indicated which may have been a cottage located at the boundary of 64 & 66 Burnett Street.

#### 4.2 HISTORICAL PHASES

In George Frankland's 1836 Plan of Hobart, with the town boundary extending north to Arthur Street, the streets surrounding the subject land are laid out and buildings are evident along the Elizabeth Street, Tasma Street (then High Street) and Argyle Street edges, with no structures indicated within the central area of the block, as described in the following figure:



Figure 13: Extract from Hobart Town Plan, George Frankland Surveyor General C.1836-7



Figure 14: Extract with indicative site location, from Hobart Town Plan, George Frankland Surveyor General C.1836-7

A slightly later Frankland Map (1838) further describes the development of the town including the block containing the subject land, as follows:



Figure 15: Hobart Town Plan, George Frankland 1838



Figure 16: Extract - Hobart Town Plan, George Frankland 1838



Figure 17 & 18: Aerial of existing site development and overlay with Sprents Book (LISTMap)

No buildings identified in Sprents Book are located under the existing buildings on the site. The building which was located across the boundary of 64 & 66 Burnett is located in part of the site which forms part of the paved areas surrounding the existing buildings used to park and store vehicles.

The other buildings described are what appear as small outbuilding and a dwelling across the shared boundaries with 285 Elizabeth Street which has been redeveloped in recent years.

To the north west of the subject land the warehouse development apparent today to a great degree aligns with lot boundaries detailed by Sprent of the original grant to William Johnson. This historic layout includes reference to a roadway which remains the access to these lots presently.

A little later with the town expanding north development was increasing in North Hobart as described in Richard Jarman's plan of 1858, as follows:


Figure 19: extract from Map of Hobart Town, Richard Jarman 1858

The following figure describes the Metropolitan Drainage Board Detail Plan for the block in 1905-10.



Figure 20: extract Hobart Detail Plan No. 20, Metropolitan Drainage Board c1905-10

At this date this above plan indicates the subject land still largely vacant with the exception of some outbuilding in the rear yards of the Elizabeth Street properties and 2 dwellings at the front of what would now be 64 Burnett Street.

Additionally, in the above plan the area where a building was indicated on the Sprent plan, at the rear of 64 Burnett (across the boundary with 66 Burnett) is no longer shown indicating it had already been demolished. For garden and outbuildings for these 2 houses.

Through the 1900's the area of the site and surrounds went through a number of developments and redevelopments as various commercial businesses, including Gorringe's on the subject land and the previous service station on Elizabeth Street, were established and further developed.

These phases are detailed in the aerial photo history of the area collated from DPIPWE, the following diagrams are from the report '*Preliminary Environmental Site Assessment*' by Geo-Environmental Solutions.



Figure 21: Plate 3 Historical Aerial Photograph, The Site 1946 (Geo Environmental Solutions)



Figure 22: Plate 5 Historical Aerial Photograph, The Site 1957 (Geo Environmental Solutions)



Figure 23: Plate 7 Historical Aerial Photograph, The Site 1965 (Geo Environmental Solutions)



Figure 24: Plate 9 Historical Aerial Photograph, The Site 1973 (Geo Environmental Solutions)

## 4.3 DISTURBANCE HISTORY

As detailed in the above history the disturbance to building in and around the subject land includes:

- The demolition of a previous earlier building, construction of 2 dwellings located on lots now 64 Burnett and entry to 66 Burnett (along with small associated outbuildings) and their subsequent demolition for the current office building at 64 Burnett Street between 1965 and 1969.
- Demolition of buildings within 5 properties which now form 285 Elizabeth Street, sometime between 1957 and 1965 for the development of the service station, then the more recent demolition site decontamination and redevelopment for the existing Elizabeth Mews mixed use development in 2012.
- Demolition at 281 Elizabeth Street of an original building (from Sprents 1940's plan) and construction after 1905-10 of a dwelling and later rear warehouse.
- Demolition and replacement of the hotel (originally Rose and Crown, licenced in 1930 name changed to Empire Hotel in 1921) at 299 Elizabeth Street in 1938, now the Republic. The redevelopment in 1938 retained the sandstone yard wall adjacent to the subject land.

## 4.4 ARCHAEOLOGICAL SIGNIFICANCE AND POTENTIAL

Based on the history of the site and surrounds, which show limited if any development of the main body of the lot through earlier settlement phases through the 1800's, it appears there is a very low likelihood of important archaeological evidence being located within the body of the lot and developable area within the mapped potential area.

It is also appears that, given the extensive development and redevelopment of both the subject land and neighbouring land along the road frontages through the 1900's there is a high potential that any previous earlier archaeological evidence from the previous rear yards and outbuildings would have been removed or significantly disturbed through these development phases.

# 5. CONCLUSION

### 5.1.1 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR PLACES OF ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL

The proposed development is required to meet the following standard:

#### E13.10.1 Building, Works and Demolition

**P1** Buildings, works and demolition must not unnecessarily impact on archaeological resources at places of archaeological potential, having regard to:

- (a) the nature of the archaeological evidence, either known or predicted;
- (b) measures proposed to investigate the archaeological evidence to confirm predictive statements of potential;
- (c) strategies to avoid, minimise and/or control impacts arising from building, works and demolition;
- (d) where it is demonstrated there is no prudent and feasible alternative to impacts arising from building, works and demolition, measures proposed to realise both the research potential in the archaeological evidence and a meaningful public benefit from any archaeological investigation;
- (e) measures proposed to preserve significant archaeological evidence 'in situ'.

As detailed in the history and chronology of the development of the area of both the subject land and surrounds the site and proposed development meet this standard as follows:

a) The subject land is adjacent to Elizabeth Street which formed an early development corridor northward out of the early settlement area of Hobart towards the interior and further to Launceston. There is therefore reasonable documented history of the development of the area.

Much of the early development of the area was for agriculture and later for residential buildings with accompanying services aimed at travellers heading out of town. Later phases then became more used for industrial and warehousing activities.

The sequence of maps through the history of Hobart's development describe the land and detail how most of the build development remained along the road frontages not extending back in to the area of the existing building on the site.

- b) Given the history it is not considered that any specific measures are necessary to investigate archaeological evidence within the development area.
- c) The development area avoids previously documented areas of significant heritage fabric within the mapped potential area and therefore the site minimises the potential for impact on archaeology.
- d) Any material or artefacts discovered in the demolition and excavation phase of the development could be retained for research purposes.
- e) No measures are considered necessary to preserve 'in situ' archaeology given the history undertaken indicated a very low likelihood of built heritage within the development area.